
 
 

  
  

 
 

  
 

  

  

   
  

 
 

  

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

   

  

  
   

  
 

             
    

     
          

  

Local Planning Agency 
Agenda 

Thursday, January 23, 2020 
9:00 A.M. 

Bonita Springs City Hall 
9101 Bonita Beach Road 

Bonita Springs, Florida 34135 

I. CALL TO ORDER. 

II. ROLL CALL.  

III. REVIEW OF THE FOLLOWING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT RELATING 
TO THE WATER SUPPLY PLAN: 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS, FLORIDA, PROVIDING 
FOR ADOPTION OF A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT RELATING TO THE 
WATER SUPPLY PLAN OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE AND CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT ELEMENTS; PROVIDING FOR INTENT; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

IV. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS, FLORIDA, PROVIDING 
FOR ADOPTION OF A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT TO THE FUTURE 
LAND USE ELEMENT, ESTABLISHING THE CONSERVATION FRINGE LAND 
USE CATEGORY AND TO AMEND THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP FROM LEE 
COUNTY DENSITY REDUCTION GROUNDWATER RESOURCE (DRGR) AND 
WETLANDS AND CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS DENSITY REDUCTION 
GROUNDWATER RESOURCE (DRGR) TO CONSERVATION FRINGE; PROVIDING 
FOR INTENT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 11/14/19 

VI. ADJOURNMENT. 

Any person requiring special accommodations at any of the meetings because of a disability or 
physical impairment should contact Meg Weiss, Director of Administrative Services at 239-949-6262, 
at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

If a person decides to appeal a decision made by the Board in any matter considered at this 
meeting/hearing, such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, to 
include the testimony and evidence upon which any such appeal is to be based. NOTE:  THIS MEETING IS 
TELEVISED ON COMCAST, CHANNEL 98. MEETINGS CAN BE VIEWED AND AGENDAS ARE AVAILABLE AT 
WWW.CITYOFBONITASPRINGS.ORG 

http://www.cityofbonitasprings.org/
http://www.cityofbonitasprings.org/


Memorandum 
from the 

Bonita Springs City 
Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 

Date: January 15, 2020 

To: Arleen M. Hunter From: Sean Gibbons 
City Manager Community Development Dept. 

Re: Draft Ordinance: Comprehensive Plan Amendment: Water Supply 

Community Development and Bonita Springs Utilities have worked together to update the 
comprehensive plan following the South Florida Water Management District's (SFWMD) 
update to its Lower West Coast Regional Water Supply Plan. The SFWMD completed 
their Plan on December 14, 2017 and, following that update, the City is required to 
prepare a 10-year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan and adopt revisions to the City's 
Comprehensive Plan addressing the water supply requirements within 18 months of the 
regional plan's approval. 

The City of Bonita Springs adopted its Remaining EAR State Mandated Amendments on 
December 4, 2019 (DEO Case 19-01 ER). The EAR State Mandated Amendments 
included an amendment that updated Table: 1-10, Water Supply Capital Improvements 
Projects (2020-2030), which is a part of the City's Water Supply Facilities Work Plan 
(Capital Improvements Element). Community Development and Bonita Springs Utilities 
have updated the 10-year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan and find that no additional 
amendments to the goals, objectives, or policies are required. A copy of the work plan is 
included as an attachment to the ordinance. 

DCD/ 
Attachments 
cc: Matt Feeney, Assistant City Manager 

Derek Rooney, City Attorney 
Carly Sanseverino, Staff Atorney 
Debbie Filipek, City Clerk 
John Dulmer, Director, Community Development 
Jacqueline Genson, AICP, Planning and Zoning Manager 
Leah Fontanez, Community Development Administrative Assistant 
Kim Hoskins, P.E., Director, Engineering, BSU 



BONITA SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL IGREEN SHEET: 120-

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
REQUESTED MOTION: Commence with the transmittal process for comprehensive plan amendments 
related to the Water Supply Plan, and if approved, transmit to the Florida Department of Economic 
Opportunity (DEO) through the Expedited State Review Amendment Process. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION OF A 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE RELATING TO THE WATER SUPPLY PLAN OF THE 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ELEMENTS; PROVIDING FOR INTENT; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

MEETING DATE: 

REQUIREMENT/PURPOSE: (Specify)AGENDA: 

PRESENTATIONS X 

CONSENT X 

X PUBLIC HEARING 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
MEMBER ITEMS 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
MEMBER'S REPORTS 

CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS 

CITY MANAGER ITEMS 

BACKGROUND: 

STATUTE 

ORDINANCE - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

ADMIN. CODE 

OTHER 

REQUESTOR OF INFORMATION: 

Jacqueline Genson, AICP 
Planning and Zoning Manager 

And 

Kim Hoskins, P.E., BSU 
Director of Engineering 

The South Florida Water Management District's (SFWMD) updated to its Lower West Coast Regional Water Supply Plan on 
December 14, 2017 and as required by statue, following that update, the City is required to prepare a 10-year Water Supply Facilities 
Work Plan and adopt revisions to the City's Comprehensive Plan addressing the water supply requirements within 18 months of the 
regional plan's approval. 

The City of Bonita Springs adopted its Remaining EAR State Mandated Amendments on December 4, 2019 (DEO Case 19-01 ER). 
The EAR State Mandated Amendments included an amendment that updated Table: 1-10, Water Supply Capital Improvements 
Projects (2020-2030), which is a part of the City's Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (Capital Improvements Element). Community 
Development and Bonita Springs Utilities have updated the 10-year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan and find that no additional 
amendments to the goals, objectives, or policies are required. A copy of the work plan is included as an attachment to the ordinance. 

IS THIS RELATED TO A STRATEGIC PLAN OBJECTIVE? □ YES X NO (Required by State Statute) 

IF YES, WHICH STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE? 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Motion to approve and transmit to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO). 

REVIEWED BY: 

City Manager: 
City Attorney: 
City Clerk: 
Department Director: 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

-- APPROVED 

-- DENIED 

-- DEFERRED 

-- OTHER 



POTABLE WATER SUB-ELEMENT 

Introduction 

The City ofBonita Springs is not the water supplier for its residents. Of the potable water supplied 
by public or private facilities, Bonita Springs Utilities, Inc. (BSU) supplies approximately 96% of 
water needs, with Citrus Park RV Resort (Citrus Park) providing the remaining 4%. These systems 
provide the potable water for both residential and non-residential uses, including fire-fighting 
demands. Other sources of water within Bonita Springs include individual wells. At this time, 
data is not available regarding the number of private wells. 

This is the City of Bonita Spring's update to its Water Supply Plan, which supports the intent of 
legislation adopted in 2005 to improve the coordination of water supply planning and local land 
use planning. 

Data and analysis indicates that current water sources are sufficient to meet demands of future 
growth in Bonita Springs through 2025 and additional potable water sources during this time will 
not be necessary. However, water treatment facilities will require expansion in order to meet 
demands through 2025. 

Public Potable Water Facilities Inventory 

a. Operational Responsibility 

BSU is responsible for approximately 96% ofthe City's water system service area. The remaining 
four percent is provided by a private facility located in Citrus Park. Citrus Park is in the preeess ef 
reaevliag their Water Use Permit (WUP) P..pplieatiea #130509 17 with Sf'N}..4D. Their e\:lrreat 
permit mq,ired in 2013 and te date, the reaev1al permit has net been issl:led. As provided in 
SFWMD Water Use Permit (WUP) # 36-00108-W Citrus Park is permitted the use of groundwater 
from the Water Table Aquifer and Lower Tamiami Aquifer for a public water supply for the Citrus 
Park service area serving 3,450 persons in the year 2039 with an average per capita use rate of 66 
gallons per day, an annual allocation of 83.11 (MG) (227,699 GPD), a total maximum monthly 
allocation is 10.18 million gallons (MG) and maximum monthly to average monthly pumping ratio 
1.47-to-l. Withdrawals are taken from the Water Table Aquifer (WTA) and Lower Tamiami 
Aquifer (LTA) via three existing withdrawal facilities (wells). 

Allocation limits for the specific sources (aquifers) are as follows: Maximum annual allocation 
from Lower Tamiami Aquifer shall not exceed 66.50 million gallons (MG); Maximum annual 
allocation from Water Table Aquifer shall not exceed 16.61 million gallons (MG); Maximum 
monthly allocation from Lower Tamiami Aquifer shall not exceed 8.30 million gallons (MG); 
Maximum monthly allocation from Water Table Aquifer shall not exceed 1.88 million gallons 
(MG). 

i\eeerdiag te the '>mP applieatiea, the Citrus Park faeility prevides serviee as follews: 



...... . . 
~ 

1~dditianal FutuFe 
T\ ~ 'T'. ·--
...., •• -AAAAA,.., ,L J ..-- Number Yftits n----1-L!--... . NHmher Ynits n ____1-L! ---

... -..-
R:eereatienal %8 -1--;9¾ Q Q 

¥ehiele Sites 
Mehile Rames ~ ~ 0 Q 

Single Family % ~ M w 

+etal ~ ~ M ~ 

Seuree: Citrus Pafk '.VUP Rene'ual PeFmit A.pplieatien #130509 17 

The Reereatienal Vehiele Sites and Mehile Rames are primarily seasenal av:eraging 2 persens per 
heHseheld, v.rhile the single family sites have a mere peFmanent pepulatien vlith an average ef 3 
persens per heusehela. Note that the e~dsting and future pepulatien figures in the pending VlUP 
renewal are higher than data retleeted in the 2012 L01.11er West Ceast Water Sepply Plan Ypdate. 

b. Service Area 

The BSU system serves primarily urbanized areas with the northern boundary generally being 
Williams Road and the southern boundary at the City limits along the Collier County line, the Gulf 
of Mexico to the west and the city limit to the east. The predominant land uses are residential, 
commercial, industrial, recreational, and public and semi-public uses. As ofDecember~ 2018, 
the BSU service area includes approximately 41,901 47674 equivalent residential connections 
(ERC) with an average daily demand of8-m 10.09 MGD in 201 J~. 

Citrus Park provides water service to approximately 1,626 units with an average daily demand of 
.5 MGD. The Citrus Park service area has a northern boundary at Holly Lane with a southern 
boundary at Limerock Road, 1st Street to the west and 14th Street to the east. 

Additionally, individual wells (for potable water) self-serve an undetermined number of single
family homes within the City limits. 

Map 1 I: Serviee Area hy Pre:vider identifies the serviee area ef eaeh pre:vider. 



Map 1-1: Service Area by Provider 

0 0.5 1-- -- - ---- ----

Collier County 

Water Treatment Plants 

Table 1-1: Water Treatment Facility Locations lists the water treatment facilities and the location 
of the site. 

BSU currently operates a lime softening plant permitted for 9 MGD and a reverse osmosis (RO) 
plant permitted for~ 8.56 MGD on a single site located at -l--l-86G 11900 East Terry Street. The 
facility allows expansion to meet additional needs consistent with permit specifications. 

The Citrus Park water treatment facility is located at 25501 Trost Boulevard and has a f)ermitted 
eapaeity of 0.520 MGD. Citrus Park is ia the f)roeess of desigaiag a 0.100 MGD re,ierse osmosis 
·.vater treatmeat f)laat. They aatieif)ate that the aet v.cater f)laat desiga eapaeity ·.viii be redueed 
from the eerreat 0.520 MGD to 0.495 MGD operates at a plant treatment capacity of0.49 million 
gallons (MG) per day. Approximately 80% of the groundwater is from the LT A source and 20% 
from the WTA source. Half of the groundwater from the LT A is treated through a reverse osmosis 
(RO) treatment facility (0.1 MG per day capacity) to reduce the chloride concentration. The RO 



treated groundwater from the LTA (approximately 75% efficiency) is mixed with groundwater 
from the LTA (untreated) and WTA prior to treatment with a degassifier (to remove iron and 
hydrogen sulfide) to produce potable drinking water. The average distribution losses is estimated 
to be at approximately 8%. The Citrus Park Waste Water Treatment Facility is permitted under 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection Permit (FDEP) FLA-014477 and treats the 
wastewater with chlorination prior to discharging into the rapid infiltration basins, located 500 feet 
west of the wellfield, with a capacity of 0.2 MG per day, for aquifer recharge. 

Table 1-1: Water Treatment Facilities 
Provider Location Number of Plants 

BSU l 1800 11900 East Terry Street 2 
Citrus Park 25501 Trost Boulevard 1 
Source: BSU, CUP permits. Special Note: BSU is permitted as one plant with two processes. 
Source: Citrus Park WUP Renewal Permit Aoolication #lJQ§Q9 l+ 190515-9 

d. Water Quality 

BSU treated water meets federal and state requirements for safe drinking water. 

Citrus Park has also obtained proper DEP and DOH for the operation of their potable water 
facilities. Aeeordiag to their 20 l 3 AaaHal Water QHality Report, there were some seeoadary 
eoatamiaaats (odor aad total dissolved oxygea), bHt ao primary eontamiaaats. They are also 
required to meet federal and state requirements for safe drinking water. 

e. Distribution System 

BSU has approximately 4#-477 miles of water mains varying in size from 2 inches to 48 inches 
as of December 201J.~. All new installations are minimum 4-inches in size with a minimum 6-
inch main to fire hydrants. Service lines, which connect the water main lines to individual homes, 
are typically a I-inch line with a ¾-inch meter. 

f. Public Wells 

BSU operates 19 freshwater wells ranging in diameters of 8 - 12 inches and depths of 80 to 115 
feet and &-15 brackish water wells ranging in diameters of 12 - 14 inches and depths of 700 to 
1,120 feet. 

According the 2019 Citrus Park WUP Reae1t·val Permit A:pplieatioa #130509 17 #190515-9, Citrus 
Park operates three wells on site which withdraw from the Lower Tamiami Aquifer and Water 
Table Aquifer; specifically a 1 - 8" X 112' X 197 GPM Well Cased to 75 Feet (LTA), a 1- 8" X 
117' X 200 GPM Well Cased to 75 Feet (LTA) and a 1 - 811 X 32' X 50 GPM Well Cased to 17 
Feet (WTA). Their 2013 pHblie v1ater SHpply reqHest is for .275 MGD for tweaty years. 

g. Potable Water Storage Facilities 



BSU has eight-seven existing potable water storage facilities, ofwhich three ground storage tanks 
are located at the treatment facility with a combined capacity of 6.0 million gallons and the 
remaining four are off-site with a combined capacity of 7-:S- million gallons. Total potable water 
storage capacity provided by BSU is 13-:S- million gallons. 

Table 1-2: Existing Potable Water Storage Facilities - BSU, identifies the location and capacity 
of existing potable water storage facilities within the Bonita Springs service area. 

Table 1-2: Existin2 Potable Water Stora2e Facilities 
Provider/Location Capacity (MG) 

BSU (WTP) 6.00 
T'lC,T T /-.::::'-"---- D--,l~w---...l\--- '-" \--_ .. _... ...,----·-'I' "4,..L~, ~ 

BSU (San Carlos Estates) 1.00 
BSU (Windsor Road) 2.00 
BSU (Snell Lane) 2.00 
BSU (Coconut Road) 2.00 
Source: BSU 

h. High Service Pumps 

BSU has eight-nine on site high service pumps that provide a capacity of 3,2J.9 MGD; however, 
based on "out of service" criteria (resulting in the largest unit in the system not included in the 
projections), the capacity is reduced to ~33.9 MGD. Additional peak hour capacity is available 
at each of the off-site storage tanks. 

i. Consumptive Use Permit 

The SFWMD regulates withdrawal of water from the aquifer through the issuance of a 
Consumptive Use Permit (CUP). Table 1-3: Existing Water Treatment Plant Permitted Well 
Capacities identifies specific CUP criteria for each water treatment plant providing service to 
Bonita Springs. 

Table 1-31-4: Existin2 Water Treatment Plant Permitted Well Capacities 
Location CUP 

Number 
Permitted Well 

Capacity 
Average Daily 

Demand 

Permitted Well Capacity 
Maximum Daily Demand 

Ground 
Storage 
(MG) 

GPM MGD GPM MGD 
BSU-RO (&-_li 
wells) 

36-04062-W 9,076.39 13.07 11,111.11 16.00 13-:S-

BSULime 
Softening ( 19 
wells) 

36-00008-W 3,986.11 5.74 5,145.83 7.41 * 

Citrus Park 36-00208-W 354.17 0.51 
Source: CUP Permits - 36-04062-W, 36-00008-W and 36-00208. 



*BSU' s CUP NUMBER 36-00008-W does not set a maximum daily demand. The maximum daily 
demand has been replaced with a maximuµi monthly demand of222.343 million gallons, allowing 
the plant to run at a maximum day demand equal to its rated capacity of9.0 MGD. 

Alternative Water Sources 

Currently, four wastewater treatment plants serve the City of Bonita Springs. Two are BSU 
operated and the others are small private package plants and include Citrus Park and Hunter's 
Ridge. The BSU and Hunter's Ridge facilities are water reclamation facilities providing reuse 
water. The treatment capacity of BSU is currently 11 MGD. 

BSU's two wastewater treatment plants have produced reclaim water since their construction and 
they are therefore called water reclamation facilities. A long term contract (30 year rolling 
contract) between BSU and Resource Conservation System (RCS) has been in place since the 
completion ofBSU's first plant. Bulk reclaimed water is delivered to their partner at the plant site. 
Storage, distribution, and billing of reclaimed water are handled by RCS. BSU's current water 
reclamation capacity is 1 lmgd and their bulk sales contract with RCS is also up to 11 million 
gallons, depending on flows received. Below, please find BSU's capacity and flow and reclaimed 
water sold for the years ~2009 through ~2018. Nearly all water received is reclaimed and 
sold. Therefore, all reclaimed water sold is a direct offset to potable water demand. This accounts 
for lower per capita potable water usage. 

I. 
lA8bl! 1 4, 8QNl:a:A SPRINGS Ul=lblll!S t~Jl!Sl= JftlA:J:l!R Rl!CbAMA:J:IQN FAClbl:J:¥ 

l!FFbUl!Nl FbQW MISl=QR¥, 2000 2013 
I 0-Al=e FbQW GAP SObO 0-Al=e Fl.OW GAP SObO 0-Al=e ROW GAP SObO 
I 

JaA 2QQQ 2 4:-2§ ~ JaR 2QQ3 3 + 2-:+I- JaA 2QQ6 a + 4A4 

i;'.ee 2QQQ 2 4:-2§ 4-:6§ i;:ee 2QQ3 3 + 3:4+ i;'.ee 2QQe a + 4-:87 

MaF 2QQQ 3 4:-2§ 4-:6§ MaF 2QQ3 4 + a.:a9 MaF 2QQ6 a + 4:69 

' ApF 2QQQ 3 4:-2§ ~ ApF 2QQ3 4 + 4:29 i(\pF 2QQe a + ~ 

May 2QQQ 2 4:-2§ ~ May 2QQ3 4 + M7 May 2QQ6 4 + 4.-26 

Jl::IR 2QQQ 2 4:-2§ 4:26 Jl::IR 2QQ3 3 + ~ Jl::IR 2QQe 4 + ~ 

Jl::ll 2QQQ 2 4:-2§ 4:44 Jl::ll 2QQ3 3 + ~ Jl::ll 2QQ6 4 + ~ 

1A,l::1€J 2QQQ 2 4:-2§ ~ Al::1§ 2QQ3 3 + 3:()4. Al::lg 2QQe 4 + 4.-04 

Sep 2QQQ 2 4:-2§ 4-:48 Sep 2QQ3 3 + ~ Sep 2QQ6 4 + ~ 

Get 2QQQ 2 4:-2§ +.4e Get 2QQ3 3 + 3-:2+ Get 2QQe 4 + ~ 

Nei.i 2QQQ 2 4:-2§ Nei.i 2QQ3 3 + ~ Nei.i 2ooe 4 + 3=Qa 



Cee 2QQQ 2 4.-2a ~ Cee 2QQ3 a 7 3-:2§ Qee 2QQe 4 7 4:00 

JaA 2QQ~ a 4.-2a 2-:29 JaA 2QQ4 4 7 2-:44 JaA 2QQ7 4-:-79 7 ~ 

Fee 2QQ~ a 4.-2a ~ Fee 2QQ4 4 7 ~ Fee 2QQ7 &.-4-0 7 &.-2-1-

MaF 2QQ~ a 4.-2a 4-:W MaF 2QQ4 4 7 4-:39 MaF 2QQ7 4-:90 7 4:49 

,AtJ:JF 2QQ~ a 4.-2a 2-:35 A13F 2QQ4 a 7 4.-73 •°'l=)F 2QQ7 3-:§4. 9 3:-29 

May 2QQ~ a 4.-2a 2-:M May 2QQ4 4 7 ~ May 2QQ7 ~ 9 ~ 

Jl:IA 2QQ~ a 4.-2a 2:4e Jl:IA 2QQ4 a 7 ~ Jl:IA 2QQ7 a-:aa 9 3-:49 

J1;1I 2QQ~ a 4.-2a 4-A+ J1;1I 2QQ4 a 7 2-:-7§ J1;112QQ7 ~ 9 ~ 

A1;19 2QQ~ a 4.-2a ~ A1;19 2QQ4 a 7 ~ A1;19 2QQ7 3-:23 9 ~ 

Se~ 2QQ~ a 4.-2a 2A-3 Se13 2QQ4 a 7 3-:ea Se13 2QQ7 ~ 9 ~ 

Get 2QQ~ a 4.-2a ~ Get 2QQ4 4 7 ~ Get 2QQ7 ~ 9 3:40 

Ne¥ 2QQ~ a 4.-2a 4-:86 Ne¥ 2QQ4 4 7 a-:aa ~Je,, 2QQ7 3-:89 9 ~ 

Cee 2QQ~ a 4.-2a ~ Cee 2QQ4 4 7 3-:&1- Cee 2QQ7 4.-0-1- 9 ~ 

JaA 2QQ2 a 7 U§ JaA 2QQa 4 7 3-:83 JaA 2QQ8 +.ea 9 ~ 

Fee 2QQ2 a 7 2-:-73 Fee 2QQa 4 7 4.a2 Fee 2QQ8 &.-4-7 9 4.-9a 

MaF 2QQ2 a 7 ~ MaF 2QQa a 7 4.49 MaF 2QQ8 4-:W 9 4.-96 

Al=)F 2QQ2 4 7 ~ A13F 2QQa a 7 &.-44 A13F 2QQ8 ~ 9 M8 

May 2QQ2 a 7 3-:28 May 2Qa 4 7 4.-4-J May 2QQ8 ~ 9 ~ 

Jl:IA 2QQ2 a 7 6-74- Jl:IA 2QQa 4 7 ~ Jl:IA 2QQ8 3-:00 9 ~ 

J1;112QQ2 a 7 2-:-76 J1;1I 2QQa 4 7 443 J1;112QQ8 3-:68 9 3-:00 

A1;19 2QQ2 a 7 ~ A1;19 2QQa 4 7 4-:8-1- A1;19 2QQ8 ~ 9 ~ 

Se13 2QQ2 a 7 2-:84 Se13 2QQa 4 7 ~ Se13 2QQ8 3-:98 9 3-:89 

Get 2QQ2 a 7 3-:W Get 2QQa 4 7 ~ Get 2QQ8 3:92 9 ~ 

Ne¥ 2QQ2 a 7 ~ Ne,, 2QQa 4 7 ~ Nev 2QQ8 4-Aa 44 441-

Cee 2QQ2 a 7 2-:9-7 Cee 2QQa 4 7 4-:82 Cee 2QQ8 4:02 44 ~ 



TABLE 1-4, BONITA SPRINGS UTILITES WEST WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY 
EFFLUENT FLOW HISTORY (MGDl, 2000-2009 - 204-3-2018 !~=:-:~::-::.::~ 

DATE ' FLOW CAP SOLD DATE FLOW CAP SOLD DATE FLOW CAP SOLD 
I 

Jan 2013 4.79 11 4.64 
Jan 2009 4.64 11 4.55 Jan 2011 4.45 11 4.36 

Feb 2013 5.15 11 4.89 
Feb 2009 4.69 11 4.71 Feb 2011 4.81 11 4.77 

Mar 2013 4.98 11 3.99 
Mar 2009 4.62 11 4.60 Mar 2011 4.74 11 4.85 

Apr 2013 4.46 11 4.27 
Apr2009 4.10 11 4.12 Apr 2011 5.45 11 4.16 

May 2013 3.34 11 3.49 
May 2009 3.36 11 3.36 May 2011 3.18 11 3.33 

June 2013 3.53 11 3.55 
Jun 2009 3.04 11 3.04 Jun 2011 2.80 11 2.57 

July 2013 3.79 11 3.78 
Jul2009 3.14 11 3.14 Jul 2011 3.06 11 2.78 

Aug 2013 3.56 11 3.74 
Aug 2009 3.23 11 3.23 Aug 2011 3.14 11 3.16 

Sept 2013 3.79 11 3.79 
Sep 2009 3.43 11 3.14 Sep 2011 3.37 11 3.27 

Oct 2013 3.65 11 3.56 
Oct 2009 3.66 11 3.60 Oct 2011 4.11 11 4.09 

Nov 2013 4.03 11 4.11 
Nov 2009 3.83 11 3.72 Nov 2011 4.42 11 4.31 

Dec 2013 4.04 11 4.04 
Dec 2009 4.03 11 4.04 Dec 2011 4.13 11 3.95 

Jan 2014 4.82 11 4.68 
Jan 2010 4.31 11 4.28 Jan 2012 4.69 11 4.52 

Feb 2014 5.52 11 5.03 
Feb 2010 4.40 11 4.75 Feb 2012 4.84 11 4.78 

Mar 2014 5.45 11 5.21 
Mar 2010 4.72 11 5.10 Mar 2012 5.02 11 4.92 

4.59 11 4.90 Apr2012 11 
A~r2014 4.89 11 4.57 

Apr 2010 4.24 4.22 

May 2014 3.77 11 3.57 
May 2010 3.59 11 3.59 May 2012 3.34 11 3.34 

June 2014 3.27 11 3.29 
Jun 2010 3.19 11 3.19 Jun 2012 3.25 11 3.19 

July 2014 3.57 11 3.57 
Jul 2010 3.26 11 3.26 Jul2012 3.30 11 3.22 

3.51 11 2.91 Aug 2012 11 
Aug 2014 3.54 11 3.54 

Aug 2010 3.51 3.51 

Se~t 2014 3.89 11 3.69 
Sep 2010 3.10 11 3.32 Sep 2012 3.20 11 3.09 

Oct 2014 4.24 11 4.30 
Oct 2010 3.51 11 3.57 Oct 2012 4.40 11 3.30 

Nov 2014 4.47 11 4.56 
Nov 2010 4.03 11 3.76 Nov 2012 4.39 11 4.26 

I 



Dec 2010 3.91 11 3.86 Dec 2012 4.03 11 3.64 
Dec 2014 4.37 11 

Source: Bonita Springs Utilities 

TABLE 1-41 BONITA SPRINGS UTILITES WEST WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY 
EFFLUENT FLOW HISTORY lMGD\. 2009 - 2018 (continued\ 

DATE FLOW CAP SOLD DATE FLOW CAP SOLD -

-

Jan 2015 5.01 11 5.03 Jan 2017 5.10 11 5.08 

Feb 2015 5.29 11 5.25 Feb 2017 5.28 11 5.27 

Mar 2015 5.43 11 5.52 Mar 2017 5.28 11 5.31 

AQr 2015 4.69 11 4.60 AQr 2017 4.59 11 4.59 

Ma~ 2015 3.80 11 3.86 Ma~ 2017 3.67 11 3.62 

Jun 2015 3.62 11 3.70 Jun 2017 4.05 11 3.94 

Jul2015 4.02 11 3.46 Jul 2017 4.15 11 3.14 

Aug 2015 4.28 11 3.39 Aug 2017 5.76 11 5.10 

SeQ 2015 4.81 11 4.66 SeQ 2017 5.92 11 5.67 

Oct 2015 4.92 11 4.67 Oct 2017 5.04 11 5.07 

Nov 2015 4.74 11 4.62 Nov 2017 4.77 11 4.69 

Dec 2015 4.37 11 4.28 Dec 2017 4.28 11 4.34 

Jan 2016 5.63 11 5.58 Jan 2018 4.98 11 4.94 

Feb 2016 6.02 11 4.74 Feb 2018 5.19 11 5.23 

Mar 2016 5.62 11 5.39 Mar 2018 5.45 11 5.35 

AQr 2016 4.65 11 4.56 AQr2018 4.74 11 4.64 

Ma~ 2016 4.07 11 4.07 Ma~ 2018 4.20 11 3.93 

Jun 2016 3.95 11 3.71 Jun 2018 3.88 11 3.69 

Jul2016 4.14 11 3.73 Jul2018 4.12 11 3.99 

Aug 2016 4.26 11 4.01 Aug 2018 3.78 11 3.58 



Se12 2016 4.61 11 4.32 Seg 2018 4.22 11 4.18 

Oct 2016 4.40 11 4.29 Oct 2018 4.29 11 4.27 

Nov 2016 4.67 11 4.41 Nov 2018 4.57 11 4.56 

Dec 2016 4.40 11 4.38 Dec 2018 4.55 11 4.54 

Source: Bonita S12rings Utilities 

Conservation Programs 

The South Florida Water Management District adopted a Comprehensive Water Conservation 
Program in 2008. It was designed to bring about a permanent reduction in individual water use 
and is organized into 1) regulatory, 2) voluntary and incentive-based, and 3) education and 
marketing initiatives. 

A Mandatory Year-Round Landscape Irrigation'Conservation Measures Rule became effective in 
March 2010 (Chapter 40E-24, F.A.C.), which limits landscape irrigation to two days per week, 
with a provision for irrigation up to three days per week. 

The SFWMD also offers two cost-share funding programs to assist local water users with 
development of alternative water supplies and water conservation: the Alternative Water Supply 
Funding Program and the Water Savings Incentive Program (WaterSIP). 

According to the L WCWS Update, since 1991 the SFWMD consumptive use permitting rules have 
required Public Water Supply (PWS) users to provide the following: 

1. Adoption of an irrigation days/hours ordinance 
2. Adoption of a Florida-Friendly Landscape™ ordinance 
3. Adoption of an ultralow volume fixtures ordinance 
4. Adoption of a rain sensor device ordinance 
5. Adoption of a water conservation-based rate structure 
6. Implementation of a utility leak detection and repair program 
7. Implementation of a water conservation public education program 
8. An analysis of reclaimed water feasibility 

Water Supply Concurrency 

The water use per ERC for the BSU service area is based on maximum month average daily 
demand (MMADD), as that is the most representative time of year when units are occupied. As 
presented in Table 1-5, using the annual average daily demand (AADD) does not capture a level 
of service (LOS) necessary to plan properly for all committed ERCs. By using the MMADD, the 
LOS average from-l-99-§.2000-201J.8 is ~233. However, considering the recent upward trend, a 
LOS of 235 GPD per ERC is a reasonable standard for the future planning period. The proposed 



Maximum Daily Demand (MOD) peaking factor of 1.50 is based on the average peaking factor 
over the past +7-19 years. 

Table 1-S 6 
Historical Water Demand 

BSU Service Area 
1995-2013 

Year ERCs 
AADD 
(MGD) 

AADD 
LOS(l) 

MMADD 
(MGD) 

MMADD 
LOS(l) 

-1-9% la,8+4 ~ -lee H-1- ~ 

-1-9% l+,~99 ~ -1-90 J.:.&+ ~ 

-1-99+ 19,~ la M -1-+e ~ ~ 

-1-9-9& 2Q,822 J-:-9 -1-8+ 4.-W ~ 

-1-99-9 22,Q9~ ~ -1-% ~ ~ 

2000 24,945 5.07 203 5.71 229 
2001 27,738 5.46 197 6.07 219 
2002 29,478 5.993 203 6.75 229 
2003 31,302 6.647 212 7.03 225 
2004 33,002 7.367 223 9.89 300 
2005 33,762 7.62 226 9.49 261 
2006 38,159 9.467 248 11.74 308 
2007 39,504 8.626 218 10.15 257 
2008 40,137 7.479 186 8.10 202 
2009 40,441 7.262 180 8.39 207 
2010 40,614 6.652 164 7.25 179 
2011 40,856 7.193 176 7.45 182 
2012 41,105 7.67 187 8.14 198 
2013 41,901 8.07 193 9.67 231 
2014 42,476 8.66 204 9.89 233 
2015 43,670 8.94 205 10.10 231 
2016 44,329 9.31 210 10.84 244 
2017 46,177 9.62 208 11.27 244 
2018 47,674 10.09 212 11.48 241 

AVERAGE -1-%202 ~233 
(l) LOS = gallons per ERC per day 

Source: BSU 

Projected Water Needs and Sources 

a. Population 

The South Florida Water Management District requests that population projections consider the 
most current data found in the applicable Regional Water Supply Plan, Medium-BEBR (Bureau 



ofEconomic and Business Research), or other approved method. BEBR does not prepare medium 
projections for municipalities. Therefore, the City estimated its population projection by 
identifying the City's proportion of its population (7.-l-2%) in relation to Lee County's total 
population based on BEBR ~2018 Estimate. For Lee County, the population increase for the 
water supply planning period show~ an increase from 638,029747,388 to 858,500 892,108 
(approximately J4..:e19.4% increase). Based on the 2010 Census, tihe City of Bonita Springs is 
approximately 7.-l-2% of the total population for Lee County; therefore, the City anticipates a 
population of approximately 60,95464,232 in ~2030. 

BSU must also anticipate projections, considering the area's seasonal popul~tion. This figure is 
difficult to predict, but can be estimated based on the maximum month average daily demand 
(MADD) with the assumption that each person typically utilizes 100 gallons per person per day. 
Using historical data, it appears this percentage is roughly 45%. This estimate has been carried 
into Table 1-6 and applied for the future planning period. 

Table 1-6 
Population Projections 
City of Bonita Sprines 

POPULATION 
COMPONENT 

~ 

~2020 mG2025 ~2030 
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent 

Year-round 48,4+953,812 55 54,91859,359 55 60,95464,232 55 
Seasonal 39,66544,028 45 44,93348,567 45 49,8+152,553 45 
Peak 88,14497,840 100 99,851107,926 100 l 10,825116,785 100 
Source: BSU 

Bonita Springs Utilities Service Area serves properties within the City of Bonita Springs, except 
for Citrus Park, and includes areas outside of the City of Bonita Springs. The peak population 
figures for Bonita Springs for the years ~2020, mG2025, and ~2030 contained in the table 
above are used to arrive at the peak seasonal population of the BSU Service Area. 

BSU estimates that the City of Bonita Spring comprises approximately 8485% of the demand for 
potable water throughout the entire service area. Therefore, the peak seasonal population of the 
BSU Service Area in 2015 is estimated in the follmving manner: 

[(Population of Bonita Springs) less (population of Citms Park v 0.84 

(88,144 3,366) / 0.84- 100,926 

Using the same calculations for the years 2020, 2025 and ~2030, after rounding, results in the 
following population projections for the BSU Service Area in Table 1-7. Since BSU uses 
Equivalent Residential Units for determining demand upon the system and for establishing its 
LOS, ERCs for the planning periods are also shown. 



Table 1-7 
Population and ERC Projections 

BSU Service Area 
Population & ERCs ~2020 W02025 ~2030 
Peak Population l QQ,9~61142929 l l4,8Q9127 2 087 l~+,8~11372764 
ERCs (I) 4§,46~482906 §l,+16542079 §+,§++582623 
O) An Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) = 2.~35 _persons 
Source: BSU 

b. Potable Water Capacity Surpluses and Deficiencies 

Providers of potable water for Bonita Springs currently have a surplus of water. BSU estimates 
its surplus capacityis+.#7.47 MGD, based on the annual-average day demand in~2018. With 
the ~ MGD addition planned for ~2023, the surplus will increase to &-:-+-1-10.64 MGD 
average day demand. This will provide a surplus of water for the expected population increases 
through the water supply planning period (refer to Table 1-9). 

c. Future Demand Capacity 

The Consumptive Use Permits (CUP) limit the amount ofraw water withdrawn from groundwater. 
Based on the CUPs for local water providers, the City of Bonita Springs will have their potable 
water demands met through ~2030. Table 1- 8: Projected Water Demands, BSU identifies the 
anticipated needs of the entire Service Area including the City of Bonita Springs, from BSU. 

Table 1-8: Projected Water Demands in MGD for BSU 
Year .. ~2020 W02025 ~2030 
ERCs 4§,46~482906 §l,+16542079 §+,§11582623 

Annual Average Daily 
Demand (MGD) LOS of 
-1-%210 

8-:-8+ 10.27 ~11.36 ~12.31 

Maximum Daily Demand 
(MGD) Peaking factor 1.50 

~15.41 ~17.03 -14-8418.47 

Source: BSU and City of Bonita Springs 

d. Fire Protection 

The American Water Works Association provides guidelines for level of service for fire protection. 
BSU meets this level of service. 

e. Performance and Condition of Existing Facilities 

Each of BSU's water treatment plants has consistently operated in compliance with all criteria 
established by appropriate regulatory agencies. Furthermore, the facilities are state of the art and 
have been recognized by various organizations. The RO plant has potential for continued 

https://capacityis+.#7.47


expansion to meet the needs of the City of Bonita Springs through the planning period. Table 1-
9: Projected ERCs, Demand, Capacity, and Surplus Capacity for BSU, indicates the positive 
performance and condition of existing facilities and the capability of expansion to meet the needs 
of future demand. 

Table 1-9 
Projected ERCs, Demand, Capacity, and Surplus Capacity 

BSU Service Area 
_, 

-

AADD 
SURPLUS 

(MGD) 

MMADD 
(MGD) 

MMADD 
SURPLUS 

(MGD) 

MAXIMUM 
DAILY 

DEMAND 
(MGD) 

YEAR ERCs 

-

AADD 
(MGD) 

PLANT 
CAPACITY 

(MGD) 

~2 
020 

4§,46248 8-:-8-+ 10.27 ~17.56 ~7.29 -1--0-:e&ll.49 4-;846.07 ~15.41 
,906 

~2 
021 

49,94146 10.499-:-H- ~17.56 7.076-:4+ 11.7410.98 5.824.M 15.73~ 
;+H 

™-1-2 
022 

50,9754+ 10.70~ ~17.56 6.8~ 11.98~ 5.58~ 16.06-1-4:W 
,964 

~2 
023 

52,01049 10.929:eG ~21.56 10.64~ 12.22~ 9.34J.:.% 16.38-1-4-:4-G 
¢-14 

~2 
024 

53,04#0 11.14~ ~21.56 10.42~ 12.47-l-h&6 9.09¼6 16.71-1-4.-+e 
~ 

~2 
025 

§l,+1654 ~11.36 -l-&-:-'.7921.56 &+-1-10.20 ~12.71 6-M-8.85 ~17.03 
,079 

~2 
026 

55,ll~ 11.57-W:M -l-&-:-'.7921. 5 6 9.998-:48 12.95~ 8.61~ 17.36~ 
;&88 

~2 
027 

56,148M 11.79-1--0M -l-&-:-'.7921.5 6 9.77~ 13.19~ 8.376-:09 17.69~ 
,O@ 

~2 
028 

57,183M 12.01-1-0:++ -l-&-:-'.7921.5 6 9.55~ 13.4412.98 8.12~ 18.0l~ 
~ 

~2 
029 

58,217~ 12.23-l-1-:00 -l-&-:-'.7921. 5 6 9.33+;79 13.68~ 7.88~ 18.341650 
~ 

~2 
030 

§+,§++58 ~12.31 -l-&-:-'.7921.5 6 -+:¾9.25 ~13.78 ~7.78 -14-8418.47 
,623 

Source: BSU and City of Bonita Springs 

Future Water Sources 

Permitted facility capacity of the RO Water Treatment Plant (WTP) is currently ~8.56 MGD 
but the service area is expected to require a greater maximum daily water demand within the 



planning period. A H-+1 MGD expansion of this plant to ~12.56 MGD is planned for 2-00-0 
2023 and will increase total water treatment capacity to -1-8-:-1921.56 MGD. 

Future Conservation Programs 

According to the Lower West Coast Water Supply Plan (L WC WSP) update prepared by the South 
Florida Water Management District, a major source of increased demand for water has come from 
irrigation. Other increased water demands result from agricultural lands and increase in Public 
Water Supply and Domestic Self-Supply demands. BSU continues to encourage reuse of treated 
wastewater and has enough treatment capacity and contracted commitment for 11 MGD. Citrus 
Park has reeeived permits from the Florida De13artment of Environmental Proteetion (DEP) and 
Lee County Department of Health (DOH) for a Reverse Osmosis Water Treatment Plant, whieh 
'Hill inerease effieieney developed a water conservation plan which includes resident, owner, renter 
and staff education, the creation of a home owners guide to water conservation, the inclusion of 
water conservation statements all billings, the and institution of "Florida Friendly" landscape 
standards. 

Water Supply Projects 

Table:1-10, Water Supply Capital Improvements Projects (~2020~2030) 
Project Name Water Responsible Funding Estimated Estimated Project Year 

Source Agencies Sources Project O&M Capacity Water 
Cost ($M) ($M) (MGD) Produced 

Diversification of FreshBraekis BSUBSY ~ 2020~1~ ~~ 
Lower Tamiami h 
W ellfieldBraekish 
"t"IT,...11.C::-1..l nl..--- TT.. 

& ----- && 

') ----11~ 
_, yy _..., .... _ 

ROWTPand Brackish BSU +:00 ~2023™5 H-+1 
Unner Floridan 
Wellfield 
Exoansion Phase 
HIii 
Source: SFWMD L WC WSP Update and BSU 

https://1-8-:-1921.56


INFRASTRUCTURE ELEMENT 

GOALS, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

1. POTABLE WATER SUB-ELEMENT 

Goal 1: To provide quality potable water service throughout the City that is compatible with conservation 
of natural resources. 

Objective 1.1: The City shall continue to ensure the provision of acceptable levels of potable water 
service throughout the City, indirectly through franchised utility companies. 

Policy 1.1.1: Within certified, franchised or designated service areas an available supply, 
treatment and delivery of 235 gallons per day per equivalent residential connection (ERC) 
and delivery of potable water at a minimum pressure of 20 pounds per square inch (psi) at 
the meter anywhere in the system. (Cross Reference: Capital Improvements Element 
Policy 1.1.3.a) 

(Ord. No. 08-19, § 2, 9-17-08; Ord. No. 14-06, § 2, 5-7-14; Ord. No. 14-24, § 2, 10-15-14) 

Policy 1.1.2: The City shall enforce these levels of service under the concurrency requirements 
of Florida law by requiring one of the following before issuance of development permits: 

a. Development orders or building permits will be issued subject to the condition that, at 
the time of issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the necessary facilities and services 
must be in place and available to serve the development being authorized; or 

b. At the time development orders or building permits are issued, the necessary facilities 
and services are guaranteed to be in place and available to serve the development at 
the time of issuance of a certificate of occupancy through an enforceable development 
agreement pursuant to Section 163.3220, Florida Statutes, or through an agreement 
or development order pursuant to Chapter 380, Florida Statutes. 

Policy 1.1.3: The City will cooperate with, and provide relevant data to the utility that provides 
service within the jurisdiction. 

(Ord. No. 17-08, § 1, 6-7-17) 

Objective 1.2: To ensure an adequate supply of potable water, the City shall increase its role in 
influencing private utility providers about service alternatives, facility locations, and conservation 
of resources. 

Policy 1.2.1: The City shall encourage residential uses, and require nonresidential uses, to 
connect to central potable water utility when potable water lines have been installed 
immediately adjoining the property and service is available. 

Policy 1.2.2: The City shall seek to be involved with the utility company providing potable water 
when the utility is evaluating alternatives concerning the City's potable water service. 

Policy 1.2.3: The City shall collect data from private suppliers of potable water, including 
reporting of water flows, storage capacity, pressures, number of customers, committed 
future connections and proposed expansion plans on a yearly basis. 

Goal 2: To ensure that future populations have access to potable water by using and strongly 
encouraging the conservation and resource management measures to reduce the consumption of 
potable water. 

Objective 2.1: To protect its potable water resources. 



Policy 2.1.1: The City Council shall encourage privately operated potable water utilities to adopt 
a "conservation" rate structure for users in their respective service areas. 

(Ord. No. 14-06, § 2, 5-7-14; Ord. No. 14-24, 10-15-14) 

Policy 2.1.2: The City shall consult with South Florida Water Management District to obtain 
suggestions on regulations to conserve water before adopting such regulations. 

Policy 2.1.3: The City shall develop and implement a water conservation program which shall 
include: 

a. Public education through distribution of information to residents regarding 
conservation, and involvement with programs encouraging water conservation. 

b. Use of drought-tolerant vegetation, xeriscape techniques, recycled water, or other 
available methods for landscaping publicly owned lands, and encouragement of 
private landowners to do the same to reduce usage of potable water for irrigation 
purposes. 

c. Providing incentives to encourage developers and property owners to employ 
techniques such as water recycling, reclamation, and reuse of greywater to reduce 
demand upon the water and sanitary sewer systems serving the City. 

Objective 2.2: In order to reduce demand for potable water, and consistent with the State's water 
policy to encourage and promote water conservation and the reuse of reclaimed water, the City 
shall require the use of reclaimed or other alternative irrigation water for irrigation purposes and 
other authorized uses in areas where franchised utility companies have constructed or operate 
a reclaimed or other alternative irrigation water distribution system. 

Policy 2.2.1: For all new residential projects, the City shall evaluate the incorporation of use of 
reclaimed or other alternative irrigation water for irrigation purposes. When deemed 
practical and feasible, the City shall require the project to connect to the franchised utility 
company's irrigation water system in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
existing service availability policy. 

Policy 2.2.2: Where reclaimed or other alternative irrigation water distribution facilities are 
available, the City shall enforce a requirement that no person use potable water, pro-vided 
by a franchised utility system, for irrigation purposes. 



   

       

  

 

             

           

             

         

          

          

 

 

             

           

          

          

                       

        

         

           

          

        

          

         

         

       

        

         

         

        

        

           

            

          

       

       

       
 

Table of Contents 

Agenda Item IV: CPA19-66379-BOS, Conservation Fringe (Text) and CPA19-66165-BOS, 

Conservation Fringe (Map) 

STAFF ANALYSIS Page 1 

Part I-Background Page 2 

Part II-Staff Analysis Page 3 

Part III -Local Planning Agency Hearing Page 5 

Part IV-City Council Transmittal Hearing Page 6 

Part IV-City Council Adoption Hearing Page 7 

ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Staff Analysis Page 8 

1. Staff Report Supplement Page 9 

2. Environmental Staff Analysis Page 27 

3. Settlement Agreement Page 29 

B. Applicant’s Informational Analysis Page 42 

1. Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application Page 43 

2. Proposed Text Amendment Page 69 

3. Maps Page 72 

i. Cover Sheet Page 72 

ii. Proposed Future Land Use Map Page 73 

iii. Aerial Exhibit Page 74 

iv. Surrounding Use Map Page 75 

v. Surrounding Zoning Map Page 76 

vi. Archaeological Sensitivity Map Page 77 

vii. Topographic Elevation Data Page 78 

viii. FEMA Flood Zone Web Map Page 79 

4. Sketch and Description on the Property Page 80 

5. Sketch and Descriptions of the Resource Protection Areas Page 82 

6. Transportation Memorandum and Analysis Page 134 

7. Public Facilities Analysis Page 166 

8. Level of Service Letters Page 170 

9. Environmental Impact Analysis Page 181 

10. Wellfield Protection Information and Mapping Page 206 

11. Comprehensive Plan Consistency Analysis Page 209 

12. Neighborhood Meeting Information Page 223 



Page 1

CPA19-66379-BOS (Text) 
CPA19-66165-BOS (Map) 

Comprehensive Plan Text and Map Amendments 

Expedited Review Process 

Small Town Charm. 
Big Bright Future. 

Privately Initiated Application 
and Staff Analysis 

City ofBonita Springs 
Planning Division 

9200 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 109 
Bonita Springs, Florida 

(239) 444-6150 

LPA Public Hearing Date: January 23, 2020 

City Council Transmittal Date: February 5, 2020 

City Council Adoption Date: To Be Scheduled 

Project Name: Conservation Fringe Comprehensive Plan Text and 
Map Amendments 

January 17, 2020 _Transmittal Hearing to DEO Page 1 of 7 
CPA19-66379-BOS_(Text)&CPA19-66165-BOS_(Map)_Conservation_Fringe 



City ofBonita Springs 
Planning and Zoning Division 

STAFF REPORT FOR 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 

COORDINATED STATE REVIEW 

CPA19-66379-BOS (Text) and CPA19-66165-BOS (Map) 
X Text Amendment XMap Amendment 

This Document Contains the Followin Reviews: 
X StaffReview 

STAFF REPORT PREPARATION DATE: January 17, 2020 

PART I- BACKGROUND AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

A. SUMMARY OF APPLICATION 

1. Applicant: BG Mine LLC 

2. Request: To amend the Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan as follows: 

a. Establish a new Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category in the 
City's Comprehensive Plan; and 

b. Revise the City's Future Land Use Map by assigning the new 
Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category to the following 
properties: 
1. The "Mine Property" located at 25501 Bonita Grande Drive and 

identified by STRAP# 20-47-26-B1-00001.0000. 
11. The "Agricultural Properties" located at and identified by STRAP# 

as: 

Address STRAP# 
Access Undetermined 29-47-26-B 1-00101.0000 
Access Undetermined 29-47-26-B 1-00105.0000 
Access Undetermined 29-47-26-B1-00113.0000 
Access Undetermined 29-47-26-B1-00112.0000 
Access Undetermined 29-47-26-B1-00111.0000 
Access Undetermined 29-47-26-B1-00110.0000 
Access Undetermined 29-47-26-B 1-00109.0000 

January 17, 2020 _Transmittal Hearing to DEO Page 2 of7 
CPA19-66379-BOS_(Text)&CPA19-66165-BOS_(Map)_Conservation_Fringe 

Page 2



Page 3

B. STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND FINDINGS OF FACT SUMMARY 
1. Recommendation: Approve transmittal of a proposed text amendment to 

establish the Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category and approve 
the proposed map amendment to Conservation Fringe 

2. Basis and recommended findings of fact: See Attachment A 

C. SUMMARY/BACKGROUND DISCUSSION: 

1. EXISTING CONDITIONS 

See Attachment A 

2. AFFECTED ELEMENTS OF THE BONITA PLAN. 

The amendments propose changes to the Future Land Use Element, which include 
a text amendment and future land use map change. 

PART II- STAFF ANALYSIS 

A. ANALYSIS 

Please see the attached the Staff Report Supplements in Attachment A. 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED ACTION: 
This application and its appearance before the Local Planning Agency was noticed for the 
public. The transmittal hearing is scheduled before the City Council for transmittal to 
FDEO on February 5, 2020. 

CONCLUSIONS: 
The Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan should be transmitted to FDEO through the 
Expedited Review Process in accordance with Florida State Statute based on the Staff 
Analysis (Attachment A), Applicant's Analysis (Attachment B) and consistent with the 
Settlement Agreement. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Commence with the transmittal process for comprehensive plan amendments and if 
approved, transmit to FDEO through the Expedited Review Process in accordance with 
Florida State Statute. 

January 17, 2020 _ Transmittal Hearing to DEO Page 3 of 7 
CPA19-66379-BOS_(Text)&CPA19-66165-BOS_(Map)_Conservation_Fringe 



Page 4

ATTACHMENTS: 
A. StaffAnalysis 

1. Final Report 
2. Environmental Sciences Analysis 
3. Settlement Agreement 

B. Applicant's Analysis 
1. Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application 
2. Proposed Text Amendment 
3. Maps 

i. Cover Sheet 
ii. Proposed Future Land Use Map 

iii. Aerial Exhibit 
iv. Surrounding Use Map 
v. Surrounding Zoning Map 

vi. Archaeological Sensitivity Map 
vii. Topographic Elevation Data 

4. Sketch and Description on the Property 
5. Sketch and Descriptions ofthe Resource Protection Areas 
6. Transportation Memorandum and Analysis 
7. Public Facilities Analysis 
8. Level ofService Letters 
9. Environmental Impact Analysis 
10. Well.field Protection Information and Mapping 
11. Comprehensive Plan Consistency Analysis 
12. Neighborhood Meeting Information 

Submitted by: 

Jacqueline Genson, AICP 
Planning and Zoning Manager 

January 17, 2020 _Transmittal Hearing to DEO Page 4 of 7 
CPA19-66379-BOS_(Text)&CPA19-66165-BOS_(Map)_Conservation_Fringe 



Page 5

PART III - LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY 
REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION 

DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING: January 23, 2020 

A. LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY REVIEW 

B. LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY RECOMMENDATION AND FINDINGS OF 
FACT SUMMARY 

1. RECOMMENDATION: 

2. BASIS AND RECOMMENDED FINDINGS OF FACT: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

C. VOTE: 

Chairman Jeff Maturo 

Don Colapietro 

Rex Sims 

Sam Vincent 

Linda Schwartz 

Vacancy 

Vacancy 

January 17, 2020 _Transmittal Hearing to DEO Page 5 of7 
CPA19-66379-BOS_(Text)&CPA19-66165-BOS_(Map)_Conservation_Fringe 



Page 6

PART IV - CITY COUNCIL 
HEARING FOR TRANSMITTAL OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING: February 5, 2020 

A. CITY COUNCIL REVIEW 

B. CITY COUNCIL RECOMMENDATION AND FINDINGS OF 
FACT SUMMARY 

1. COUNCIL ACTION: 

2. BASIS AND RECOMMENDED FINDINGS OF FACT: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

C. VOTE: 

Mayor Peter Simmons 

Amy Quaremba 

District 2, Vacant 

Laura Carr 

District 4, Vacant 

Mike Gibson 

Fred Forbes 

January 17, 2020 _ Transmittal Hearing to DEO Page 6 of 7 
CPAl9-66379-BOS_(Text)&CPAl 9-66165-BOS_(Map)_Conservation_Fringe 



Page 7

PART V - CITY COUNCIL 
HEARING FOR ADOPTION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING: 

REQUEST: 

TRANSMITTAL: 

AGENCY COMMENTS: Florida State Statute 163.3184(4) sets forth the manner in 
which reviewing agencies, local government, or governmental agencies may comment on 
comprehensive plan amendments. 

The FDEO is responsible for plan review, coordination of reviewing agencies, and 
preparing comments. The FDEO may provide objections, recommendations, or comments 
(ORC). Only objections raised in the ORC may be used as a basis for determining whether 
the plan amendments will be deemed by FDEO to be in compliance. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

B. CITY COUNCIL RECOMMENDATION AND FINDINGS OF 
FACT SUMMARY 

C. VOTE: 

Mayor Peter Simmons 

Amy Quaremba 

District 2, Vacant 

Laura Carr 

District 4, Vacant 

Mike Gibson 

Fred Forbes 

January 17, 2020 _Transmittal Hearing to DEO Page 7 of7 
CP Al9-66379-BOS _(Text)&CPA19-66165-BOS_(Map)_Conservation_Fringe 



CPA19-66379-BOS, Conservation Fringe (Text) 

CPA19-66165-BOS, Conservation Fringe (Map) 

Attachment A 

Staff Analysis 

Page 8



City of Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

CONSERVATION FRINGE TEXT AND FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENTS 

Staff Report Supplement 

PART I - BACKGROUND AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

A. SUMMARY OF APPLICATION 

1. Applicant 

BG Mine, LLC, a Florida Limited Liability Company 

2. Request 

To amend the Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan as follows: 

a. Establish a new Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category in the City's 
Comprehensive Plan; and 

b. Revise the City's Future Land Use Map by assigning the new Conservation Fringe 
Future Land Use Category to the following properties: 

i. The "Mine Property" located at 25501 Bonita Grande Drive and identified 
by STRAP# 20-47-26-B1-00001.0000. 

ii. The properties listed below will be commonly identified as the "Agricultural 
Properties" and identified by ST AP# as: 

Address STRAP# 
Access Undetermined 29-4 7-26-B 1-00101.0000 
Access Undetermined 29-47-26-B1-00105.0000 
Access Undetermined 29-47-26-Bl-00113.0000 
Access Undetermined 29-47-26-Bl-00112.0000 
Access Undetermined 29-47-26-Bl-00111.0000 
Access Undetermined 29-47-26-Bl-00110.0000 
Access Undetermined 29-4 7-26-B 1-00109.0000 

B. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

1. Approve transmittal of a proposed text amendment to establish the Conservation Fringe 
Future Land Use Category as follows: 

1 

Page 9



Policy 1.1.27: Conservation Fringe. This category is intended to recognize 
geographic areas that a) include an existing vested mining operation; and b) 
are adjacent or proximate to lands with significant environmental resource 
and habitat values. As ofthe date ofthe adoption ofthe Conservation Fringe 
District, zero (0) acres have been designated as Conservation Fringe District; 
although the City anticipates that approximately 1,343 acres may ultimately 
be designated as Conservation Fringe District. The City recognizes that 
existing mines provide a regional supply for lime rock needs and help to 
minimize the impacts ofnew mines on the environment, surrounding land uses 
and roadways. Once mining is completed, the reclamation I redevelopment 
of the land must occur such that it is compatible with the adjacent or 
proximate environmental lands. Allowable land uses are limited to 
conservation uses; agriculture; excavation (existing vested mining operation 
only); residential uses at a maximum density of0.522 dwelling units per gross 
acre along with accessory amenity building and private recreational areas; 
public uses; non-profit public recreational uses; and essential services needed 
for the health, safety, and general welfare of the community such as lift 
stations, utility lines, potable/non-potable wells and equipment and 
appurtenances necessary for such systems to furnish adequate levels of 
service. Notwithstanding Future Land Use Element Policy 1.1.2.c and 
Conservation/Coastal Management Element Policy 15.1. 5, wetland and 
resource protection acres are eligible to be counted as part ofthe gross acreage 
for density purposes, but all density must be clustered on the permitted upland 
portion and/or disturbed land of an approved master concept plan for the 
reclamation/redevelopment plan. Contiguous property under common 
ownership of the existing vested mining operation may be included in the 
Conservation Fringe District up to a maximum of 10% of the existing vested 
mining operation area for residential purposes only. The cumulative total 
number ofunits for all properties designated as Conservation Fringe District 
shall not exceed a maximum of 700 units. Development within this 
Conservation Fringe District must adhere to the following innovative design 
and planning conditions: 

1. The property (including contiguous property ifapplicable) shall be rezoned 
to a Planned Development. If the property is already zoned Planned 
Development, the Planned Development shall be amended to comply with 
the requirements of this Policy no later than completion of the existing 
mining operation (ifapplicable) but no later than 12/31/2041. 

2. The Planned Development rezoning shall include a minimum of60% open 
space calculated over the net project area, not including existing mining 
lakes and public road right-of-way, and shall implement the following, to 
the maximum extent feasible: 

a) Restoration and accommodation ofexisting and historical regional 
flow ways; 

2 

Page 10



b) Restoration and accommodation of existing and historic 
groundwater levels; 

c) Restoration and preservation ofwetlands; 
d) Restoration and preservation ofindigenous upland habitats; and 
e) Where applicable, provision of critical wildlife connections to 

adjacent conservation areas. 
3. A proposed enhanced lake management plan for lakes created by mining 

activities shall be provided at the time of the Planned Development 
rezoning. The enhanced lake management plan shall be in addition to any 
previously approved lake management or reclamation planfor the property, 
and shall include, at a minimum, the following: 

a) Application of best management practices for fertilizers and 
pesticides; 

b) Provision for erosion control and lake bank stabilization; 
c) Establishment oflake maintenance requirements; and 
d) Establishment of an education program for any homeowners' 

association for the property regarding such issues as restricted lake 
uses, fertilizer use, lake bank planting requirements, and best 
management practices. 

4. Through the Development Order process, a site specific ecological and 
hydrological restoration plan shall be developed, which shall include, at a 
minimum, the following: 

a) Excavation and grading plans; 
b) Analysis ofhydrological improvements and water budget for both 

land surface and subsurface; and 
c) For areas previously farmed or impacted by mining activities and 

proposedfor preservation or conservation, replantingplans, habitat 
restoration plans, success criteria, and long-term monitoring and 
maintenance plans. 

5. A Conservation Easement for each preservation area shall be platted as 
part of a master plat for the property and dedicated to the appropriate 
maintenance entity which has been approved by the City. 

6. Indigenous management plans shall address human-wildlife coexistence 
and buffers between development areas and preservation/conservation 
areas. 

7. Landscaping shall use Florida Friendly Planting with low irrigation 
requirements in Common Elements. 

8. A minimum of 1. 5 inches ofwater quality treatment shall be provided for 
the developed areas ofthe project. 

9. Stormwater runoffshall be directed into treatment areas prior to discharge 
to mining lakes that provide additional storage for 0. 5 inches ofrunofffor 
the developed area. 

3 

Page 11



10. Existing vested mining uses shall be eliminated 'within an appropriate 
phasing schedule as part of the Planned Development rezoning approval 
but no later than 12/31/2041. 

11. Existing or proposed public potable water wells shall be protected. 
12. On-site and off-site improvements to transportation infrastructure needed 

to mitigate the traffic impacts of the Planned Development rezoning shall 
be provided, subject to any prior agreements. These improvements shall 
use, insofar as is practical, low impact roadway design, linear filter marsh 
retention elements, and other "green " roadway design features as 
applicable. 

13. The Planned Development project shall connect to public water and sewer 
service provided by Bonita Springs Utilities and shall connect to reclaimed 
water ifavailable. 

14. Written verification as to adequate public services for the Planned 
Development rezoning shall be obtained from the Bonita Springs Fire 
Control & Rescue District, the Lee County Sheriff's Office, the Lee County 
Emergency Medical Services, and the Lee County School District. 

15. The proposed Planned Development rezoning shall not result in material, 
detrimental impacts to existing or future potable water supply resources. 

16. Golfcourse use is prohibited. 

Final densities and non-residential uses shall be determined as part of the 
Planned Development rezoning process and shall be based upon a 
demonstration ofcompatibility ofthe proposed development with adjacent and 
proximate development. 

2. Approve transmittal of a proposed future land use map amendment to designate the Mine 
Property and Agricultural Properties as Conservation Fringe. 

C. SUMMARY DATA AND ANALYSIS 

1. The proposed amendments would create a Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category 
and assign the new Conservation Fringe Land Use Category to the Mine Property and 
Agricultural Properties. 

2. The proposed amendments do not alter potential future land types except for mining which 
would be a grandfathered use. 

3. The City's 2016 Evaluation and Appraisal Review ("EAR") identified the need to 
incorporate annexed properties into the City's Comprehensive Plan. This amendment 
package is a step to implement the EAR recommendation to classify annexed properties 
with City Future Land Use Categories. 

4 

Page 12



4. The amendment fulfills Condition· 4C of the Settlement Agreement by scheduling this 
amendment request. 

5. Property Subject to Amendment 

a. Ownership 

The Mine Property is owned by BG Mine, LLC, a Florida Limited Liability 
Company. According to Lee County Property Appraiser's records, BG 
Mine, LLC, acquired the Mine Property in July 2016. 

Historically, Samuel and Connie Hubschman were owners until May 2004; 
Bonita Grande Aggregates, LLC, then took ownership until April 201 O; 
followed by SNSPF Interim Finance BV, a Netherlands Private Company 
until July 2016; and now recently BG Mine, LLC. 

The Agricultural Properties are owned by three separate entities. These 
three entities have provided the "Applicant's Signature and Certification" 
necessary for BG Mine LLC to pursue this request on the Agricultural 
Properties. 

b. Location, Size, Land Use 

The entire Property is located at the far northeast comer of the incorporated 
boundary of Bonita Springs, east of I-75 and north of East Terry Street. 
According to the Lee County Property Appraiser, the Mine Property 
consists of 1,260.82 acres within Sections 17 and 20, Township 47 South, 
Range 26E, and is broken out into approximately 376 acres of mining, 389 
acres of acreage, buffer - conservation, water retention, 425 acres of lake, 
and 71 acres of right-of-way. The Agricultural Properties consist of 
vegetable processing. The application request indicates approximately+/-
899 acres as Lee County DRGR, +/- 368 acres ofLee County Wetlands, and 
+/- 74.4 acres of City of Bonita Springs DRGR. The Mine Property is 
current!y used for limerock mining, rock processing and ancillary uses, and 
preservation and open space (subject to conservation easement and 
conditions of a planned development zoning ordinance). The Agricultural 
Properties are currently used for agricultural operations (croplands). 

5 

Page 13

https://1,260.82


BG Mine 
Source: Ci(v ofBonita Springs and Lee County Properzv Appraiser 

6. Planning Background 

a. Annexation 

The Mine Property was annexed into the City in May 2003. While the Mine 
Property is located within the municipal area, it has remained subject to the 
requirements of the Lee County Comprehensive Plan and the Lee County Land 
Development Code that were in effect as of May 2003. 

The Agricultural Properties were annexed into the City of Bonita Springs in 
2003 and according to the 2006 Evaluation and Appraisal Report, the Future 
Land Use Categories for the Agricultural Properties are City of Bonita 
Springs Density Reduction/Groundwater Resource ("DRGR"). 

b. Zoning 

Pursuant to Property Appraiser's sales transactions, the Mine Property was 
acquired by the Applicant in 2016. The existing mining operation has been 

6 

Page 14



operating since the late 1980's and was originally approved as an Industrial 
Planned Development (IPD) by the Lee County Board of County 
Commissioners pursuant to Lee County Zoning Resolution No. Z-98-071. 
The original Zoning Resolution was amended by Lee County in 2002, 
pursuant to Lee County Zoning Resolution Z-02-047, and the property was 
then voluntarily annexed into the City of Bonita Springs by City of Bonita 
Springs Resolution No. 03-12 with a Vested Rights Determination through 
City of Bonita Springs via Case 2003-0001. 

In 2009, a prior property owner was cited with code violations for over
excavation amongst other things, which resulted in a Compliance 
Agreement to bring the mine back into compliance. In 2009 and 2013, the 
Master Concept Plan (MCP) was amended administratively to reflect the 
Compliance Agreement and other changes, all internal to the site and within 
the existing zoning entitlements. 

In 2014, a request to amend the planned development to extend the 
termination date of mining by ten (10) years was reviewed in accordance 
with the City of Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan and the City's Land 
Development Code. It was discovered in 2016 that the property was never 
assigned a City of Bonita Springs Future Land Use Classification. 
Therefore, pursuant to Section 171.062(2), Florida Statutes, the property is 
subject to Lee County's Comprehensive Plan (Lee Plan) and the County's 
Land Development Code (LDC), in effect as of June 2003, until the City 
adopts a comprehensive plan amendment that includes the annexed area. 
The 2014 case was remanded in order to review the request in accordance 
with the Lee Plan and the County's LDC which were in effect in June 2003. 
The 2014 remanded case was found sufficient in July 2018 (change in 
ownership in 2016), but was never scheduled for public hearings. 

The previous and current owners of the mine have applied for and received 
statutory extensions that extend the termination of mining date in 
accordance with Section 252.363, Florida Statutes, for state of 
emergencies. The declaration ofa state ofemergency suspends and tolls all 
such time requirements, notice requirements, and deadlines for final action 
on applications for permits and other approvals under any statutes or rules 
which have not yet expired to exercise the rights under a permit or other 
authorization for the duration of the emergency declaration for six ( 6) 
months plus the length of the tolling period. The most recent Executive 
Order extended the termination ofmining date to May 14, 2035. 

On December 18, 2019, the City ofBonita Springs approved an amendment 
to the IPD Zoning to expand the mining excavation limits and extend the 
termination ofmining date to February 13, 2041, consistent with the Florida 

7 

Page 15



Department of Environmental Protection's (FDEP) Environmental 
Resource Permit (ERP) for the property and Settlement Agreement. 

The Agricultural Properties are zoned AG-2 Agriculture, which allow the 
establishment or continuation of agricultural operations, with residential 
uses being permitted only as ancillary to agricultural uses, and to 
accommodate those individuals who understand and desire to live in an 
agricultural environment. 

7. Geographic Framework and Land Use Analysis 

a. Regionally Significant Natural Resources 

Adjacent to the east of the Mine Property are extensive environmentally 
sensitive lands owned by Lee County, the South Florida Water Management 
District, the State of Florida, and conservation entities. These entities 
acquired such lands in order to protect regionally significant water 
resources, wetlands, and wildlife habitat. The Mine Property shares a two 
(2) mile eastern border with the public conservation properties associated 
with the Corkscrew Regional Ecosystem Watershed ("CREW"). 

To the west of the Mine Property is Citrus Park RV Resort, a 1,626-unit 
development established prior to the 1990 Lee County Comprehensive Plan. 
Also to the west of the Mine Property, close to 1-75, are additional 
conservation lands and property owned by Bonita Springs Utilities, Inc., for 
a drinking water wellfield, treatment plant, and related purposes. 

8 

Page 16



Lands Owned by the Public and Bonita Springs Utilities. Inc. 
Source: Ci~)' ofBonita Springs and Lee County Property Appraiser 

Adjacent to the north of the Mine Property is Edison Farms which is a 
3,922-acre property that was acquired by Lee County in 2018 in recognition 
of its water resource values. This purchase serves as a "capstone" such that 
the Property is bracketed by public conservation and water supply utility 
lands to the east, north, and west. The shared boundary with Edison Farms 
is approximately one (1) mile. 

9 

Page 17



CONSERVATION 20/20NOMINATION'S 
-;,;i:in;i 

Lee County Conserration 20120 Nominations 
Source: Lee County . Coun(v Lands Department 

The public conservation lands are a result oflong-term collaborative efforts 
to acquire and manage lands necessary to protect the Corkscrew Regional 
Ecosystem Watershed ( CREW) and its water resource and environmental 
features. Over 50,000 acres have been acquired in Lee and Collier Counties 
connecting Flint Pen Strand, Bird Rookery Swamp, Corkscre~ Swamp, 
Corkscrew March, and Camp Keais Strand to the Big Cypress and 
Everglades. 

The continued acquisition of conservation lands - reflective of high water 
resource and environmental values -- proximate to the Mine Property is a 
significant change in the geographic planning context these annexations 
into the City. 

As it seeks outlet to the Imperial River, surface water flow in the southerly 
portion of CREW lands directs itself toward Bonita Springs. In its location 
at the "end of a funnel," major flooding in the City occurred both east and 
west of 1-75 in 1995 following Tropical Storm Jerry and Hurricane Opal, 
resulting in extensive evacuations and property damage including 
destruction of the Manna Christian RV Park. Additional flooding events 
have occurred in 2008 after Tropical Storm Fay and in the summer of 2017 
following heavy rains and Hurricane Irma. 

10 

Page 18



,r..-:........-.. 
TIIAVEL 1W1! 

□□-
□ .. ~--
□ ...-
□□---""'-

Source: Prospects for Southeast Lee County. 
Pla1111ingfor the Density Reduction I Groundwater Resource Area (2008) 

b. Agricultural Lands 

Agricultural uses are adjacent to the Mine Property for approximately one and half 
miles along its western boundary. The Agricultural Properties subject to this 
request are entirely croplands in active cultivation. 

Mine Property and Agricultural Properties View Perspective to the East 
Source: Google Earth 

c. Access 

Access to the Mine Property and Agricultural Properties are limited given 
its location east of 1-75. It is essentially a "cul-de-sac" location nestled 
between public conservation, utility, agricultural, and vested land uses, 

11 

Page 19



reachable by crossing 1-75 on Bonita Beach Road or East Terry Street and 
taking Bonita Grande Drive to the north. 

d. Future Land Use 

County's Future Land Use Categories-DRGR and Wetlands 

The Future Land Use Categories for the Mine Property are Lee County's 
Density Reduction/Groundwater Resource ("DRGR") Future Land Use 
Category and Lee County's Wetlands Future Land Use Category. These 
designations were put in place in 1990 prior to the City's incorporation. 

Discouragement of the proliferation of urban sprawl was an important 
impetus for the original establishment of Lee County's DRGR Future Land 
Use Category, which was formed in conjunction with pulling in urban 
development boundaries, lowering rural area densities, and creating an 
overlay to limit growth. 

The lands located to the east and north of the Mine Property are designated 
as Lee County's Conservation Future Land Use Category and Lee County's 
Wetlands Future Land Use Category. 

The Mine Property includes significant environmentally sensitive lands. 
Wetland areas constitute approximately one-third of the Mine Property, 
permeating the northern halfand forming a continuous band along the eastern 
boundary of the southern half. 

Pursuant to the Lee County Comprehensive Plan, the following uses are 
allowed in areas designated as DRGR: 

FLUE Policy 1.4.5 from June 2003 Codification: 

The Density Reduction/Groundwater Resource (DR/GR) areas 
include upland areas that provide substantial recharge to aquifers 
most suitablefor future well.field development. These areas also are 
the most favorable locations for physical withdrawal ofwater from 
those aquifers. Only minimal public facilities exist or are 
programmed. Land uses in these areas must be compatible with 
maintaining surface and groundwater levels at their historic levels. 
Permitted land uses include agriculture, natural resource extraction 
and related facilities, conservation uses, publicly-owned gun range 
facilities, private recreation facilities, and residential uses at a 
maximum density ofone dwelling unit per ten acres (1 dullOacres). 
Individual residential parcels may contain up to two acres of 

12 

Page 20



Wetlands without losing the right to have a dwelling unit, provided 
that no alterations are made to those wetland areas. 

The Lee County Comprehensive Plan allowed the following uses in its 
Wetlands Future Land Use Category: 

FLUE Policy 1.5.1 from June 2003 Codification: 

Permitted land uses in Wetlands consist of very low density 
residential uses and recreational uses that will not adversely affect 
the ecological functions ofwetlands. All development in Wetlands 
must be consistent with Goal 84 ofthis plan. The maximum density 
is one dwelling unit per twenty acres (1 du/20 acre) except as 
otherwise provided in Table 1(a) and Chapter XIII ofthis plan. 

Density was defined by the Lee County Comprehensive Plan as follows: 

DENSITY - The number ofresidential dwelling or housing units per 
gross acre (du/acre). Densities specified in this plan are gross 
residential densities. For the purpose of calculating gross 
residential density, the total acreage of a development includes 
those lands to be used for residential uses, and includes land within 
the development proposed to be usedfor streets and street rights of 
way, utility rights-of-way, public and private parks, recreation and 
open space, schools, community centers, and facilities such as 
police, fire and emergency services, sewage and water, drainage, 
and existing man-made waterbodies contained within the residential 
development. Lands for commercial, office, industrial uses, natural 
water bodies, and other non-residential uses must not be included. 

Pursuant to the Lee County Comprehensive Plan, the maximum residential 
development potential on areas classified as DRGR is one (1) unit per ten 
(10) acres; areas classified as Wetlands are allowed a maximum density of 
one (1) unit per twenty (20) acres. 

Note too that, pursuant to the Lee County Comprehensive Plan, the Future 
Land Use Map identifies maximum densities with no guarantee the 
theoretical maximum will be authorized at time of zoning or development 
permit, as such approvals are based on public facilities (FLUE Objective 2.2), 
general development standards (FLUE Goal 4), physical constraints or 
hazards (FLUE Goal 5), and other provisions. 

City's Future Land Use Category-DRGR 

13 

Page 21



The Agricultural Properties were annexed into the City of Bonita Springs in 
2003 and according to the 2006 Evaluation and Appraisal Report, the Future 
Land Use Categories for the Agricultural Properties are City of Bonita 
Springs Density Reduction/Groundwater Resource ("DRGR"). 

The Agricultural Properties include active agricultural operations for the 
cultivation of crops. 

Pursuant to the Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan, the following uses are 
~llowed in areas designated as DRGR: 

Policy 1.1.21: Density Reduction Groundwater Resource (DRGR) -
Intended to recognize geographic areas that provide significant 
recharge to aquifer systems associated with existing potable water 
welljields orfuture welljield development. Land uses in these areas 
must be compatible with maintaining surface and groundwater 
levels at their historic levels. Allowable land uses are limited to 
conservation uses; agriculture; residential uses at a maximum 
density of one dwelling unit per 10 gross acres within the 
approximately 4,230 acres of gross land area in the land use 
category (approximate acreage includes annexed Lee County 
DRGR lands); public uses; non-profit recreational uses and 
essential services needed for the health safety and general welfare 
of the community such as lift stations, utility lines, equipment and 
appurtenances necessaryfor such systems to furnish adequate levels 
ofservice. 

Density is defined by the Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan as follows: 

Density: The average number offamilies, persons or dwelling units 
per unit ofland, usually expressed ''per acre." "Density Control" is 
a limitation on the occupancy ofland, and is generally implemented 
through zoning. Specific methods include use restrictions, such as 
single or multiple family dwellings, minimum lot-size requirements, 
floor area ratio, setback or yard requirements, minimum house size 
requirements, lot area requirements, or other means. The average 
density over an area or parcel remains constant, but internal 
variations are allowed. 

Pursuant to the Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan, the maximum 
residential development potential on areas classified as DRGR is one (1) unit 
per ten (10) acres. Pursuant to FLUE Policy l .b Specific locations of 
wetlands or rare and unique upland habitats not so designated on the Future 
Land Use Map are still be subject to development limitations associated with 

14 

Page 22



provisions contained in other Goals, Objectives and Policies contained in the 
Comprehensive Plan, such as a maximum density of one (1) unit per twenty 
(20) acres with potential to transfer densities to contiguous uplands under 
common ownership. 

Note too that, pursuant to the Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan, the Future 
Land Use Map identifies maximum densities with no guarantee the 
theoretical maximum will be authorized at time of zoning or development 
permit based FLUE Policy 1.1.2. 

City's Future Land Use Category- Conservation Fringe 

Comparatively, the City's Comprehensive Plan would allow the following 
land uses in its Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category: 

Allowable land uses are limited to conservation uses; agriculture; 
excavation (existing vested mining operation only); residential 
uses at a maximum density of0.522 dwelling units per gross acre 
along with accessory amenity building and private recreational 
areas; public uses; non-profit public recreational uses; and 
essential services needed for the health, safety, and general 
welfare of the community such as lift stations, utility lines, 
potable/non-potable wells and equipment and appurtenances 
necessary for such systems to furnish adequate levels ofservice. 

Lee County's Comprehensive Plan allows clustering of density. Pursuant to 
the Lee County Comprehensive Plan, man-made water bodies included in a 
development area may be counted for the purposes of calculating density 
yield. Consequently, mining interests are able to first economically benefit 
through excavation and sale of fill dirt and limerock and then, after 
consuming land area, benefit again through the residential density yield of 
what became open water, thereby effectively achieving multiple viable 
economic uses. 

Similar to Lee County's Comprehensive Plan, the City's new Conservation 
Fringe Future Land Use Category does not guarantee maximum theoretical 
land plan densities. Rather, densities will be approved at time of zoning or 
development permit based on compatibility, access, public facilities and 
services, and environmental considerations. Moreover, the City's new 
Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category mandates that "all density 
must be clustered on the permitted upland portion and/or disturbed land of an 
approved master concept plan for the reclamation/redevelopment plan." 

e. Transportation 

15 

Page 23



SR 951 

Potential routes to extend SR 951 to connect Collier and Lee Counties east 
of I-7 5 in an alignment proximate to the Property have been considered and 
rejected. In 2002, Collier County, Lee County, and the Florida Department 
ofTransportation initiated a study that led to a Preferred Alternative and draft 
Environmental Impact Statement in 2005. However, in 2010, the Lee 
County Board of Commissioners voted against the extension and, in 2015, 
the extension was removed from the Lee County MPO Long-Range 
Transportation Plan. Presently, the route is not reflected in the Lee County 
MPO 2040 Plan, and neither the Lee County Comprehensive Plan nor the 
City's Comprehensive Plan recognizes or authorizes the roadway extension. 

The deletion of the SR 951 extension is a significant change since 2003. 

Long-Range Transportation Deficiencies 

In January 2018, BG Mine, LLC, responded to the City's sufficiency 
questions on BG Mine, LLC's 2012 plan amendment request with a revised 
application and transportation analysis. 

BG Mine, LLC's analysis ofroadways within three (3) miles of the Property 
forecasts transportation level of service deficiencies by the year 2040 - with 
or without the "project" - on portions of Bonita Beach Road, East Terry 
Street, I-75, Imperial Parkway, and Old 41. The sufficiency response 
proposes that, pursuant to state law, development associated with BG Mine, 
LLC's request is not responsible for mitigation of transportation impacts on 
backlogged roadways and is responsible only for payment of impact fees and 
widening of Bonita Grande Drive from East Terry Street to the Property's 
entrance. 

As a matter ofprocedure, final transportation impact mitigation requirements 
will be determined at time of zoning and development permit. 

8. Comprehensive Planning Consistency 

The proposed amendments are consistent with and further the City's 
Comprehensive Plan by establishing land uses that are appropriate, 
compatible, suitable, and supported by data and analysis. 

The proposed amendments are consistent with the City's planning vision and 
the Goals, Objectives, and Policies of the City's Comprehensive Plan, 
including: 

16 

Page 24



• FLUE Objective 1.1 to designate future land uses consistent with the 
natural and built-up environment; 

■ Conservation/Coastal Management ( CCME) Element Goal 7 to 
manage wetland and upland ecosystems to maintain and enhance 
native habitats, floral and faunal species diversity, water quality, and 
natural surface water characteristics; 

■ CCME Policy 7.2.2 to prevent incompatible development in and 
around environmental sensitive lands; 

• CCME Policy 7.2.7 to promote long-term maintenance to natural 
systems through instruments such as conservation easements and 
restrictive zoning; 

■ CCME Policy 7.3 .1 to continue to maintain and enhance fish and 
wildlife diversity and distribution; 

• CCME Objective 7.4 to continue to protect habitats of endangered 
and threatened species and species of special concern; and 

• Stormwater Management/Aquifer Recharge Sµb-Element Goal 1 to 
protect and improve the quality of receiving waters and natural areas 
and the functions ofnatural groundwater aquifer recharge areas while 
also providing flood protection for existing and future development. 

9. Summary Planning Analysis 

a. The proposed amendments will benefit the City, the owner of the Property, and the 
public by: 

■ Ensuring Future Land Uses are consistent with the City's 
Comprehensive Plan; and 

• Implementing the City's Evaluation and Appraisal Review. 

b. The proposed amendments transfer the Mine Property into the City's 
Comprehensive Plan. The proposed amendment allows for the Agricultural 
Properties, as contiguous property under common ownership, to be included up to 
a maximum of 10% of the existing vested mining operation area. 

c. The location, character, surroundings, and access demonstrate that the 
Conservation Fringe Category is appropriate for the Property. The proposed 
amendments are supported by, and react appropriately to, relevant data and 
analysis. 

. J 

• The Mine Property and Agricultural Properties are located in the extreme 
northeast corner of the City and includes significant on-site wetlands; 

17 

Page 25



■ Adjacent to the east and north ofthe Mine Property are lands acquired for 
conservation purposes in recognition of regionally significant water 
resources, wetlands, and wildlife habitat; 

■ Adjacent to the west and south of the Property are agricultural lands; 

■ Access to the Mine Property and Agricultural Properties are limited by 
its location east of1-75; and 

■ The City's Conservation Fringe Category provides substantially the same 
land uses as determined appropriate pursuant to the Lee County 
Comprehensive Plan. 

d. Significant changes to community conditions and the geographic planning context 
have occurred since the Mine Property and Agricultural Properties were annexed 
into the City, including continued acquisition of public conservation lands, major 
flooding, rejection of a SR 951 extension, and deepening roadway deficiencies. 
These changes support a continuation of the historically allowed future land uses. 

e. The proposed amendments support the City's efforts to continue its phased 
comprehensive plan update based on the City's EAR, and supplemental updated 
data and analysis, such that all annexed properties are assigned appropriate City 
Future Land Use Categories. 

f. The proposed amendments discourage the proliferation of urban sprawl because: 

(i.) They direct or locate economic growth and associated land 
development to geographic areas of the community in a manner that 
does not have an adverse impact on and protects natural resources and 
ecosystems. (Section 163.3 l 77(6)(a)9.b.(I), Florida Statutes). 

(ii.) They promote walkable and connected communities and 
provide for compact development and a mix of uses at densities and 
intensities that support a range of housing choices. A multimodal 
transportation system is not available. (Section 
163.3177(6)(a)9.b.(III), Florida Statutes). 

(iii.) They promote conservation of water and energy. (Section 
163.3177(6)(a)9.b.(IV), Florida Statutes). 

(iv.) They preserve open space and natural lands and provide for 
public open space and recreation needs. (Section 
163.3177(6)(a)9.b.(VI), Florida Statutes). 

18 

Page 26



Environmental Staff Analysis 

This supplement consolidates the most appropriate Goals and Objectives of the City of Bonita 
Springs Comprehensive Plan and provides responses to the ones cited below. Staff and has 
evaluated and accepted the Applicant's environmental data and analysis. 

CCME Goal 3: Hazardous Materials. To protect the public and the environment from accidental 
contact with hazardous materials. 

Staffhas verified the storage and dispensing ofHazardous Materials at the site are in compliance 
with the City's codes and laws. 

CCME Goal 7: Resource Protection. To manage the City's wetland and upland ecosystem so as to 
maintain and enhance native habitats, floral and fauna! species diversity, water quality, and natural 
surface water characteristics. 

The mine has obtained many permits throughout the life ofthe mine with numerous environmental 
conditions attached to the permits. City Staff has performed site inspections throughout the mine 
site from 2008 to present and found that the resources were being preserved and protected in 
accordance with the permits issued. The proposedfuture land use category requires conservation 
easements for each preservation area and requires all density to be clustered on the permitted 
upland portion and/or disturbed land of an approved master concept plan for the 
reclamation/redevelopment plan. 

CCME Objective 7.2: Plant communities - The City shall continue to maintain and routinely 
update an inventory of natural plant communities and will protect them at various suitable 
locations and remnant tracts of all important and representative natural plant communities 
occurring within the City. 

The priority wetland plant communities are protected with conservation easements through the 
original mine permits and have been maintained and improved throughout the lifespan ofthe mine, 
with exotic plant removal and replanting unvegetated areas and even soil amendments in some 
locations to providefor a better substratefor the plants to grow. The plant communities are stable, 
diverse and in good condition. This proposed future land use category requires conservation 
easements for each preservation area and requires all density to be clustered on the permitted 
upland portion and/or disturbed land of an approved master concept plan for the 
reclamation/redevelopment plan. 

CCME Objective 7.3: Wildlife - The City shall continue to maintain and enhance the fish and 
wildlife diversity and distribution within the City for the benefit of a balanced ecological system. 

A wide variety of wildlife utilize the site, both in the preserved areas and in the mining areas. 
Protected species such as bald eagles and wood storks and American alligators do utilize the site .. 
The large open water and shallow littoral zone do provide habitat andfood for these species. The 
maintenance and upkeep ofthe natural areas help the wildlife using the site. This proposed future 
land use category requires conservation easements for each preservation area and requires all 
density to be clustered on the permitted upland portion and/or disturbed land of an approved 
master concept plan for the reclamation/redevelopment plan. Post mining, it is anticipated that 
the same wildlife will occupy the preserves and lakes. 

Page 27



CCME Goal 8: Historic Resources. Protect, provide access to and educate residents regarding the 
historic resources of the City of Bonita Springs. 

There are no historic resources at the mine site. 

CCME Goal 16: Water Quality. To ensure that water quality is maintained or improved for the 
protection of the environment and people of the City of Bonita Springs. 

The site has an approved SFWMD Environmental Resource Permit that ensures that water quality 
and quantity are protected and held onsite for the typical 25 year storm event. There are four 
overflow culverts leading into the wetlands to the east for overflow events. These cluverts were 
inspected by staff and found to be in good order. Turbid water in the large lakes is a normal 
occurrence for an active mine. But, as stated before the water does not leave the site with the 
exception ofa major storm event. Surface and Groundwater is monitored and tested quarterly. 
There is one surface water quality monitoring site and four monitoring wells along the western 
side ofthe mine property. To date there have been no water quality issues. This proposedfuture 
land use category establishes polices to incorporate best management practices for fertilization 
andpesticide application. It also requires ecological and hydrological restoration and additional 
water quality treatment standards. 

CCME Objective 16.3: Incorporation of Green Infrastructure into the Surface Water Management 
System. The long-term benefits of incorporating green infrastructure as part of the surface water 
management system include improved water quality, improved air quality, improved water 
recharge/infiltration, water storage, wildlife habitat, recreational opportunities, and visual relief 
within the urban environment. 

The mine reclamation plan incorporates Green Infrastructure into the finalization of the 
mining activities. Lake slopes, littoral zone plantings, a deep lake management plan and 
25' wetland plant buffers will be constructed at the conclusion ofmining. This proposed 
future land use category also establishes polices to incorporate low impact roadway 
design, linearfilter marsh retention elements, and other "green " roadway design features 
for on-site and off-site improvements to transportation infrastructure. 

CCME Objective 16.5: Groundwater Resources. 

A small portion of the mine is located in protection zone 3 of the potable water Well.field to the 
west ofthe mine. The mine has a Well.field Protection Permit issued though Lee County. The wells 
are sampled quarterly and the water quality results are reviewed by Lee County. To date there 
have been no water quality issues. 

CCME Goal 17: Air Quality. The City will improve air quality, meeting or exceeding State and 
Federal Air Quality Standards. 

Air quality conditions were incorporated into the mine permits. A watering truck waters the 
internal limerock and asphalt roadways to keep the dust levels down. There is a truck wheel wash 
that the haul trucks use before leaving the site. Both ofthese dust reduction methods were working 
and being used during site inspections by staff. 

CCME Goal 20: Water Access. Ensure public access to water. 

As part ofthe settlement agreement between the property owner and the City ofBonita Springs, 
adopted on November 20, 2019, the northern portion of the subject property will become a new 
city park with passive and active recreational uses. 

Page 28



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Settlement Agreement ("Agreement") is made between the City of Bonita Springs, 
Florida ("City"), and BG Mine, LLC ("BGM"), and executed by both Parties thereto on the 4th 
day of December 2019. BE 278, LLC ("BE 278"), joins in this Agreement as to Sections 3.B., 
4.D., and 5.-24. herein. 

WHEREAS, BGM and the City have been engaged in multiple litigation actions related to 
the Property commonly known as the Bonita Grande Mine. The Property, along with an adjacent 
80 acre parcel, is described in the legal description attached hereto as Exhibit "A"; and 

WHEREAS, Exhibit "A" and other exhibits hereto are intended preliminarily for 
illustrative purposes and will be supplanted with updated specific legal descriptions pursuant to 
the Parties' obligations and additional submittals contemplated in Sections 3 and 4 below; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto intend to bring to a final resolution all pending or currently 
anticipated litigation between the Parties, either directly or indirectly related to the Property, the 
proposed future land use designation in the City's Comprehensive Plan applicable to the Property, 
any land use designation previously and currently placed upon the Property by Lee County, 
pending attempts by BGM to de-annex from the City or to enforce the conditions provided in the 
Annexation Agreement between the Parties, and any procedural or substantive due process issues 
related to the City's administrative actions and/or inactions to date related to the Property. The 
litigation intended to be resolved by this Agreement is as follows: 

BG Mine, LLC v. City ofBonita Springs, Florida, DOAH Case No.: 17-3871GM; 

BG Mine, LLC vs. City ofBonita Springs, Case No.: 1D19-140; 

BG Mine, LLC vs. City ofBonita Springs, Case No.: 17-CA-000381; 

BG Mine, LLC v. City ofBonita Springs, Florida, Case No.: 17-CA-004036; 

BG Mine, LLCv. City ofBonita Springs, Florida, Case No.: 18-CA-003465; and 

BG Mine, LLC v. City ofBonita Springs, Florida, Case No.: 18-CA-006017. 

( collectively, the "Litigation"). 

WHEREAS, the Parties intend to effectuate the terms generally set forth in their Mediated 
Settlement Agreement, dated August 27, 2019, and attached hereto as Exhibit "B"; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it is beneficial and in the best interests of the 
Bonita Springs City residents to enter into this Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of $10.00 and BGM's forbearance from the above
listed litigation, and in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, terms, and conditions set 

Page 1 of 13 

Page 29



forth herein, the receipt and sufficiency ofwhich are hereby acknowledged, the City and BGM do 
hereby agree as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals and Authority. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and by this 
reference are incorporated as material parts of this Agreement. 

Section 2. Exhibits. All Exhibits referenced in either the foregoing recitals or in the body 
ofthis Agreement are hereby incorporated by reference herein as material parts ofthis Agreement. 

Section 3. Obligations ofBGM and BE 278. 

A. Contingent upon the City's grant of the Entitlements ( as defined below), BGM 
agrees to (i) transfer title and grant an easement to the City for the northern portion ofthe Property; 
and (ii) grant easement rights to a sixty ( 60) foot roadway easement, both legally described and 
generally depicted on a sketch attached hereto as Exhibit "C" for the purposes ofpublic recreation 
and pursuant to a draft joint use agreement attached hereto as Exhibit "D". Exhibit "C" will be 
updated with a revised sketch and legal description upon submittal of RPD pursuant to Section 
4.E. below. The City will cooperate with BGM in the dedication of the aforementioned roadway 
easement, but it is understood between the parties that nothing contained herein shall limit the 
City's ability to otherwise obtain necessary drainage, utility, pedestrian or vehicular access to the 
northern portion of the Property through use of its eminent domain powers. Transfer of title shall 
occur within thirty (30) days after the expiration of all potential appellate procedures for the 
Entitlement approvals described in Section 4. BGM will retain a license after transfer to the City 
to complete the excavation and reclamation of the City's portion of the Property as required under 
the approval described in Section 4.A, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "G-1". During the 
South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) permitting for the residential development 
on the Property, the Parties will coordinate on any additional storm water improvements requested 
by the City above and beyond BGM's proposed master surface water management system that 
meets the requirements of the SFWMD for the Property. Any agreed upon additional 
improvements will be at the City's sole cost and shall have no impacts on BGM's residential 
development. Notwithstanding the above, the northern portion of the Property and the sixty ( 60) 
foot right-of-way will be part of the future RPD as defined and referenced below in Section 4.E. 
and will adhere to all RPD requirements such as but not limited to permitted uses and open space 
/ density calculations. 

B. BE 278 agrees to sell, and the City agrees to purchase, ±248 acres as described and 
depicted on the sketch attached hereto as Exhibit "E" for $4,989,000.00, per an executed Purchase 
and Sale Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit "F". The closing shall be held within thirty (30) 
days after the expiration ofall potential appellate procedures for the approvals described in Section 
4. below. BE 278 will retain a license agreement after purchase by the City to reshape and remove 
topsoil from the site consistent with a to-be negotiated mutual development plan, in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit "G-2." 

Section 4. Obligations of the City. 

A. The City agrees to expeditiously schedule the City Zoning Board and City Council 
meetings to consider whether to approve the proposed amendment of BGM's Industrial Planned 

Page 2 of 13 

Page 30

https://4,989,000.00


Development amendment based upon the 2003 Lee Plan regulations and the application/plans 
submitted by BGM to the City on May 15, 2019, which proposed amendment includes a 
recognition that no offsite road improvements are required and no payment ofroad impact fees are 
required based on the 2003 Lee Plan ("IPD Amendment"). The final City Council public hearing 
shall be properly advertised and held prior to December 31, 2019. BGM agrees to include a 
condition in the IPD Amendment that it shall not seek any extensions to the termination date of 
December 31, 2041, including any potential extensions pursuant to any Executive Orders. 

B. If the City Council approves the IPD Amendment, the City agrees to expeditiously 
consider an application for a modification of BGM's existing Development Order for expanded 
mining excavation based upon the IPD Amendment plans/approval and the existing FDEP 
Environmental Resource Protection ("ERP") approval, which proposed Development Order 
includes a recognition that no offsite road improvements are required and no payment of road 
impact fees are required. Final action on the Development Order modification shall be made 
within sixty (60) days of the IPD Amendment approval. 

C. The City agrees to expeditiously schedule the LPA and City Council meetings to 
consider whether to approve a Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment and a Future Land Use Map 
Amendment(s) that will change the Property from DRGR (Lee Plan) to a future land use category 
(City Plan) that supports both the above IPD in Section 4.A. and a future residential planned 
development ("RPD") as outlined below in Section 4.E. and generally consistent with the revised 
text and map exhibits attached hereto as Exhibit "H" ("CPA"). The City Council's target for the 
adoption hearing for the CPA shall be prior to March 31, 2020. Attached hereto as Exhibit "J" is 
the estimated schedule for obtaining the approval of the Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment 
and the Future Land Use Map Amendment. Both City staff and BGM will respond within thirty 
(30) days of receipt of any submittals/sufficiency reviews. 

D. The City agrees to expeditiously consider an application for an Administrative 
Amendment and accompanying Limited Review Development Order (collectively, the "BE 278 
Approvals") for reshaping and removal of top soil from the property identified on Exhibit "E" 
referenced above, including a proposed License Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit "G-2" . 
Both City staff and BGM will respond within thirty (30) days of receipt of any 
submittals/sufficiency reviews. Final City staff consideration shall be made prior to March 31, 
2020. 

E. The City agrees to expeditiously schedule the City Zoning Board and City Council 
meetings to consider whether to approve a RPD subsequent to the above CPA (if approved) in 
Section 4.C., which supports the residential rezoning of the Property and is consistent with the 
draft RPD Parameters and Master Concept Plan, Property Development Uses / Regulations and 
Schedule ofDeviations attached hereto as Exhibit "I" (collectively, the "RPD Plans"). The target 
final City Council hearing for the RPD Plans shall be prior to March 31, 2020. Attached hereto as 
Exhibit "J" is the estimated schedule for approving the RPD Plans. Both City staff and BGM will 
respond within thirty (30) days of receipt of any submittals/sufficiency reviews. 

F. The IPD Amendment without offsite road improvements and payment of road 
impact fees, the modification of BG Mine's existing Development Order for expanded mining 

Page3 of13 

Page 31



excavation without offsite road improvements or payment of road impact fees, the CPA, the BE 
278 Approvals, and the RPO Plans, as set forth in Sections 4.A., 4.B., 4.C., 4.D., and 4.E. above 
are collectively referred to herein as the "Entitlements." 

G. In the event that the City approves: (A) this Agreement; (B) the IPD Amendment 
without offsite road improvements and payment of road impact fees; (C) the modification of BG 
Mine's existing Development Order for expanded mining excavation without offsite road 
improvements and payment ofroad impact fees; (D) the CPA; (E) the BE 278 Approvals; and (F) 
the RPD Plans, all as set forth in Sections 4.A., 4.B., 4.C., 4.D., and 4.E. above, BGM shall file 
Notices ofVoluntary Dismissal with Prejudice in the Litigation within ten (10) days of the date on 
which such Entitlements become effective. 

H. The Parties agree to file Joint Motions to Abate the Litigation within five (5) days 
of the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

I. The City acknowledges that pursuant to the BGM RPO, additional land or 
easements may be required along segments of Bonita Grande Drive located north ofBonita Beach 
Road, as well as at certain road intersections on Bonita Grande Drive and East Terry Street. The 
additional lands or easements may be needed for a planned required / improved two lane road 
cross-section for Bonita Grande Drive including utilities, landscaping, sidewalks and intersection 
improvements that will serve the BGM RPO and the City's planned Lake Park on the north end of 
the BGM RPO. The City will cooperate with BGM to the extent the law permits in the dedication 
to the City of the public access easement for the aforementioned roadway. BGM agrees to 
indemnify the City for any and all costs incurred by the City in assisting BGM in obtaining any 
necessary land or easements. 

J. Prior to taking possession, City will have the right, at its sole cost and risk, to 
conduct inspections and environmental assessment of the proposed Lake Park. Any data obtained 
shall be immediately provided to BGM, including any reports and conclusions. If environmental 
contamination is found to have occurred City and BGM must agree upon a mitigation plan within 
30 days of notice. If a mitigation plan is not agreed to the City may terminate any remaining 
obligations under this Agreement. 

Section 5. Scope of Agreement. The Parties' obligations and rights under this Agreement 
are expressly made contingent upon the City's approval by no later than July 1, 2020, (the 
"Entitlements Deadline") of (A) this Agreement; (B) the IPD Amendment without offsite road 
improvements or payment of road impact fees; (C) the modification of BG Mine's existing 
Development Order for expanded mining excavation without offsite road improvements or 
payment of road impact fees; (D) the CPA; (E) the BE 278 Approvals; and (F) the RPD Plans, all 
as set forth in Sections 4.A., 4.B., 4.C., 4.D., and 4.E. above. In the event that the City does not 
approve the following by the Entitlements Deadline: (A) this Agreement; (B) the IPD Amendment 
without offsite road improvements or payment of road impact fees; (C) the modification of BG 
Mine's existing Development Order for expanded mining excavation without offsite road 
improvements or payment of road impact fees; (D) the CPA; (E) the BE 278 Approvals; and (F) 
the RPD Plans, as set forth in Sections 4.A., 4.B., 4.C., 4.D., and 4.E. above, this Agreement shall 
be null and void except for those sections expressly surviving a termination under this Section 5, 

Page 4 of13 

Page 32



and the Parties shall retain all of their rights, including, but not limited to, continuing with the 
Litigation. No term or condition of this Agreement shall be construed as to proscribe, limit, or 
affect the ability of the City presently to enforce its Comprehensive Plan, its Land Development 
Code, or any other authority granted by law concerning the development of the Property. 

Section 6. No Contract Zoning. The Parties understand and agree that the City, by 
entering into this Agreement, has not bound itself contractually to exercise its discretionary 
regulatory and/or land use approval authority in any particular manner, except as in conformance 
with procedural and substantive due process strictures, as well as in full compliance with all 
Federal, State, and City laws applicable hereto. By the same understanding and agreement, BGM 
will be fully released by the City from any and all obligations set out herein, if the City does not 
fully execute and deliver upon all contingent considerations set out in the terms of this Agreement 
including, without limitation, final approval of the Entitlements beyond possibility of appeal. 

Section 7. Mutual Releases. In the event that the City votes to approve all Entitlements 
by the Entitlements Deadline as set out hereinabove: 

A. BGM hereby waives and releases, acquits, satisfies, and forever discharges 
the City, including its elected officials and employees, and any and all 
affiliates, legal representatives, insurance carriers, successors, and assigns 
thereof ( collectively, the "City-Related Parties"), from any and all claims, 
counterclaims, defenses, actions, causes of action, suits, controversies, 
agreements, promises, and demands whatsoever which BGM ever had or 
now has, in law or in equity, for, upon, or by reason of any claim raised or 
which could have been raised by any Party in the Litigation as of the 
Effective Date of this Agreement. In addition, and without waiving the 
generality of the foregoing, BGM covenants with and warrants to the City, 
including the City-Related Parties, that there exist no claims, counterclaims, 
defenses, objections, offsets, or claims of offsets against the City, including 
the City-Related Parties, with regard to any claim raised by any Party in the 
Litigation that are not included in and covered by this Agreement. The 
release set forth in this provision does not apply to any rights granted by or 
arising from this Agreement, through the last date of compliance with all 
terms of this Agreement. 

B. The City hereby waives and releases, acquits, satisfies, and forever 
discharges BGM, including its officers, members, directors, shareholders, 
and employees, and any and all subsidiaries, affiliates, legal representatives, 
insurance carriers, successors, heirs, and assigns thereof ( collectively, the 
"BGM-Related Parties"), from any and all claims, counterclaims, defenses, 
actions, causes of action, suits, controversies, agreements, promises, and 
demands whatsoever which the City ever had or now has, in law or in 
equity, for, upon, or by reason ofany claim raised or which could have been 
raised by any Party in the Litigation as of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement. In addition, and without waiving the generality of the 
foregoing, the City covenants with and warrants to BGM, including the 

Page 5 of13 

Page 33



BGM-Related Parties, that there exist no claims, counterclaims, defenses, 
objections, offsets, or claims of offsets against BGM, including the BGM
Related Parties, with regard to any claim raised by any Party in the 
Litigation that are not included in and covered by this Agreement. The 
release set forth in this provision does not apply to any rights granted by or 
arising from this Agreement, through the last date of compliance with all 
terms of this Agreement. 

Section 8. Enforcement. This Agreement shall be jointly submitted to the Court in the 
17-CA-4036 case for approval and order of abatement. The terms of the Agreement may be 
enforced by any and all remedies provided in law or equity, including, without limitation, a motion 
for declaratory and/or injunctive relief brought in the 17-CA-4036 action. Time being of the 
essence in this Agreement, the Parties agree that any such motion shall be promptly set for a 
dispositive hearing. This section shall survive a termination under Section 5. 

Section 9. Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement, and any issues relating to it or its 
subject matter, shall be construed, interpreted, enforced, and governed in accordance with, and 
governed by, the substantive laws of the State of Florida. Venue for any action arising out of or 
relating to this Agreement shall be solely in the Circuit Court in and for Lee County, Florida. This 
section shall survive a termination under Section 5. 

Section 10. Default by City. In the event the City refuses to consider whether to approve 
any of the Entitlements set forth in Sections 4.A., 4.B., 4.C., 4.D., and 4.E., the Parties agree that 
such refusal shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. Under such circumstances, all abated 
litigation shall resume status quo ante and BGM shall be entitled to pursue in Circuit Court an 
award of attorneys' fees and costs incurred in the preparation of and execution of BGM's efforts 
taken with regard to this Agreement and its pursuit _of the Entitlements. Such an award of 
attorneys' fees shall not include the attorneys' fees incurred in determining the amount of such 
attorneys' fees ("Fees for Fees"). This section shall survive a termination under Section 5. 

Section 11. Further Understandings and Agreements. 

A. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties with 
respect to the settlement of the Litigation. All prior negotiations and understandings, whether 
verbal or written between said parties, collectively, jointly, and/or severally, and their agents, 
employees, and representatives are merged herein and fully set forth at length. Each party hereto 
acknowledges, represents, and warrants that, except as expressly set out in this Agreement, no 
representation of fact or law has been made by those released hereby, or their counsel, or any other 
person, and that this Agreement is not based upon any such unstated representations, the 
undersigned, or their counsel, having investigated to the fullest extent possible the factual and legal 
issues involved in this matter. To the extent that the provisions of this Agreement are inconsistent 
with the provisions of the Mediated Settlement Agreement referenced above as Exhibit "B", the 
terms of this Agreement shall control for purposes of contractual construction and interpretation. 
Furthermore, to the extent the provisions of this Agreement are inconsistent with any of the 
Exhibits attached hereto, this Agreement shall control for the purposes ofcontractual construction, 
interpretation, dispute resolution or remedies. 

Page 6 of13 

Page 34



B. It is understood and agreed that this settlement is a final compromise of a dispute, 
and the Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is in no way an admission or concession of 
liability or wrongdoing by any party, but is simply an attempt to resolve, without litigation, the 
matters in dispute among the Parties. The existence of this Agreement, or the settlement terms set 
forth herein, shall not be admissible in any action based on takings, condemnation, inverse 
condemnation, or the Bert J. Harris, Jr., Private Property Rights Protection Act, Section 70.011, et 
seq., Florida Statutes. 

C. The signature by any person to this Agreement shall be deemed a personal warranty 
by that person that he/she has the full power and authority to bind any corporation, partnership, or 
any other business or governmental entity for which the person purports to act hereunder. 

D. The City is duly organized and validly existing under the Constitution and laws of 
the State of Florida, with full legal right, power, and authority to enter into and perform its 
obligations hereunder; and City is further duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement 
without further approval or authorizations, except as provided for herein. 

E. BG Mine, LLC, is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State 
of Florida, with full legal right, power, and authority to enter into and perform its obligations 
hereunder; and BGM's Manager is further duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement 
without further approval or authorizations. 

F. BE 278, LLC, is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of 
Florida, with full legal right, power, and authority to enter into and perform its obligations 
hereunder; and BE 278's Manager is further duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement 
without further approval or authorizations. 

G. This Agreement shall not preclude BGM m the future from modifying the 
Entitlements subject to City review and approval. 

Section 12. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the 
benefit of the respective successors, heirs, assigns, bankruptcy trustees, representatives, affiliates, 
officers, directors, partners, members, and joint venturers of the Parties. 

Section 13. Non-Waiver. Failure by the City or BGM to insist upon the strict performance 
ofany ofthe terms, conditions, or provisions ofthis Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of such terms, conditions, and provisions, and the City and BGM, notwithstanding such failure, 
shall have the right hereafter to insist upon the strict performance of any or all such terms and 
conditions of this Agreement as set forth herein. 

Section 14. Construction; Headings. Should any provision of this Agreement require 
interpretation in any judicial, administrative, or other proceeding or circumstance, it is agreed that 
the court, adminstrative body, or other entity interpreting or construing the same shall not apply a 
presumption that the construction of a document is to be construed more strictly against the party 
who prepared the same, it being agreed that the Parties hereto have fully participated in the 

Page 7 ofl3 

Page 35



preparation of this Agreement. The Parties have entered into this Agreement without duress, 
coercion, or under undue influence of any kind, and are motivated by a desire to avoid the costs 
and time associated with litigation and to arrive at a fair and reasonable agreement with regard to 
the Litigation. The Parties acknowledge that they have been represented by counsel in connection 
with the negotiation of the terms of this Agreement and that they enter into this Agreement freely 
and voluntarily, and only after consultation with their respective counsel. All sections and 
descriptive headings in this Agreement are inserted for convenience only, and shall neither affect 
the construction or interpretation hereof, nor add or subtract from the meaning of the contents of 
each section. 

Section 15. Interpretation. This Agreement shall be read and interpreted in such a 
manner as to give all provisions their ordinary and customary meaning, and all words, terms, and 
phrases not otherwise specifically defined by a capitalized term, or otherwise, shall have the same 
meaning and interpretation as customarily used among lay persons. The terms "hereby," "hereof," 
"herein," "hereto," "hereunder," and any similar terms refer to this Agreement in its entirety and 
not solely to the particular section or paragraph in which the term is used. All words, terms, and 
phrases specifically defined by a capitalized term shall apply throughout this Agreement in its 
entirety and not solely to the particular section or paragraph in which the term is used. In 
construing this Agreement, the singular shall be held to include the plural, the plural shall include 
the singular, and the use of any gender shall include every other and all genders. 

Section 16. Amendments. This Agreement or any part hereof may not be changed, 
amended, waived, discharged, or terminated, except by an instrument in writing, executed by all 
Parties affected by such amendment. 

Section 17. Severability. If any clause or provision of this Agreement is determined to 
be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable under any present or future law by a final judgment of a court 
of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement will not be affected thereby so long as 
the remainder Agreement does not result in a material forfeiture of either party's agreed exchange 
of consideration. It is the intention of the Parties that if any such clause or provision is held to be 
illegal, invalid, or unenforeceable, there will be added in lieu thereof a provision as similar in terms 
to such provision as is possible to be legal, valid, and enforceable. 

Section 18. Disclaimer of Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is solely for the 
benefit of the Parties and no right or cause of action shall accrue by reason hereof to or for the 
benefit of any third party that is not a formal party hereto. Nothing in this Agreement, expressed 
or implied, is intended or shall be construed to confer upon or give any other third person or entity 
any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this-Agreement, or any provisions or conditions 
hereof, other than as expressly stated herein. 

Section 19. Purpose of this Agreement; Not Establishing Precedent. By entering into 
this Agreement, the Parties do not admit any liability whatsoever to the other, or to any other 
person, arising out of any claims asserted, or that could have been asserted, in the Litigation, and 
expressly deny any and all such liability. The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement 
is not intended by any Party to be construed, and shall not be construed, as an admission by any 
Party of any liability or violation of any law, statute, ordinance, regulation, or other legal duty of 

Page 8 of13 

Page 36



any nature whatsoever. Rather, this Agreement is for the compromise of potential and disputed 
claims, involving both fact and law, and the Parties enter into this Agreement in a spirit of 
cooperation for the purpose of avoiding further litigation and in recognition of the desire for the 
speedy and reasonable resolution of the Litigation. The acceptance of proposals for purposes of 
this Agreement is part of a mediated settlement affecting many factual and legal issues and is not 
an endorsement of, and does not establish precedent for, the use of these proposals in any other 
circumstances. 

Section 20. Attorneys' Fees; Costs. The Parties expressly agree to bear the fees and costs 
of their respective counsel, experts, and consultants in the Litigation and in the preparation of this 
Agreement. 

Section 21. Notices. All notices and other communications required hereunder shall be in 
writing and shall be delivered personally, or by registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid, or by Federal Express, or other nationally recognized overnight 
commercial delivery service, fees prepaid for next day delivery. Such notices shall be deemed to 
have been received: (i) upon delivery, if personally delivered; (ii) upon the earlier of actual receipt 
or the third day after mailing, ifmailed by registered or certified United States mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid; and (iii) upon the earlier of actual receipt or the next business day if 
sent by Federal Express or other nationally recognized overnight commercial delivery service, if 
fees are prepaid for next day delivery. The addresses for delivery of such notices shall be as 
follows: 

(a) To BGM: 

Rodney Welty 
142 West Station Street 
Barrington, Illinois 6001 0 

With a copy to: 

S. William Moore, Esquire 
Moore Bowman & Reese, P.A. 
551 N. Cattlemen Road, Suite 100 
Sarasota, Florida 34232 

(b) To BE 278: 

Rodney Welty 
142 West Station Street 
Barrington, Illinois 6001 0 

Page 9 of 13 

Page 37



With a copy to: 

S. William Moore, Esquire 
Moore Bowman & Reese, P.A. 
551 N. Cattlemen Road, Suite 100 
Sarasota, Florida 34232 

(c) To the City: 

City of Bonita Springs 
c/o City Manager 
City Hall 
9101 Bonita Beach Road 
Bonita Springs, Florida 34135 

With a copy to: 

Derek Rooney, Esquire 
Gray Robinson 
1404 Dean Street, Suite 300 
Fort Myers, Florida 33901 

David A. Theriaque, Esquire 
S. Brent Spain, Esquire 
Theriaque & Spain 
433 N. Magnolia Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

or to such other address as any Party hereto shall from time to time designate to the other Party by 
notice in writing as herein provided. 

Section 22. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed to be an original and need not be signed by more than one of the 
Parties and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. The Parties further agree 
that each Party shall execute and deliver all other appropriate supplemental agreements and other 
instruments, and take any other action necessary, to make this Agreement fully and legally 
effective, binding, and enforceable as between them and as against third parties. 

Section 23. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective upon the date of 
execution by the last of the Parties. 

Section 24. Survivability. All provisions that logically ought to survive termination and 
of this Agreement shall survive. 

Page 10 of 13 

Page 38



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, have executed 
this Agreement to be effective upon the execution by all parties and as provided in this Agreement. 

CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
Approved in form by: ________ 

City Attorney for the City of Bonita 
By: ------------- Springs, Florida 

Title: ----------

Dated: ------------

Certified: -----------

Page 11 of 13 

Page 39



---------
------

--------

-------------

------------

WITNESSES BG Mine, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, 

By: OBPFL-BG MINE, LLC, a Florida limited 
Print Name: --------- liability company, its Manager 

By: Oakbrook Properties, Inc., a Delaware 
corporation, its Manager 

Print Name: 
Date: 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of ______ 
2019, by ___________, as Manager ofBG Mine, LLC, on behalfof said entity. 
Said person (check one)_ is personally known to me or_ produced ________ as 
identification. 

Printed Name: 
(Notary Seal) Notary Public, State of __________ 

Commission No. 
My commission expires: __________ 

Page 12 of 13 

Page 40



-----------------
---------

-------------

------------

WITNESSES BE 278, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, 

By:______________ _ 
Print Name:_________ 

Its: Manager 

Date: 
Print Name: 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF _______ 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of______ 
2019, by ___________, as Manager of BE 278, LLC, on behalf of said entity. 
Said person (check one)_ is personally known to me or_produced ________ as 
identification. 

Printed Name: 
(Notary Seal) Notary Public, State of __________ 

Commission No. 
My commission expires: __________ 

Page 13 of 13 

Page 41



CPA19-66379-BOS, Conservation Fringe (Text) 

CPA19-66165-BOS, Conservation Fringe (Map) 

Attachment B 

Applicant's Analysis 

Page 42



l;J~(G~~\\j~[Q)
CITY OF BONfT/\ SPRINGS 

NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 
JAN 1 6 2020 REQUIREMENT 

COMMUNITY DEVELO?MErff 
DEPAQ.TNJEr,r 

Community Development Dept. 19220 Bonita Beach Road, Ste. 111 I Bonita Springs, FL 34135 1 (239) 444-6150 JQennitti11g@cJlvolbonYaspnnosOC1.org 

RE: Neighborhood Meeting Mandatory Requirement for Comprehensive Plan Amendment, 
Rezoning (conventional or planned development), and Special Exception applications. 

On September 5, 2018 the Bonita Springs City Council adopted regulations for Neighborhood 

Meetings. The purpose of a neighborhood meeting is to educate occupants and owners of nearby lands about 

the proposed development and application, receive comments, address concerns about the development 

proposal, and resolve conflicts and outstanding issues, where possible. 

Neighborhood meetings are mandatory for applications for a future land use map amendment, rezoning, 

and special exception. Neighborhood meetings are optional for all other applications. ApQligants are required to 

conduct a neighborhood meeting prior to filing its application with the city and a second neighborhood meeting 

within 30 days after the city has deemed the application to be sufficient. 

Please see City of Bonita Springs LDC Section 4-28 or our website for more information. 

For additional questions, contact the Planner on Call at (239)-444-6166. 

Neighborhood Meetings.docx 12/11/2018 11 :02 AM Page 1 of 1 
Page 43

mailto:Qennitti11g@cJlvolbonYaspnnosOC1.org


A_cy.1ta APPLICATION FOR A COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN AMENDMENT ~.gs

--..IIW<-, 

Community Development Department J 9220 Bonita Beach Rd, Suite 111 IBonita Springs, FL 34135 l Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239444 6140 

DATE RECEIVED: _________ 

APPLICATION FEE: _________ 

THE FOLLOWING VERIFIED: 

Zoning:.________ 

Designation on FLUM 

-------------------------------------------· 
(To be completed by Planning Staff) 

Plan Amendment Type: Map ____ Text ____ 

Small-scale Development.____ Expedited Review ____ 

State Coordinated Review____ 

Case No: 

APPLICANT PLEASE NOTE: 

Answer all questions completely and accurately. Please print or type responses. If additional space is needed, number and 
attach additional sheets. The total number of sheets in your application is: _____ 

Submit 6 hard copies and 1 PDF copy of the complete application and amendment support documentation, Including maps, 
to the City of Bonita Springs Planning and Zoning Department. Additional copies may be required for Local Planning 
Agency, City Council hearings and the Department of Community Affairs' packages. 

Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments require additional public notification requirements pursuant to City 
Administrative code No. 09-54. 

I, the undersignetui.,,Dh'lllt.::authorized representative, hereby submit this application and the attached amendment support 
documentati . The lnforma n and documents provided are complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. 

Signature of Owner or Authorized Representative Date ..- .1 

Ned Dewhirst, PE 
Printed Name of Owner orAuthorized Representative 

Community Developmenl Dept. 19220 Bonita Beach Road. SUlte 111 1 Bonita Sprlriqs, FL 34135 1Phone: 239 444 6150 IFax: 239 444 6140 
Compreheoslve_Plan_Amendment 2015-02-23 12:28 PM Page 1 of 8 

Page 44



~6/i APPLICATION FOR A COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN AMENDMENT ~ ....,._.,__ .........0wnn. 

Community Development Department 19220 Bonita Beach Rd, Suite 111 I Bonita Springs, FL 34135 I Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 

DATE RECEIVED: _________ 

APPLICATION FEE: _________ APPLICATION NO: - --..-...-CJ1-1, 
THE FOLLOWING VERIFIED: 

ta,ff:> 
, r Ot:-ll)JII;©i!JPI;,

Botv,r,,/~@ 
Zoning:. ________ Council District: 

_ 
D[r l 

__l_O_'ftt._0,____ 
Spl?ftvG

J <0/'9 S 
Designation on FLUM UfVl"l),, 

Dt=o . Dtv1::-. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - _ e_. ' }_ /11 - - ~-•...,,.../'VJ - • 

t:tv, E:tv, 
(To be completed by Planning Staff) 

Plan Amendment Type: Map ____ Text ____ 

Small-scale Development. ____ Expedited Review ____ 

State Coordinated Review ____ 

Case No: 

APPLICANT PLEASE NOTE: 

Answer all questions completely and accurately. Please print or type responses. If additional space is needed, number and 
attach additional sheets. The total number of sheets in your application is: _____ 

Submit 6 hard copies and 1 PDF copy of the complete application and amendment support documentation, including maps, 
to the City of Bonita Springs Planning and Zoning Department. Additional copies may be required for Local Planning 
Agency, City Council hearings and the Department of Community Affairs' packages. 

Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments require additional public notification requirements pursuant to City 
Administrative code No. 09-54. 

I, the undersigned owner or authorized representative, hereby submit this application and the attached amendment support 
documentation. The information and documents provided are complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. 

11/25/2019 
Signature of Owner or Authorized Representative Date 
Bonita East 22, LLC 
William W. Cain, Manager 
Printed Name of Owner or Authorized Representative 

Community Development Dept. I 9220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 111 I Bonita Springs, FL 34135 I Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 

Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment 2015-02-23 12:28 PM Page 1 of 8 

Page 45



C(W,f APPLICATION FOR A COMPREHENSIVE 
gQQlta PLAN AMENDMENT 
~~gs--a..~,-
Community Development Department 19220 Bonita Beach Rd, Suite 1111 Bonita Springs, FL 341351 Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 

DATE RECEIVED: t Z Ill Ii t>-i--,........,"""---------
APPLICATION FEE: Su.. n .U..---"'-'-'----------
THE FOLLOWING VERIFIED: 

(To be completed by Planning Staff) 

Plan Amendment Type: Text 

Small-scale Development ____ Expedited Review ✓ 
State Coordinated Review ____ 

Case No: 

APPLICANT PLEASE NOTE: 

Answer all questions completely and accurately. Please print or type responses. If additional space is needed, number and 
attach additional sheets. The total number of sheets in your application is: _____ 

Submit 6 hard copies and 1 PDF copy of the complete application and amendment support documentation, including maps, 
to the City of Bonita Springs Planning and Zoning Department. Additional copies may be required for Local Planning 
Agency, City Council hearings and the Department of Community Affairs' packages. 

Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments require additional public notification requirements pursuant to City 
Administrative code No. 09-54. 

I, the undersign nat-,ef"1!tl810rized representative, hereby submit this apptication and the attached amendment support 
documentation ,d documents provided are complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. 

Signature of Owner or Authorized Representative Date 1 

Bonita East 22, LLC 
Ned E Dewhirst, Member 

Printed Name of Owner or Authoitted Representative 

Community Development Dept. 19220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 1111 Bonita Springs, FL 341351 Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 

Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment 2015-02-23 12:28 PM Page 1 of 8 

Page 46



APPLICATION FOR A COMPREHENSIVE ..rta PLAN AMENDMENT 

W.8-S......,.,__ --0-. 
Community Development Department I9220 Bonita Beach Rd, Suite 1111 Bonita Springs, Fl 341351 Phone: 239444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 

DATE RECEIVED: _________ 

APPLICATION FEE: _________ 

THE FOLLOWING VERIFIED: 

Zoning:________ 

Designation on FLUM 

Plan Amendment Type: Map ____ Text ____ 

Small-scale Development.____ Expedited Review ____ 

State Coordinated Review.____ 

case No: 

APPLICANT PLEASE NOTE: 

Answer all questions completely and accurately. Please print or type responses. If addltlonal space Is needed, number and 
attach additional sheets. The tot.al number of sheets in your application is: _____ 

Submit 6 hard copies and 1 PDF copy of the complete application and amendment support documentation, including maps, 
to the City of Bonita Springs Planning and Zoning Department. Additional copies may be required for Local Planning 
Agency, City Council hearings and the Department of Community Affairs' pack.ages. 

Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments require additional public notification requirements pursuant to City 
Administrative code No. 09-54. 

I, the undersigned owner or authorized representative, hereby submit this appllcatlon and the attached amendment support 
documentation. The Information and documents provided are complete and accurate to the best ofmy knowledge. 

afgnatur&of Owner or Authorized Representative = Date 

efPA-A./A/e- ~R rr~l!ete 
Printed Name of Owner or Authorized Representative 

Community Development Dept. J9220 8onlt8 Beach Road, Suite 111 I Bonita Springs, FL 34135 I Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 

Compnihenslw_Plan Amendment 2015-02-23 12:28 PM Page 1 of 8 

Page 47



APPLICATION FOR A COMPREHENSIVE ·
PLAN AMENDMENT

--~IIIIIIIW<"'""'•
Community Development Department 19220 Bonita Beach Rd, Suite 111 I Bomta Springs, FL 341351 Phone: 239 444 6150 IFax: 239 444 6140 

DATE RECEIVED: _________ 

APPLICATION FEE: _________ 

THE FOLLOWING VERIFIED: 

Zoning:________ 

Designation on FLUM 

(To be completed by Planning Staff) 

Plan Amendment Type: Map ____ Text ____ 

Small-scale Development'------ Expedited Review ____ 

State Coordinated Review_ _ _ _ 

Case No: 

APPLICANT PLEASE NOTE: 

Answer all questions completely and accurately. Please print or type responses. If additional space is needed, number andattach additional sheets. The total number of sheets in your application is: _____ 

Submit 8 hard copies and 1 PDF copy of the complete application and amendment support documentation, including maps,to the City of Bonita Springs Planning and Zoning Department. Additional copies may be required for Local PlanningAgency, City Council hearings and the Department of Community Affairs' packages. 

Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments require additional public notification requirements pursuant to CityAdministrative code No. 09-54. 

I, the undersigned owner or authorized representative, hereby submit this application and the attached amendment supportdocumentation. The information and documents provided are complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. 

Signature of Owner or Authorized Representative Oat& '
'b,·FtrJ~ M. -n-lut!.sn,J
Printed Name of owner or Authorized Representative 

Community Development Dept. 19220 Bonlta Beach Road, Suite 111 j Bonita Springs, FL 341351 Phone: 239 444 6150 IFax: 239 444 6140
Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment 2015-02-23 12:28 PM Page 1 of 8 Page 48



----

Page 1 of 1 

APPLICATION FOR A COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN AMENDMENT 

......-
Conm.llllyDevalopnn 0eporlmert1112211-- Rd, S<lb 1111 Bonita Spmgs, FL 341351-· 239-8150 IFa: 2311 - 8140 

DATE RECEIVED: _________ 

APPLICATION FEE: ________ APPLICATION NO: _____ 

THE FOLLO't'VING VERIAED: 

ZoNng:._______ Council Ois1ric:t ______ 

Oeslgnllllon on FLUM 

(To be completed by Planning Staff) 

Plan Amendment Type: Map ____ Text ____ 

Exped"lled Review ____Smal-scale Develo~~---

State Coordinated Review____ 

CBH No: 

APPLICANT PLEASE NOTE: 

Answer aD questions completely and accurately. Please print or type responses. Ifadditional space is needed, numberand 
attach additional sheels. The 1Dlal number ofsheets in yo...- application Is: ____ 

Submit 6 hard copies and 1 PDF copy oflhe compjeta appllcalion and amendment suppo,t documentation, lnduding maps, 
to the City of Bonita Springs Planning and Zoning Department. Addillonal copies may be required for Local PlaMing 
Agency, City Council hearings and lhe Oeparbnenl or Community Affairs' padcages. 

Small scale Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments require additional pubRc notification requirements pursuant 1o City 
Administrative code No. 09-54. 

I, the undersigned owner or authorized representative, hereby submit this application and the attached amendment support 

documenmtion~vldedarecom~de and a;;=;_7Y~;j•• 
Slgna~rorAulho~r-a Date ' 

~ Jl'f'{)--,(LJ J pv 11 ~ 
Printed Name ofOwner or Authorized Representattve 

~ Delll.1 1122D _ ___Sulte 111 I -Springs, FL34135 l"'-: 239 4448150 1Fax:2394448140 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 

this .). 7 _._day of µau~½({ ,20.£5_ 

~No~lic 

Page 49

~ DAVID CONNER 
~ NOTARY PUBLIC STATE Of CONNECTICUT 

My Comm1ss10n EXl)1resApril 30.2021 



Page 1 of 1 

APPLICATION FOR A COMPREHENSIVE~&.frta 
PLAN AMENDMENT'-'tll~ .....,,...-

Cormlunily ileYolDpmorll Oaparlmenl 19220 - - ~.SU.. 111 I - Springs, Fl 341351Phone:2311<4448150 I Far 2:!11444 8140 

DATE RECEIVED: _________ 

APPLICATION FEE: ________ APPLICATION NO: ____ 

THE FOLLOWING VERIFIED: 

Zoning:_______ CouncllDistrfct ______ 

De,lgnatlon on FLUM 

(To be completed by Planning staff) 

Plan Amendment Type: Map ____ Text ___ 

Srnal-$Cale Development,____ Expedited Review____ 

State Coordinated Review___ 

Case No: 

APPLICANT PLEASE NOTE: 

Answer aU questiOIIS completely and ai;:c;urately. Ple11Se print or type responses. Ifadditional space is needed, mmber and 
attach additional sheets. The tlOlal number of sheets in your application Is: ____ 

Submft 6 hard copies and 1 PDF copy of the complN application and amendment support documentation, including maps, 
to the City of Bonfta Springs Planning and Zoning Department. Additional copies may be required for Local Planning 
Agency, City Council hearings and the Department ofCommunity Affairs' packages. 

Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments require additional pubic notification requirements pursuant to City 
AdmlnJstratlve code No. 09-54. 

Communily DeNlopnon Delli, IlrnO - _,-. s..i.1111-Springs, fl 34135l Pho'18: 239 444 6150 l F..c 239 444 6140 
Cam~_Pllln 2015-02-23 12:28 PM "-1 olB 

Subscrioed and sworn to before me 

!his_27_day of~ ,20~ 

v1gs19:;a;:: 

Page 50

~ DAVID CONNER 
~ NOTARY PUBUC STATE Of CONNECTICUT 

My Comm1ss1on Expires April 30 2021 



APPLICATION FOR A COMPREHENSIVE 
~ Ila PLAN AMENDMENT ~ .,...,.,.....--°"""' 

Community Development Department I 9220 Bonita Beach Rd, Suite 111 l Bonita Springs. FL 34135 I Phone: 239 444 6150 IFax: 239 <CM 6140 

DATE RECEIVED: __________ 

APPLICATION FEE: _________ APPLICATION NO: ------1-,...,..· :-.,
i),0 lv/~. --. 

F c/o,,,'t,, .-.,/·-.....,._iJ'i;;;THE FOLLOWING VERIFIED: i' 
VJ I A . ., 

D1::- I Sv,").
Zoning:.________ Council District: ------i-E=,..,....-- C.J O, · ·'11lfcs 

v,t,,._,u ltJ/g
Designation on FLUM ______ 0~i;-,,, D.-, 

t::P4.,.,:_'- V~1 . 
rv,- ,.,r::,v,.---------------------------------------~---· 

(To be completed by Planning Staff) 

Map ____Plan Amendment Type: Text ____ 

Small-scale Development.____ Expedited Review ____ 

State Coordinated Review.____ 

Case No: 

APPLICANT PLEASE NOTE: 

Answer all questions completely and accurately. Please print or type responses. Ifadditional space is needed, number and 
attach additional sheets. The total number of sheets in your appljcation is: _____ 

Submit 6 hard copies and 1 PDF copy of the complete application and amendment support documentation, including maps, 
to the City of Bonita Springs Planning and Zoning Department. Additional copies may be required for Local Planning 
Agency, City Council hearings and the Department of Community Affairs' packages. 

Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments require additional public notification requirements pursuant to City 
Administrative code No. 09-54. 

I, the undersigned owner or authorized representative, hereby submit this application and the attached amendment support 
documentation. The infonna · and documents provided are complete and accurate to the best of my knowtedge. 

CommunityDevelopmentOepl I 9220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 1111 Bonita Sprtngs, FL34135 J Phone: 239~ 6150 I Fax: 239444 6140 

Comprehenslve_Plan_Amendment 2015-02-23 12:28 PM Page 1 of8 

Page 51



APPLICATION FOR A COMPREHENSIVE CW➔
~n1ta PLAN AMENDMENT 
15pgngs 

"«°"""'.... --°"""Community Development Department 19220 Bonita Beach Rd, Suite 111 I Bonita Springs, FL 34135 I Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 

DATE RECEIVED: _________ 

APPLICATION FEE: _________ 

THE FOLLOWING VERIFIED: 

Zoning: _________ 

(To be completed by Planning Staff) 

Plan Amendment Type: Map ____ Text ____ 

Small-scale Development _____ Expedited Review ____ 

State Coordinated Review ____ 

Case No: 

APPLICANT PLEASE NOTE: 

Answer all questions completely and accurately_ Please print or type responses. Ifadditional space is needed, number and 
attach additional sheets. The total number of sheets in your application is: _____ 

Submit 6 hard copies and 1 PDF copy of the complete applicatfon and amendment support documentation, including maps, 
to the City of Bonita Springs Planning and Zoning Department. Additional copies may be required for Local Planning 
Agency, City Council hearings and the Department of Community Affairs' packages. 

Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments require additional public notification requirements pursuant to City 
Administrative code No. 09-54. 

I, the undersigned owner or authorized representative, hereby submit this application and the attached amendment support 
documentation. The information and documents provided are complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. 

Cet~k 
1Signature of Own Date 

(o ( 
Printed N epresentative 

Community Development Depl.I9220 Bonita Beach Road. Suite 111 I Bonita Springs, FL 34135 1 Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 

Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment 201 5-02-23 12:28 PM Page 1 of 8 

Page 52



elf~ APPLICATION FOR A COMPREHENSIVE 
1ta PLAN AMENDMENT 

~
ngs 

~ftMnChl,m

""~'-
Community Development Department 19220 Bonita Beach Rd, Suite 111 I Bonita Springs, FL 34135 I Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 

6140 

I. APPLICANT/AGENT/OWNER INFORMATION 

BG Mine LLC 
APPLICANT 

25501 Bonita Grande Drive 

ADDRESS 

Bonita Springs 

CITY 

FL 

STATE 

34135 

ZIP 

239-344-1280 

TELEPHONE NUMBER FAX NUMBER 

jfulton@bonitagrande.com 

E-MAIL 

Morris-Depew Associates, INC c/o Tina Ekblad MPA, AICP, LEED AP 

AGENT* 

2914 Cleveland Avenue 

ADDRESS 

Fort Myers FL 33901 

CITY STATE ZIP 
239.337.3993 239-337-7341 

TELEPHONE NUMBER FAX NUMBER 

tekblad@m-da.com 

E-MAIL 

BG Mine LLC 

OWNER(s) OF RECORD 

25501 Bonita Grande Drive 
ADDRESS 
Bonita Springs FL 31135 
CITY STATE ZIP 

239-344-1280 

TELEPHONE NUMBER FAX NUMBER 

jfulton@bonitagrande.com 

E-MAIL 

• This will be the person contacted for all business relative to the application. If multiple agents have been 
retained, please provide on a separate sheet a listing of the name, address and qualification of additional 
planners, architects, engineers, environmental consultants, and other professionals providing information 
contained in this application. 

Community Development Dept. 19220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 111 I Bonita Springs, FL 341351 Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 

Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment 2015-02-23 12:28 PM Page 2 of 8 

Page 53

mailto:jfulton@bonitagrande.com
mailto:tekblad@m-da.com


---------------------------
--------------------------

II. REQUESTED CHANGE (Please see Item 1 for Fee Schedule) 

A TYPE: (Check appropriate type) 

✓ Text Amendment __..;../_ Future Land Use Map Series Amendment 
(Figures 1 thru 10) 

List Number(s) of Map(s) to be amended Future Land Use Map 

B. SUMMARY OF REQUEST (Brief explanation): 

Amend the Future Land Use Map for the described property from Lee 

County Comprehensive Plan DR/GR, Wetlands & City of Bonita Springs DRGR Future 

Land Use Category to City of Bonita Springs Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category. 

A companion text amendment eslablishing the Conservation Fringe Future Land Use category was previous submitted. 

Ill. PROPERTY SIZE AND LOCATION OF AFFECTED PROPERTY 
(for amendments affecting development potential of property) 

A. Property Location 

1_ Site Address: 25501 Bonita Grande Drive, Bonita Springs, FL 34135 

2
_ STRAP(S): 20" 1.21,.1,.0000, 0>00. 29.41.a.11-00101 0000. Z9◄1·2MII-00105 oooo.2t-t1.f6.8'-G01110000. H>-41-2...a1-m111moa. ;i.u.a.e1.001110000.H-tJ.16,l!JJ-OOltoooco. 19.41.2g.914 

B. Property Information 

Total Acreage of Property: _1_3_4_3____________________ 

Total Acreage included in Request _1_3_4_3__________________ 
974 9Total Uplands: -

Tot a I Wetiands: 368.1 

Current Zoning: _IP_D_/A_G_-2______________________ 

Current Future Land Use Designation: County-DR/GR; Wetlands & City-DR/GR 
· t · F t L d U C t +/-899 DR/G R(counly); +/· 368 Wetlands. +/. ORGR(City) 74.4 Area of each E xis mg u ure an se a egory: _______________ 

Existing Land Use: Mining, Preservation & Agriculture 

Community Development Dept.I9220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 111 I Bonita Springs. FL 341351 Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 
Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment (2015-02) Page 3 of8 

Page 54



C. State if the subject property is located in one of the following areas and if so howdoes the proposed change 
effect the area: 

Yes, Please see attached narratives Density Reduction Groundwater Recharge area: 

Joint Planning Agreement Area (adjoining otherjurisdictional lands): _N_/_A_____ 

Old 41 Redevelopment Overlay Area:_N_I_A_____________ 

D. *Proposed change for the Subject Property: 1343 Conservation Fringe 

* If more than one district is proposed please provide the acreage amounts for each district. 

E. Potential development of the subject property: _R_e_s_i_d_e_n_tia_l______________ 

1. Calculation of maxim um allowable development under existing FLUM: LC: DR/GR & weuands. City ORGR 

Residential Units/Density: LC: 89 DR/GR; 18 Wetlands; City: 7 DR/GR 

Commercial intensity: _N_/_A_________________________ 

Industrial intensity: _N_/_A__________________________ 

2. Calculation of maximum allowable development under proposed FLUM: Conservation Fringe 

Residential Units/Density: 700 du per proposed policy 1.1.27 

Commercial intensity: _N_/_A_________________________ 

Industrial intensity: _N_I_A___________________________ 

IV. AMENDMENT SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 

At a minimum, the application shall include the following support data and analysis. These items are based on 
comprehensive plan amendment submittal requirements of the State of Florida, Department of Economic 
Opportunity, and policies contained in the City of Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan. Support documentation 
provided by the applicant will be used by staff as a basis for evaluating this request. To assist in the preparation 
of amendment packets, the applicant is encouraged to provide all data and analysis electronically. (Please 
contact the Planning and Zoning Division for currently accepted formats) 

A. General Information and Maps 
NOTE: For each map submitted, the appJicant will be required to provide a reduced map (8.5" x 11'? for 
inclusion in public hearing packets. 

Community Development Depl. !9220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 111 I Bonita Springs, FL 34135 I Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 
Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment (2015-02) Page 4 of 8 

Page 55



The following pertains to all proposed amendments that will affect the development potential of 
properties (unless otherwise specified). 

1. Provide any proposed text changes. 

2. Provide a Future Land Use Map at an appropriate scale showing the boundaries of the subject property, 
surrounding street network, surrounding designated future land uses, and natural resources. 

3. Provide a proposed Future Land Use Map at an appropriate scale showing the boundaries of the 
subject property, surrounding street network, surrounding designated future land uses, and natural 
resources. 

4. Map and describe existing land uses (not designations) of the subject property and surrounding 
properties. Description should discuss consistency of current uses with the proposed changes. 

5. Map and describe existing zoning of the subject property and surrounding properties. 

6. The certified legal description(s) and certified sketch of the description for the property subject to the 
requested change. A metes and bounds legal description must be submitted specifically describing the 
entire perimeter boundary of the property with accurate bearings and distances for every line. The 
sketch must be tied to the state plane coordinate system for the Florida West Zone (North America 
Datum of 1983/1990 Adjustment) with two coordinates, one coordinate being the point of beginning 
and the other an opposing corner. If the subject property contains wetlands or the proposed 
amendment includes more than one land use category a metes and bounds legal description, as 
described above, must be submitted in addition to the perimeter boundary of the property for each 
wetland or future land use category. 

7. A copy of the deed(s) for the property subject to the requested change. 

8. An aerial map showing the subject property and surrounding properties. 

9. If applicant is not the owner, a notarized letter from the owner of the property authorizing the applicant 
to represent the owner. 

B. Public Facilities Impacts 
NOTE: The applicant must calculate public facilities impacts based on a maximum development scenario 
(see Part 11.H.). 

1. Traffic Circulation Analysis 
The analysis is intended to determine the effect of the land use change on the Financially Feasible 
Transportation Plan/Map 3A (20-year horizon) and on the Capital Improvements Element (5-year 
horizon). Toward that end, an applicant must submit the following information: 

Long Range - 20-year Horizon: 
a. Working with Planning Division staff, identify the traffic analysis zone (TAZ) or zones that the 

subject property is in and the socio-economic data forecasts for that zone or zones; 
b. Determine whether the requested change requires a modification to the socio-economic data 

forecasts for the host zone or zones. The land uses for the proposed change should be expressed 
in the same format as the socio-economic forecasts (number of units by type/number of employees 
by type/etc.); 

c. If no modification of the forecasts is required, then no further analysis for the long range horizon is 
necessary. If modification is required, make the change and provide to Planning Division staff, for 
forwarding to Transportation staff. Transportation staff will rerun the FSUTMS model on the current 

Community Development Dept. I 9220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 111 JBonita Springs, FL 341351 Phone: 239 444 6150 IFax: 239 444 6140 
Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment (2015-02) Page 5 of 8 

Page 56



adopted Financially Feasible Plan network and determine whether network modifications are 
necessary, based on a review of projected roadway conditions within a 3-mile radius of the site; 

d. If no modifications to the network are required, then no further analysis for the long range horizon 
is necessary. If modifications are necessary, Transportation staff will determine the scope and 
cost of those modifications and the effect on the financial feasibility of the plan; 

e. An inability to accommodate the necessary modifications within the financially feasible limits of the 
plan will be a basis for denial of the requested land use change; 

f. If the proposal is based on a specific development plan, then the site plan should indicate how 
facilities from the current adopted Financially Feasible Plan and/or the Official Trafficways Map will 
be accommodated. 

Short Range - 5-year CIP horizon: 
a. Besides the 20-year analysis, for those plan amendment proposals that include a specific and 

immediated development plan, identify the existing roadways serving the site and within a 3-mile 
radius (indicate laneage, functional classification, current LOS, and LOS standard); 

b. Identify the major road improvements within the 3-mile study area funded through the construction 
phase in adopted Cl P's (County or Cities) and the State's adopted Five-Year Work Program; 

c. Projected LOS under proposed designation (calculate anticipated number of trips and distribution 
on roadway network, and identify resulting changes to the projected LOS); 

d. For the five-year horizon, identify the projected roadway conditions (volumes and levels of service) 
on the roads within the 3-mile study area with the programmed improvements in place, with and 
without the_proposed development project. A methodology meeting with Transportation staff prior 
to submittal is required to reach agreement on the projection methodology; 

e. Identify the additional improvements needed on the network beyond those programmed in the five
year horizon due to the development proposal. 

2. Provide an existing and future conditions analysis for: 
a. Sanitary Sewer 
b. Potable Water 
c. Surface Water/Drainage Basins 
d. Parks, Recreation, and Open Space 
e. Public Schools 

Analysis should include (but is not limited to) the following: 
• Franchise Area, Basin, or District in which the property is located; 
• Current LOS, and LOS standard of facilities serving the site; 
• Projected LOS under existing designation; 
• Projected LOS under proposed designation; 
• Improvements/expansions currently programmed in 5 year CIP, 6-10 year CIP, and long range 

improvements; and 
• Anticipated revisions to the Community Facilities and Services Element and/or Capital 

Improvements Element (state if these revisions are included in this amendment). 
• Provide a letter of service availability from the appropriate utility for sanitary sewer and potable 

water. 

3. Provide a letter from the appropriate agency determining the adequacy/provision of existing/proposed 
support facilities, including: 
a. Fire protection with adequate response times; 
b. Emergency medical service (EMS) provisions; 
c. Law enforcement; 
C. Solid Waste; 
d. Mass Transit; and 
e. Schools. 

Community Development Depl.I9220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 111 I Bonita Springs, FL 341351 Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 
Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment (2015-02) Page 6 of 8 

Page 57



In reference to above, the applicant should supply the responding agency with the information from Section's II and 
Ill for their evaluation. This application should include the applicant's correspondence to the responding agency. 

C. Environmental Impacts 
Provide an overall analysis of the character of the subject property and surrounding properties, and assess 
the site's suitability for the proposed use upon the following: 

1. A map of the Plant Communities as defined by the Florida Land Use Cover and Classification system 
(FLUCCS). 

2. A map and description of the soils found on the property (identify the source of the information). 

3. A topographic map with property boundaries and 100-year flood prone areas indicated (as identified by 
FEMA). 

4. A map delineating the property boundaries on the Flood Insurance Rate Map effective August 2008. 

5. A map delineating wetlands, aquifer recharge areas, and rare & unique uplands. 

6. A table of plant communities by FLUCCS with the potential to contain species (plant and animal) listed 
by federal, state or local agencies as endangered, threatened or species of special concern. The table 
must include the listed species by FLUCCS and the species status (same as FLUCCS map). 

D. Impacts on Historic Resources 
List all historic resources (including structure, districts, and/or archeologically sensitive areas) and provide 
an analysis of the proposed change's impact on these resources. The following should be included with 
the analysis: 

1. A map of any historic districts and/or sites, listed on the Florida Master Site File, which are located on 
the subject property or adjacent properties. 

2. A map showing the subject property location on the archeological sensitivity map for Lee County. 

E. Internal Consistency with the Bonita Plan 
1. Discuss how the proposal affects most recent population projections pursuant to the University of 

Florida's Bureau of Economic and Business Research, and the total population capacity of the City of 
Bonita Springs Future Land Use Map. 

2. List all goals and objectives of the City of Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan that are affected by the 
proposed amendment. This analysis should include an evaluation of all relevant policies under each 
goal and objective. 

3. Describe how the proposal affects adjacent local governments and their comprehensive plans. 

4. List State Policy Plan and Regional Policy Plan goals and policies which are relevant to this plan 
amendment. 

F. Additional Requirements for Specific Future Land Use Amendments 

1. Requests moving lands without adequate infrastructure 
a. Demonstrate why the proposed change does not constitute Urban Sprawl. Indicators of sprawl may 
include, but are not limited to: low-intensity, low-density, or single-use development; 'leap-frog' type 
development; radial, strip, isolated or ribbon pattern type development; a failure to protect or conserve 
natural resources or agricultural land; limited accessibility; the loss of large amounts of functional open 

Community Development Dept.I9220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 1111 Bonita Springs, FL 341351 Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 
Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment (2015-02) Page 7 of 8 

Page 58



Ory OF~~~/gDrf~@ 
lTA SPRINGS 

DEC 1 1 'if'•n 
t /; I 'I 

COMNUNrry 0£: , 

. DEPARTM~~'~O/J1v; ,. 
space; and the installation of costly and duplicative Infrastructure when opportuniti~s for infill and 
redevelopment exist. 

2. Requests moving lands from Density Reduction/Groundwater Resource must fully address Policy 1.1. 7 
and Policy 1.1.21 of the City of Bonita Springs Future Land Use Element. 

G. Justify the proposed amendment based upon sound planning principles. Be sure to support all conclusions 
made in this justification with adequate data and analysis. 

APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION 

1, Ned Dewhirst certify that Iam the owner orowner's authorized representative of the property 
described herein, and that all answers to the questions ln this application and any sketches, data or other 
supplementary matter attached to and made a part of this application, are honest and true to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. I also authorize the staff of the City of Bonita Springs Community Development Department 
lo enter upon the property during normal working hours for the purpose of investigating and evaluating the request 
made through this application. 

Signature: ------""'"'-==::__--1.______ Date:_---.~~-----

Prlnted Name: Ned Dewhirst, PE 

STATE OF FLORIDA, COUNTY OF LEE 

Swom to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me this~ day of_,tfe,"-'=a,.ud ___, by........__ 20/7, 

Ntd ~wb(r.s+ (printed name of person making statement). 

Personally Known: v'OR Produced Identification: __ Type Produced: ___________ 

..........,.,,... !IAAHOYA.CARTAIHO m:... 
1,1 • _\ HolM)i~-Slateolfbtdl 

1 ~IGG1558ZI (Slgnat e of Notiiry Publlc - State of Florlda) 
\ ••~..~)' MyComl&Pf'SMay10,2019 

f3rarJc.l A:, fk:h,.tnp 
(Notary ea (Namifof Notary Printed, Typed, or Stamped) 

Community Development Dept. j 8220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 111 1Bonita Springs, FL 34135 1Phone: 239 444 6150 IFa,c; 239 444 6140 
Comprehenslve_Plan_Amendment (2015-02) Page 8 of B 

Page 59

https://of_,tfe,"-'=a,.ud


r:,l}o ~,;s#\l 
~s<s'<t-.~ 

0, 0,1,/.7'.r~.@, 
<'o ~{' !) S,or,, 

fy/It, u () ./,11, 
u,i,l"l,.. <c~ G,S' 

D~.,o , Or- '!J 
'4.D ...- " 

space; and the installation of costly and duplicative infrastructure when opportunities~forJinfill and 
redevelopment exist. "(",1,r 

2. Requests moving lands from Density Reduction/Groundwater Resource must fully address Policy 1.1. 7 
and Policy 1.1.21 of the City of Bonita Springs Future Land Use Element. 

G. Justify the proposed amendment based upon sound planning principles. Be sure to support all conclusions 
made in this justification with adequate data and analysis. 

APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION 

I, Ned E Dewhirst , certify that I am the owner or owner's authorized representative of the 
property described herein, and that all answers to the questions in this application and any sketches, data 
or other supplementary matter attached to and made a part of this application, are honest and true to the 
best of my knowledge and belief. I also authorize the staff of the City of Bonita Springs Community Development 
Department to enter upon the property during normal working hours for the purpose of investigating and evaluating 
the request made through t · · tion. 

STATE OF FLORIDA, COUNTY OF LEE 

Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me this /q 'f<.day of~UUv~ , 20 Jq, by 

/Jed, E ~«Jh1r.sf- (printed name of person making statement). 

Personally Known: 2{__ OR Produced Identification: __ Type Produced: ____________ 

~.r-,:~.~~ ROSEMARIE 6YOUNG 
t ·• Commltslon#GG 141805 
·-;, " ExplreaJanuary8, 2022 

Community Development Dept. f 9220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 111 I Bonita Springs, FL 341351 Phone: 239 444 6150 IFax:239 444 6140 
Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment (2015-02) Page 8 of 8 Page 60



.

~

CITY OF~~©~Dr:!f{Q) 
NITA SPRING$ 

DEC 1 J 2019 
COMMUNITY o~ 

space; and the installation of costly and duplicative infrastructure wh~? ~BP'i!rti~~::t tJ r infill and 
redevelopment exist. 

2. Requests moving lands from Density Reduction/Groundwater Resource must fully address Policy 1.1.7 
and Policy 1.1.21 of the City of Bonita Springs Future Land Use Element. 

G. Justify the proposed amendment based upon sound planning principles. Be sure to support all conclusions 
made in this justification with adequate data and analysis. 

APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION 

1, William W. Cain ,certify that I am the owner or owner's authorized representative of the property 
described herein, and that all answers to the questions in this application and any sketches, data or other 
supplementary matter attached to and made a part of this application, are honest and true to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. I also authorize the staff of the City of Bonita Springs Comm unity Development Department 
to enter upon the property during normal working hours for the purpose of investigating and evaluating the request 
made through this application. 

Signature: V..:..It:-,' 4/ ~ 
Bonita East 22, LL . 

Printed Name: William w Cain Manager 

STATE OF FL0RIDJI\, COUNTY OF~ .V
I1-(.t"IOIS C(1t)II::'; C!) 

Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me this 2-5'!- day of IJOlle'-1g ~ , 20 1q_, by 

WIU..lhd a;. ftiHJ (printed name of person making statement). 

Personally Known: ✓ OR Produced Identification: Type Produced: 

:~ --t · '~--OFF-1""'c1'"",\L~SEAL---- ~e-----,,.·-
1

_A ~~::=_~--------
JEANMRYAN ~ stateofFleritlal•uwo,s 

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATEOFILLINOIS Jean M. Ryan 
---...,..,....-.....,..,.,--------------------(Name of Notary Printed, Typed, or Stamped) 

Community Development Dept. 19220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 1111 Bonita Springs, FL 34135 IPhone: 239 444 6150 IFax: 239 444 6140 
Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment (2015-02) Page 8 of 8 

Page 61



CJ?yo~~~~ 
8011;~Y~~

0£, '1;,-,q s~ 
C'oftt. ['JO -?111;G 

11\r/l}-. <01.9 s 
space; and the Installation of cosUy and duplicative Infrastructure when opportunltllflt for~infill and 
redevelopment exist. .,.,,,ftv(Ql->t.,,_ 

.,. <-".11;,-

2. Requests moving lands from Density Reduction/Groundwater Resource mustfully address Policy 1.1.7 
and Policy 1.1.21 of the City of Bonita Springs Future Land Use Element. 

G. Justify the proposed amendment based upon sound planning principles. Be sure to support all conduslons 
made in this justification with adequate data and analysis. 

APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION 

I, ..J"a.4w~ G--A -rre. ((e ,e. •certify that I am the owner orowner's aUthorized representative ofthe property 
described herein, and that all answers to the questions in this application and any sketches, data or other 
supplementary matter attached to and made a part of this application, are honest and true to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. I also authorize the staff of the Cityof Bonita Springs Community Development Deparbnent 
to enter upon the property during nonnal working hours for the purpose of Investigating and evaluating the request 
made through this application. 

Signature: ~ « -v' ,&~
Z/

Printed Name: Jda,.v.,qe Gtzrret2.<:/?. 

Community Development Depl 19220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 111 J Bonita Springs, FL 341351 Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 
Ccmprehensive_Plan_Amendment (2015-02) Page 8 of 8 

Page 62



C17y ~
0,:8f©~f/;,

or,c Otv1rA,~@) 
s/)f?_

Co'1'111, 3() 
'>n 'Ive;S

'/.Jtv17y <tl/g 
Ot:/:>"lf?Ot:vf:l

,-~/:. 0.,0111
space; and the installation of costly and duplicative infrastructure when opportunities f6t infill and
redevelopment exist. 

2. Requests moving lands from Density Reduction/Groundwater Resource must fully address Policy 1.1.7and Policy 1.1.21 of the City of Bonita Springs Future Land Use Element. 

G. Justify the proposed amendment based upon sound planning principles. Be sure to support all conclusionsmade in this justification with adequate data and analysis. 

APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION 

1.1:>r(t,JC 1-4 . 7HL{e~ f(J,J , certify that I am the owner or owner's authorized representative of the propertydescribed herein, and that all answers to the questions in this application and any sketches. data or othersupplementary matter attached to and made a part of this application, are honest and true to the best of myknowledge and belief. I also authorize the staff of the City of Bonita Springs Community Development Departmentto enter upon the property during normal working hours for the purpose of investigating and evaluating the requestmade through this application. 

Date: ll / 2. '1 /,CJ 
Printed Name: 1>,1tJJC M - t7-lv...es.n,J 

STATE OF~ · · Ax_COUNTY OFta:-~ 
'J'.> ~t1.r r 4\-Swom to (o ~med) and subscribecfbefore me this _il_ day of NO'Jti,,¥

O~-Vlt, VY\:j\-1.,'Qbt: 
by 

(printed name of person making statement). 

Personally Known: -- OR Produced Identification: _j__ Type Oriw Llct·,.f,,, 
1&111 BAUIIHOYER

NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF COLORADO (Sig ture of Notary Publlc - State of ReFkla ~ •"' 

1 

----NOTARY ID 20134051881 ~~ w W\bwer
(Name of Notary Printed, Typed, or Stamped) 

Community Development Dept. I 9220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 111 I Bonita Springs, FL 34135 I Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment (2015-02) Page aof 8 

Page 63



C°/7-,_ ASI:,,
'ro V'U'~(~.:,,,~sot~11~,,,,

'lr-,1 11);!)CJC Sp.Ji>
coi11, JO ltvcs 

'11u11;,1y 20;g 
Dt:r,..."1,?Dr:,c..·v.;:.r,-,~"-1..0pA 

c..·,v.,. 'E:11t 
space; and the installation of costly and duplicative infrastructure when opportunities for~nfill and 
redevelopment exist 

2. Requests moving lands from Density Reduction/Groundwater Resource must fully address Policy 1.1. 7 
and Policy 1.1.21 of the City of Bonita Springs Future Land Use Element. 

G. Justify the proposed amendment based upon sound planning principles. Be sure to support all conclusions 
made in this justification with adequate data and analysis. 

~ APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION 

I, J~ ~rJlecertifytttat I am the owner or owner's authorized representam,e of the property 
described herein, andhatall answers to the questions in this application and any sketches, data or other 
supplementary matter attached to and made a part of this application, are honest and true to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. I also authorize the staff of the City of Bonita Springs Community Development Department 
to enter upon the property during normal working hours for the purpose of investigating and evaluating the request 
made through this application. 

STATE O(:~~~.\-COUNTY OF~ ~o...>v. 

Sworn to (oraffirmed) and subscribed before me this ~'l day of Uov~\/,-(J , 20 IS, by 

-i~OMc;. ~ :::s½.\>.fS..\<1' (printed name of person making statement). 

Personally Known: __ OR Produced Identification: d..__ Type Produced: CSU<... "¢/ p Id\ IC, 

~m&.::«~ ~ 
~o.v-~A <c::>r-:r--ef c°" . 

{Notary Seal) {Name of Notary Printed, Typed, or Stamped) 

DAVID CONNER 
NOTARY PUBLIC STATE Of CONNECTICUT• My Comm1sst0n Exp1ruApril 30. 2021 

Community Development Dept. I 9220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 111 IBonita Springs, FL 34135 I Phone: 239 444 6150 IFax: 239 444 6140 
Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment (2015-02) Page 8 of 8 Page 64

https://s�.\>.fS


Page 65

CJ?} ~ 
o~s~©~f/J . 

'11/1-r,4~/f),0.~[' S;:,ri 
Co Jo 'T/,t,

'1tfttu. ?P G~
1\110,, cJ/.9 

D~P,41?Dt-·v.s 
.,.flt.s <'.opll?.

lvl" ~IV.7' 
space; and the installation of costly and duplicative infrastructure when opportunities for infill and 
redevelopment exist. 

2. Requests moving lands from Density Reduction/Groundwater Resource must fully address Policy 1.1. 7 
and Policy 1.1.21 of the City of Bonita Springs Future Land Use Element. 

G. Justify the proposed amendment based upon sound planning principles. Be sure to support all conclusions 
made in this justification with adequate data and analysis. 

:h. APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION 

I. fJ1 ;,( '.tf .tf Th Lf@ t:lrtify that I am the owneror owner's authorized representative of the property 
described herein, and that all answers to the questions in this application and any sketches, data or other 
supplementary matter attached to and made a part of this application, are honest and true to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. I also authorize the staff of the City of Bonita Springs Community Development Department 
to enter upon the property during normal working hours for the purpose of investigating and evaluating the request 
made through this application. 

Signature: +-.L--=-.::..i.:._.:....-=--_.:.,..,:;_i"----+-,J,<:...__~_ Date:__-'-+__..._____ 

Printed Name: --'----1....L.-=..-=-.!.--'---=--...1--___,i:.-__,__._~:=.....L-=-i r 
STATE OF...J:LORIE>A, COUNTY OF t:EE u ~ . . , ,....

11(o['N.'v\\(u--t- µe..,.....> ...........,...v · 
Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me this .b_ day of };p.)~~ .J" , 20 t 4, , by 

}J-..t C'-'. c...e.., ::')4-w-s\o f\ (printed name of person making statement). 

Personally Known: __ OR Produced Identification: ~ Type Produced: CA"'l)L -Ry p lo \ ';)3 

~✓-~-sa• ~-, ~ 
( o,-,-c:-.>.t ,c ... 

(,l...u'~ Co 1\1''-l 

Community Development Dept. 19220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 111 IBonita Sprtngs, FL 34135 1 Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 
Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment (201!HJ2) Page aof a 



C17y0,./~'~t}~
&orv~7if{~,,,'!,-~ (YI 

O[ C S,DRIIV, 
Co/'1, Jo, Gs 

'liurv1l"v <'(/Jg 
Df!p 'Df:'/,,1, 

:qf?l"t.1r:,~lo,oltf. 
IV-,. 'l:tv'l' 

space; and the installation of costly and duplicative infrastructure when opportunities for infill and 
redevelopment exist. 

2. Requests moving lands from Density Reduction/Groundwater Resource must fully address Policy 1.1.7 
and Policy 1.1.21 of the City of Bonita Springs Future Land Use Element. 

G. Justify the proposed amendment based upon sound planning principles. Be sure to support all conclusions 
made in this justification with adequate data and analysis. 

APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION 

1\h\o\,e0:-J:b\,1W") .certify that I am the ownerorowner's authorized representative ofthe property 
described herein, and that all answers to the questions in this application and any sketches, data or other 
supplementary matter attached to and made a part of this application, are honest and true to the best of my 
knO'Nledge and belief. I also authorize the staff of the City of Bonita Springs Community Development Department 
to enter upon the property during normal working hours for the purpose of investigating and evaluating the request 
made through this application. 

Signatu : ~~~.4..,,1,-'-Yl:::::q~ ~=:......::;--Mi-=----- Date: ¢) I0 
Printed Name: ....1......;;....=..-==...;.........;.._-->-.;-->-,;;;;.._;aa...;....____ 

C..T 
STATE OF R.ORlfJ'A, COUNTY OF 1:EE >Jew +\A\/Ltr'\ 

Sworn to {or affirmed) and subscribed before me this IO day of __...,c.Oe_<e_M_bt_ Y"_ . 20 I~ , by 

__...;Y,"-~IA1.__ .;....;.. ~ .;;;...:....a.;.rl· _ _ ·e J . - ....;.;....csh, ....;...._ {printed name of person making statement). 

Personally Known: ✓ OR Produced Identification: _ Type Produced:___________ 

(Notary Seal) (Name of Notary Printed, T · orStamped) 

l-"'COMMISSION EXPIRES FEBKUAff28r io21./ 

Convnunity Development Dept.19220 Bonita Beach Road, SUite 111 IBonita Springs, FL 341351 Phone: 239 444 6150 IFax: 239 444 6140 
Comprehensive_Plan_Amendment (2015-02) Page 8 of 8 Page 66

https://qf?l"t.1r


CITY OF ~( 
BONITA, PRJNGs 

DEC 3 0 2019 
COMMUNITY D -

DEP EVELOP"1£ 
space: and the installation of costly and duplicative infrastructui ~T\/Jfien oppi1rtunities for infill and 
redevelopment exist. 

2. Requests moving lands from Density Reduction/Groundwater Resource must fully address Policy 1. 1. 7 
and Policy 1.1.21 of the City of Bonita Springs Future Land Use Element. 

G. Justify the proposed amendment based upon sound planning principles. Be sure to support all conclusions 
made in this justification with adequate data and analysis. 

APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION 

I, ....::~~O:....i....u...i.:..:;~ "'--.J...f.:=:l,,.;a,-..;.;_A.:~I, certify that I am the owner or owner's authorized representat ive of the property 
described herein, and that all swers to the questions in this application and any sketches, data or other 
supplementary matter attached to and made a part of this application, are honest and true to the best of my 
knowledge and belief. I also authorize the staff of the City of Bonita Springs Community Development Department 
to enter upon the property during normal working hours for the purpose of investigating and evaluating the request 
made through this application. 

I I 1. 7Date: - - '----+-----

STATE OF FLORIDA, COUNTY OF LEE 

Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me this Z} '-- day of /J d o/L,.. b(r , 2ol 7 . by 

(., //u;,. K/ ti vd j "'~ L' (printed name of person making statement). 

Personally Known: __ OR Produced Identification: _:f._ T e Produced: .....-..__,.......,:;;.:;...r;;..:.___~~ 

Community Development Dept.I9220 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 111 I Bonita Springs. FL 34135 I Phone: 239 444 6150 I Fax: 239 444 6140 
Comprehensive_Plan_Amendmenl (2015-02) Page 8 of 8 Page 67



2914 Cleveland Avenue I Fort Myers, Florida 33901 

ENGINEERS • PLANNERS • SURVEYORS 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

Bonita Grande 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

Property Ownership 

STRAP # Ownership Address Jurisdiction Current FLU Current Zoning 
20-47-26-81- BG Mine LLC 25501 Bonita lee County DR/GR & Industrial Planned 

00001.0000 Grande Drive Wetlands Development 

29-47-26-81- Joan Gatterer Access City of Bonita DR/GR AG-2 

00101.0000 Undetermined Springs 

29-47-26-Bl- TST BONITA LLC + Access City of Bonita DR/GR AG-2 

00105.0000 WDTJR BONITA LLC ET Undetermined Springs 

AL 

29-47-26-Bl- Bonita East 22 Access City of Bonita DR/GR AG-2 

00113.0000 Undetermined Springs 

29-47-26-Bl - TST BONITA LLC + Access City of Bonita DR/GR AG-2 

00112.0000 WDTJR BONITA LLC ET Undetermined Springs 

Al 

29-47-26-Bl- TST BONITA LLC + Access City of Bonita DR/GR AG-2 

00111.0000 WDTJR BONITA LLC ET Undeterm ined Springs 

Al 

29-47-26-Bl- TST BONITA LLC + Access City of Bonita DR/GR AG-2 

00110.0000 WDTJR BONITA LLC ET Undetermined Springs 

Al 

29-47-26-Bl- TST BONITA LLC + Access City of Bonita DR/GR AG-2 

00109.0000 WDTJR BONITA LLC ET Undet ermined Springs 

AL 

Page 68



BONITA GRANDE MINE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 
DRAFT PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT 

Policy 1.1.27: Conservation Fringe. This category is intended to recognize geographic areas 

that a) include an ex ist ing vested mining o peration; and b) are adjacent o r proximate to lands 
with significant environmental re ource and habitat values. As of the date of the adoption of the 
Con ervation Fringe Di tri ct, zero (0) acres have been de ig nated as Conservation Fringe 

District; although the City anticipates that approximately ~ 1343 acres may ultimate ly be 
designated as Conservation Fringe Distric t. The City recognizes that existing mines provide a 

regional supply for lime rock needs and he lp to m_inimize the impacts of new mines on the 

environment, surro unding land u es and roadway . Once mining is completed, the reclamation 
/ redevelopment of the land mu t occur such that it i compatibl e with the adj acent o r proximate 
environme ntal lands. Allowable land u es are limited to conservation use ; agricu lture; 

excavat ion (ex isting vested mining operation onl y); residential uses a t a maximum density of 
M± 0.522 dweIJing units per gross acre along with accessory ameni ty building and private 

recreational areas; public uses; no n-profil public recreational u es; and es enti al ervice needed 

for the health , afety, and general welfare of the community uc h as lift tation , utility lines , 
potable/non-potable well and equipment and appurte nance nece sary for such syste m to 

furnish adequate levels of service. Notw ith randing Future Land Use Element Policy 1. l .2.c and 
Conservation/Coastal Manageme nt E lement Policy 15. 1.5, wetland and re ource protection acres 

are e ligible to be counted a part of the gross acreage for density purposes, but all de n ity must be 

clu tered on the permitted upl and portion and/or di turbed land of an approved master concept 

plan for the reclamatio n/redevelopment plan. Contiguou property under common ownership of 

the exi ting ve ted mining operation may be included in the Conservation Fringe District up to a 
maximum of I 0% of the ex isting vested mining operation area for residential purposes onl y. The 

c umulative total number of units for all properties designated as Conservation Fringe District shall 

not exceed a max imum of 700 unit . Development within this Conservation Fringe Distric t must 
adhere to the following innovative de ign and planrung condition : 

I . The property (including contiguous property if applicable) hall be rezoned to a Planned 

Developme nt. If the property i already zoned Planned Development, the Planned 
Development shall be amended to comply w ith the requirements of this Policy no la ter than 
completion of the existing mining operation (if applicable) but no later than 12/3 1/2041 . 

2. The Planned Development rezoning shall include a minimum of 60% open space calc ula ted 
over the net project area, not including existing mining lake and public road right-of-way, 

and hall implement the following, to the maximum exte nt fea ible: 
a) Restoration and accommodation of existing and hi to rical regional flow ways; 

b) Restoration and accommodation of existing and historic groundwater levels; 
c) Restoration and preservation of wetlands ; 
d) Restoration and preservation of indigenous upland habitats; and 

e) Where applicable, provi ion of critical wildlife connections to adjacent conservation 

area . 

1 

Page 69



3. A proposed enhanced lake management plan for lakes created by mining activities shall be 
provided at the time of the Planned Development rezoning. The enhanced lake 
management plan shall be in addition to any previously approved lake management or 
reclamation plan for the property, and shall include, at a minimum, the following: 
a) Application of best management practices for fertilizers and pesticides; 
b) Provision for erosion control and lake bank stabilization; 
c) Establishment of lake maintenance requirements; and 
d) Establishment of an education program for any homeowners' association for the 

property regarding such issues as restricted lake uses, fertilizer use, lake bank planting 
requirements, and best management practices. 

4. Through the Development Order process, a site specific ecological and hydrological 
restoration plan shall be developed, which shall include, at a minimum, the following: 
a) Excavation and grading plans; 
b) Analysis of hydrological improvements and water budget for both land surface and 

subsurface; and 
c) For areas previously farmed or impacted by mining activities and proposed for 

preservation or conservation, replanting plans, habitat restoration plans, success 
criteria, and long-term monitoring and maintenance plans. 

5. A Conservation Easement for each preservation area shall be platted as part of a master 
plat for the property and dedicated to the appropriate maintenance entity which has been 
approved by the City. 

6. Indigenous management plans shall address human-wildlife coexistence and buffers 
between development areas and preservation/conservation areas. 

7. Landscaping shall use Florida Friendly Planting with low irrigation requirements in 
Common Elements. 

8. A minimum of 1.5 inches of water quality treatment shall be provided for the developed 
areas of the project. 

9. Stormwater runoff shall be directed into treatment areas prior to discharge to mining lakes 
that provide additional storage for 0.5 inches of runoff for the developed area. 

10. Existing vested mining uses shall be eliminated within an appropriate phasing schedule as 
part of the Planned Development rezoning approval but no later than 12/31/2041. 

11. Existing or proposed public potable water wells shall be protected. 
12. On-site and off-site improvements to transportation infrastructure needed to mitigate the 

traffic impacts of the Planned Development rezoning shall be provided, subject to any prior 
agreements. These improvements shall use, insofar as is practical, low impact roadway 
design, linear filter marsh retention elements, and other "green" roadway design features 
as applicable. 

13. The Planned Development project shall connect to public water and sewer service provided 
by Bonita Springs Utilities and shall connect to reclaimed water if available. 

14. Written verification as to adequate public services for the Planned Development rezoning 
shall be obtained from the Bonita Springs Fire Control & Rescue District, the Lee County 
Sheriff's Office, the Lee County Emergency Medical Services, and the Lee County School 
District. 

2 

Page 70



15. The proposed Planned Development rezoning shall not result m material, detrimental 
impacts to existing or future potable water supply resources. 

16. Golf course use is prohibited. 

Final densities and non-residential uses shall be determined as part of the Planned Development 
rezoning process and shall be based upon a demonstration of compatibility of the proposed 
development with adjacent and proximate development. 

3 

Page 71



,

·

_

PAOJEC'T 

BONITA GRANDE 
COMPREHENSIVEBONITA GRANDE COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AMENDMENT 
BONITA SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

SECTION 17, 20, & 29, TOWNSHIP 47 S, RANGE 26 E 
BONITA SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

~ .. 
' . ' ' ' ' 

\ 
"' ~ " ~ I!: 

~ !iq
0 ~ f uii u .., ..... 

SHEET INDEX 

DESCRIPTION SHEET 
MASmlCO>ICEPT PUN 

.. " 
" 

. . ,. 
n ,, ' 

COVERSHEET 

PR0POSED FlUMIJ' 

C-101 

C-102 

- . AERIAL EXHIBIT 

SURAOONDING usaMAP 

C·1<XJ 

c-,.. 
' SURROUNOING ZONING MAP C:-10S 

" .. 
" 

. 
" ,, ,, 

" " , 
ARCHAEot.OOJCAL SENSITIVITYM1.P 

CURRENT TOPOGFIAPHIC EtEVAT ~ OATA 

c-100 

C.107 
,~11110..UfS<Jf. 

~ 

~ " 

- I\ ~ 
f, 

.Jtl)H lltl ,. ,, ,, 
" " 

" I"'\~ ,.\ i~J " " " " " 
,.__,!:Ur Ufftfir ..... ., 

~ .....s 
~ 

• 
,.,. ~ 

'L,..1 
toHcT.i.et...c~lt(I " -... 0:N 

J, 
lltl 

' \I~ 

u ,. ,." " 

' '' ' 

C¢U..IC1tCOl.nmtw.t 

e SITE VICINITY MAP H.TS. 

Soften.. 
9 -. , .,,,~.

,h..., 
•,; .:,.,.... ' ► l -· ' .... .. 

~. .... ~p ? 'J .•
i IJ 

IQ~ 
' ;.. J 

It•,~\\"' I(-., 
hltrtc,,.r......,-

\ ,-\\ .. 
•.trii - ...... 

't, •_ SITiE)-
. ~~It • 

~ ' ' l -,,-:-,* ,--~..:.;,,..,, -~ "·· ... - 9 -

"""" !::I- ... ,._' 
1} .._tt~ I 

1 

e SITE LOCATION MAP u.s. 

' 

PLAN AMENDMENT 

lOCAllOII 

BONITA SPRINGS_Fl ORIDA 
S 17 20, &29, H 7 S R :!Ei E 

CU Etff 

BG MINE, LLC 

I 
1-----
~ CD~ 

; --,.DEPEW 
,: [.'«lNEERS "PI.NIIIEM. Sl.fl'.,EYQASl lNfJSCAPE NOf!ECl11 

"-CA'O ma:l~fl.aJl'THl,.._, , ~ 

FM My.f1 
n,, ~11,.
~~~ ,_,, 

11311»1-3111183 
, .- a-,:n,~ 

1a1... 1e&»r.n41 

i o.,::,_:I ,..,..... _ ··<>;:.. -
! "'~E...... ";::.":,,1.,.,~ '-:-.:..,._337-TMt 

l7)' o~~~~1~~f@ 
I 4 SPf?.JNcs 

D[c 1 J ZOJg 
UN;ry {)• . 
. -'-uJ.J-~ -~p ~ _. 'I V . 

I · q:I REV1$10NS o.&TE 
I 

i 
! 
I 

JI 
§ 
I 

! 

I 
0 

PROJECT MANAGER """' 
DRAWING ev· CN 

I! 

i 
JURISDICTION BONITA.SPRINGS 

DATE lll2&'20 19 

SHEET TITLE· 

= ~ 
~ COVER SHEET 

Pa
ge

 7
2

i! SHEET NUMSER
f 
ItI 

i 
IJOBIFU NUMBER. 16027•1 0 

C-101 

https://toHcT.i.et


1

PROJECT: 

Legend 

BONITAl .. = --
GRANDE MINE 

~, 

, 

Future Land Use Categories 

LowOen. R.s. - General Commercial 

_ Mod. Oen. Rn. - lnterchg. Cornnercial 

- Med. Oen. Res. - lnduslrial 

- Mod. Oen. MF Ros - PublidSeri-Public 

- High Oen. Res. - Recreation 

/.2 High Oen. MUNllage Res. - Conservation 

- Mod. Oen. MU/PO - Rnource l'n>tec:lion 

- EslataRH. DRGR 

~ Expanded Old 41 R-v. Area 
- Suburban 

~Original Old 41 Rodev, OV.rlay,'<" Urben Fringe Com. District 

- CanMMdionFrlngoDislrlct 

LOCAT10N: 

BONITASPRINGS, FLORIDA 
31 S 17 &20, T 47 S, R26E 

lalENT· 

BG MINE, LLC 

CON$Ul.TAH1'· 

IE:NON£'119.•~·~.......,..._ 
A.CloJrG.ISU~fi\'-"'~~ I~ 

...__,_.a,,-.,..._, 
! 
B -----__ 
~ T.....--.n-1MI 

......1, ...~-c ,.....,...,.__....__, ---__ --....,""_I ......,.....,.n,i. ,..........,...... 
~ .-s 

~~~~~~\ , 
~ ~,-<--~s ' 

~-s-0 ~ ').,~ti•.....,, ~~~ \. , o~~<c.~,{,_ 
o',;,~ ~ ,,· ~~~\-<;{ ~'(,_\1'· 

- ,.n~~I 'v~~~ 

I AEIIISIONS Do\T& 

' 

I 
i,

I 
I *-----------,1

1·PROJECT-DRAWING BY: CN 

BOtffAIPRNIS1· JUIIIS(JICTIC)N:...,...__,c.,O 
1ME 

/ \\l ~U ,-111 ■,DJ.I ,-..'-. I I r D,\TE, l/11!/20ZO 

~ IHaflTT\.E 

PROPOSED FUTURE ·- ""'~---...t . ·,~~\..'-IW, '. i LAND USE MAP
;r~ . I 

! SHEETM.MIIER: 
R EX-003\ ?.I 

I 

~~ 

.. 

..,.... ../ 

-
i

I~. 
-~ ·~ •'· 

I o.500 :zsa '°°Q 

u :DAN OEUlfl1N€1 
I v- I L,._.IL~... 

. 1 !!I .&'W'"'I. JOll/fll!N\Wlt 1eo21 

Pa
ge

 7
3



- ·, 

BONITA GRANDE 
COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AMENDMENT 

LOCATION 

BONITA SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
S 17. 20. & 29, T 47 S , R 26 E 

c.-...r 

BG MINE, LLC 

CONSULTANT 

MORRIS 

~ PEW 
E."'D'fEERl•~ • StRv'E't'ORS 

"LClo'O-IFlta!JC) ..,._, ,._aecamo-"""""""FOf1 Myer• 
n,, a.--.1.

F011 .....,._ n...,-, 
(7Jlll ll14Clil$ 

, u QW!W-ttS;I1•.... ~ r .l'),l,t 

ra11a11..... D• lllll\ 
tt3 S-~ ~ *Gls-:.e:-'
,-...-f"Oftdt~ ,_,....,...._ "'-3.ZSO ··,.-~-~ r,P3C1 ,.,..... aa.»1-n.i1 

CJ7y0F1fCt;r;~fJ 
0'4JJr~ Spl?l .

Dr, N(I.S-
Cl l 2019

Of1/lfu/t/1-r-, -
, r Dfvf. 

Df!pA.f?,, .• ,,., lOptv, 

Pa
ge

 7
4

t 
I 

i... 

"I REWION! 
a 
j 
f s 
J 
.i 
i PROJECT MANA.GER 

~ DRAWINGBY.i JURISOICllON 

DATE 

~ SKEET TITLE 

~ 
~ 

, 

l>&tll, 

,,_ 
c.N 

BONITA SPf':INGS 

11/2&'2010 

I llltlEETNVMBliR 
r 

!
! 

~ 

Si 
~ JOBIFILE NUMBER. 

C-103 

0 250 500I --, 
SCALE 1•a 500'I 

16027-10 

AERIAL EXHIBIT ~ 

https://aa.�1-n.i1


LEGEND 

~~1--"·, . :\ ~· 

ft..-'El 

PROJECT 

BONITA GRANDE
COMPREHENSIVE
PLAN AMENDMENT 

LOCAn0H 

BONITA SPRINGS FLORIDA
S 17 20. &29, T ◄7S. R26E 

CLIWT 

BG MINE, LLC 

fofl Mrff•
~•°"""""4.........._..,_,.........,,....,.,, 

, .. Q)lt»IJl1$11
, ..... ...,.1),11 

Tallahti.... DH1ln,,is-~---..- ................._.
,...,_....,.W>CN ...._~f\-UIN 

, . ... -.»J'·PJ,llt•-~'""' 

CJ,yOf:'!t~ Y.~@ 
Ofl.11r,4 S pR1...J

Dtc •r1

l 1 2019 
~~Df:11,

«a~-4:,;,-.. l.:.(, PtJ/:'
'Aift511 •cl)J_,.,.. 

O,llE 

tOJECT MANAGER· ,..,.,,. 
lt.WNG BY CN 

HSOICTION 80N11A SPRINGS

,re 11'20/2019 

S1-tEET TITLE 

SURROUNDING USES
MAP 

tEETNUM9f A 
C-104 

16027-10 

Pa
ge

 7
5



:

1

1

MO.N!.c r 

BONITA GRANDE 
COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AMENDMENT 

LOCATION 

BONITA SPRINGS. FLORIDA 
S 17, 20, & 29, T47 S. R26 E 

-· 
Ii BG MINE, LLC 

Ii 

,, 
I!:"-----------
i CONSULTANT 
~ 

I 

! / 
~ £"'IIONEERS • ~ • ~ 
- ~AAC>ffEC!ll 

l'l.e& ..a a»1"-CP'I ICl'--1r-1~

i F..,_. 
a'lt ~ A

rCl'l~r:-..:,;,oo,I 1D81U141111N 
, .. cnlll»1'3..

,11111,,..~r-n,1 

Tan.ah..... 0.■Hn
••3h.£1'1-....-~I .i•c.::,,e;,:-, 

8 ,_,.._,_,,,,_»30-1·· ._,_e..dl. ... »550 

.i ldhe lM-»1'14, ,_.......,,1,PJ,11 

1::====---- I 
i ll), O~i~~
I •·lfr-,q Sp
! O[c ~INcs 
,j _ 11 <019 
·1~f~~~'--: 

1 i ~/~--~-'-r -!"-J--

~ z 
:::> 
0 
0 
w 
w 
-' 

-~ 
I. 

i REVIBIDNB-c•I 
j 
f 

,.1 .! 
J 
i
;; 
IQ PRo:(CT MANAGER 

OFtA'MNG BY. 

1 JURISOfCTION 

(>,t,IE 

-CN 

80MTA SPAINGS 

I 
-- ..A 

' 
' 

~ -
' • ,J I 

.1 

..., 

. 

i'.i 
'7"' 

I 
~ 

-
"-:-"'h -

-ll"' 

I .-~
M 

I~ - ~-~~ ~. -

liiil ,: ,,. r ..\l'OO''<Tm 

··o 

r 

CC.-~ 

LEGEND 

□ AG -2 

- IND USTRIAL PD 

D MOBILE HOMERESIDENTIAL 

0 CITY BOUNDARY 

• SUBJECT PROPERTY 

__________, 

"';",-,i..,J ., 
I \.r""" ~ .. 

DATE, 11f16f20191! SHEE T TITLE

i~ 
y SURROUNDING ZONING e MAPI 

!!-HEET.ftl.JMIIR'i C-105 

;,~ 250 500I , -e. 0

I SCALE r•SOO' ''· 
JOB.tf1i..E N!lf.tNJI 

.. 16027T10 

Pa
ge

 7
6



Ht0,11(:1 

BONITA GRANDE 
COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AMENDMENT 

LOCATIOO 

BONITA SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
S 17 20. & 29. T 47 S, R 26 E 

CLIENT 

BG MINE, LLC 

11 _11-----------_________ 

~ ! I CONSUL TANT 

. - ... ,/ ..,cPE\11/i 
£'lot3NE£M • ~ - ~ --.:n, 

'\.C,-.«l_, ... a,r,'"10 .....1 1~ 

f orl Mywa~t•~,..._ 
Fo,1 ~ n:,,._,oeo1 

~ :n,.-:, 
,.. p,;,»r ..1;G.J 

1111."- 1663lr.n,u 

T._.!llhaHN .,.... 
11)$6.o.,._.,_S- ·-°"""eo...-........'"""' ._~.......hM--~:rzlll:il ,.,.... _." '·~I ,... ... ~ ,.,,,., 

C/1),Op!!~ 
l 

Orcc, 4 s'°' 
lt rt\tG'sco,.,,,.,,u. I <01.9 

~=---- 'l'v1ryD, 
D1;p,q~r,.'f:vl:(0A 

•"fl!::. T ~~!~\_~~ t~ 
IW-..S. ON-5 OATI 

-~ 1,'I 
~ r ......o---~ 

I
; 

tOJECT MANAGER MV,MI t 

,( 
·.•"~:.,:a..--. 

W-1NGBY CJV 

' ,RISDICl tQN BOMf A SPRINGS 

<TE 11/26/2019 

IEET TITtE 

ARCHAEOLOGICAL 
SENSITIVITY MAP 

:ET NUM8ER 
C-106 

-- im 

-SCALE l"r\.Vi 

=1LE NUM8ER 
16027-10 

Pa
ge

 7
7



Pa
ge

 7
8

.1~-~:ii.~,! 
I . • h 

~11t:i)}~;,.i't
"" -~;;~.:,.,;,.., '1;~-.... ,,. ..:.,_,,,""' . 

...-t!~..'-,~ 
, '.li' 

l..:c=r~ 
~-· 

1 PROJECT: 

BONITA GRANDE 
COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AMENDMENT 

LOCATION 

BONITA SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
S 17,20, & 29, T 47 S, R 26 E 

CLJENT 

BG MINE, LLC 

~-~ • &l.A'EYORa"""""-"'E~ 
il'I.. CA'OaJI/R.CSl'l' "OLllll91 , ~ 

fo,t ,.,.. 
411 .111 0ew1riaA

~,......n,r..,uoc,1 
!nit»'----,~ a.~>-,.,.,.,,......,,,,.t3&1 

Tallah•NN 0.atln 
u U•·~•:.'::",.,_ ..........._ 

, ____ ,__.,,. UX>t ,_,.. 
~'"°'-"'-~ r....,...,.,,.,,.1 , .... ~ ,. 7),11 

t17yo;:-!!~~w~~ 
'll",q Sp

Or C 'l?ftvGs 

~~J <019 
"Lr ~ 

._.~R:~ if0N81 ()l.1f 

;~.~ i PROJECT MANAG!,R 
,.. lll ORAIMNG ev -

,. I' 
CN 

~ i JUAISD!CTION BONITA SPRINGS I 

I DAtE· l11281'20151 

w./ ·I :I. SHEETTm e 
.. ~ • ~ CURRENT 

~ TOPOGRAPHICi ELEVATION DATA 

~ '!iHEEl NUMBER 

'' ' ~------------1.
""· L ~JI 250 

-SCALE 1'"1:500' I 
.~ il,-1:NUMBf R 

16027•10 

C-107 



Flood Zone Web Map 

E ·1011y St 

nllil Beoctr Rd SE 

May 23, 2018 ~ <:, 
0 0.28 1.1 mi®'t~\~~t s?~\~G

D FIRM Panel ■ 0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD (X) 0 0.42 0.85 1.7 km 
c,\-r/ V' i ~ 1~\~

FIRM Flood Zone 
X \)t.C QVlr-~'• VE 0 FIRM Floodway \'\tf{~t:\J~~ 

Soulcas: Esrl. HERE, G1urnt1. lnietrnap. .,.,...,,.nl p Corp .. GEBC0. USGS.
■ AE c.,o~""uo£:.?~~~ FM>, NPS, NRCAH, -··· · IGN. Kada$1or NL. OrdNnc:o Survey, E•rlFlooding Source Jeper,. MET!. EM! CNna (Hong l<anQI. sww1as,o. 0 Ope,'5-IMep 

con111bukn, ood 1118GISUs« Commurily■ A 
LHCounty. FL 

.NT P, USGS, METVN~A. EP-' USDA I LN C:0..,iy Properly App,81s11 maintain, lhe _,,IIIY..., J)lopetty claC.O. Proeess to jolndala lo lhe polnlHompleWld bylnCounty CllS. I Lee Coonly Govommont, Fl1 

Page 79



--r Bo ~•UL ,,,,.-

IVJ,A Sp
D[c t?JfVGs 

DESCRIPTION: - 3 0 20/g
l'1tvruNI1v ~ 

A PORTION OF SECTIONS 17 AND 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUN:J::Y!-FLORIDA, MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS: 'l\1r.:/\';.,,v,-,Mftv,-

COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF BEGINNING, WHICH IS THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 
47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE NORTH 01°08'52" WEST FOR 5285.70 FEET ALONG 
AN AGREED UPON LINE PER OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 2061, PAGE 3137 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID AGREED UPON LINE NORTH 01 °06'50" WEST 1339.84 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 88°58'01" WEST 191.18 FEET ALONG AN AGREED UPON LINE PER OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 
2061. PAGE 3137, AND PAGE 3139 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA TO THE WEST LINE OF 
SECTION I 7, TOWNSHIP 4 7, SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID 
AGREED UPON LINE WHICH IS THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 17 NORTH 04 °41 '04" WEST FOR 4013.11 FEET 
TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 17; THENCE NORTH 87°28'17"' EAST FOR 2575.75 FEET ALONG 
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION I 7 TO THE NORTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION I 7; THENCE CONTINUE 
ALONG SAID NORTH LINE NORTH 87°28'22" EAST FOR 2575.93 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
SECTION 17; THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION I 7, SOUTH 05°01'45" EAST 2689.09 FEET THE 
EAST 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 17; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG THE SAID EAST LINE SOUTH 05°01'37" 
EAST 2688.71 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 17 AND THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
SECTION 20; THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20 SOUTH 03°50'45" EAST FOR 2684: 71 FEET TO 
THE EAST 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 20; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID EAST LINE SOUTH 03°50'58" 
EAST FOR 2684.65 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 20; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE 
OF SAID SECTION 20, SOUTH 88°34'10" WEST 2665.01 FEET TO THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 20; 
THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF SECTION 20 SOUTH 88°34'05" WEST FOR 108.64 FEET; 
THENCE S.01° 22'41" E. LEAVING SAID SECTION LINE, FOR A DISTANCE OF 1298.02 FEET; THENCE S.88°38'23" w. 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 2501.11 FEET; THENCE N. 01 °08'42" W. FOR A DISTANCE OF 1295.52 FEET TO AN 
INTERSECTION OF THE SAID SOUTH LINE OF SECTION 20.; THENCE S.88° 34'05" w. FOR A DISTANCE OF 59.83' 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

SURVEYOR'S NOTES: 

THE DESCRIPTION SHOWN HERON IS NEW. 

ORIENTATION IS BASED ON THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST-QUARTER SECTION 20 AS BEARING S.03"50'58"E, BASED 
ON FLORIDA GRID, WEST ZONE, NAO 83/90. 

UNLESS IT BEARS THE SIGNATURE AND ORIGINAL RAISED SEAL OF A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND 
MAPPER, THIS MAP IS NOT VALID. 

THIS IS NOT A SURVEY! 

ABBREVIATIONS: 

D.E.P. = DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
F.P.&L. = FLORIDA POWER AND LIGHT 
0.R. = "OFFICIAL RECORDS 
PG. = PAGE 
P.O.B. :: POINT OF BEGINNING 

PREPARED BY: 
MARK A. HATFIELD, P.S.M. DATE 
FLORIDA CERTIFICATE NO. 4155 

eC0P'VNGHTU0filftal•DEPEWAS.IOCM'ID. INC. 201tAU. RtGHTa RUER't'E) t11CZ7BonlaOrw'dlt -~ and ~1111Z7..,.,.~1N1 ~REV1.... cSI.D ltt1> • DK04 2011 mM:57 llfll PlOTTED 11"1': 

PROJECT: CONSULTNm CLIENT: PROJECT MANAGER: MAH 

SKETCH AND ~ BONITA GRANDE OAAWINGBY; 

JURISDICTION: 

BMH 
CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS 

DESCRIPTION ENON£ERS • "'-"""EAS • S\.AIEYOAS 
W40SCAl'£AACHTECl"S 

11\.c:,\NO,.-/P\OEM'NQ.ueeot J~ 

MINE LLC. DATE! 

SHEET TrnE: 

12/04/2019 

SKETCH AND 
l OCAT!ON; Fo,t..,...

at•~....,_....,Alrllll:mot DESCRIPTION ...,..,_
A PARCEL OF LAND IN F-='2311S1t..-. 

TCII M:IIN:l7•7>4I 

SHEET NUMBER:SEC.17 & 20,T. 47 S., R. 26 E., 1 OF 2 e -.1 ~,~m:-::r-
alD,w,.lllm--.lLEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 11~.............. SO\I.E 1_ 1IIIAM IIMD - - JOB/FILE NUMBER:r--........1 ...,_.....,F\.=-, 

, ...:~,nit ,...._....a31.n,i,1 16027 

Page 80



__.., 
,t I 

I ✓.... _... 
CONSERVATION 
EASEMENT #13 

(O.R. 3914 PG. 3798) 

D.E.P. 
CONSERVATION 
EASEMENT •11 

F.P. &L EASEMENT (O.R. 3914 PG. 37118) 
INSTR. NO. 2005000033935 

,-, O.E.P 

.. ( CONSERVATION 

I \ EASEMENT #12 
IO.E.P. L--\ (O.R. 3914 PG. 3791,1) 

!
~:~~ :---;:,

O.R. 3914 PO. 3798) '-~ / 
.E.P. CONSERVATION EASEMENTS #8 ANOln 

(O.R. 3914 PG. 37981 

CONSERVATION EASEMENT9-10 
, (INST.# 2015000118755)
I WHICH COMBINES C.E. #8 ANO C.E. #7,
I LEE COUNTY ' \j ,--------- c~~~~~ \ 

( ) O.R. 2492 PG 3480 \ 
\ , _ _..---~ I ~ .E.P. 

\ CONSERVATION s aa0 sa·o1" w '-, / w 
{ EASEMENT #14 191,18' CONse°~:i,~-..- ( ____..--,..,, \(0.R, 3914PG 3788)' ~ EASEMENT#8 

;= (0.R. 3914 PG, 3798) \\ __,I \ ) 
... 
0 
:,,

O.E.P. ', _,., ._ I ~ 
CONSERVATION ..,..- ,> 'I I en 

EASEMENT #9 ~ I I 
(O.R. 3914 PG. 37981 0.E.P . .__ _, \ OR 2492 PG 3480 

AREA= 1342.26 ACRES ~~~':,~ I ~ ~ 
(O.R. 3914 PG. 3798)l•,._,i.,__----~~SECTION 17 ___________ l ;; 

-~...,_,----SECTION20 1 

~ 

I ;--, # 

l \ .... / OE.P I , 
', \ _.,, \ ro~ • • \ I 

, 1i.E.P. .l r'NSERVATION\ I 
,,coNSERVATIO"\ , EASEMENT #4 I I 

\ EASEMENT #3 \ 1 [0.R. 3914 PG. 3~1 I 
(O,t 3914 PG. 37981 ~ ,-., I

~1 ...Q-....___..,J 1aFP&1.~:~ ',..__\ 

&'I )O.R.BOOK3781, PAGE325S 

i., /\ .., 
I \ I 

CONSERVATION ,/ \ I\ 0
J-. EASEMENT #1 ( \ f:g [0.R. 3914 PG. 3798) \ ) I 
"I O.E.P. ,__ \ 

1 u, CONSERVATION / 

I ~ ~EAS~NT~ 
• (0.R. 3914 PG. 3798) > 

~ I ~ /

!~\ p!'- I ~ 
I 

si I ~ 1
/ 

s~ · I 
o~ I 
~~ \ 
~2 ' 

~: ' ~2. s aa0 34•os" w ' 
"' ,'"' 59.83' 

s as0 34'05" w , 
1 

1aF.P. & L. EASEMENT 
INSTR. NO. 2007000241216 108.~--, "-,,... I '-0.E.P.P.0.8. 1aF.P. & L EASEMENT ( I )CONSERVATION 

THE S.W. CORNER OF~ O.R. BOOK 3761. PAGE 3255 ) I I I EASEMENU14
SECTION 20, T. 47 S .. I j__ .I (0.R. 3914 PG. 37118) 
R,26 E. LEE COUNTY. FLORIDA ~~~~--11---------- s.as•34•1o"W.;= 

: 2665.01' .... N 
~ 0c-.i &1 N coN: iri 0 0, 

0 0, .... N 
o N ....0.... .... 
0 z 
z BOUNDARY OF DESCRIPTION 

N aa0 3a•23" E 2so1.11· 

. COPYAIOHfM0fftt•DVEW~TU,, ltC. 2019 /UNCfHT8 flESERWI) l~IIQV'8onllllOIINI • OIMiiootlf~IIICI DllerlPIOM11C1'27•lnd__,.ll"lll~REVI...CSIDWI :z». Oac04ZD11 QI.~ Sift PI.OTTEDlh"::~ 

PRO,JECT: CONSULTANT: PROJECTMANAGER: MAH 
DRAWINGBY: BMHBONITA GRANDE SKETCH AND JURISDICTION: CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS~ DESCRIPTION ENGINEERS • PL.,t,NN£RS • ~ 

MINE LLC DATE: 12/4/2019 
~AAC>mcrs 

A.CANO.llllm-1A.CIIWTNO.w-nI~ SHEETTITLE: 

SKETCH AND 
l DOmON, 

DESCRIPTION 
A PARCEL OF LAND IN 

0 800 1200SEC.17 & 20,T. 47 S., R. 26 E., SHEETNUMBER: 
Tol- DN1ln 2OF2 

11.1..,....._....LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA ,...... SCALE ,._120a1.,___,..._, --- er ,-
JOB/FILE NUMBER:..._9-n.FlmlO 

Ta11 ..:-.a7~1 l"Gllhs: IIN-n1•1MI-- 16027 

Page 81



... 

ABBREVIATIONS 
C/L = CENTERLINE 
L 1 =LINE DESIGNATION 
O.R. =OFFICIAL RECORDS 
PG. = PAGE 
POB = PONT..OF-BEGINNING 
POC = POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENT 
R/W = RIGHT-OF-WAY 

~ 
~ EW, 

ENClNEERS • ~ • Sl.RVEVOR9 
LN«l&CN'EAACttTECJS 

Fl CA NO, - / FlCERT NO. l861Q1 l~-
Fon ..,_ 1'11- -
... ~ ..... 11:Ste.al.......... - ---~ ,_..,l'bllll 3.!IIO-I 1..... ...... 
CDl 3'141D J.,..__ Allllllo lll01 ..__..._.,,.._.
F-=c:a-.m4MI ,..._....,,-n+, , .. .-.....,.n.,
TGlha:IIIIN77-73'1 

0 1 

SCALE OF MILES 

\ I 

' I\ I ' .' 

MDA PROJECT: RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS 
16027

SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 
CHECKED DRAWNPARCELS OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 AND 20, MAH BMHTOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 

DATE:FLORIDA 11/25/19 
SHEETBONITA GRANDE MINES LLC. 1 OF30 Page 82

2 

https://11:Ste.al


8 9 
MINEBOUNOA7 8 INE 

/ 17 16 

18 17 INDEX OF SHEETS 
AREA "L" - SHEETS 3 & 4 
AREA "P" - SHEETS 5 & 6 
AREA "I" - SHEETS 7 & 8 
AREA "K" - SHEETS 9 & 10 

AREA"D" AREA "11" - SHEETS 11 & 12 
AREA "9-10" - SHEETS 13 & 14 
AREA "E1" - SHEETS 15 & 16 

AREA"C" AREA "E2" - SHEETS 17 & 18 
AREA "E3" - SHEETS 19 & 20 
AREA "D" - SHEETS 21 & 22 
AREA "C" - SHEETS 23 & 24AREA "S" 

AREA "9-10" AREA "S" - SHEETS 25 - 30 

AREA "11" 

~1, 
LL----------~A~REA"E3" , / 17 16•----=""-· ___.:_~~•->--

20 21 

/ 

0 1320 
~~~ 

SCALE OF FEET 
1" = 1/4 MILE z' 

~ iQ, z
t;I ::J 
w'l gC/J ... 

' UJz 
j 

19 20 
29 28 

INDEX MAP 

MOA PROJECT:RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS 
16027

SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION~ CHECKEO ORAWN 
~.PU.NNERS. 6UFNEYORS PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 AND 20, 

l-'Nll5CAPENICKTECl'S MAH BMH 
Fl.CA N0.11632 1Fl. ce<rNO. ~1/ l.C29000330 TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, DATE:,or1..,_. T- _, FLORIDAa1•~"-"- 111,_..._...... 411aMII...._.. 11/25/19

Fa,t ...... flmlda -I I.,_ aatD ......- nw-..,,.......,. ..,_.~flL.IZ:lm SHEET 
,a:PNlm.aM fcl._....,..11,41 l ol..llN31-7MI 
l'olt.:aN:11-7M1 BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 20F30 

Page 83

https://a:PNlm.aM


Page 84

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA "L" 
(CONSERVATION EASEMENT #1 O.R 3914, PG. 3798) 

A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, SAID TRACT OR PARCEL BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE N. 02"16'13" W. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DISTANCE OF 4196.16' FEET; THENCE 
N. 87°43'47" E. A DISTANCE OF 86.82' FEET TO THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING OF HEREON DESCRIBED LAND; THENCE 
S. 80°55'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 13.41' FEET; THENCE S. 86°11'48" E. A DISTANCE OF 61.86' FEET; 
THENCE S. 88"15'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 45.68' FEET; THENCE S. 67°40'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 49.48' FEET; 
THENCE s. 28°02'00" E. A DISTANCE OF 75.49' FEET; THENCE s. 58°18'46" E. A DISTANCE OF 64.51' FEET; 
THENCE S. 56°25'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 29.33' FEET; THENCE S. 36°58'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 55.77' FEET; 
THENCE S. 06°58'18" E. A DISTANCE OF 68.65' FEET; THENCE S. 06"38'24" E. A DISTANCE OF 61.46' FEET; 
THENCE S. 02°53'49" W. A DISTANCE OF 62.08' FEET; THENCE S. 28°39'53" W. A DISTANCE OF 77.30' FEET; 
THENCE S. 38°32'40" W. A DISTANCE OF 45.33' FEET; THENCE S. 51°46'53" W . A DISTANCE OF 33.00' FEET; 
THENCE S. 56°53'59" W. A DISTANCE OF 71.95' FEET; THENCE S. 65"33'36" W. A DISTANCE OF 50.96' FEET; 
THENCE S. 71°06'36" W. A DISTANCE OF 82.14' FEET; THENCE S. 55°22'56" W. A DISTANCE OF 48.28' FEET; 
THENCE N. 01"05'06" W. A DISTANCE OF 617.09' FEET; TO THE SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING 
CONTAINING 3.44 ACRES MORE OR LESS . 

• ORRIS/□ RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS L 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

tNGfllEB\9 • PI..N\tBIS • SURVEVORS PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 20 , TOWNSHIP 47 
ui; c• p9oip E 

~ A/OfT£CTS 
A. C\NO, 6632/F\.aRTNO. U!8891 / ~ SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Fort..,_. T- -
B14 CIMIWIISArrMu 111............-...it -~..,._.,.....,.,..flofldl.a.o1 ,.,_. ...._ 
1Z119 :D1.- ,.......l'llltS6:ma1 .......-.,.._-
f,._QM~.... JCllt-=a-111•1141 1..hEIINIUMI,1111....~, BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 

M0A PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKEOI DRAWN 
MAH I BMH 

OATE: 
11/25/19 

SHEET 
3OF30 



POB I 
N:741057.59 
E:741571.48 

(\ 
I 
I 
I 

RESOURCE 
0 200 PROTECTION 

AREA"L" 
SCALE OF FEET I ~ 

3.44 Acres.\
_. IABBREVIATIONS 

L 1 = LINE DESIGNATION 
O.R. = OFFICIAL RECORDS IPG. = PAGE 
POB = PONT-OF-BEGINNING 
POC = POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENT 
R/W = RIGHT-OF-WAY 

v~ 

~ N:740440.61 
~ E:741583.17 

8 
z 
C 

LINE BEARING DISTANCE ! 
L1 N 02"16'13' W 4196.16' 
L2 N 87'43'47" E 86.82' 
L3 S 80"55'08" E 13.41' 
L4 S 86"11'48" E 61.86' 
LS S 88°15'36" E 45.68' 

I
L6 S67"40'1rE 49.48' 
L7 s 2a·o2·00· E 75.49' 
LS S 58°18'46" E 64.51' I POC 
L9 S 56"25'08" E 29.33' 19 20/THE SOUTHWEST CORNER 
L10 S 36°58'53" E 55.77' / OF SEC. 20, T.47 S, R. 26 E. 
L11 S 06'58'18' E 68.65' - - - - - - -- N:736861.28 
L12 S 06'38'24' E 61.46' E:741650.96 
L13 S 02•53•49• W 62.08' 30 I 29 
L14 S 28'39'53" W 77.30' 
L15 S 38'32'40" W 45.33' lL16 S 51 •45•53• W 33.00' 

I 
L17 S 56"53'59" W 71.95' 
L18 S 65°33'36" W 50.96' IL19 S 71"06'36' W 82.14' 

I 
L20 S 55°22'56" W 48.28' 
L21 N 01 "05'06' W 617.09' I 

MOA PROJECT: RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS L 
16027 

SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN 
~EEAS •PI..ANNERS •SlJIVEYORS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47L'HlSCAPEAACHIECJS MAH BMH 

A.CAN0.e532JA.CSITNO, IMS!/I..C28000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNlY, FLORIDA DATE:
F"'1..,_ Tela- _,.,.~....- ,,,...................... 11/25/19Fotl ............ 3:all 1cl'llo, ..__ 

CZ311 l3Nll.1 ~,_.... mtl ....IIM\R.aaalO SHEET 
f'aic:Cillltts7.... T..NC....,•1:141 T411ftE-..»7-13111 BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC.,,.... --7"'1JII 40F30 Page 85

https://E:741650.96
https://N:736861.28
https://E:741583.17
https://N:740440.61
https://E:741571.48
https://N:741057.59


Page 86

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA •p• 
(CONSERVATION EASEMENT #2 O.R 3914, PG. 3798) 

A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, SAID TRACT OR PARCEL BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE N. 02°16'13" W. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DISTANCE OF 3233.98' FEET; 
THENCE N. 87°43'47" E. A DISTANCE OF 2546.73' FEET TO THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING OF HEREON DESCRIBED LAND; 
THENCE N. 01°13'05" E. A DISTANCE OF 31.29' FEET; THENCE N. 16°21'31" E. A DISTANCE OF 39.24' FEET; 
THENCE N. 25"42'03" E. A DISTANCE OF 35.58' FEET; THENCE N. 29°20'58" E. A DISTANCE OF 27.58' FEET; 
THENCE N. 31"22'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 27.54' FEET; THENCE N. 34°08'51" E. A DISTANCE OF 23.49' FEET; 
THENCE N. 31°39'14" E. A DISTANCE OF 29.88' FEET; THENCE N. 25°57'38" E. A DISTANCE OF 33,57' FEET; 
THENCE N. 26"36'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 27.33' FEET; THENCE N. 33°35'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 42.63' FEET; 
THENCE N. 27°42'15" E. A DISTANCE OF 58.64' FEET; THENCE N. 27°13'51" E. A DISTANCE OF 64.18' FEET; 
THENCE N. 20°39'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 46.30' FEET; THENCE N. 33°00'06" E. A DISTANCE OF 26.79' FEET; 
THENCE N. 66°52'43" E. A DISTANCE OF 14.17' FEET; THENCE S. 50°52'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 12.86' FEET; 
THENCE S. 24°11'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 12.10' FEET; THENCE S. 00°03'21" W. A DISTANCE OF 25.48' FEET; 
THENCE S. 05°23'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 28.74' FEET; THENCE S. 47°50'03" E. A DISTANCE OF 25.99' FEET; 
THENCE S. 39°36'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 40.11' FEET; THENCE S. 37°04'59" E. A DISTANCE OF 43.36' FEET; 
THENCE S. 30°46'05" E. A DISTANCE OF 31.33' FEET; THENCE S. 36°25'45" E. A DISTANCE OF 12.23' FEET; 
THENCE s. 32°08'55" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.26' FEET; THENCE s. 26°51'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.16' FEET; 
THENCE S. 25"14'18" E. A DISTANCE OF 23.69' FEET; THENCE S. 26°19'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 20.26' FEET; 
THENCE S. 26"20'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.76' FEET; THENCE S. 24°22'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.79' FEET; 
THENCE S. 22°58'40" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.88' FEET; THENCE S. 21°02'28" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.15' FEET; 
THENCE S. 16°14'12" E. A DISTANCE OF 18.93' FEET; THENCE S. 10°55'10" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.70' FEET; 
THENCE S.12°26'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 18.85' FEET; THENCE S. 15°03'07" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.35' FEET; 
THENCE S. 19°20'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 27.51' FEET; THENCE S. 16°03'06" E, A DISTANCE OF 18.15' FEET; 
THENCE S. 04°06'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 15.85' FEET THENCE S. 03°44'32" W. A DISTANCE OF 55.06' FEET; 
THENCE S. 15°04'55" E. A DISTANCE OF 84.67' FEET; THENCE S. 46°21'18" W. A DISTANCE OF 61.28' FEET; 
THENCE S. 51"14'18" W. A DISTANCE OF 70.16' FEET; THENCE S. 68°23'46" W. A DISTANCE OF 40.60' FEET; 
THENCE s. 75°58'18" w. A DISTANCE OF 44.69' FEET; THENCE s. 83°17'58" w. A DISTANCE OF 35.96' FEET; 
THENCE S. 89°44'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 75.41' FEET; THENCE N. 69°25'03" W. A DISTANCE OF 31.67' FEET; 
THENCE N. 61°21'26" W. A DISTANCE OF 36.59' FEET; THENCE N. 50°32'37" W. A DISTANCE OF 28.85' FEET; 
THENCE N. 30°40'39" W. A DISTANCE OF 68.73' FEET; THENCE N. 23°53'46" W. A DISTANCE OF 49.59' FEET; 
THENCE N. 17°34'24" W. A DISTANCE OF 63.37' FEET; THENCE N. 20°32'31" W. A DISTANCE OF 54.55' FEET; 
TO THE SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 4.92 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

MDA PROJECT:RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA P 
16027

SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION ~ CHECKED! DRAWN 
- •PI.JNERS. SURl,F(0RS PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 

lNll6CAf'E ARCffiECTS MAH I BMH 
F\.CAN0.8$l2 / FI.C:E1mao. l.80881 /l.Cffll00330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

DATE:
Fort..,_. T-- DN11n•••CIMll,ld"""""" ,u..a-....... .-....~ 11/25/19
ir.~Amldll sat1 ,.~ ..... 
aa,w...- ~,__..,. .._._.,,.._,_ SHEET
'-=CZIII~ Tol._-.:,P.1a,11 lal._-.S.-1144 
Tai ha:19a1-1)41 BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 50F 30 



Page 87

LINE 
L22 
L23 
L24 
L25 

L26 
L27 
L28 
L29 
L30 
L31 
L32 
L33 
L34 
L35 
L36 
L37 
L38 
L39 
L40 
L41 
L42 
L43 
L44 
L45 
L46 
L47 
L48 
L49 
LSO 
L51 
L52 
L53 
L54 
L55 
L56 
L57 
L58 
L59 
L60 
L61 
L62 

L63 
L64 
L65 
L66 
L67 
L68 
L69 
L70 
L71 
L72 
L73 
L74 
L75 
L76 
L77 

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS P 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

ENGIEERS • PlANIEI>• 6tJRYEYOAS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 
FI.CANO,eo.32 / FI.CERTNO. LB81!81 / t.C28000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

F'<>n..,.,_ T- -

UNll6CN'E ~ 

2t14 Cllillalllftll.-.U ,,1..............~.......... 
,_..,.._Florlda&IICl1 lit,._ ..... 
GIii ,P4IIO ,.,...,....... IZIO'I ...........R...,
hECZS-.m..-. t til._llND-1MI tal:tw:.....,_7"'11
TDllw:....,,,_,,,.t BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 

MOA PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKED DRAWN 

MAH BMH 
DATE: 

11/25/19 
SHEET 

60F30 

BEARING DISTANCE 
N 02°16'13• W 3233.98' 
N87°43'4r E 2546.73' 
N 01°13'05" E 31.29' 
N 16°21'31" E 39.24' 
N 25°42'03" E 35.58' 
N 20·20•5s• E 27.58' 
N 31°22'02" E 27.54' 
N 34°08'51" E 23.49' 
N 31°39'14" E 29.88' 
N 25°57'38" E 33.57' 
N 26°36'02" E 27.33' 
N 33°35'29" E 42.63' 
N 27•42•15• E 58.64' 
N 27°13'51" E 64.18' 
N 20•39•53• E 46.30' 
N 33°00'06" E 26.79' 
N 66°52'43" E 14.17' 
s 50•52•35• E 12.86' 
S24°11'36"E 12.10' 
S 00°03'21" W 25.48' 
S 05°23'22" E 28.74' 
S 47°50'03" E 25.99' 
S 39°36'02" E 40.11 ' 
S 37•04•59• E 43.36' 
S 30°46'05" E 31 .33' 
S 36°25'45" E 12.23' 
S 32°08'55" E 19.26' 
S 26"51'04" E 19.16' 
S 25"14'18" E 23.69' 
S 26°19'11" E 20.26' 
S 26°20'29" E 19.76' 
S 24°22'22" E 19.79' 
S 22°58'40" E 19.88' 
S 21 °02'28" E 19.15' 
S 16°14'12" E 18.93' 
S 10°55'10" E 19.70' 
S 12°26'49" E 18.85' 
s 1s•o3•01· E 21.35' 
S 19°20'53" E 27.51 ' 
s 1s•o3•oa· E 18.15' 
S 04"06'04" E 15.85' 
S 03°44'32" W 55.06' 
S 15•04•55• E 84.67' 
s 45•21 •19• w 61 .28' 
s s1•14•19• w 70.16' 
s s9•23•4a• w 40.60' 
S 75°58'18" W 44.~ 
S 83°17'58" W 35.96' 
S 89°44'02" W 75.41' 
N 69"25'03" W 31.67' 
N a1·21·2s· w 36.59' 
N 50°32'37" W 28.85' 
N 30°40'39" W 68.73' 
N 23°53'46" W 49.59' 
N 17°34'24" W 63.37' 
N 20•32•31• W 54.55' 

L64 

I 

I
C/l L7 

I ~ ~1 
~ 

c
N ~ 

ABBREVIATIONS 
L1 = LINE DESIGNATION 
O.R. = OFFICIAL RECORDS 
PG. = PAGE 
POB = PONT-OF-BEGINNING 
POC = POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENT 
R/W = RIGHT-OF-WAY 

I 

11 lyPOC
9 20 THE SOUTHWEST CORNER 

OF SEC. 20, T.47 S, R. 26 E. !
- - -- N:736861.28 N 

E:741650.96 
l3'0 1 29 wrI 

I 

I 0 200 

I 
I 

SCALE OF FEET 

https://E:741650.96
https://N:736861.28


Page 88

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA "I" 
(CONSERVATION EASEMENT #3 O.R 3914, PG. 3798) 

A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, SAID TRACT OR PARCEL BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, 
LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE N. 02°16'13" W.W. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DISTANCE OF 5090.57' 
FEET;THENCE N. 87°43'4r E. A DISTANCE OF 330.49' FEET TO THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING OF HEREON DESCRIBED LAND; 
THENCE N. 00°36'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 139.23' FEET;THENCE N. 04°38'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 82.92' FEET; THENCE 
N. 88°04'03" E. ALONG A LINE LYING 0.40 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES, AND PARALLEL TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DJSTANCE OF 157.12' FEET; THENCE S. 87"50'06" E. A DISTANCE OF 87.62' FEET; 
THENCE S. 87°28'58" E. A DISTANCE OF 67.89' FEET; THENCE S. 89°15'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 48.37' FEET; THENCE 
S. 89°02'41" E. A DISTANCE OF 116.95' FEET; THENCE S. 80°32'28" E. A DISTANCE OF 49.30' FEET; THENCE S. 38°14'36" E. 
A DISTANCE OF 34.92' FEET; THENCE S. 27°46'56" E. A DISTANCE OF 33.82' FEET; THENCE S. 19"21'55" E. A DISTANCE OF 
25.64' FEET; THENCE S. 29°54'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 49.50' FEET; THENCE S.17°42'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 47.25' FEET; 
THENCE S. 04°11'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 42.14' FEET; THENCE S. 09"15'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 91.49' FEET; THENCE 
S.16°18'24" W. A DISTANCE OF 55.83' FEET; THENCE S. 33°20'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 63.40' FEET; THENCE S. 81°17'42" E. 
A DISTANCE OF 38.92' FEET; THENCE N. 73°53'37" E. A DISTANCE OF 109.75' FEET; THENCE N. 73°48'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 
138.12' FEET; THENCE N. 67°57'28" E. A DISTANCE OF 71.89' FEET; THENCE N. 57"15'57" E. A DISTANCE OF 72.57' FEET; 
THENCE S. 62°49'15" E. A DISTANCE OF 28.21' FEET; THENCE S. 31°48'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 54.25' FEET; THENCE 
S. 09°43'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 165.45' FEET; THENCE S. 40°57'55" E. A DISTANCE OF 93.07' FEET; THENCE S. 35°21'11" E. 
A DISTANCE OF 60.97' FEET; THENCE S. 24°57'58" E. A DISTANCE OF 12.08' FEET; THENCE S. 10°34'57" E. A DISTANCE OF 
98.56' FEET; THENCE S. 00°44'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 132.31' FEET; THENCE S. 01°33'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 89.17' FEET; 
THENCE S. 08°27'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 115.57' FEET; THENCE S. 70°24'40" W. A DISTANCE OF 47.56' FEET; THENCE 
N. 74°47'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 155.07' FEET; THENCE N. 81°46'23" W. A DISTANCE OF 175.92' FEET; THENCE 
N. 78°18'59" W. A DISTANCE OF 103.82' FEET; THENCE N. 63°36'40" W. A DISTANCE OF 147.80' FEET; THENCE N. 68"08'53" W. 
A DISTANCE OF 50.77' FEET; THENCE N. 51 °21'21" W. A DISTANCE OF 42.38' FEET; THENCE N. 55"09'33" W. A DISTANCE OF 
28.55' FEET; THENCE N. 39°16'45" W. A DISTANCE OF 19.17' FEET; THENCE N. 18°10'54" W. A DISTANCE OF 235.59' FEET; 
THENCE N. 31°59'11" W. A DISTANCE OF 41.38' FEET; THENCE N. 45°08'29" W. A DISTANCE OF 80.13' FEET; THENCE 
N. 51°52'35" W. A DISTANCE OF 244.65' FEET; THENCE N. 62°47'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 32.93' FEET; THENCE N. 54°54'15" W. 
A DISTANCE OF 39.01' FEET; THENCE N. 55°04'14" W. A DISTANCE OF 71.87' FEET; THENCE N . 57"56'58"W. A DISTANCE 
OF 31.70' FEET; THENCE N. 44°02'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 36.73' FEET; THENCE N. 14°02'51" W. A DISTANCE OF 54.61' FEET 
TO THE SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING OF THIS DESCRIPTION. 
CONTAINING 16.62 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

__J!AORRIS_/~ RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA I 
di M~ p~ SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

EM»IEBIS • PLANNERS • SUR\oEV0RS PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 
~AACtffl!CTS 

Fl.CA NO. 116321A.CERT NO. UIUIII Jl.C2000Cm0 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
,.,,.,,_. T- Dolln 
:11114~---- 111-a..11111nae.............._ 
....u,n...... _.. 1•Aiat .... 
..~ T....._,,-- IIIOI ...,_llllldl,f'UIIIO 
'-cmJSSMIN l'll"-.....,_b41 Tlll ...91N17•7M1 BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. t e111w;.....wr-~ 1 

MDA PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKED! DRAWN 
MAH I BMH 

DATE: 
11/25/19 

SHEET 
7OF30 



I 

18 17 
SECTION LINE 

19 20 

Page 89

I POB 
N:741960.95 
E:741n9.53I 

',f0:'79 

(1 -~L130 

Iffl 
g 

~j~ 
mr 

19~y~~~U,-HWESTCORNER 

BEARING 
S 40•57•55• E 
S 35•21•11• E 
S 24"57'58" E 
S 10•34•57• E 
S 00•44•04• E 
S 01•33•53• E 
S 08'27'00" W 
S 10•24•40• W 
N 74"47'05" W 
N 81'46'23" W 
N 78'18'59" W 
N 63'36'40" W 
N 68'08'53" W 
N 51"21'21" W 
N 55°09'33" W 
N 39'16'45" W 
N 18'10'54" W 
N 31"59'11"W 
N 45'08'29" W 
N 51"52'35" W 
N 62'47'02" W 
N 54"54'15"W 
N 55"04'14" W 
N 57"56'58" W 
N 44°02'05" W 
N 14•02•51• W 

AREA "I" 
16.62 Acres 

60.97' 
12.08' 
98.56' 

132.31' 
89.17' 

115.57' 
47.56' 

155.07' 
175.92' 
103.82' 
147.80' 
50.77' 
42.38' 
28.55' 
19.17' 

235.59' 
41.38' 
80.13' 

244.65' 
32.93' 
39.01' 
71.87' 
31.70' 
36.73' 
54.61' 

MOA PROJECT; RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA I 16027 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECICED DRAWN 

N:741090.52 
E:742983.61 

200 

SCALE OF FEET 

ABBREVIATIONS 
L1 = LINE DESIGNATION 
O.R. = OFFICIAL RECORDS 
PG. = PAGE 
POB = PONT-OF-BEGINNING 
POC = POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENT 
R/W : RIGHT-OF-WAY 

-

30 1 

I 
LINE 
L78 
L79 
L80 
L81 
L82 
L83 
L84 
L85 
L86 
L87 
L88 
L89 
L90 
L91 
L92 
L93 
L94 
L95 
L96 
L97 
L98 
L99 
L100 
L101 
L102 
L103 
L104 

OF SEC. 20, T.47 S, R. 26 E. 
- --N:736861.28 

E:741650.96 
29 

BEARING DISTANCE 
N 02•15•13• W 
N 87°43'47" E 
N 00"36'02" E 
N 04"38'22" E 
N e8•04•03• E 
S 87'50'06" E 
S 87'28'58" E 
S 89'15'09" E 
S 89'02'41" E 
S 80'32'28" E 
S 38'14'36" E 
S 27°46'56" E 
S 19'21'55" E 
S 29'54'08" E 
S 17"42'35" E 
S 04'11'08" E 
S 09"15'08" E 
S 16"18'24"W 
S 33'20'49" E 
S 81°17'42" E 
N 73' 53'37" E 
N 73'48'01" E 
N 67"57'28" E 
N 57'15'57" E 
S 62'49'15" E 
s31•49•01· e 
S 09•43•04• E 

MORRIS 

5090.57' 
330.49' 
139.23' 
82.92' 

157.12' 
87.62' 
67.89' 
48.37' 

116.95' 
49.30' 
34.92' 
33.82' 
25.64' 
49.50' 
47.25' 
42.14' 
91.49' 
55.83' 
63.40' 
38.92' 

109.75' 
138.12' 
71.89' 
72.57' 
28.21' 
54.25' 

165.45' 

·r:J 

LINE 
L105 
L106 
L107 
L108 
L109 
L110 
L111 
L112 
L113 
L114 
L115 
L116 
L117 
L118 
L119 
L120 
L121 
L122 
L123 
L124 
L125 
L126 
L127 
L128 
L129 
L130 

DEPE1 
l&NGNEERS • PlNl'ERS • SURVEVCIAS 

l.ANDSCAPE ~ 
A. CA NO. 8632 I A.CERT NO.~1 j lC2e000330

Fart..,_ T.- -
1114CIMllnd...... 111.._.....__..... - a...~ 
i'Oll..,....flOrNII IIICII t•,-, ....CZ3lt -..a ,,........,.,__ _, ...._....,,._~
._0:3111~ ,..._IINlf1.,,.t Tlll"--.aJ-1141 
JCIII.....GM:141 

PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 MAH BMH
SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE: 

11/25/19 
SHEET

BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC . 80F30 

https://E:741650.96
https://N:736861.28
https://E:742983.61
https://N:741090.52
https://E:741n9.53
https://N:741960.95


Page 90

RESOURCE PROTECTION ARE "K" 
(CONSERVATION EASEMENT #4 O.R 3914, PG. 3798) 

A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, SAID TRACT OR PARCEL BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, 
LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE N. 02"16'13" W. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DISTANCE OF 4404.79' 
FEET; THENCE N. 87°43'47" E. A DISTANCE OF 2033.44' FEET TO THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING OF HEREON DESCRIBED 
LAND; THENCE N. 04•22·02· E. A DISTANCE OF 42.69' FEET;THENCE N. 08°36'26" E. A DISTANCE OF 66.57' FEET; THENCE N. 
27°30'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 60.41' FEET;THENCE N. 44°33'42" E. A DISTANCE OF 75.43' FEET; THENCE N. 48°29'07" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 57.31' FEET; THENCE N. 37°47'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 62.43' FEET; THENCE N. 30°26'21" E. A DISTANCE OF 
79.73' FEET; THENCE N. 40°11'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 73.49' FEET; THENCE N. 36°20"11" E. A DISTANCE OF 68.08' FEET; 
THENCE N. 25°09'34" E. A DISTANCE OF 49.79' FEET; THENCE N. 12"58'50" E. A DISTANCE OF 76.61' FEET; THENCE N. 
19"55'42" E. A DISTANCE OF 61.64' FEET; THENCE N. 37"48'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 57.53' FEET; THENCE N. 65°33'06" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 115.70' FEET; THENCE N. 74°55'12" E. A DISTANCE OF 54.99' FEET; THENCE N. 79"13'24" E. A DISTANCE OF 
44.22' FEET; THENCE N. 71°04'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 42.41' FEET; THENCE N. 85°02'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 41.34' FEET; 
THENCE N. 89°06'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 76.94' FEET; THENCE S. 64°28'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 49.26' FEET; THENCE S. 
31°55'46" E. A DISTANCE OF 40.15' FEET; THENCE S. 17°09'07" E. A DISTANCE OF 55.33' FEET; THENCE S.13"08'58" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 45.81' FEET; THENCE S. 04"19'39" E. A DISTANCE OF 54.50' FEET; THENCE S. 13"57'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 
36.52' FEET; THENCE S. 11°57'47" E. A DISTANCE OF 46.55' FEET; THENCE S. 21°37'39" E. A DISTANCE OF 38.98' FEET; 
THENCE S. 26°07'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 34.73' FEET; THENCE S. 27°39'54" E. A DISTANCE OF 51.72' FEET; THENCE S. 
24°20'54" E. A DISTANCE OF 39.32' FEET; THENCE S. 11°36'05" E. A DISTANCE OF 46.01' FEET; THENCE S. 13"13'00" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 35.67' FEET; THENCE S. 22°01'09" W. A DISTANCE OF 86.09' FEET; THENCE S. 32°36'38" W. A DISTANCE OF 
56.86' FEET; THENCE S. 41°58'10" W. A DISTANCE OF 37.38' FEET; THENCE S. 29°18'10" W. A DISTANCE OF 53.11' FEET: 
THENCE S. 33"53'18" W. A DISTANCE OF 50.66' FEET; THENCE S. 59•44•54• W. A DISTANCE OF 68.68' FEET; THENCE S. 
79"53'28" W. A DISTANCE OF 57.32' FEET; THENCE N. 89"56'55" W. A DISTANCE OF 73.17' FEET; THENCE S. 82"07'32" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 62.62' FEET; THENCE N. 85"21'35" W. A DISTANCE OF 16.68' FEET; THENCE S. 65°17'27" W. A DISTANCE OF 
43.06' FEET; THENCE S. 45"42'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 54.88' FEET; THENCE S. 31°57'01" W. A DISTANCE OF 58.00' 
FEET;THENCE S. 32°51'08" W. A DISTANCE OF 57.01' FEET; THENCE S. 51°36'04" W. A DISTANCE OF 38.66' FEET; THENCE N. 
86"24'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 133.38' FEET; THENCE N. 71°01'37" W. A DISTANCE OF 103.43' FEET; THENCE N. 66°29'04" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 71.76' FEET; THENCE N. 41"18'22" W. A DISTANCE OF 70.37' FEET; THENCE N. 32"39'40" W. A DISTANCE OF 
44.85' FEET; THENCE N. 20"52'15" W. A DISTANCE OF 36.36' FEET; TO THE SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 13.59 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA K 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 
SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 

MDA PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKED! DRAWN 
MAH I BMH 

DATE: 
11/25/19 

SHEET 
9 OF30 



Page 91

ABBREVIATIONS 
L 1 =LINE DESIGNATION 
O.R. = OFFICIAL RECORDS 
PG. = PAGE 
PCB = PONT-OF-BEGINNING 
POC = POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENT 
RMI = RIGHT-OF-WAY 

0 200 

SCALE OF FEET L164 

AREA "K" 
13.59 Acres 

\ 
i ----------------v"------~'!..3±----

POB LI~i
1 N:741343.17 L184

( ~ E:743508.31 

~I.o 
<,) z ... m!:f~ 

19 20 

29 

LINE 
L131 
L132 
L133 
L134 
L135 
L136 
L137 
L138 
L139 
L140 
L141 
L142 
L143 
L144 

BEARING 
N 02"16'13"W 
N 87°43'47" E 
N 04"22'02" E 
N 08°36'26" E 
N 27"30'35" E 
N 44°33'42" E 
N 48"29'07" E 
N 37°47'09" E 
N 30"26'21" E 
N 40"11'01" E 
N 36"20'11" E 
N 25"09'34" E 
N 12°58'50" E 
N 19"55'42"E 

DISTANCE 
4404.79' 
2033.44' 

42.69' 
66.57' 
60.41' 
75.43' 
57.31' 
62.43' 
79.73' 
73,49' 
68.08' 
49.79' 
76.61' 
61.64' 

LINE 
L152 
L153 
L154 
L155 
L156 
L157 
L158 
L159 
L160 
L161 
L162 
L163 
L164 
L165 
L166 
L167 
L168 
L169 
L170 
L171 
L172 

BEARING 
S 64"28'36" E 
S 31"55'46" E 
S 17"09'07" E 
S 13"08'58" E 
S 04"19'39" E 
$ 13"57'29" E 
S 11°57'47" E 
S 21"37'39" E 
s 26°01•29• e 
S 27°39'54" E 
S 24°20'54" E 
S 11"36'05" E 
S 13"13'00" E 
S 22·01•09• W 
S 32"36'38" W 
S41"58'10"W 
S29"18'10"W 
S 33"53'18" W 
S 59•44•54• W 
S 79"53'28" W 
N 89°56'55" W 

DISTANCE 
49.26' 
40.15' 
55.33' 
45.81' 
54.50' 
36.52' 
46.55' 
38.98' 
34.73' 
51.72' 
39.32' 
46.01' 
35.67' 
86.09' 
56.86' 
37.38' 
53.11' 
50.66' 
68.68' 
57.32' 
73.17' 

LINE 
L173 
L174 
L175 
L176 
L177 
L178 
L179 
L180 
L181 
L182 
L183 
L184 
L185 

BEARING 
S 82"07'32" W 
N 85"21 '35" W 
S 65"1T27"W 
S 45•42•00· W 
S 31'5T01"W 
S 32"51'08" W 
S 51"36'04"W 
N 86"24'17"W 
N 71"01'37"W 
N 66"29'04" W 
N 41"18'22"W 
N 32"39'40" W 
N 20"52'15" W 

DISTANCE 
62.62' 
16.68' 
43,06' 
54.88' 
58.00' 
57.01' 
38.66' 

133.38' 
103.43' 

71.76' 
70.37' 
44.85' 
36.36' 

MDA PROJECT:RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS K 16027 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN

~•~•SURYEVORS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47LN<OSCAl'E AACfficCT'S MAH BMH 
F\.CAN0. 6532 {Fl.CERT NO. U!Ml1 l lC29000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE:l'cl<I...,_. T- -.,.~---- 111............ •....llulM,d 11/25/19

JCll'l....,.,lllwtill 3-)1 ••..., .... 
PSIIII-..., T.,__flllllll3DOI .._,_...,_,R.:lllm SHEET 
'-CDltR7.... TolltNl:IIIND-1MI t•t.:~I BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. TGI._NI-.Sl7-DII 10OF 30 



Page 92

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA "11" 
(CONSERVATION EASEMENT #5 O.R 3914, PG. 3798) 

A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
SAID TRACT OR PARCEL BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE N. 02"16'13" W. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DISTANCE OF 5314.40' FEET TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST; THENCE N. 04°37'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 
2007.98' FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 17 TO POINT-OF-BEGINNING OF HEREON DESCRIBED LAND; 
THENCE N. 04°37'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 482.18' FEET; THENCE N. 85°22'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 10.90' FEET; 
THENCE S. 88°54'12" E. A DISTANCE OF 117.28' FEET; THENCE S. 21°45'55" E. A DISTANCE OF 51 .64' FEET; 
THENCE S. 02°22'12" E. A DISTANCE OF 415.88' FEET;THENCE S. 82°50'45" W. A DISTANCE OF 126.54' FEET; 
TO THE SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 1.46 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

MORRIS/ r--, RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA 11 
/ ~ DE~E \M SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

~•PLANNERS • SURVEVORS PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17, TOWNSHIP 47 
~ARCffi<CTS 

Fl.C,. N0.11632 /FI. CERT NO. U1151111I lo..coeoocmo SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
Fort.,,_ T- -
211•Clwllllllid....... •a.wt.......ti~............ 
Fwt ...... lbtdll l3ID1 11111,,._ .... 
CZIIJ Slt41111 T.,_,A.-mt1 ...,_ laldl,R.laO 
Fa:CDlt-.... Tllll--~7'11 TOI-..NNP•Jlill BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC.lCllhe;__,•7141 

MDAPROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKEDI DRAWN 
MAH I BMH 

DATE: 
11/25/19 

SHEET 
11 OF 30 



Page 93

4
N 

wr 
0 200 

SCALE OF FEET 

ABBREVIATIONS 
L 1 .. LINE DESIGNATION 
0.R. = OFFICIAL RECORDS 
PG. .. PAGE 
POB = PONT-OF-BEGINNING 
POC = POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENT 
FWI :: RIGHT-OF-WAY 

\ N:744652.19 
1 E:741367.61L189 
1 

~~ 
~ 

RESOURCE PROTECTION ~1/ 
AREA"11" " w 
1.46 Acres ~ · 

'/4~ 
~ 

'/~ 
/~ 

POB 
N:744172.95 
E:741278.40 'i,..,~---

(f) ~ 

1
~§
oz c,zoZ 

\; 
►

~ 
m

i 
18 ~ 17 

19 20I 

I 
I C/l 

r-lg 
m 

.... z 
s: ,~ 

r
I 

\ 
19 I 20 

N:736861.28 
E:741650.96 
29 

POC ~ 
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER 

OF SEC. 20, T.47 S, R. 26 E. 

MDA PROJECT;RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA 11 16027 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN

PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 MAH BMH
SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE: 

11/25/19 
SHEETBONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 12 OF 30 

LINE 
L186 
L187 
L188 
L189 
L190 
L191 
L192 
L193 

BEARING 
N 02°16'13" W 
N 04 '37'43" W 
N 04°37'43" W 
N 85°22'17" E 
s aa•54•12· E 
S 21 °45'55" E 
S 02°22'12" E 
s a2·so•45• w 

DISTANCE 
5314.40' 
2007.98' 
482.18' 

10.90' 
117.28' 
51.64' 

415.88' 
126.54' 

ENGINEERS • PI..ANN£RS • SURVeVOAS 
lANDSCAPEloACMTECTS 

R.CAN0.8532/ FLCEJITNO.ll!INl91 / LC2900CXl30Fon..,_. T- _, 
211,a............. 111ilwllllnN.... • ..~,_...,..,,.._DOI 1•P1D .... 
CDIISIMllilCII f....... l'kllllM.3:Qtt ....._..,_,,.,_J:aS
Fw:CIJlt&l1.... Tdl h«Nl-ll7•1MI ~--~I 
Tllllhe:: IIMm'..J:Yt 

https://E:741278.40
https://N:744172.95
https://E:741367.61
https://N:744652.19


Page 94

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA •9.10• 

A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
SAID TRACT OR PARCEL BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE N. 02°16'13" W. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DISTANCE OF 5314.40' FEET TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST; THENCE N. 04•37•43• W. ALONG THE 
WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 17 A DISTANCE OF 2003.06' FEET; THENCE N. 85°22•17• E. A DISTANCE OF 298.27' FEET TO 
THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING OF HEREON DESCRIBED LAND; THENCE N. 09°58'33" W. A DISTANCE OF 221.54' FEET; THENCE 
N. 50°08'44. E. A DISTANCE OF 14.97' FEET; THENCE N. 01°11·21· w. A DISTANCE OF 54.04' FEET; THENCE N. 31°11•30• E. A 
DISTANCE OF 9.73' FEET; THENCE N. 61"52111• E. A DISTANCE OF 11.41' FEET; THENCE S. 82°53121• E. A DISTANCE OF 
43.90' FEET; THENCE S. 83°42'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 32.42' FEET; THENCE S. 73•34•37• E. A DISTANCE OF 46.44' FEET; 
THENCE S. 72°06'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 31.21' FEET; THENCE S. 72°26'32" E. A DISTANCE OF 27.95' FEET; THENCE S. 
35°19'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.16' FEET; THENCE S. 10°16'45" E. A DISTANCE OF 63.45' FEET; THENCE S. 07•33•43• E. A 
DISTANCE OF 57.21' FEET; THENCE s. 13°09'41" E. A DISTANCE OF 50.92' FEET; THENCE s. 08°40'50" E. A DISTANCE OF 
58.32' FEET; THENCE S. 01°38'40" W. A DISTANCE OF 34.44' FEET; THENCE S. 19°54'03" W. A DISTANCE OF 37.46' FEET; 
THENCE S. 01°47'51" E. A DISTANCE OF 35.45' FEET; THENCE S. 11•59•00• W. A DISTANCE OF 31.01' FEET; THENCE S. 
66"30'57" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.44' FEET; THENCE N. 71°14'16" W. A DISTANCE OF 37.57' FEET; THENCE N. 55•53•04• W. A 
DISTANCE OF 51.47' FEET; THENCE N. 64°33'35" W. A DISTANCE OF 27.79' FEET; THENCE N. 55°21'39" W. A DISTANCE OF 
24.95' FEET; THENCE N. 44°53'50" W. A DISTANCE OF 55.70' FEET; THENCE N. 26°40'11" W. A DISTANCE OF 34.39' FEET; TO 
THE SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 1.79 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

MORRIS,/17 M0A PROJECT:RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA 6 
16027 

.,.DEPEvJ SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 
CHECKED! DRAWNPARCELS OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17, TOWNSHIP 47ENOf,&RS -~-~ 

WOICAl'EMCl«TEClS MAH I BMH 
A.CAH0.111!32 /R.a;RTN0.1.81881 / ~ SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

DATE: 
For111y9n T-- -.,,~.-.... ,,s.......,..... -~~ 11/25/19
,.......,flwtda t:SII01 ··"""' ....CDlt &T7411D r.._,,llbtda MIOI ...... IIIMfl.P\.:alO SHEET 
fa: ..-..-. Tlllt.......,a,&I loltw;~.JMI
Tolhc..,_.nt1 BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 13 OF 30 



--- - ---

-- Page 95

ABBREVIATIONS 
L1 
O.R. 
PG. 
POB 
POC 
R/W 

=LINE DESIGNATION 
=OFFICIAL RECORDS 
= PAGE 
" PONT-OF-BEGINNING 
=POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENT 
= RIGHT-OF-WAY 

L706 
L70 r /707 L708 

L704 
-7L ~~ 

L702~ 
, 

' -
POB ~I N7441:N IJ:~0:/4"E:741576.09 l ~ ...._ 

t---1--
L700 

~L726 
{ L72 

L72 
L72f 

722L721
:> 

I; 
l8 

1718 ~ 
19 20 

I 

Cl) 

g m 

I~ 

m C 
m z 

:> 

I 

19\ 

POC/ 1 

THE SOUTHWEST CORNERI 
OF SEC. 20, T.47 S , R. 26 E. 

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS "9-10" 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 
SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 

4
N 

wr 
0 200 

SCALE OF FEET 

20 

N:!_36~ 
E:741650.96 

29 

L709 
L710 

- L711 
:744430.22

E:741752.10 
~~ _-L712 

~•n 
L713 

.::5 " ....oCJP.it/ L714 

{t]ti_ .f ' 

MDA PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKED! DRAWN 
MAH BMH 

DATE: 
11/25/19 

SHEET 
14 OF 30 

L715 

VL716 

i,,-L717
y-L718 N,; 
y-t-719 E. 

'-l.720
LINE 
L698 

L699 
L700 
L701 

L702 
L703 
L704 

L705 
L706 
L707 
L708 
L709 
L710 

L711 
L712 
L713 
L714 
L715 
L716 
L717 
L718 
L719 
L720 
L721 

L722 
L723 
L724 
L725 
L726 

BEARING 
N 02°18'13" W 
N 04°37'43" W 
N 85°22'17" E 
N 09°58'33" W 
N 5o•oe•44• e 

N 01°11'21"W 
N 31°11'30" E 

N 61"52'11" E 
S 82°53'21" E 
S 83°42'02" E 
S 73°34'37" E 
s 12°oa·22· E 
S 72"26'32" E 
S 35°19'17° E 
S 10°16'45" E 
S 07•33•43• E 

S 13°09'41" E 
S 08"40'50" E 
S 01°38'40" W 
S 19°54'03" W 
S 01"47'51" E 
S 11•59•00· W 

S 66°30'57" W 
N 11•14•1s·w 

N 65°53'04" W 
N 64°33'35" W 
N 55°21'39"W 
N 44"53'50" W 
N 26°40'11" W 

lMORRISL ~ 
MN-y4&~ 
ENOINEEIIS • ~ • ~ 

L.ANJSC,J>E~ 

FLCANO.e632/R.CEJITNO.Ulll8!lt/L.019DDIXl30_..,_ 
T.U.-_.,,_ ---.14Clllll'llnl--- ,n....,_..._.._ 

PG't~Plllkll a.wen ,......,.......,, -................
l'-=CZlll:lff-llM ··-Tal"--.u?-1Mt T•"-~1 
TC-.11..c~t 

DISTANCE 
5314.40' 
2003.06' 
298.27' 
221.54' 

14.97' 
54.04' 

9.73' 

11.41' 
43.90' 
32.42' 

46.44' 
31.21' 
27.95' 

21.16' 
63.45' 
57.21' 
50.92' 
58.32' 
34.44' 
37.46' 
35.45' 
31.01' 
14.44' 
37.57' 

51.47' 
27.79' 
24.95' 
55.70' 
34.39' 

https://E:741752.10
https://744430.22
https://E:741650.96
https://E:741576.09


Page 96

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA "E1" 
(CONSERVATION EASEMENT #8 O.R 3914, PG. 3798) 

A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
SAID TRACT OR PARCEL BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE N. 02°16'13" W. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DISTANCE OF 5314.40' FEET TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST; THENCE N. 04°37'43" W. ALONG THE 
WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 17 A DISTANCE OF 1828.50' FEET; THENCE N. 85"22'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 761.86' FEET TO 
THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING OF HEREON DESCRIBED LAND; THENCE N. 20°28'59" E. A DISTANCE OF 69.81' FEET; THENCE 
N. 41°23'28" E. A DISTANCE OF 66.92' FEET; THENCE N. 50°42'46" E. A DISTANCE OF 76.86' FEET; THENCE N. 54°14'37" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 67.66' FEET; THENCE N. 76°53'27" E. A DISTANCE OF 60.07' FEET; THENCE S. 80"13'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 
64.11' FEET; THENCE S. 73°38'46" E. A DISTANCE OF 77.12' FEET; THENCE S. 71°02'15" E. A DISTANCE OF 66.80' FEET; 
THENCE S. 82°59'55" E. A DISTANCE OF 74.57' FEET; THENCE S. 87°24'10" E. A DISTANCE OF 81.33' FEET; THENCE N. 
84"21'00" E. A DISTANCE OF 145.16' FEET; THENCE N. 81°13'18" E. A DISTANCE OF 82.22' FEET; THENCE S. 89"56'42" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 81.25' FEET; THENCE S. 87°09'18" E. A DISTANCE OF 74.11' FEET; THENCE S. 85°03'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 
126.84' FEET; THENCE S. 70°34'40" E. A DISTANCE OF 103.34' FEET; THENCE S. 31°58'31" E. A DISTANCE OF 85.10' FEET; 
THENCE S. 04°08'44" E. A DISTANCE OF 191.36' FEET; THENCE S. 03"09'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 79.59' FEET; THENCE S. 
09°47'46" W. A DISTANCE OF 78.15' FEET; THENCE S. 10"12'20" W. A DISTANCE OF 89.41' FEET; THENCE S. 23"17'35" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 53.11' FEET; THENCE S. 62"15'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 77.50' FEET; THENCE S. 87"13'39" W. A DISTANCE OF 
62.99' FEET; THENCE N. 69"25'44" W. A DISTANCE OF 74.12' FEET; THENCE N. 51°15'19" W. A DISTANCE OF 37.47' FEET; 
THENCE N. 60°27'09" W. A DISTANCE OF 36.29' FEET; THENCE N. 59°34'42" W. A DISTANCE OF 81.41 ' FEET; THENCE N. 
49°36'28" W. A DISTANCE OF 39.99' FEET; THENCE N. 64°56'58" W. A DISTANCE OF 50.45' FEET; THENCE N. 85"33'02" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 59.61' FEET; THENCE N. 77°13'57" W. A DISTANCE OF 48.43' FEET; THENCE N. 55"33'09" W. A DISTANCE OF 
99.73' FEET; THENCE N. 48"05'41" W. A DISTANCE OF 59.33' FEET; THENCE N. 61°15'45" W. A DISTANCE OF 72.96' FEET; 
THENCE N. 75"23'03" W. A DISTANCE OF 78.73' FEET; THENCE N. 88"43'38" W. A DISTANCE OF 71.65' FEET; THENCE S. 
64"31'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 38.85' FEET; THENCE S. 72"32'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 30.36' FEET; THENCE S. 72"19'35" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 40.00' FEET; THENCE S. 74"48'50" W. A DISTANCE OF 52.13' FEET; THENCE N. 83"06'32" W. A DISTANCE OF 
76.75' FEET; THENCE N. 59°00'21" W. A DISTANCE OF 71.08' FEET; THENCE N. 3a•37•55• W. A DISTANCE OF 87.78' FEET; 
THENCE N. 06"24'36" W. A DISTANCE OF 81.25' FEET; TO THE SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 12.49 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA E1 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

~ •PL.Nt.NER!l• SIJR'VEV°'5 PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 
vnlSCN'EAAC>rlECTS 

R.CA N0.6532/A.CERTN0.~1/~ SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
Fo,IIIJen f- -at•~ ,_,,.,. its..._....._._. _.._....., ,......,.....,.. ..,... '•"- .... 
(Z31tSSNIIS ,.......,,. ........l -----.f'\~ 
F1111.CAlll:s17.... hl"-~t Tolla:~t BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC.Tel'-...,_,•"'41 

MOA PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKED! DRAWN 
MAH I BMH 

DATE: 
11/25/19 

SHEET 
150F 30 



PO 

L197 RESOURCE PROTECTION 
EASEMENT ",E1" 

12.49 Acres 

LINE BEARING DISTANCE18 17 
L195 N 02"16'13' W 5314.40' 
L196 N 04"37'43' W 1828.50' 
L197 N 85"22'17' E 761.86' 

19 20 L198 N 20'28'59' E 69.81' 
L199 N 41°23'28' E 66.92' 
L200 N 50°42'46' E 76.86' 
L201 N 54'14'37' E 67.66' LINE BEARING DISTANCE 

L202 N 76'53'27" E 60.07' L235 S 64°31'00" W 38.85' 

L203 S 80'13'36' E 64.11' L236 S 72'32'43' W 30.36'ffi w 
L204 S 73"38'46' E 77.12' L237 S 72°19'35" W 40.00' i :(l 

o· L205 S 71 "02'15" E 66.80' L238 S 74°48'50" W 52.13' 
0 a::_ 
I- 1/) L206 S 82'59'55' E 74.57' L239 N 83"06'32" W 76.75' 
1/) r- L207 S 87' 24'10' E 81.33' L240 N 59°00'21" W 71.08'
W "t 

L208 N 84'21'00' E 145.16' L241 N 38°37'55" W 87.78' ~ i-:. 
I- 0 L209 N 81"13'18' E 82.22' L242 N 06'24'36" W 81.25' 
::> ~ 

L210 S 89'56'42" E 81.25'I (.) g lrl 
L211 S 87°09'18' E 74.11'I O ~~ L212 S 85'03'02' E 126.84' 
L213 S 70' 34'40" E 103.34'I ,.,,.. '1-0 
L214 S 31"58'31" E 85.10' 
L215 S 04"08'44" E 191.36'_...,/4.--=_688 N__fil 

E:741650.96 L216 S 03°09'43' W 79.59' •
L217 S 09°47'46" W 78.15'30 29 
L218 s 10·12·2o·w 89.41' 
L219 S 23°17'35" W 53.11' wr 
L220 S 62°15'43" W 77.50' 
L221 S 87"13'39" W 62.99' 
L222 N 69"25'44" W 74.12' 
L223 N 51'15'19" W 37.47' 0 200 
L224 N 60'27'09' W 36.29' 
L225 N 59'34'42" W 81.41' SCALE OF FEET 
L226 N 49"36'28" W 39.99' 
L227 N 64"56'58' W 50.45' 
L228 N 85°33'02" W 59.61' ABBREVIATIONS 
L229 N 77°13'57" W 48.43' L1 =LINE DESIGNATION 
L230 N 55'33'09' W 99.73' O.R. =OFFICIAL RECORDS 
L231 N 48°05'41" W 59.33' PG. = PAGE 

L232 N 61"15'45' W 72.96' POB = PONT-OF-BEGINNING 
POC = POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENTL233 N 75"23'03" W 78.73' 
R1W = RIGHT-OF-WAYL234 N 88°43'38' W 71 .65' 

MDA PROJECT; RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA E 1 16027 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED OAAWN 

EHOINEeRS • Pl..ANERS • SlMvEYORS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47LNIJSCAPENICHITECTS MAH BMH 
Fl.CANO. 0032 /R. CERT NO. L.eea81 / L.Cffll00330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE: 

Fortllyon T•"- -..,.Cliwlllnd~ 111'4Ntl......... • a...aa....1 11/25/19
Fot..,...FIMitl aw:n ,.,._ .... 
PMt•~ ....,___,..... RI01 - INc:f\. 111.a:allO SHEET 
Fa:Cl,'lllffl..111M, TGl"-IIN:l7-1Mt Tlllll'N( IIN.17-1341 BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC.TOl._...,-n,,, 16 OF 30 Page 97

https://E:741650.96


Page 98

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA E2 
(CONSERVATION EASEMENT #9 O.R 3914, PG. 3798) 

A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA, SAID 
TRACT OR PARCEL BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE N. 02°16'13" W. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DISTANCE OF 5314.40' FEET TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST; THENCE N. 04°37'43" W. ALONG THE WEST 
LINE OF SAID SECTION 17, A DISTANCE OF 1072.67' FEET; THENCE N. 85°22'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 2191.50' FEET TO THE 
POINT-OF-BEGINNING OF HEREON DESCRIBED LAND; THENCE N. 55°43'21" E. A DISTANCE OF 30.66' FEET; THENCE N. 
61°53'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 26.07' FEET; THENCE N. 75"08'46" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.34' FEET; THENCE N. 79°23'36" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 22.32' FEET; THENCE N. 60°56'59" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.29' FEET; THENCE N. 74°18'25" E. A DISTANCE OF 13.25' 
FEET; THENCE N. 88°48'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.58' FEET;THENCE N. 87"10'25" E. A DISTANCE OF 16.15' FEET; THENCE S. 
89°43'05" E. A DISTANCE OF 14.16' FEET; THENCE S. 84°43'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 10.89' FEET; THENCE S. 79"59'56" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 12.32' FEET; THENCE s. 86°58'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 43.25' FEET; THENCE s. 87°08'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 40.25' 
FEET;THENCE S. 76°20'10" E. A DISTANCE OF 55.40' FEET; THENCE S. 81"16'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 64.59' FEET; 
THENCE S. 86°00'14" E. A DISTANCE OF 51.56' FEET; THENCE N. 76°29'50" E. A DISTANCE OF 79.36' FEET; 
THENCE N. 66°15'34" E. A DISTANCE OF 52.47' FEET; THENCE N. 69°50'28" E. A DISTANCE OF 95.61' FEET; 
THENCE N. 69°08'52" E. A DISTANCE OF 10.30' FEET; THENCE N. 86°14'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 8.95' FEET; THENCE 
S. 80°33'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 14.27' FEET; THENCE S. 82°33'31" E. A DISTANCE OF 10.96' FEET; THENCE S. 78"19'39" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 10.47' FEET; THENCE S. 64°45'33" E. A DISTANCE OF 12.53' FEET; THENCE S. 59"04'12" E. A DISTANCE OF 17.92' 
FEET; THENCE S. 66°38'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 22.22' FEET; THENCE S. 71°28'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.42' FEET; THENCE S. 
71"39'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 20.48' FEET; THENCE S. 66°55'43" E. A DISTANCE OF 12.48' FEET; THENCE S. 65°33'14" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 18.29' FEET; THENCE S. 68°29'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 16.10' FEET; THENCE S. 74°34'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 23.77' 
FEET; THENCE S. 74°55'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 17.15' FEET; THENCE S. 73°27'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 16.09' FEET; 
THENCE S. 69"52'05" E. A DISTANCE OF 16.61' FEET; THENCE S. 68°50'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 15.37' FEET;THENCE S. 76"56'11" 
E. A DISTANCE OF 17.60' FEET; THENCE S. 69"11'18" E. A DISTANCE OF 14.54' FEET;THENCE S. 61"01'10" E. A DISTANCE OF 
12.64' FEET; THENCE S. 44°18'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 10.04' FEET;THENCE S. 20°13'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 17.33' FEET; 
THENCE S. 11°24'40" E. A DISTANCE OF 16.18' FEET;THENCE S. 05°33'13" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.68' FEET; THENCE 
S. 08°50'08" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.74' FEET;THENCE S. 22°08'29" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.88' FEET; THENCE S. 14°06'59" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 18.95' FEET;THENCE S. 17°54'35" W. A DISTANCE OF 17.11' FEET;THENCE S. 16°32'29" W. A DISTANCE OF 15.97' 
FEET;THENCE S. 06°09'11" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.90' FEET; THENCE S. 15°09'41" W. A DISTANCE OF 25.41' FEET;THENCE 
S. 28°01'35" W. A DISTANCE OF 30.15' FEET; THENCE S. 33°42'25" W. A DISTANCE OF 17.39' FEET;THENCE S. 36°48'57" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 12.65' FEET; THENCE S. 39°41'04" W. A DISTANCE OF 10.87' FEET;THENCE S. 47°36'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 8.10' 
FEET; THENCE S. 53°28'07" W. A DISTANCE OF 9.54' FEET;THENCE S. 55°33'11" W. A DISTANCE OF 12.38' FEET; THENCE 
S. 54°18'09" W. A DISTANCE OF 18.20' FEET; THENCE S. 56"23'27" W. A DISTANCE OF 11.07' FEET; THENCE S. 63"29'27" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 12.98' FEET; THENCE S. 73°33'18" W. A DISTANCE OF 6.83' FEET; THENCE S. 87°26'42" W. A DISTANCE OF 11.31' 
FEET; THENCE N. 81"17'45" W. A DISTANCE OF 12.12' FEET; THENCE N. 77"14'14" W. A DISTANCE OF 12.35' FEET; 
THENCE N. 74"32'08" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.35' FEET; THENCE N. 72°49'58" W. A DISTANCE OF 11.50' FEET; THENCE 
N. 76"56'33" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.52' FEET; THENCE N. 87°12'49" W. A DISTANCE OF 16.18' FEET; THENCE S. 70°32'23" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 81.75' FEET; THENCE S. 62°23'49" W. A DISTANCE OF 61.07' FEET; THENCE S. 44°43'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 
71.91' FEET; THENCE S. 44°53'13" W. A DISTANCE OF 8.58' FEET; THENCE S. 51"19'10" W. A DISTANCE OF 10.32' FEET; 
THENCE S. 52°06'25" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.59' FEET; THENCE S. 50"11 '16" W. A DISTANCE OF 11.48' FEET; THENCE 
S. 55"54'48" W. A DISTANCE OF 9.09' FEET; THENCE S. 71°23'24" W. A DISTANCE OF 13.46' FEET; THENCE S. 80°48'15" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 14.75' FEET; THENCE S. 76"32'35" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.18' FEET; THENCE S. 68°23'08" W. A DISTANCE OF 
17.45' FEET; THENCE S. 61°26'15" W. A DISTANCE OF 9.90' FEET; THENCE S. 72°33'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 31.06' FEET; 
THENCE S. 71"19'10" W. A DISTANCE OF 82.09' FEET; THENCE N. 78"20'15" W. A DISTANCE OF 60.76' FEET; THENCE 
N. 55"06'38" W. A DISTANCE OF 95.65' FEET; THENCE N. 49"23'01" W. A DISTANCE OF 122.47' FEET; THENCE N. 40°39'28" W . A 
DISTANCE OF 114.06' FEET; THENCE N. 15°04'58" W. A DISTANCE OF 243.93' FEET; TO THE SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 8.51 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

MORRIS./lr-7 RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA E2 
,,,DEPE..,J SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47-~ SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
ENQINEEAS .~.6UAVEVOAS 

Fl.CAN0. 8(132/Fl.CERTNO.Leee91 / LC2e00033() 

...., .._ Tllll&II- -

.,.~..... .,................ 4'1C3lwlt.,...,_,_..._PllllldlJOm'I ,.,._ ._._ 
CZllf.a,..., r--.flbllil..01 ...._....,._R._, 
Factn(lt:l:S1..-. Ttl...~I T419hc~t BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC.Tallnlc11NSN:M1 

MDA PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKED! DRAWN 
MAHI BMH 

DATE: 
11/25/19 

SHEET 
17 OF 30 



Page 99

L252 
L25 

L25 
L2 L24

46 
I 

---+-..Yj~;~;J 
I N:743417.54 

OURCE PROTE 
AREA "E2" 
8.51 Acres 

18 ~ 17 

118 
. . 

20 
21 
22 

LINE BEARING DISTANCE LINE BEARING DISTANCE 
L243 N 02'16'13' W 5314.40' L289 S 05•33•13• E 21.68' 
L244 N04'3T43' W 1072,8T L290 s08•saoa-w 14.74' 

22'1r E 
L246 N 55•43•21• E 30.68' 
L245 N as· 2191.50' L291 S 22'08'29" W 14.88' 

L292 S 14•08'59"W 18.95' 
L247 N &1•53'311" E 26.07 l293 S 17•54'35"W 17.1 1' 
L248 N 75'08'46" E 19.34' L294 S 1 &·32'29" W 15.9T 
L249 N 79' 23'38" E 22.32' L295 s oe•09'11·w 14.90' 
L250 N 60'56'59" E 21.29' 

I 
L296 S 15•09'41"W 25..41' 

I L251 N 74' 18'25" E 13.25' L297 s 2a·o1•35• w 30.15' 
L252 N 88'48'49" E 21.58' L298 S 33•4725•W 17.39' 
L253 N 87'10'25" E 16.15' l299 s 3&•4a•srw 12.65' 
L254 S 89"43'05" E 14.16' s 39•41•04•wl300 10.87 
L255 S &4•43'09" E 10,89' l301 S 47"38'00" W 8.10' 

1 L256 12.32' l302 S53"28'07'W 9.54' 
POC 

S 79"59'58"E
19__,__ 2 _0/ THE SOUTHWEST CORNER L257 S 88°58'11" E 43.25' l303 S 55•33•11 • W 12.38' 

/ _ ~ SEC. 20, T.47 S, R. 26 E. L258 sa1·oa·1re 40.25' l304 S 54"18'09" W 18.20' 
L259 S 76.20'10' E 55.40' l305 S56"23'2rW 11.07N:736861.28 L260 S 81.16'01" E 64.59' L306 S63"29'2rW 12.98' 

30 29 E:741650.96 l.261 S 86•00'14" E 51.56' L307 S 73"33'18" W 8.83' 
1.262 N 76"29'50' E 79.36' l308 S 87"26'42" W 11.31' 
l.263 N 66"15'34" E 52,47 l309 N81"1745"W 12.12' 
l.264 N89"50'28"E 95.81' l310 N 77"14'14"W 12.35' 
1.265 N 89"08'52" E 10.30' l311 N 74'32'08" W 14.35' 
L266 N 86'14'09" E 8.95' l312 N 72'49'58" W 11.50' 
l.267 S 80"33'08" E 14.2T l313 N 76"56'33" W 14.52' 
L268 S 82' 33'31" E 10.96' L314 N 87"12'49" W 16.18' 
l.269 S 78"19'39" E 10.4T L315 S 70'32'23" W 81.75' 
L270 S 64•45•33• E 12.53' $62"23'40-WL316 61.07 
L271 S 59"04'12" E 17.92' L3l7 S 44"43'05"W 71.91' 
L272 S 88"38'02" E 22.22' L318 S 44'53'13"W 8.56' 
L273 S 71"28'38" E 21.42' L319 S 51°19'10-W 10.32' 
l274 S 71'39'0I" E 20.48' L320 S 52°08'25" W 14.59'

0 200 L275 S 88'55'43" E 12.48' L321 S 50"11'16'W 11.48' 
L278 S 85' 33'14' E 18.29' l322 S 55•54•49• W 9.09' 
L277 S 88"29'1rE 16.10' l323 S 71"23'24" W 13.46'SCALE OF FEET L278 S 74"34'35" E 23.77 l324 S 80'48'15" W 14.75' 
L279 S 74"55'02" E 17.15' l325 S 78'32'35" W 14.18' 
L280 S 73"2T53"E 16.09' l328 S 68'23'08" W 17.45' 

ABBREVIATIONS L281 S 89'52'05" E 16.61' l327 S 61'26'15" W 9.90' 
L 1 = LINE DESIGNATION L282 s 88"50'08" E 1s.Jr l328 S 72•33•43• W 3 U )6' 

O.R. =OFFICIAL RECORDS L283 s 78"58'11' E 17.80' l329 S 71•19'10' W 82.09' 
L264 s 89"11'18" E 14.54' l330 N 78"20'15" W 80.76'PG. = PAGE L2ll5 S 61 "01'10- E 12.64' l331 N 55' 06'38" W 95.65'POB = PONT-OF-BEGINNING L286 S 44' 18'17' E 10.04' L332 N49' 23'01" W 122.4r

POC = POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENT l2117 S 20' 13'38" E 17.33' L333 N 40'39'28" W 114.06' 
R/W = RIGHT-OF-WAY L288 S 11' 24'40" E 16.18' L334 N 15'04'58" W 243.93' 

MDA PROJECT;RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA E2 16027 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECl<ED DRAWN 

ENOINEERS • F\.AH'ol:.RS • SI.FlVEVORS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47I.NID6CAPE ARCHITECTS MAH BMH 
FLCAN0.8532/R.CEATNO.L.81!81ll l LC2e000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE:Fart..,_. -T.....,_

211, a.i.11111111...... 1,, ...11c:nw.... • ......... 11/25/19 
,..,..,.,........ aaot t•Allro' ...... 
ca,it_...., T........._,....___,, ~..._,ft._ SHEET 
Pa:C231tst1.-. Tolt-=--.'1341 Tol... 119G7•7MI 
Tcill .....•~I BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 18 OF 30 

https://F\.AH'ol:.RS
https://E:741650.96
https://N:736861.28
https://N:743417.54


Page 100

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA "E3" 
(CONSERVATION EASEMENT #10 O.R 3914, PG. 3798) 

A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
SAID TRACT OR PARCEL BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE N. 02°16'13" W. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DISTANCE OF 5314.40' FEET TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST; THENCE N. 04°37'43" W. ALONG THE 
WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 17, A DISTANCE OF 362.25' FEET; THENCE N. 85°22'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 3213.20' FEET TO 
THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING OF HEREON DESCRIBED LAND; THENCE N. 19°05'24" E. A DISTANCE OF 16.07' FEET; THENCE 
N. 36°23'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.33' FEET; THENCE N. 06°47'57" W. A DISTANCE OF 33.00' FEET; THENCE N. 62°35'24" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 23.79' FEET; THENCE N. 20°17'27" E. A DISTANCE OF 13.95' FEET; THENCE N. 26"48'52" E. A DISTANCE OF 
37.93' FEET; THENCE N. 50°38'48" E. A DISTANCE OF 35.17' FEET; THENCE N. 53°14'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 13.24' FEET; 
THENCE s. 78°24'03" E. A DISTANCE OF 15.89' FEET; THENCE N. 78°14'50" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.37' FEET; THENCE N. 
51°24'43" E. A DISTANCE OF 7.00' FEET; THENCE N. 22"10'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 25.51' FEET; THENCE N. 57"29'12" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 30.70' FEET; THENCE N. 18"24'44" E. A DISTANCE OF 15.89' FEET; THENCE N. 33°59'31" E. A DISTANCE OF 
21.08' FEET; THENCE S. 87"49'41" E. A DISTANCE OF 28.30' FEET; THENCE S. 74°04'26" E. A DISTANCE OF 33.30' FEET; 
THENCE S. 53"05'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 116.76' FEET; THENCE S. 77°34'58" E. A DISTANCE OF 45.16' FEET; THENCE S. 
00°38'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 103.97' FEET; THENCE S. 03°41'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 76.45' FEET; THENCE S. 33°41'02" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 29.85' FEET; THENCE S. 18°24'59" W. A DISTANCE OF 32.68' FEET; THENCE S. 30°43'01" W. A DISTANCE OF 
30.63' FEET; THENCE N. 47°08'41" W. A DISTANCE OF 16.60' FEET; THENCE S. 79°50'03" W. A DISTANCE OF 25.25' FEET; 
THENCE S. 59"51'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 33.48' FEET; THENCE S. 79°54'06" W. A DISTANCE OF 35.35' FEET; THENCE S. 
81°55'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 27.48' FEET; THENCE N . 65°37'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 39.19' FEET; THENCE N. 56°30'44" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 28.90' FEET; THENCE N. 48°49'20" W. A DISTANCE OF 24.91' FEET; THENCE N. 49°57'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 
24.77' FEET; THENCE N. 31"34'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 30.68' FEET; THENCE N. 16°51'59" W. A DISTANCE OF 27.97' FEET; 
THENCE N. 33°33'23" W. A DISTANCE OF 17.24' FEET; THENCE N. 57"13'39" W. A DISTANCE OF 10.89' FEET; THENCE N. 
79"18'51" W. A DISTANCE OF 27.29' FEET;TO THE SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 1.96 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

MDA PROJECT:IMO~RIS/fi:J RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA E3 
16027 . . /iDEPE SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

CHECKEOI DRAWN 
~ •PL.ANiERS. SUfMYOA$ PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 

WClSCAPE ARCHlEClS MAH I BMH 
Fl.CAI'«>. 1!63:! / Fl.CEIITNO. ~ I /lC2e000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

OATE: 
Footllywl T- -.,,~...,_,. , ................. .tllOlll'III.,.... 11/25/19,_..,...,.... ,.., ,..,_ .... 
13311 .m.aa, , ..............., ......,..__,R.__ SHEET 
Fa:(:DII,~ te1...ea.a,.nt1 Tdllta:--•Dtt 
TGl.,_-.,SM:t4t BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 19 OF 30 



- -- -

Page 101

L307 

L356 
N:742931.65 
E:744947.87 

RESOURCE PROTECTION 
AREAE3 

1.96 Acres 

0 200 

SCALE OF FEET 

' 

LINE BEARING DISTANCE 
L335 N 02•1s•13•w 5314.40' 
L336 N 04•37•43• W 362.25' 
L337 N 35•22·1 r E 3213.20' 
L338 N 19°05'24" E 16.07' 
L339 N 36°23'29" E 19.33' 
L340 N os•4r5rw 33.00' 
L341 N 62"35'24" E 23.79' 
L342 N 20°17'27" E 13.95' 
L343 N 26°48'52" E 37.93' 
L344 N 50"38'48" E 35.17' 
L345 N 53"14'11" E 13.24' 
L346 S 78°24'03" E 15.89' 
L347 N 78"14'50" E 21.37' 
L348 N 51 •24•43• E 7.00' 
L349 N 22"10'49" E 25.51' 
L350 N 57"29'12" W 30.70' 
L351 N 18°24'44" E 15.89' 
L352 N 33•59•31• E 21.08' 
L353 S 87"49'41" E 28.30'

I L354 S 74°04'26" E 33.30' 
L355 S 53"05'01" E 116.76' 

19 

POC 
1 L356 S 77°34'58" E 45.16'

19 20/ THE SOUTHWEST CORNER L357 S 00"38'43" W 103.97'
_...-./__ __Q_F SEC. 20, T.47 S, R. 26 E. L358 S 03°41'35" E 76.45' 

N:736861.28 L359 s 33•41•02·w 29.85' 
30 29 E:741650.96 L360 S 18"24'59"W 32.68' 

L361 S 30°43'01" W 30.63' 
L362 N 47•09•41• W 16.60' 
L363 $ 79•50•03• W 25.25' 
L364 S 59"51'05" W 33.48' 
L365 S 79"54'06" W 35.35' 
L366 S 81°55'17" W 27.48' 

ABBREVIATIONS L367 N 65°37'00" W 39.19' 
L1 =LINE DESIGNATION L368 N 56°30'44" W 28.90' 
O.R. = OFFICIAL RECORDS L369 N 48°49'20" W 24.91' 
PG. : PAGE L370 N 49"57'02" W 24.77' 
POB : PONT-OF-BEGINNING L371 N 31°34'02" W 30.68' 
POC = POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENT L372 N 16"51'59" W 27.97' 
R/W : RIGHT-OF-WAY L373 N 33•33•23• W 17.24' 

L374 N 57"13'39"W 10.89' 
L375 N 79"18'51"W 27.29' 

MOA PROJECT! ~MORRIS/ r:J RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA E3 16027 
~ PE SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN 
IEHOIIEERS•Pl..»-tERS•6lAVEVCAS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 
~ ARCtfn!CTS MAH BMH 

Fl. CA "10. 11632 /R. CERT NO. UIM91 /LC28000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE: 
Fortlllyon T.U.h- DN1M 
1114a..i.llnd.-.... 1\IIOllel........... •a........... 11/25/19 
,.,...,..,...,.,.,. 1•111Dar ..... 
CZ31fSl1...., T~lblla.lDH ...,..,~'l.lllllO SHEET 
.,_QOIIIID?..-.. T_.t-=....,_,,,.t Tella:-GIM~I, .. ._...,-1341 BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC . 20OF 30 

https://E:741650.96
https://N:736861.28
https://E:744947.87
https://N:742931.65


Page 102

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA "D" 
(CONSERVATION EASEMENT #11 O.R 3914, PG. 3798) 

A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
SAID TRACT OR PARCEL BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE N. 02"16'13" W. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION20, A DISTANCE OF 5314.40' FEET TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST; THENCE N. 04°37'43" W. ALONG THE 
WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 17, A DISTANCE OF 3095.19' FEET; THENCE N. 85°22'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 1935.36' FEET 
THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING OF HEREON DESCRIBED LAND; THENCE N. 22°46'07" E. A DISTANCE OF 45.15' FEET; THENCE 
N. 09°45'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 41.14' FEET; THENCE N. 24°13'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 31.44' FEET; THENCE N.10°30'09" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 38.22' FEET; THENCE N. 03°07'39" W. A DISTANCE OF 35.66' FEET; THENCE N. 03°38'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 
47.57' FEET; THENCE N. 22°14'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 28.84' FEET; THENCE N. 12°13'18" W. A DISTANCE OF 23.28' FEET; 
THENCE N. 02"43'05" W, A DISTANCE OF 75.14' FEET; THENCE N. 22"51'56" W. A DISTANCE OF 46.31' FEET; THENCE N. 
24°08'54" W. A DISTANCE OF 34.80' FEET; THENCE N. 01°06'23" E. A DISTANCE OF 39.66' FEET; THENCE N. 00°48'30" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 41.59' FEET; THENCE N. 39°08'34" E. A DISTANCE OF 79.38' FEET; THENCE N, 70"29'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 
86.05' FEET; THENCE S. 57°25'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 79.82' FEET; THENCE S. 57°00'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 45.75' FEET; 
THENCE S. 29°26'39" E. A DISTANCE OF 51.74' FEET; THENCE S.17°24'52" E. A DISTANCE OF 62.14' FEET; THENCE S. 
16°33'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 29.60' FEET; THENCE S. 12°39'44" W. A DISTANCE OF 51.63' FEET; THENCE S. 58°35'52" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 42.96' FEET; THENCE S. 84°28'49" W. A DISTANCE OF 22.58' FEET; THENCE S. 10°24'57" E. A DISTANCE OF 
80.62' FEET; THENCE S. 27°19'06" E. A DISTANCE OF 32.30' FEET; THENCE S. 06°17'27" E. A DISTANCE OF 26.87' FEET; 
THENCE S.10°57'32" E. A DISTANCE OF 36.27' FEET; THENCE S. 29°26'42" E. A DISTANCE OF 26.14' FEET; THENCE S. 
28°02'25" E. A DISTANCE OF 33.63' FEET; THENCE s. 15°36'06" E. A DISTANCE OF 25.68' FEET; THENCE s. 14°26'18" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 26.72' FEET; THENCE S. 45°55'54" E. A DISTANCE OF 26.08' FEET; THENCE S. 71°05'50" W. A DISTANCE OF 
72.41' FEET; THENCE S. 87°22'39" W. A DISTANCE OF 250.86' FEET; TO THE SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 3.04 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

IMORRIS / r-, MOA PROJECT:RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA D 16027 
L /_ , .DEPEW SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED! DRAWN 

EN(lt,EERS•~•SURVEVOAS PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP47L.o>NlSCAl'E AAOtTEcTs MAH I BMH 
FlCA NO. 61532 /R.CERTNO- '--t 1LC211000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE: 

:ll't4Cllwllrld...... ,,,.._...____ 411C......... 
,_.Uyett,,Aoi1M 311U1 t•A:a ..-aoe 
fA:3111S37.a3 ~--1210• ................. SHEET 
FcwtUV- T-- - 11/25/19 

Fa:C131JSW.... Tcltw:....,._1M1 TOl ..-..:11-l"llt.l BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. '•-~· 21 OF 30 

https://fA:3111S37.a3


Page 103

0 200 
RESOURCE 

PROTECTION SCALE OF FEET 
AREA "D" 

L37 3.04 Acres 
I 

L412------+-~3-!~------
POB LINE BEARING DISTANCE 

I N:745412.78 
L376 N02'16'13"W 5314.40' 
L377 N 04'3T43"W 3095.19' 
L378 N as·22·1rE 1935.36' 
L379 N 22'46'07" E 45.15' 

~ L380 N 09'45'11" E 41.14' 
L381 N 24'13'17" E 31.44' 
L382 N 10'30'09" E 38.22' 
L383 N 03'0T39"W 35.66' 

18 17 L384 N 03"38'04" E 47.5T 
L385 N 22'14'29" E 28.84' 
L386 N 12"13'18" W 23.28' 
L387 N 02"43'05" W 75.14'2019 

I~ 
L388 N 22"51'56" W 46.31' 
L389 N 24'08'54"W 34.80' 

ABBREVIATIONS L390 N 01 '06'23" E 39.66' 
L1 =LINE DESIGNATION L391 N 00'48'30" E 41.59' 
O.R. =OFFICIAL RECORDS L392 N 39'08'34" E 79.38' 
PG. = PAGE L393 N 70'29'22" E 86.05' c; '1 0~ POB : PONT-OF-BEGINNING 

L394 S 57'25'22" E 79.82' .... z POC = POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENTa, r- L395 S 57'00'08" E 45.75' 

f 
R/W = RIGHT-OF-WAY 

L396 S 29"26'39" E 51.74' 
L397 S 17'24'52" E 62.14' 
L398 S 16'33'00" W 29.60' 
L399 S 12•39•44• W 51.63' 
L400 S 58"35'52" W 42.96'

I 

I 
L401 S 84"28'49" W 22.58' 
L402 S 10'24'57" E 80.62' 
L403 S 27"19'06" E 32.30'

POC L404 S 06'17'27" E 26.8r119 20/ THE SOUTHWEST CORNER L405 S 10"57'32" E 36.2T 
_ _,./__ __Q_F SEC. 20, T.47 S, R. 26 E. L406 S 29'26'42" E 26.14' 

L407 S 28"02'25" E 33.63' 
l408 S 15'36'06' E 25.68' 

N:736861.28 

30 29 E:741650.96 
l409 S 14'26'18" E 26.72' 
l410 S 45'55'54" E 26.08' 
L411 S 71 '05'50" W 72.41' 
L412 S 87'22'39" W 250.86' 

MDA PROJECT: RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA D 16027 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN 

ENOtNEEAS •Pt.ANNIAS • Sl.Rv'EYORS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47l>H>SC\PEAAC>flECTII MAH BMH 
Fl.CA NO.e632 /Fl.CERT NO. LMNI /l.Cffll00330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE: 

hrtll,- Tello- -
.,.~..... 11:llwfl ......... ............. 11/25/19 
...Mw-t, .... SII01 ,...... ... 
CDl.1.1741111,) ,........,,...__, .._...,.,A.._ SHEET
fa::(2Jttatt..-. TGl......,_7341 Tri"ftSIII-Mf.-7'.ltt 
Taine IIN.W-7M1 BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 22 OF 30 

https://E:741650.96
https://N:736861.28
https://N:745412.78


Page 104

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA "C" 
(CONSERVATION EASEMENT#12 O.R3914, PG. 3798) 

A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
SAID TRACT OR PARCEL BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE N. 02°16'13" W. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DISTANCE OF 5314.40' FEET TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST; THENCE N. 04°37'43" W. ALONG THE 
WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION17, A DISTANCE OF 2736.46' FEET; THENCE N. 85°22'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 2836.62' FEET TO 
THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING OF HEREON DESCRIBED LAND; THENCE N. 23°29'18" W. A DISTANCE OF 99.83' FEET; THENCE 
N. 12"59'30" E. A DISTANCE OF 63.22' FEET; THENCE N.18°56'52" E. A DISTANCE OF 115.55' FEET; THENCE N. 88°55'03" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 97.60' FEET; THENCE S. 88°07'15" E. A DISTANCE OF 80.68' FEET; THENCE S. 87°26'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 
80.23' FEET; THENCE S. 84°26'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 85.62' FEET; THENCE S. 66°39'35" E, A DISTANCE OF 57.07' FEET; 
THENCE N. 89°19'48" E. A DISTANCE OF 51.13' FEET; THENCE S. 25°57'22" W. A DISTANCE OF 39.89' FEET; THENCE S. 
62°50'06" W. A DISTANCE OF 63.52' FEET; THENCE S. 36°47'44" W. A DISTANCE OF 38.54' FEET; THENCE S. 19"22'52" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 78.57' FEET; THENCE S. 36°24'47" W. A DISTANCE OF 76.06' FEET;THENCE S. 28°20'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 
70.81' FEET; THENCE N. 75°41'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 265.39' FEET; TO THE SAID POINT-OF-BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 2.53 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

MORRISL r::J RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA C,i- ,...,, flDEPE ' SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 
PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47ENOrfGRS •~•SURVEYORS 

'-'Nll6Clol'E AACHTECTS 
F\. CA NO. 6632 / Fl. CEJn NO. Lee801 / I.C2ll000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Bt4CIMllndl~ 4o15a...,......,1,a....._....,..._.---- T.a.- -f"ll'l ..,_.,to,NI,,_, ....IIIAlm 
CDlt lff-- ,---.fl;dilllllO'I ....,....,"'_ 
, ..::P311m'.._,. fllhcNMat·1'41 lllll*~•ntl BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. Tolhec -.tsN:M1 

MDA PROJECT; 
16027 

CHECKED! DRAWN 
MAH I BMH 

DATE; 
11/25/19 

SHEET 
23 OF30 



Page 105

\ 

\ 

I RESOURCE 
PROTECTION 

AREA "C" 
2.53 Acres 

I 

------+_!~"li------

I POB 

E:744046.98 

~ 

I~ 
II~r 
1 

I POC 
119 2V THE SOUTHWEST CORNER ____..,.__/ - --OF SEC. 20, T.47 S, R. 26 E. 

N:736861.28 
30 29 E:741650.96 

N:745355.73 
E:744506.04 

425 

0 200 

SCALE OF FEET 

L 

ABBREVIATIONS 
L1 =LINE DESIGNATION 
0.R. = OFFICIAL RECORDS 
PG. = PAGE 
POB = PONT-OF-BEGINNING 
POC = POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENT 
RNI = RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LINE BEARING DISTANCE 
L413 N 02"16'13' W 5314.40' 
L414 N 04•37•43• W 2736.46' 
L415 N 85"22'17' E 2836.62' 
L416 N 23°29'18" W 99.83' 
L417 N 12'59'30' E 63.22' 
L418 N 18°56'52' E 115.55' 
L419 N 88"55'03' E 97.60' 
L420 S 88°0T15' E 80.68' 
L421 S 87"26'49' E 80.23' 
L422 S 84"26'49' E 85.62' 
L423 S 66°39'35' E 57.0T 
L424 N 89"19'48" E 51 .13' 
L425 s 25•sr22· w 39.89' 
L426 S 62°50'06" W 63.52' 
L427 S36°4T44"W 38.54' 
L428 S 19•22•52• W 78.57' 
L429 s3s•24•4rw 76.06' 
L430 S 28' 20'05" W 70.81' 
L431 N 75°41 '17' W 265.39' 

MDA PROJECT;RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA C 16027 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWNE>ONEERS•~- ~ 

L.ANlSCAPla AA(H1ECTS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47 MAH BMH 
Fl.CA NO. 0632 / Fl.CERT NO. l.86801 /1.C280001330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE:Fon.,_ ~Tllla-

2t1,a....i-.... - 0...W,~11,........... 11/25/19,......,... ....... ~ ,.,.. ---
4:mt,oJ,a:) ~........, .....,....,,.,...... SHEET 
F-=cna,317.aM Tail9-~I Tol--~11&1 
Tlll"9c--•""'' BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 240F 30 

https://F-=cna,317.aM
https://E:744506.04
https://N:745355.73
https://E:741650.96
https://N:736861.28
https://E:744046.98


Page 106

......- ...---------------------------------------
RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA •s• 

A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTIONS 17 AND 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, SAID TRACT OR PARCEL BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE N. 88°34'56" E. ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DISTANCE OF 2664.32' FEET TO THE 
SOUTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 20; THENCE N. 88°40'20" E. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A 
DISTANCE OF 253.70' FEET TO THE POINT-OF-BEGINNING OF HEREON DESCRIBED LAND; THENCE 
N. 02°23'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 115.16' FEET;THENCE N. 00°48'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 88.17' FEET; THENCE N. 05°41'40" E. 
A DISTANCE OF 69.44' FEET;THENCE N. 16°20'26" w. A DISTANCE OF 52.24' FEET; THENCE N. 02°13'17" w. A DISTANCE OF 
6.75' FEET;THENCE N. 21°29'30" W. A DISTANCE OF 41.26' FEET; THENCE N. 46°07'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 125.99' 
FEET;THENCE N. 61°18'24" E. A DISTANCE OF 95.28' FEET; THENCE N. 70°07'24" E. A DISTANCE OF 94.12' FEET;THENCE N. 
65°15'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 63.11' FEET; THENCE N. 44°53'40" E. A DISTANCE OF 6.17' FEET;THENCE N. 70°08'11" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 5.59' FEET; THENCE s. 80°18'54" E. A DISTANCE OF 11.78' FEET;THENCE s. 66°54'21" E. A DISTANCE OF 
44.41' FEET; THENCE N. 85°00'05" E. A DISTANCE OF 63.82' FEET;THENCE N. 79°55'59" E. A DISTANCE OF 107.76' FEET; 
THENCE N. 81°55'31" E. A DISTANCE OF 85.70' FEET;THENCE N. 87°59'19" E. A DISTANCE OF 14.05' FEET; THENCE WITH A 
CURVE TO THE LEFT; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 3144.61, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 
08°01'27", AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS N. 69°39'27" E., FOR A DISTANCE OF 440.04' FEET HAVING AN ARC LENGTH OF 
440.40' FEET; THENCE N. 06°06'20" E. A DISTANCE OF 29.34' FEET; THENCE N. 08"50'19" E. A DISTANCE OF 74.83' FEET; 
THENCE N. 07°01'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 104.51' FEET; THENCE N. 04°30'30" E. A DISTANCE OF 54.08' FEET; THENCE N. 
04°36'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 94.91' FEET; THENCE N. 03°48'39" w. A DISTANCE OF 46.79' FEET; THENCE N. 10°52'08" w. A 
DISTANCE OF 70.99' FEET; THENCE N. 06°52'48" W. A DISTANCE OF 104.09' FEET; THENCE N. 00°46'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 
40.78' FEET; THENCE N. 07°36'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 62.16' FEET; THENCE N. 23°24'59" W. A DISTANCE OF 53.67' FEET; 
THENCE N. 29°07'14" W. A DISTANCE OF 74.89' FEET; THENCE N. 34°59'59" W. A DISTANCE OF 18.61' FEET;THENCE 
N. 18°44'31" W. A DISTANCE OF 35.47' FEET; THENCE N. 14°59'47" W. A DISTANCE OF 63.75' FEET;THENCE N.10°31'04" W. 
A DISTANCE OF 55.55' FEET; THENCE N. 01°50'16" E. A DISTANCE OF 44.20' FEET;THENCE N. 08°19'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 
81.16' FEET; THENCE N. 07°06'13" E. A DISTANCE OF 113.95' FEET; THENCE N. 10°25'23" E. A DISTANCE OF 90.54' FEET; 
THENCE N. 10°51'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 48.95' FEET; THENCE N. 15°34'03" E. A DISTANCE OF 36.05' FEET; THENCE N. 
22°40'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 50.39' FEET; THENCE N. 34°54'07" E. A DISTANCE OF 33.28' FEET; THENCE N. 32°42'56" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 56.62' FEET; THENCE N. 33°10'51" E. A DISTANCE OF 65.41' FEET; THENCE N. 29°38'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 
70.28' FEET; THENCE N. 29°58'14" E. A DISTANCE OF 68.04' FEET; THENCE N. 30°48'51" E. A DISTANCE OF 86.66' FEET; 
THENCE N. 39°18'59" E. A DISTANCE OF 22.82' FEET; THENCE N. 41°35'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 106.96' FEET; THENCE 
N. 48°38'51" E. A DISTANCE OF 40.31' FEET; THENCE N. 57°45'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 30.93' FEET; THENCE 
N. 22°59'50" W. A DISTANCE OF 31.93' FEET; THENCE N. 37°06'41" W. A DISTANCE OF 15.45' FEET; THENCE 
N. 13°21'13" W. A DISTANCE OF 78.12' FEET; THENCE N. 85°17'46" W. A DISTANCE OF 47.54' FEET; THENCE 
N. 69°19'47" w. A DISTANCE OF 42.90' FEET; THENCE N. 46°59'08" w. A DISTANCE OF 40.19' FEET; THENCE N. 25°18'40" w. 
A DISTANCE OF 37.55' FEET; THENCE N. 07"19'53" w. A DISTANCE OF 33.66' FEET; THENCE N. 06°28'47" w. A DISTANCE OF 
40.01' FEET; THENCE N. 03°48'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 12.58' FEET; THENCE N. 04"46'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.70' FEET; 
THENCE N. 12"02'16" E. A DISTANCE OF 47.28' FEET; THENCE N. 03"06'30" W. A DISTANCE OF 40.01' FEET; THENCE 
N. 16"04'58" W. A DISTANCE OF 35.91' FEET; THENCE N. 20"39'09" W. A DISTANCE OF 25.55' FEET;THENCE N. 13°10'45" W. 
A DISTANCE OF 29.96' FEET; THENCE N. 03°35'31" W. A DISTANCE OF 20.89' FEET; THENCE N. 01"22'39" E. A DISTANCE OF 
22.46' FEET; THENCE N. 08°31'00" E. A DISTANCE OF 70.00' FEET; THENCE N. 08°53'54" E. A DISTANCE OF 37.22' FEET; 
THENCE N. 06°55'14" E. A DISTANCE OF 65.47' FEET; THENCE N. 07°34'56" E. A DISTANCE OF 35.82' FEET; THENCE N. 
07°19'54" E. A DISTANCE OF 42.19' FEET; THENCE N. 11°09'23" E. A DISTANCE OF 46.65' FEET; THENCE N. 07°30'02" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 30.10' FEET; THENCE N. 04°35'19" E. A DISTANCE OF 35.91' FEET; THENCE N. 00°16'35"W. A DISTANCE OF 
28.53' FEET; THENCE N. 01°19'48" E. A DISTANCE OF 41.93' FEET; THENCE N. 08°45'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 88.28' FEET; 
THENCE N. 71°24'01" W. A DISTANCE OF 75.58' FEET; THENCE N. 84°36'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 30.73' FEET; 

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA S 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTIONS 20AND 17, 
TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA 

BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 

MDA PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKED! DRAWN 
MAH I BMH 

DATE: 
11/25/19 

SHEET 
25OF30 



Page 107

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA "S" (CONTINUED) 

THENCE N. 38°38'39" W. A DISTANCE OF 32.70' FEET; THENCE N. 07°20'34" E. A DISTANCE OF 14.81' FEET; THENCE N. 
41"14'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 8.91' FEET; THENCE N. 43°39'19" E. A DISTANCE OF 24.56' FEET; THENCE N. 33•31•49• E. A 
DISTANCE OF 22.53' FEET; THENCE N. 21°58'18" E. A DISTANCE OF 25.76' FEET; THENCE N. 15"06'51" E. A DISTANCE OF 
21.09' FEET; THENCE N. 04°35'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 45.50' FEET: THENCE N. 01°45'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 34.41' FEET; 
THENCE N. 19°11'45" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.29' FEET; THENCE N. 22"16'13" E. A DISTANCE OF 29.02' FEET; THENCE N. 
04°38'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 42.86' FEET; THENCE N. 15°46'53" W. A DISTANCE OF 33.73' FEET; THENCE N. 17°38'55" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 11.35' FEET; THENCE N.15°42'14" W. A DISTANCE OF 13.65' FEET; THENCE N. 01°20'07" W. A DISTANCE OF 
18.70' FEET; THENCE N. 00°11'26" E. A DISTANCE OF 24.80' FEET; THENCE N. 22°14'36" W. A DISTANCE OF 83.25' FEET; 
THENCE N. 88°30'15" W. A DISTANCE OF 98.59' FEET; THENCE N. 88°01'16" W. A DISTANCE OF 8.65' FEET; THENCE N. 
64°48'16" W. A DISTANCE OF 10.35' FEET; THENCE N. 62°59'09" W. A DISTANCE OF 46.22' FEET; THENCE N. 68"56'27" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 38.71' FEET; THENCE N. 73°31'38" W. A DISTANCE OF 28.50' FEET; THENCE N. 35°13'06" W. A DISTANCE OF 
30.67' FEET; THENCE N. 29°00'04" W. A DISTANCE OF 75.13' FEET; THENCE N. 03°37'28" E. A DISTANCE OF 51.20' FEET; 
THENCE N . 10°32'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 31.01' FEET; THENCE N. 09°13'05" E. A DISTANCE OF 45.57' FEET; THENCE N. 
10°38'07" E. A DISTANCE OF 44.68' FEET; THENCE N. 13°39'43" E. A DISTANCE OF 44.67' FEET; THENCE N. 07°59'46" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 35.66' FEET; THENCE N. 14°01'20" E. A DISTANCE OF 43.64' FEET; THENCE N. 28°45'40" E. A DISTANCE OF 
31.93' FEET; THENCE N. 30°00'41" E. A DISTANCE OF 31.35' FEET; THENCE N. 28°43'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 41.92' FEET; 
THENCE N. 28°57'13" E. A DISTANCE OF 40.02' FEET; THENCE N. 14°33'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 158.82' FEET; THENCE N. 
13°15'52" E. A DISTANCE OF 119.87' FEET; THENCE N. 10°49'06" E. A DISTANCE OF 186.28' FEET; THENCE N. 05"25'15" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 118.62' FEET; THENCE N. 13°34'32" W. A DISTANCE OF 40.75' FEET;THENCE N. 62"05'14" W. A DISTANCE OF 
41.51' FEET; THENCE N. 51°35'36" W. A DISTANCE OF 54.62' FEET;THENCE N. 59°01'51" W. A DISTANCE OF 41.91' FEET; 
THENCE N. 59°56'54" W. A DISTANCE OF 39.60' FEET;THENCE N. 57°37'07" W. A DISTANCE OF 40.42' FEET; THENCE N. 
08°01'39" W. A DISTANCE OF 39.39' FEET;THENCE N. 09°11'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 64.39' FEET; THENCE N. 07°07'29" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 65.87' FEET;THENCE N. 08°47'20" W. A DISTANCE OF 37.39' FEET; THENCE N. 02°49'10" W. A DISTANCE OF 
69.55' FEET;THENCE N. 08°08'23" W. A DISTANCE OF 326.65' FEET; THENCE N. 07°20'51" E. A DISTANCE OF 24.54' FEET; 
THENCE N. 15°43'57" E. A DISTANCE OF 31.58' FEET; THENCE N. 29°31'03" E. A DISTANCE OF 155.37' FEET; THENCE N. 
31"00'38" W. A DISTANCE OF 84.41' FEET; THENCE N. 06°34'28" W. A DISTANCE OF 28.13' FEET; THENCE N. 00"06'28" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 39.22' FEET; THENCE N. 16°10'37" W. A DISTANCE OF 42.90' FEET; THENCE N. 30"06'55" W. A DISTANCE OF 
32.87' FEET; THENCE N. 33"04'26" W. A DISTANCE OF 22.15' FEET; THENCE N. 27°04'06" W. A DISTANCE OF 16.43' FEET; 
THENCE N. 23°05'49" W. A DISTANCE OF 21.67' FEET; THENCE N. 24"55'42" W. A DISTANCE OF 41.80' FEET; THENCE N. 
21°50'19" W. A DISTANCE OF 28.65' FEET; THENCE N. 17°51'19" W. A DISTANCE OF 33.13' FEET; THENCE N. 14°16'31" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 22.95' FEET; THENCE N. 13"13'26" W. A DISTANCE OF 65.06' FEET; THENCE N. 04°08'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 
12.01' FEET; THENCE N. 15°04'43" E. A DISTANCE OF 49.35' FEET; THENCE N. 02°05'42" E. A DISTANCE OF 43.88' FEET; 
THENCE N. 07°59'38" W. A DISTANCE OF 44.05' FEET; THENCE N. 14°26'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 42.83' FEET; THENCE N. 
16°43'10" W. A DISTANCE OF 75.79' FEET; THENCE N. 21°59'28" W. A DISTANCE OF 228.97' FEET; THENCE N.16"17'19" W . A 
DISTANCE OF 51 .30' FEET; THENCE N. 21°42'19" W. A DISTANCE OF 45.09' FEET; THENCE N. 20°20'57" W. A DISTANCE OF 
22.39' FEET; THENCE N.15°08'55" W. A DISTANCE OF 17.84' FEET; THENCE N. 20°57'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 27.42' FEET; 
THENCE N. 26"36'49" W. A DISTANCE OF 20.65' FEET; THENCE N. 27°22'24" W. A DISTANCE OF 24.38' FEET; THENCE N. 
20"58'03" W. A DISTANCE OF 19.07' FEET; THENCE N. 12°25'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 52.63' FEET; THENCE N. 18°37'33" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 51.06' FEET; THENCE N. 18"04'04" W. A DISTANCE OF 38.53' FEET; THENCE N. 06"52'08" W. A DISTANCE OF 
27.52' FEET; THENCE N. 04°33'16" W. A DISTANCE OF 46.16' FEET; THENCE N. 16"11'08" W. A DISTANCE OF 44.26' FEET; 
THENCE N. 34"24'27" W. A DISTANCE OF 42.67' FEET; THENCE N. 40°09'45" W. A DISTANCE OF 35.22' FEET; THENCE N. 
40°01'42" W. A DISTANCE OF 31.79' FEET; THENCE N. 39°47'31" W. A DISTANCE OF 23.05' FEET; THENCE N. 40°58'10" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 136.66' FEET; THENCE N. 07°11'03" W. A DISTANCE OF 31 .42' FEET; THENCE N. 04°54'54" E. A DISTANCE OF 
31 .26' FEET; THENCE N. 31°11'45" E. A DISTANCE OF 50.33' FEET; THENCE N. 34°14'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 61.74' FEET; 
THENCE N. 42°44'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 83.05' FEET; THENCE N. 61°34'40" E. A DISTANCE OF 61 .30' FEET; THENCE N. 
62°48'42" E. A DISTANCE OF 86.02' FEET; 

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA s MDA PROJECT:IMORRIS./~ 
16027i,tvi::••;.,,9oep; SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTIONS 20 AND 17, CHECKEOI DRAWN9IIGI\IEBIS • PI.AMIIE.RS • 6URVEVORS 
LAN0SCAPE AACHTECTS TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, MAH BMH 

Fllfllfrll9 T- - FLORIDA 
R.CA NO. 85321 R. CERTNO. l.888111 / I..C2e000:l30 

1S~1719at40Mlnl.-... ,,,..,......._ • ._.....,_,, 
........,.,..,.....33111, 1tlfbr ..... 
(23111111..-.:31 , ........... fZlt1 ..........A.... SHEET 
flllCIIIJlt...... 1Clll.:___,·1t41 rlll._aa3D-1:MI BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 26 OF 30f~tM:111N37•T.M1 

https://f~tM:111N37�T.M1
https://PI.AMIIE.RS


Page 108

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA "S" (CONTINUED) 

THENCE N. 45°54'32" E. A DISTANCE OF 45.76' FEET; THENCE N. 29°49'43" E. A DISTANCE OF 48.51' FEET; THENCE N. 
25°30'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 72.06' FEET; THENCE N. 19°29'13" E. A DISTANCE OF 93.40' FEET; THENCE N. 20"39'16" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 59.71' FEET; THENCE N. 15°48'00" E. A DISTANCE OF 68.61' FEET; THENCE N. 07°05'40" E. A DISTANCE OF 
94.79' FEET; THENCE N. 14°27'48" E. A DISTANCE OF 76.73' FEET; THENCE N. 41°13'24" E. A DISTANCE OF 130.21' FEET; 
THENCE N. 45°22'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 145.44' FEET; THENCE N. 45°02'07" E. A DISTANCE OF 77.05' FEET; THENCE N. 
52°58'16" E. A DISTANCE OF 111.78' FEET; THENCE N. 58"29'42" E. A DISTANCE OF 105.05' FEET; THENCE N. 48°17'04" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 150.91' FEET; THENCE N. 31°51'47" E. A DISTANCE OF 62.30' FEET; THENCE N. 23°09'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 
64.87' FEET; THENCE N. 07°36'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 49.57' FEET; THENCE N. 13°40'15" W. A DISTANCE OF 54.92' FEET; 
THENCE N. 20°47'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 53.81' FEET; THENCE N. 23°01'56" W. A DISTANCE OF 95.21' FEET; THENCE N. 
28°41'25" W. A DISTANCE OF 114.55' FEET; THENCE N. 43°36'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 60.71' FEET; THENCE N. 43°36'00" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 60.70' FEET; THENCE N. 49"16'23" W. A DISTANCE OF 55.59' FEET; THENCE N. 58"33'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 
54.33' FEET; THENCE N. 65°06'11" W. A DISTANCE OF 26.87' FEET; THENCE N. 65°06'11" W. A DISTANCE OF 26.87' FEET; 
THENCE N. 69°41'10" W. A DISTANCE OF 24.45' FEET; THENCE N. 69°41'10" W. A DISTANCE OF 24.45' FEET; THENCE N. 
78°14'14" W. A DISTANCE OF 21.02' FEET; THENCE N. 81°19'41" W. A DISTANCE OF 48.77' FEET; THENCE N. 87"16'40" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 69.86' FEET; THENCE s. 85°57'29" w. A DISTANCE OF 82.80' FEET; THENCE s. 85°25'10" w. A DISTANCE OF 
532.17' FEET; THENCE N. 78°42'35" W. A DISTANCE OF 119.59' FEET; THENCE N. 73°40'49" W. A DISTANCE OF 56.77' FEET; 
THENCE N. 51°58'40" W. A DISTANCE OF 43.89' FEET; THENCE N. 39°00'04" W. A DISTANCE OF 142.04' FEET; THENCE N. 
28°29'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 39.73' FEET; THENCE N. 24°04'30" W. A DISTANCE OF 56.64' FEET; THENCE N. 24"04'30" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 32.54' FEET;THENCE N. 29°18'20" W. A DISTANCE OF 44.85' FEET; THENCE N. 38°34'27" W. A DISTANCE OF 
34.65' FEET;THENCE N. 45°18'23" W. A DISTANCE OF 23.13' FEET; THENCE N. 50°36'54" W. A DISTANCE OF 22.44' FEET; 
THENCE N. 55"20'24" W. A DISTANCE OF 18.12' FEET; THENCE N. 60°42'13" W. A DISTANCE OF 27.91' FEET; THENCE N. 
65"50'38" W. A DISTANCE OF 16.21' FEET; THENCE N. 71°16'25" W. A DISTANCE OF 30.40' FEET; THENCE N. 77°50'45" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 26.01' FEET; THENCE N. 83°13'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 20.09' FEET; THENCE N. 88"11'32" W. A DISTANCE OF 
22.62' FEET; THENCE S. 89"11'45" W. A DISTANCE OF 89.42' FEET; THENCE S. 89"10'23" W. A DISTANCE OF 65.20' FEET; 
THENCE S. 89°10'08" W. A DISTANCE OF 114.80' FEET; THENCE S. 89"11'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 109.70' FEET;THENCE N. 
84°22'18" W. A DISTANCE OF 28.97' FEET; THENCE N. 74°51'52" W. A DISTANCE OF 34.59' FEET;THENCE N. 60"35'14" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 111.64' FEET; THENCE N. 11°11'16" W. A DISTANCE OF 30.54' FEET;THENCE N. 17"23'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 
13.18' FEET; THENCE N. 21°33'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 27.22' FEET; THENCE N. 20"08'20" E. A DISTANCE OF 29.18' FEET; 
THENCE N. 22°43'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 29.56' FEET; THENCE N. 11°38'25" E. A DISTANCE OF 25.37' FEET; THENCE N. 
24°03'58" E. A DISTANCE OF 22.71' FEET; THENCE N. 28°41'06" E. A DISTANCE OF 25.33' FEET; THENCE N. 25°55'21" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 26.12' FEET; THENCE N. 20°23'11• E. A DISTANCE OF 21.77' FEET: THENCE N. 16°56'36• E. A DISTANCE OF 
29.44' FEET; THENCE N. 09"07'38" E. A DISTANCE OF 45.23' FEET; THENCE N. 03"07'47" E. A DISTANCE OF 39.14' FEET; 
THENCE N. 04 °51 '36" W. A DISTANCE OF 66. 75' FEET; THENCE N. 14 °54'35" W. A DISTANCE OF 43.88' FEET TO A POINT ON 
THE NORTH LINE OF SAlD SECTION 17; THENCE N. 87°31'51" E. A DISTANCE OF 2445.07' FEET TO THE NORTHEAST 
CORNER OF SAID SECTION 17; THENCE S. 04°58'21" E. ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 17,A DISTANCE OF 
2688.85' FEET TO THE EAST QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 17; THENCE S. 04"58'20" E. A DISTANCE OF 2689.01' FEET 
TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 20; THENCE S. 03°50'45" E. ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, 
A DISTANCE OF 2684.41' FEET TO THE EAST QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 20; THENCE S. 03°44'48" E. A DISTANCE OF 
2684.65' FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 20; THENCE S. 88"40'20• W. A DISTANCE OF 2411.29' FEET TO 
THE SAID POlNT-OF-BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 313.65 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA S MOA PROJECT: 
16027~ SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

CHECKED! DRAWNPARCELS OF LAND IN SECTIONS 20 AND 17,ENOltlEER:S •A..ANN:RS • ~OAS 
I..MllSO'PI; AAC'11ECTS MAH I BMH 

A.CA NO. 0632/ A. CEl<rNO. ,_, f ~ TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 
OATE:Foot .._ Tllah- - FLORIDA 

.,..~ .,.,._. ltl..._llcMle.._ -~ea.... 11/25/19,_......,flbltli &1I01 ---1111:Afla'
C2Mt ~ ,..,__fl:IIIIII IIS01 .a...lMDl\ ll.a:ma SHEET
f'a:tlll)....,. ,,..___.,,,., n•"-~ • BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC.T-hll:~1 27OF 30 



--

L-445 

Page 109

LINE 
l432 
L433 
L434 
L435 
L436 
L437 
L438 
L439 
L440 
L441 
l442 
l443 
l444 

L446 
L447 
L448 
L449 
L450 
L451 
L452 
L453 
L454 
L45S 
L456 
L457 
L456 
L4S9 
L460 
L461 
l462 
L463 
l464 
L465 
L466 
L467 
L468 
L469 
l470 
L471 
L472 
L473 
L474 
L475 
L476 
L477 
L478 
L479 
L480 
L481 
L482 

BEARING DISTANCE 
N 88'34'56" E 2884.32' 
N 88'40'20' E 253.70' 
N 02'23'02' E 115.18' 
N 00'48'35' E 88.1T 
N 05'41'40' E 89.44' 
N 16'20'26" W 52.24' 
N 02•13•1rw 6.75' 
N 21'29'30"W 41.26" 
N 46'0T04'E 125.99' 
N 61 '18'24' E 95.28' 
N 70'07'24" E 94.12' 
N 65'15'22" E 63.11' 
N 44'53'40" E 6.1T 
N 70'08'11" E 5.59' 
S 80'16'54' E 11.78' 
S 66'54'21' E 44.41' 
N 85'00'05" E 63.82' 
N 79'55"59' E 107.76' 
N 81'55'31" E 85.70' 
N 87'59'19" E 14.05' 
N06'06'20' E 29.34' 
N 08'50'19" E 74.83' 
N 07'01'11' E 104.51' 
N 04'30'30' E 54,08' 
N 04'36'35' E 94.91' 
N 03'48'39'W 46.79' 
N 10'52'08' W 70,99' 
N 06'52'48' W 104.09' 
N 00'48'22" E 40.76' 
N 07'36'1rw 62.18' 
N 23'24'59" W 53.6T 
N 29'07'14' W 74.89' 
N34'59'59'W 18.61' 
N 18'44'31'W 35.4T 
N 14'59'4rW 63.75' 
N 10'31'04"W 55.55' 
N01'50'16' E 44.20' 
N 08'19'01• E 61.16' 
N07'06'13" E 113.95' 
N 10'25'23' E 90.54' 
N 10'51'01" E 48.95' 
N 15'34'03' E 38.05' 
N 22'40'35' E 50.39' 
N 34'54'07' E 33.28' 
N 32'42'56" E 56.62' 
N 33"10'51' E 65.41' 
N 29"38'53" E 70.26' 
N 29'58'14' E 68.04' 
N 30'48'51" E 86.68' 
N 39'18'59" E 22.82' 
N 41'35'08" E 106.96' 

POC 

LINE 
L483 
L484 
l.-485 
L-486 
1.487 
L488 
1.489 
1.490 
L491 
L492 
l493 
l494 
l495 
L496 
L497 
L498 
L499 
L500 
L501 
L502 
L503 
L504 
L505 
L506 
L507 
L508 
L509 
L510 
L511 
L512 
L513 
L514 
L515 
L518 
L517 
L518 
L519 
L520 
L521 
L522 
L523 
L524 
L525 
L526 
L527 
L528 
L529 
L530 
L694 
L895 
L696 

BEARING 
N 4a'38'51' E 
N57'45'01' E 
N 22'59'50' W 
N37'06'41' W 
N 13'21'13'W 
N85'17'48'W 
N69'19'4rW 
N 46'59'08"W 
N 25'18'40' W 
N 07'19'53' W 
N06'28'4rw 
N 03'4a'02' W 
N 04'46'53' E 
N 12'02'16" E 
N 03'06'30" W 
N 18'04'56'W 
N 20'39'09' W 
N 13"10'45" W 
N03'35'31' W 
N01'22'39' E 
N08'31'00' E 
N 08"53'54' E 
N06'55'14' E 
N07'34'56' E 
N07'19'54' E 
N 11 '09'23" E 
N 07'30'02" E 
N 04'35'19" E 
N 00'16'35" W 
N 01'19'48" E 
N 08'45'05' W 
N 71'24'01' W 
N 84"36'02' W 
N 38'38'39" W 
N 07' 20'34' E 
N 41' 14'01' E 
N 43'39'19" E 
N 33' 31'49' E 
N 21' 58'18' E 
N 15' 06'51" E 
N 04' 35'11' E 
N 01' 45'08' E 
N 19'11'45' E 
N 22'16'13" E 
N04' 38'22' E 
N 15'48'53" W 
N 17'38'55" W 
N 15'42'14" W 
S 03' 50'45' E 
S 03'44'48' E 
S 88'40'20"W 

DISTANCE 
40.31' 
,0.93' 
31.93' 
15.45' 
78.12' 
47.54" 
42.90' 
40.19' 
37,55" 
33.66' 
40.01' 
12.58' 
21.70' 
47.26' 
40,01' 
35.91' 
25,55' 
29.96' 
211.89' 
22.48" 
70.00' 
37.22' 
65.4T 
35.82' 
42.19' 
46.65' 
30.10' 
35.91' 
28.53' 
41,93' 
88.28' 
75.58' 
30.73' 
32.TI]I 
14.81' 
8.91' 

24.56' 
22.53' 
26.78' 
21.09' 
45.!IO' 
34.41' 
19.29' 
29.02' 
42.86' 
33.73' 
11.35' 
13.65' 

2884.41' 
2884.65' 
2411.29' 

~524 /
•-1~i3 

MATCHLINE SHEET 28 
71111llU'-,,I~, -l.514 -~ - - - SHEET27 

..-l513 

...l.512 
, ..--t.510 

RESOURCE 
PROTECTION 

AREA 'S" 
L502 313.65Acres 

499 

RESOURCE 
PROTECTION 

AREA "S" 
313.65 Acres 

t;;
i 

31:: (/) 
- I'llI~ moo 
CZ 
zt: oz 
~ I'll 
'-( 

MDA PROJECT:RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS 16027 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN 

ENGINEERS• "'-""NERS • 6UI\IEYOAS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 AND 20, TOWNSHIPlNG;CAPEAACtm;cn; MAH BMH 
Fl.C\"10,6632/R.CERT"°-~1 ILC2e0D0330 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

_..,_ T..._ - DATE: 
a1•~----- 11as....1i1cwo1.._ •a.........., 11/25/19Fal..,..,Fbldt a.o, ,....... ..... 
IZl't...... T...,__~si:IQI ............"-.. SHEET 
'-::CZ-,DNIIIM TCll--~I t•hsllN17-'34t 
TalhK..,._1'41 BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 28OF30 



----

- -ABBREVIATIONS 
L 1 =LINE TABLE DESIGNATION 
O.R. = OFFICIAL RECORDS 
PG. = PAGE 
POB ,. PONT-OF-BEGINNING 
POC ,. POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENT 
R/W " RIGHT-OF-WAY 

Page 110

LINE 
L513 
L514 
l515 
L516 
L517 
L518 
L519 
L520 
L521 
L522 
L523 
L524 
L525 
L526 
L527 
L528 
L529 
L530 
L531 
L532 
L533 
L534 
L535 
L536 
L537 
L538 
L539 
L540 
L541 
L542 
L543 
L544 
LS45 
L546 
L547 
LS48 
L549 
L550 
l551 
L552 
L553 
L554 
L555 
L556 
L557 
L558 
LS59 
L580 
L581 
L562 
L583 
L584 
L565 
L566 
L587 
L568 
L589 
L570 

BEARING DISTANCE 
N 08'45'05' W 88.28' RESOURCE PROTECTION
N 71'24'01" W 75.58' 0 500 
N 84'38'02" W 30.73' AREA •s• 
N 38'38'39" W 32.70' 313.65 Acres 
N 07"20'34' E 14.81' SCALE OF FEET 
N 41'14'01' E 8.91' L 
N 43"39'19' E 24.58' LINE BEARING DISTANCE 
N 33'31'49' E 22.53' L571 N 29'31'03' E 155.37' 
N 21'58'18' E 25.78' L572 N 31'00'38" W 84.41' 
N 15'06'51' E 21.09' L573 N 06'34'28" W 28,13' 
N 04'35'11' E 45.50' L574 N 00'06'28" E 39.22' 
N 01°45'08' E 34.41' L575 N 16'10'3TW 42.90' 
N 19'11'45" E 19.29' L576 N 30"06'55' W 32.87' 
N 22'16'13" E 29,02' L577 N 33'04'26' W 22.15' 
N 04'38'22' E 42.86' L578 N 27'04'06" W 16.43' 
N 15'46'53' W 33.73' L579 N 23'05'49' W 21.67' ~~ 
N 17'38'55' W 11.35' L580 N 24' 55'42" W 41.80' Zo 
N 15'42'14' W 13.65' L581 N 21'50'19' W 28.65' - m ::l.... 
N 01'20'0TW 18.70' L582 N 17'51 '19" W 33.13' ~~ 
N 00'11'28" E 24.80' L583 N 14'18'31' W 22.95' ~c
N 22'14'38"W 83.25' L584 N 13'13'28" W 65,08' oz 
N 88'30'15'W 98.59' L585 N 04'08'29' E 12.01' ~m 
N 88'01'16" W 8.85' L586 N 15'04'43' E 49.35' 567 '< 
N 84'48'16" W 10.35' L587 N 02'05'42' E 43.88' 
N 82"59'09' W 46.22' L588 N 07'59'38" W 44.05' 
N68'56'2TW 38.71' L589 N 14"28'05' W 42.83' 17N 73'31'38' W 28.50' L590 N 16'43'10' W 75.79' 
N 35'13'06" W 30.87' L591 N 21'59'28'W 228.97' 
N 29' 00'04' W 75.13' L592 N 16'17'19'W 51.30' -· 57N 03'3728'E 51.20' L593 N 21'42'19' W 45.09' 
N 10'32'09' E 31.01' LS94 N20"20'5TW 22.39' 
N 09'13'05' E 45.57' L595 N 15'08'55' W 17.84' 
N 10'38'0TE 44.68' L596 N 20'57'05" W 27.42' 
N 13'39'43' E 44.67' l597 N 26'38'49' W 20.65' 
N 07'59'46' E 35.66' L598 N 27"22'24"W 24.38' 
N 14'01'20' E 43.84' L599 N 20'58'03' W 19.07' 
N 28'45'40' E 31.93' L800 N 12"25'00' W 52.83' 
N 30'00'41" E 31.35' L601 N 18'37'33" W 51.06' 
N 28'◄3'01' E 41 .92' L602 N 18'04'04" W 38.53' 
N 28'57'13' E 40.02' L603 N 06' 52'08" W 27.52' 
N 14'33'53' E 158.82' L604 N 04'33'18' W 46.16' 
N 13'15'52'E 119.87' L605 N 18'11'08" W 44.26' 
N 10'49'08" E 188.28' L808 N34'24'2TW 42.87' 
N 05'25'15' E 118.62' L607 N 40'09'45" W 35.22' 
N 13'34'32' W 40.75' L608 N 40'01'42' W 31.79' 
N 62'05'14" W 41.51' L609 N 39' 47'31" W 23.05' 
N 51'35'36" W 54.62' L810 N 40'58'10' W 138.88' 
N 59'01'51' W 41.91' L811 N 07'11'03"W 31,42' 
N 59'58'54' W 39.80' L612 N 04'54'54' E 31.28' 
N57'37'0TW 40.42' L613 N 31"11'45" E 50.33' 
N 08'01'39' W 39.39' L614 N 34' 14'53' E 61.74' 
N 09'11 '02' W 84.39' L815 N 42'44'11' E 83.05' 
N 07'07'29' W 85.87' L618 N 61'34'40' E 61.30' 
N 08'47'20' W 37.39' L617 N 62'48'42' E 86.02' 
N 02' 49'10'W 69.55' L618 N 45'54'32' E 45.76' 
N 08'08'23' W 326.65' L619 N 29'49'43' E 48.51' 
N 07'20'51" E 24.54' L893 S 04'58'20' E 2689.01' 
N 1s•43•sre 31.58' L694 S 03"50'45' E 2684.41' 

MDA PROJECT:RESOURCE PROTECTION AREA S 16027 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN 

EIONEEAS•PI.AN'<EAS•S\SNE\'ORS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 AND 20, TOWNSHIPlMID&CAl'E AACtfTECl1I MAH BMH 
FLCA N0, '532 / FI.CEIIT'I0. ~ 1/I.C2e000330 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE: 

FD1111ywe T.a.- -
••,~..... ,,,.......... '81Glml~ 11/25/19
Fe,t ......fbl:IIISW)i ,...... .... 
c:m1-...- ,..__,.....$IIO't ...,_.....,...... SHEET
faccn-,ttt-MN IOl._-.aJ+n,&1 Tlltw:---.lMI 
TCll"- lll<DMJ,41 BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 29OF30 



Page 111

... .---v--------------------------------------------------.. 
8 9 

0 500 

SCALE OF FEET 

LINE BEARING DISTANCE 
LS91 N 21 '59'28" W 228.9T 
l592 N 16'1T19'W 51 .30' 
L593 N 21°42'19'W 45.09' 
L594 N 20'20'57'W 22.39' 
L595 N 15'08'5S'W 17.84' 
L596 N 20'57'05"W 27.42' 
L597 N28"36'49'W 20.85' 
L598 N 27'22'24'W 24.38' 
L599 N 20"58'03' W 19.0T LINE 

L600 N 12'25'00' W 52.63' L847 

L601 N 18'3T33'W 51.06' L848 

L802 N 18'04'04' W 38.53' L849 

L603 N 06'52'08' W 27.52' L650 
L604 N 04'33'16"W 46.16' L651 
L605 N 16'11'08'W 44.26' L652 

L608 N 34'24'27' W 42.6T L853 
L607 N 40•09•45• W 35.22' L654 

L808 N 40'01'42' W 31.79' L855 
L609 N 39'4T31'W 23.05' L856 

L610 N 40'58'10' W 136.68' L657 

L811 N 07'11'03'W 31.42' L858 
l812 N 04'54'54' E 31.26' L659 
L613 N 31'11'45" E 50.33' L660 
L614 N 34"14'53' E 61.74' L661 
L615 N42'44'11" E 83.05' L862 
L616 N 61'34'40' E 81.30' L663 

L617 N82'48'42' E 86.02' l884 
L618 N 45'54'32' E 45.76' L665 

L619 N 29'49'43' E 48.51' L668 

L820 N 25'30'04' E 72.06' L687 

L821 N 19'29'13' E 93.40' L888 
l822 N 20'39'18" E 59.71' L689 

L623 N 15'48'00' E 88.61' L870 

L624 N 07'05'40' E 94.79' L671 
L825 N 14'2T48"E 76.73' L672 

L626 N 41'13'24' E 130.21' L673 
L827 N 45'22'02' E 145.44' L674 

L628 N 45'02'07' E n.os· L675 
L629 N 52"58'18' E 111.78' L876 

L630 N 58'29'42' E 105.05' Lan 
L631 N 48'17'04' E 150.91 ' L678 

L832 N 31"51'47' E 62.30' L879 
L633 N 23"09'22" E 84.BT L860 
L634 N 07'36'38" E 49.5T L681 
Ul35 N 13'40'15' W 54.92' L682 
L636 N 20'47'17' W 53.81' L883 

L837 N23'01'56" W 95.21' L684 
L838 N 28"41'25'W 114.55' L685 

L639 N 43'36'00'W 60.71' L686 
L840 N 43'36'00' W 60.70' L687 

L841 N 49'18'23' W 55.59' L886 
L842 N 58'33'02' W 54.33' L889 
L643 N 85'08'11' W 26.87' L690 
L644 N 65'06'11' W 26.87' L691 
L645 N 69'41'10' W 24.45' L892 
L648 N 69'41'10"W 24.45' 

MINE BOUNDARY --.._ N:7m e:,_
SECTION LINE 

~~ ½ ~71r:·.,,, 
TCORNER_j

/ L665i 7 S, R. 26 E. 
L66S,I il-664 

L66 1 663 

9 
58 

7 

BEARING DISTANCE 
N 78'14'14' W 21.02' 
N 81 '19'41" W 4&.n· 
N 87'16'40" W 69.86" 633 

32S85'ST29'W 82.80' 
S 85'25'10' W 532.1T 
N 78"42'35' W 119.59' 
N 73'40'49" W 56.7T 
N 51'58'40' W 43.89' 
N 39'00'04" W 142.04' -L627 
N 28'29'43' W 39.73' 
N 24'04'30' W 58.84' L626 
N 24'04'30' W 32.54' L625
N 29'18'20' W 44.85' 
N 38'34'27' W 34.85' ·L624 

·L RESOURCE PROTECTIONN 45' 18'23' W 23.13' 623 
N 50'36'54' W 22.44' L622 AREA "S" 
N 55' 20'24' W 18.12' 621 313.65 Acres 

.,·; N 60' 42'13' W 27.91' 
N 65' 50'38' W 18.21' ~o 
N 71 ' 16'25' W 30.40' 
N n'50'45'W 28.01" 7 MATCHLINE . SHEET 29 ~ /
N 83'13'00"W 20.09' 
S 89'11'45" W 89.42' SHEET28 "Tl m 

18 

-------o;i:-
Cl) 

~-iS 89'10'23" W 65.20' 
S 89'10'08' W 114.80' 
S 89'11'02' W 109.70' 5 .... -I ......... 
N 84'22'18' W 28.97' 3 "-1 ~ 
N 74'51'52' W 34.59' 2 ~oN 60'35'14' W 111.84' 1 U> 0 
N 11 "11'16"W 30.54' -i 
N 17'23'00' W 13.18' ;z:i m 
N 21'33'11" E 27.22' "' ,,

(I)
N 20'08'20' E 29.18' !"N22"43'08' E 29.56' 
N 11' 38'25' E 25.37' 
N 24' 03'58' E 22.71' 
N 28' 41'06' E 25.33' 
N 25'55'21' E 28.12' 
N 20' 23'11' E 21.7T ABBREVIATIONS 
N 18' 56'36' E 29.44' L1 = LINE TABLE DESIGNATION 
N 09' 07'38' E 45.23' O.R. = OFFICIAL RECORDS 
N 03'07'47' E 39.14' PG. = PAGE 
N 04'51'36" W 88.75' POB • PONT-OF-BEGINNING 
N 14"54'35' W 43.88' POC = POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENT
N 87'31'51" E 2445.07' 

R/W = RIGHT-OF-WAYS 04'53'21' E 2688.85' 

MDA PROJECT:RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS 
16027 

SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN
PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 AND 20, TOWNSHIP MAH BMH

47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE: 
11/25/19 

SHEETBONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 30 OF 30 



N• 
wr 

0 1 2 

SCALE OF MILES 

, ~• I 1'1 

I : ·I I' 1---+-··+-··-··L·,-·1 
. \;.~ - W-..i_. LJ 

coLLJER couNrv c 17y0,~ ~~ 
'=====-'===~==========-""-===~~-=====~==--'oo/vfft~r 

VICINITY MAP Dtc I Spl?JfVGs 

~o,.,,._,. 1 <019 
SURVEYOR'S NOTES: Urv1-,.,,, D 
THE DESCRIPTIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE NEW. D£pA.R~~~t:t.r 1 
ORIENTATION BASED ON THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST-QUARTER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 S!:·~ GE,,~6 E. AS 
BEARING N.02°16'13'W. 
UNLESS IT BEARS THE SIGNATURE AND ORIGINAL RAISED SEAL OF A FLORIDA LICENSED SURVEYOR AND MAPPER, AND ALL 
SHEETS ARE INCLUDED, THIS MAP IS NOT VALID. 
THIS IS NOT A SURVEY! 

ABBREVIATIONS 
C/L = CENTERLINE 
L 1 = LINE DESIGNATION 
O.R. = OFFICIAL RECORDS 
PG. = PAGE 
POB = PONT-OF-BEGINNING 
POC = POINT-OF-COMMENCEMENT 
R/W = RIGHT-OF-WAY 

MORRIS f:J 
DEPE , 

ENGN::ERS•~•su:NE'VOAS 
I.NOSCAPENOITECTS 

fl.CANO.M32 f FLCERTN0. U!INlll1 fL.C2800CX!30 

Foltlllyon Talll- -
21'1◄~--- ,.,._............ -~....... .................., 1•,._. ... 
0:,-"'1.-S ,---.~ae,o, .........A... 
'-CDlll"1411i4 re1M:....,..n.t r.ana;:....,,.,n,1 
, ...._-.SW•T.111 

BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 AND 20, 
TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA 

MDA PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKED DRAWN 
MAH BMH 

DAT£: 
11-27-2019 

SHEET 
1 OF22 

Page 112



17 16 

I 
I 
I 
I 

--,I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

UJ - 7 

I 
I o 1320 
~~I 
SCALE OF FEET 

I 1" = 1/4 MILE 

I 

- -,I 

I 
I 
I 

INDEX MAP I 
MOA PROJECT: MORRIS,/r:J RESOURCE PROTECTIONT~iiAS 16027 

DEPE SKETCH AND DES?Jt~: 17 AND 20, CHECKED DRAWN 
ENCIPE£RS •~su:IVEYOAS PARCELS OF LAND~Ni~c;6 EAST, LEE COUNTY, MAH BMH 

LMIIISCAPEFI.CERT NO. LBSlll1 ILCZl0DD330F\.CAN0. 96321 DNlln TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH.FLORIDA DATE:==- .,,___T■la- .::.-_•--.._ 11-27-2019 
irM......Pbl:llo 3an ~~"- ,..__, ra1-.~, SHEETca..,... T41111Ja:••r-nu BONITA GRANDE AGGREGATES 20F22 

Page 113



Page 114

DESCRIPTION: 
A PORTION OF SECTIONS 17 AND 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA, MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS: 

COMMENCING AT THE POINT OF BEGINNING, WHICH IS THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 47 SOUTH, 
RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE NORTH 01 "08'52" WEST FOR 3234.68; THENCE N. 87°43'47" E. A DISTANCE 
OF 2479.83 FEET; THENCE N. 01°13'05" E. A DISTANCE OF 31.29' FEET; THENCE N. 16"21'31" E. A DISTANCE OF 39.24' FEET; 
THENCE N. 25°42'03" E. A DISTANCE OF 35.58' FEET; THENCE N. 29"20'58" E. A DISTANCE OF 27.58' FEET;THENCE N. 
31°22'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 27.54' FEET; THENCE N. 34°08'51" E. A DISTANCE OF 23.49' FEET; THENCE N. 31°39'14" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 29.88' FEET; THENCE N. 25°57'38" E. A DISTANCE OF 33.57' FEET; THENCE N. 26°36'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 
27.33' FEET; THENCE N. 33"35'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 42.63' FEET; THENCE N. 27°42'15" E. A DISTANCE OF 58.64' FEET; 
THENCE N. 27°13'51" E. A DISTANCE OF 64.18' FEET; THENCE N. 20°39'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 46.30' FEET; THENCE N. 
33"00'06" E. A DISTANCE OF 26.79' FEET; THENCE N. 66°52'43" E. A DISTANCE OF 14.17' FEET; THENCE S. 50"52'36" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 12.86' FEET; THENCE S. 24°11'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 12.10' FEET; THENCE S. 00°03'21" W. A DISTANCE OF 
25.48' FEET; THENCE S. 05"23'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 28.74' FEET; THENCE S. 47°50'03" E. A DISTANCE OF 25.99' FEET; 
THENCE S. 39°36'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 40.11' FEET; THENCE S. 37°04'59" E. A DISTANCE OF 43.36' FEET; THENCE S. 
30"46'05" E. A DISTANCE OF 31.33' FEET; THENCE S. 36°25'45" E. A DISTANCE OF 12.23' FEET; 
THENCE S. 32°08'55" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.26' FEET; THENCE S. 26°51'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.16' FEET; THENCE S. 
25°14'18" E. A DISTANCE OF 23.69' FEET; THENCE S. 26"19'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 20.26' FEET; THENCE S. 26°20'29" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 19.76' FEET; THENCE S. 24°22'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.79' FEET; THENCE S. 22°58'40" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.88' 
FEET; THENCE S. 21°02'28" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.15' FEET; THENCE S. 16°14'12" E. A DISTANCE OF 18.93' FEET; THENCE S. 
10°55'10" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.70' FEET; THENCE S. 12"26'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 18.85' FEET; THENCE S.15°03'07" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 21.35' FEET; THENCE$. 19"20'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 27.51' FEET; THENCE S. 16°03'06" E. A DISTANCE OF 18.15' 
FEET; THENCE S. 04°06'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 15.85' FEET THENCE S. 03°44'32" W. A DISTANCE OF 55.06' FEET; 
THENCE S.15°04'55" E. A DISTANCE OF 84.67' FEET; THENCE S. 46°21'18" W. A DISTANCE OF 61.28' FEET; THENCE S. 
51°14'18" W. A DISTANCE OF 70.16' FEET; THENCE S. 68°23'46" W. A DISTANCE OF 40.60' FEET; THENCE S. 75°58'18" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 44.69' FEET; THENCE S. 83°17'58" W. A DISTANCE OF 35.96' FEET; THENCE S. 89"44'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 
75.41' FEET; THENCE N. 69°25'03" W. A DISTANCE OF 31.67' FEET; THENCE N. 61°21'26" W. A DISTANCE OF 36.59' FEET; 
THENCE N. 50°32'37" W. A DISTANCE OF 28.85' FEET; THENCE N. 30°40'39" W. A DISTANCE OF 68.73' FEET; THENCE N. 
23"53'46" W. A DISTANCE OF 49.59' FEET; THENCE N. 17°34'24" W. A DISTANCE OF 63.37' FEET; THENCE N. 20"32'31" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 54.55' FEET; THENCE S. 87°43'47" W. A DISTANCE OF 2479.83 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°08'52" WEST FOR 
345.29 FEET; THENCE N 55°22'56" EA DISTANCE OF 48.28 FEET; THENCE N 71"06'36" EA DISTANCE OF 82.14 FEET; THENCE 
N 65"33'36" EA DISTANCE OF 50.96 FEET; THENCE N 56°53'59" EA DISTANCE OF 71.95 FEET; THENCE N 51"46'53" EA 
DISTANCE OF 33.00 FEET; THENCE N 38°32'40" EA DISTANCE OF 45.33 FEET; THENCE N 28"39'53" EA DISTANCE OF 77.30 
FEET; THENCE N 02°53'49" EA DISTANCE OF 62.08 FEET; THENCE N 06"38'24" WA DISTANCE OF 61.46 FEET; THENCE N 
06"58'18" WA DISTANCE OF 68.65 FEET; THENCE N 36°58'53" WA DISTANCE OF 55.77 FEET; THENCE N 56"25'08" WA 
DISTANCE OF 29.33 FEET; THENCE N 58°18'46" WA DISTANCE OF 64.51 FEET; THENCE N 28"02'00" WA DISTANCE OF 75.49 
FEET; THENCE N 67°40'17" WA DISTANCE OF 49.48 FEET; THENCE N 88°15'36" WA DISTANCE OF 45.68 FEET; THENCE N 
86°11'48" WA DISTANCE OF 61.86 FEET; THENCE N 80°55'08" WA DISTANCE OF 13.41 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01"08'52" WEST 
FOR 208.68 FEET; THENCE N. 87°43'47" E. A DISTANCE OF 1942.31'; THENCE N. 04°22'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 42.69' 
FEET;THENCE N. 08°36'26" E. A DISTANCE OF 66.57' FEET; THENCE N. 27°30'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 60.41' FEET;THENCE N. 
44°33'42" E. A DISTANCE OF 75.43' FEET; THENCE N. 48"29'07" E. A DISTANCE OF 57.31' FEET; THENCE N. 37"47'09" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 62.43' FEET; THENCE N. 30"26'21" E. A DISTANCE OF 79.73' FEET; THENCE N. 40"11'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 
73.49' FEET; THENCE N. 36°20'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 68.08' FEET; THENCE N. 25°09'34" E. A DISTANCE OF 49.79' FEET; 
THENCE N.12°58'50" E. A DISTANCE OF 76.61' FEET; THENCE N. 19°55'42" E. A DISTANCE OF 61.64' FEET; THENCE N. 
37°48'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 57.53' FEET; THENCE N. 65°33'06" E. A DISTANCE OF 115.70' FEET; THENCE N. 74"55'12" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 54.99' FEET; THENCE N. 79°13'24" E. A DISTANCE OF 44.22' FEET; THENCE N. 71"04'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 
42.41' FEET; THENCE N. 85°02'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 41 .34' FEET; THENCE N. 89°06'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 76.94' FEET; 
THENCE S. 64°28'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 49.26' FEET; THENCE S. 31"55'46" E. A DISTANCE OF 40.15' FEET; THENCE S. 
17°09'07" E. A DISTANCE OF 55.33' FEET; THENCE S. 13°08'58" E. A DISTANCE OF 45.81' FEET; THENCE S. 04°19'39" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 54.50' FEET; THENCE S. 13°57'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 36.52' FEET; THENCE S. 11°57'47" E. A DISTANCE OF 
46.55' FEET; THENCE S. 21°37'39" E. A DISTANCE OF 38.98' FEET; THENCE S. 26°07'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 34.73' FEET; 
THENCE S. 27°39'54" E. A DISTANCE OF 51.72' FEET; THENCE S. 24°20'54" E. A DISTANCE OF 39.32' FEET; THENCE S. 
11°36'05" E. A DISTANCE OF 46.01' FEET; THENCE S. 13"13'00" E. A DISTANCE OF 35.67' FEET; THENCE S. 22"01'09" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 86.09' FEET; THENCE S. 32°36'38" W. A DISTANCE OF 56.86' FEET; THENCE S. 41°58'10" W. A DISTANCE OF 
37.38' FEET; THENCE S. 29"18'10" W. A DISTANCE OF 53.11' FEET; THENCE S. 33"53'18" W. A DISTANCE OF 50.66' FEET; 

~ 
RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS L 

SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 
PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 20 , TOWNSHIP 47ENOINEERS • P\..N,IIERS • ~ ~-= 

FLC\N0.11153:t l FLCERTNO. LBealll / ~ SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
Folt~ Taa..a- -a1,~,..,.. 111._..._....,.. •a.ci.....,.. 
,......~... 1tt,_,. .... 
C:11111117.- , ..,__,.._IZIDI .........._lllmaat 
F-=:ca:Mll»741M fel.......,.,n,,,1 Talt-=aNSNMI BONITA GRANDE AGGREGATES , ....Nl-mNM, 

MDA PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKED! DRAWN 
MAHI 

DATE: 
11-27-2019 

SHEET 
3OF22 



Page 115

DESCRIPTION: 
(CONTINUED) 

THENCE S. 59°44'54" W. A DISTANCE OF 68.68' FEET; THENCE S. 79"53'28" W. A DISTANCE OF 57.32' FEET; THENCE N. 
89°56'55" W. A DISTANCE OF 73.17' FEET; THENCE S. 82°07'32" W. A DISTANCE OF 62.62' FEET; THENCE N. 85°21'35" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 16.68' FEET; THENCE S. 65°17'27" W. A DISTANCE OF 43.06' FEET; THENCE S. 45"42'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 
54.88' FEET; THENCE S. 31°57'01" W. A DISTANCE OF 58.00' FEET;THENCE S. 32"51'08" W. A DISTANCE OF 57.01 ' FEET; 
THENCE S. 51°36'04" W. A DISTANCE OF 38.66' FEET; THENCE N. 86"24'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 133.38' FEET; THENCE N. 
71°01'37" W. A DISTANCE OF 103.43' FEET; THENCE N. 66°29'04" W. A DISTANCE OF 71.76' FEET; THENCE N. 41°18'22" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 70.37' FEET; THENCE N. 32"39'40" W. A DISTANCE OF 44.85' FEET; THENCE N. 20°52'15" W. A DISTANCE OF 
36.36' FEET; THENCE S. 87°43'47" W. A DISTANCE OF 1942.31 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01 "08'52" WEST FOR 685.91 FEET; 
THENCE N. 87°43'47" E. A DISTANCE OF 225.17 FEET; THENCE N. 00"36'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 139.23' FEET;THENCE N. 
04"38'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 82.92' FEET; THENCE 
N.88°04'03" E. ALONG A LINE LYING 0.40 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES, AND PARALLEL TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DISTANCE OF 157.12' FEET; THENCE S. 87°50'06" E. A DISTANCE OF 87.62' FEET; 
THENCE S. 87"28'58" E. A DISTANCE OF 67.89' FEET; THENCE S. 89"15'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 48.37' FEET; THENCE 
S.89°02'41" E. A DISTANCE OF 116.95' FEET; THENCE S. 80°32'28" E. A DISTANCE OF 49.30' FEET; THENCE S. 38°14'36" EA 
DISTANCE OF 34.92' FEET; THENCE S. 27°46'56" E. A DISTANCE OF 33.82' FEET; THENCE S. 19°21'55" E. A DISTANCE OF 
25.64' FEET; THENCE S. 29°54'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 49.50' FEET; THENCE S. 17°42'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 47.25' FEET; 
THENCE S. 04"11'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 42.14' FEET; THENCE S. 09°15'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 91.49' FEET; THENCE 
S. 16°18'24" W. A DISTANCE OF 55.83' FEET; THENCE S. 33°20'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 63.40' FEET; THENCE S. 81"17'42" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 38.92' FEET; THENCE N. 73°53'37" E. A DISTANCE OF 109.75' FEET; THENCE N. 73°48'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 
138.12' FEET; THENCE N. 67°57'28" E. A DISTANCE OF 71.89' FEET; THENCE N. 57"15'57" E. A DISTANCE OF 72.57' FEET; 
THENCE S. 62°49'15" E. A DISTANCE OF 28.21' FEET; THENCE S. 31°48'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 54.25' FEET; THENCE 
S.09°43'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 165.45' FEET; THENCE S. 40°57'55" E. A DISTANCE OF 93.07' FEET; THENCE S. 35"21'11" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 60.97' FEET; THENCE S. 24°57'58" E. A DISTANCE OF 12.08' FEET; THENCE S. 10°34'57" E. A DISTANCE OF 
98.56' FEET; THENCE S. 00°44'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 132.31' FEET; THENCE S. 01°33'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 89.17' FEET; 
THENCE S. 08°27'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 115.57' FEET; THENCE S. 70°24'40" W. A DISTANCE OF 47.56' FEET; THENCE 
N.74°47'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 155.07' FEET; THENCE N. 81°46'23" W. A DISTANCE OF 175.92' FEET; THENCE N.78°18'59" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 103.82' FEET; THENCE N. 63°36'40" W. A DISTANCE OF 147.80' FEET; THENCE N. 68°08'53" W. A DISTANCE OF 
50.77' FEET; THENCE N. 51°21'21" W. A DISTANCE OF 42.38' FEET; THENCE N. 55°09'33" W. A DISTANCE OF 28.55' FEET; 
THENCE N. 39°16'45" W. A DISTANCE OF 19.17' FEET; THENCE N. 18°10'54" W. A DISTANCE OF 235.59' FEET; THENCE N. 
31°59'11" W. A DISTANCE OF 41.38' FEET; THENCE N. 45°08'29" W. A DISTANCE OF 80.13' FEET; THENCE N. 51°52'35" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 244.65' FEET; THENCE N. 62°47'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 32.93' FEET; THENCE N. 54°54'15" W. A DISTANCE OF 
39.01' FEET; THENCE N. 55°04'14" W. A DISTANCE OF 71 .87' FEET; THENCE N. 57°56'58" W. A DISTANCE OF 31.70' FEET; 
THENCE N. 44°02'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 36.73' FEET; THENCE N. 14°02'51" W. A DISTANCE OF 54.61' FEET; THENCE S. 
87°43'47" W. A DISTANCE OF 225.17 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°08'52" WEST FOR 368.81 FEET; THENCE N. 85"22'17" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 3080.63'; THENCE N. 19°05'24" E. A DISTANCE OF 16.07' FEET; THENCE N. 36°23'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.33' 
FEET; THENCE N. 06°47'57" W. A DISTANCE OF 33.00' FEET; THENCE N. 62°35'24" E. A DISTANCE OF 23.79' FEET; THENCE N. 
20°17'27" E. A DISTANCE OF 13.95' FEET; THENCE N. 26°48'52" E. A DISTANCE OF 37.93' FEET; THENCE N. 50°38'48" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 35.17' FEET; THENCE N. 53°14'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 13.24' FEET; THENCE S. 78"24'03" E. A DISTANCE OF 15.89' 
FEET; THENCE N. 78°14'50" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.37' FEET; THENCE N. 51"24'43" E. A DISTANCE OF 7.00' FEET; THENCE N. 
22°10'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 25.51' FEET; THENCE N. 57"29'12" W. A DISTANCE OF 30.70' FEET; THENCE N. 18"24'44" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 15.89' FEET; THENCE N. 33°59'31" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.08' FEET; THENCE S. 87°49'41" E. A DISTANCE OF 
28.30' FEET; THENCE S. 74°04'26" E. A DISTANCE OF 33.30' FEET; THENCE S. 53"05'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 116.76' FEET; 
THENCE S. 77°34'58" E. A DISTANCE OF 45.16' FEET; THENCE S. 00°38'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 103.97' FEET; THENCE S. 
03°41'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 76.45' FEET; THENCE S. 33"41'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 29.85' FEET; THENCE S.18°24'59" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 32.68' FEET; THENCE S. 30°43'01" W. A DISTANCE OF 30.63' FEET; THENCE N. 47°08'41" W. A DISTANCE OF 
16.60' FEET; THENCE S. 79°50'03" W. A DISTANCE OF 25.25' FEET; THENCE S. 59°51'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 33.48' FEET; 
THENCE S. 79°54'06" W. A DISTANCE OF 35.35' FEET; THENCE S. 81°55'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 27.48' FEET; THENCE N. 
65°37'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 39.19' FEET; THENCE N. 56°30'44" W. A DISTANCE OF 28.90' FEET; THENCE N. 48°49'20" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 24.91' FEET; THENCE N. 49"57'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 24.77' FEET; THENCE N. 31°34'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 
30.68' FEET; THENCE N. 16°51'59" W. A DISTANCE OF 27.97' FEET; THENCE N. 33°33'23" W. A DISTANCE OF 17.24' FEET; 
THENCE N. 57°13'39" W. A DISTANCE OF 10.89' FEET; THENCE N. 79°18'51" W. A DISTANCE OF 27.29' FEET;THENCE S. 
85"22'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 3080.63 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01 °08'52" WEST FOR 711.77 FEET; THENCE N. 85"22'17" E. A 

~ 
RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS L 

SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 
ENQINEEFIS • PI.N,NEAS • Slftv!EYOAS PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 20 ,TOWNSHIP 47 

u'HlSCN'EAACH!a:TS 
FL CA N0. 11632 I FLCEATNO.L.1181191/ LC2e000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Foti..,_ T- -1114~.....,_ 11,................. • ........... 
Fort..,...Rlflitt.~ 1..... .... cza a,.-. Taa.-.fbldl _.. ....._....,,..... 
'-CZllt~ T.thc--•J:l,il Tll~~I BONITA GRANDE AGGREGATES , ..ao.-.&11-Jkt 

M0A PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKED! DRAWN 
MAHIBMH 

DATE: 
11-27-2019 

SHEET 
40F22 



Page 116

DESCRIPTION: 
(CONTINUED) 

THENCE S. 59°44'54" W, A DISTANCE OF 68.68' FEET; THENCE S. 79°53'28" W. A DISTANCE OF 57.32' FEET; THENCE N. 
89°56'55" W. A DISTANCE OF 73.17' FEET; THENCE S. 82°07'32• W. A DISTANCE OF 62.62' FEET; THENCE N. 85°21 '35" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 16.68' FEET; THENCE S. 65°17'27" W. A DISTANCE OF 43.06' FEET; THENCE S. 45°42'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 
54.88' FEET; THENCE s. 31°57'01" W. A DISTANCE OF 58.00' FEET;THENCE s. 32°51'08" w. A DISTANCE OF 57.01' FEET; 
THENCE S. 51°36'04" W. A DISTANCE OF 38.66' FEET; THENCE N. 86°24'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 133.38' FEET; THENCE N. 
71°01'37" W. A DISTANCE OF 103.43' FEET; THENCE N. 66°29'04" W. A DISTANCE OF 71.76' FEET; THENCE N. 41"18'22• W. A 
DISTANCE OF 70.37' FEET; THENCE N. 32°39'40" W. A DISTANCE OF 44.85' FEET; THENCE N. 20°52'15" W. A DISTANCE OF 
36.36' FEET; THENCE S. 87"43'47" W. A DISTANCE OF 1942.31 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°08'52"WEST FOR 685.91 FEET; 
THENCE N. 87°43'47" E. A DISTANCE OF 225.17 FEET; THENCE N. 00"36'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 139.23' FEET;THENCE N. 
04°38'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 82.92' FEET; THENCE 
N.88°04'03" E. ALONG A LINE LYING 0.40 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES, AND PARALLEL TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 20, A DISTANCE OF 157.12' FEET; THENCE S. 87°50'06" E. A DISTANCE OF 87.62' FEET; 
THENCE S. 87"28'58" E. A DISTANCE OF 67.89' FEET; THENCE S. 89"15'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 48.37' FEET; THENCE 
S.89"02'41" E. A DISTANCE OF 116.95' FEET; THENCE S. 80"32'28" E. A DISTANCE OF 49.30' FEET; THENCE S. 38°14'36" EA 
DISTANCE OF 34.92' FEET; THENCE S. 27°46'56" E. A DISTANCE OF 33.82' FEET; THENCE S. 19°21'55" E. A DISTANCE OF 
25.64' FEET; THENCE S. 29°54'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 49.50' FEET; THENCE S. 17°42'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 47.25' FEET; 
THENCE S. 04"11'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 42.14' FEET; THENCE S. 09°15'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 91.49' FEET; THENCE 
S. 16°18'24" W. A DISTANCE OF 55.83' FEET; THENCE S. 33°20'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 63.40' FEET; THENCE S. 81"17'42" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 38.92' FEET; THENCE N. 73°53'37" E. A DISTANCE OF 109.75' FEET; THENCE N. 73"48'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 
138.12' FEET; THENCE N. 67°57'28" E. A DISTANCE OF 71.89' FEET; THENCE N. 57°15'57" E. A DISTANCE OF 72.57' FEET; 
THENCE S. 62°49'15" E. A DISTANCE OF 28.21' FEET; THENCE S. 31°48'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 54.25' FEET; THENCE 
S.09°43'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 165.45' FEET; THENCE S. 40°57'55" E. A DISTANCE OF 93.07' FEET; THENCE S. 35°21'11" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 60.97' FEET; THENCE S. 24°57'58" E. A DISTANCE OF 12.08' FEET; THENCE S. 10°34'5r E. A DISTANCE OF 
98.56' FEET; THENCE S. 00°44'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 132.31' FEET; THENCE S. 01°33'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 89.17' FEET; 
THENCE S. 08°27'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 115.57' FEET; THENCE S. 70"24'40" W. A DISTANCE OF 47.56' FEET; THENCE 
N.74°47'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 155.07' FEET; THENCE N. 81°46'23" W. A DISTANCE OF 175.92' FEET; THENCE N.78°18'59" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 103.82' FEET; THENCE N. 63°36'40" w. A DISTANCE OF 147.80' FEET; THENCE N. 68°08'53" w. A DISTANCE OF 
50.77' FEET; THENCE N. 51°21'21" W. A DISTANCE OF 42.38' FEET; THENCE N. 55°09'33" W. A DISTANCE OF 28.55' FEET; 
THENCE N. 39"16'45" W. A DISTANCE OF 19.17' FEET; THENCE N. 19•10•54• W. A DISTANCE OF 235.59' FEET; THENCE N. 
31°59'11" w. A DISTANCE OF 41.38' FEET; THENCE N. 45°08'29" w. A DISTANCE OF 80.13' FEET; THENCE N. 51°52'35" w. A 
DISTANCE OF 244.65' FEET; THENCE N. 62°47'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 32.93' FEET; THENCE N. 54°54'15" W. A DISTANCE OF 
39.01' FEET; THENCE N. 55°04'14" W. A DISTANCE OF 71.87' FEET; THENCE N. 57°56'58" W. A DISTANCE OF 31.70' FEET; 
THENCE N. 44°02'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 36.73' FEET; THENCE N. 14°02'51" W. A DISTANCE OF 54.61' FEET; THENCE S. 
87°43'47" W. A DISTANCE OF 225.17 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01 "08'52" WEST FOR 368.81 FEET; THENCE N. 85°22'17" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 3080.63'; THENCE N. 19°05'24" E. A DISTANCE OF 16.07' FEET; THENCE N. 36"23'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.33' 
FEET; THENCE N. 06°47'57" W. A DISTANCE OF 33.00' FEET; THENCE N. 62°35'24" E. A DISTANCE OF 23.79' FEET; THENCE N. 
20°17'27" E. A DISTANCE OF 13.95' FEET; THENCE N. 26°48'52" E. A DISTANCE OF 37.93' FEET; THENCE N. 50°38'48" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 35.17' FEET; THENCE N. 53°14'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 13.24' FEET; THENCE S. 78"24'03" E. A DISTANCE OF 15.89' 
FEET; THENCE N. 78°14'50• E. A DISTANCE OF 21.37' FEET; THENCE N. 51•24•43• E. A DISTANCE OF 7.00' FEET; THENCE N. 
22°10'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 25.51' FEET; THENCE N. 57°29'12" W. A DISTANCE OF 30.70' FEET; THENCE N. 18°24'44" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 15.89' FEET; THENCE N. 33°59'31" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.08' FEET; THENCE S. 87°49'41" E. A DISTANCE OF 
28.30' FEET; THENCE S. 74•04•25• E. A DISTANCE OF 33.30' FEET; THENCE S. 53°05'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 116.76' FEET; 
THENCE S. 77"34'58" E. A DISTANCE OF 45.16' FEET; THENCE S. 00"38'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 103.97' FEET; THENCE S. 
03"41'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 76.45' FEET; THENCE S. 33"41'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 29.85' FEET; THENCE S. 18°24'59" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 32.68' FEET; THENCE S. 30•43•01• W. A DISTANCE OF 30.63' FEET; THENCE N. 47°08'41" W. A DISTANCE OF 
16.60' FEET; THENCE S. 79"50'03" W. A DISTANCE OF 25.25' FEET; THENCE S. 59•51•05• W. A DISTANCE OF 33.48' FEET; 
THENCE S. 79°54'06" W. A DISTANCE OF 35.35' FEET; THENCE S. 81 "55'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 27.48' FEET; THENCE N. 
65°37'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 39.19' FEET; THENCE N. 56°30'44" W. A DISTANCE OF 28.90' FEET; THENCE N. 48"49'20" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 24.91' FEET; THENCE N. 49°57'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 24.77' FEET; THENCE N. 31°34'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 
30.68' FEET; THENCE N. 16°51'59" W. A DISTANCE OF 27.97' FEET; THENCE N. 33"33'23" W. A DISTANCE OF 17.24' FEET; 
THENCE N. 57°13'39" W. A DISTANCE OF 10.89' FEET; THENCE N. 79°18'51" W. A DISTANCE OF 27.29' FEET;THENCE S. 
85°22'17" w. A DISTANCE OF 3080.63 FEET: THENCE NORTH 01°08'52" WEST FOR 711.77 FEET; THENCE N. 85°22'17" E. A 

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS L-.T~!l r:JY DEPE SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 
ENlNteAS • PlAHtERS • SLfNEY0RS PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 20 , TOWNSHIP 47 

~AAC:tfTECTS 
'I.CA NO. 8632/ '1. CERTNO. Ulll891 / LC2e000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

FOIi..,_. T- -
•1111Clltwlllfld Al,wu 11i.............. -a...~FOl't.....,...__ ... 1..... .... 
41911117,.- T.......... llblM 3DDt ........._fl.... 
FacCD1t"141111 Tal--~-Jl,III Tol"-.....,,._1 BONITA GRANDE AGGREGATESlei.,_M1411-1t41 

MDA PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECICEDI DRAWN 
MAH I BMH 

DATE: 
11-27-2019 

SHEET 
5OF22 



Page 117

DESCRIPTION: 
(CONTINUED) 

DISTANCE OF 2014.19' FEET; THENCE N. 55°43'21" E. A DISTANCE OF 30.66' FEET; THENCE N. 61°53'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 
26.07' FEET; THENCE N. 75°08'46" E. A DISTANCE OF 19.34' FEET; THENCE N. 79°23'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 22.32 FEET; 
THENCE N. 60°56'59" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.29' FEET; THENCE N. 74°18'25" E. A DISTANCE OF 13.25' FEET; THENCE N. 
88°48'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.58' FEET;THENCE N. 87°10'25" E. A DISTANCE OF 16.15' FEET; THENCE S. 89°43'05" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 14.16' FEET; THENCE S. 84°43'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 10.89' FEET; THENCE S. 79°59'56" E. A DISTANCE OF 12.32' 
FEET; THENCE S. 86°58'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 43.25' FEET; THENCE S. 87°08'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 40.25' FEET;THENCE S. 
76°20'10" E. A DISTANCE OF 55.40' FEET; THENCE s. 81°16'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 64.59' FEET; THENCE s. 86°00'14" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 51.56' FEET; THENCE N. 76°29'50" E. A DISTANCE OF 79.36' FEET; THENCE N. 66°15'34" E. A DISTANCE OF 
52.47' FEET; THENCE N. 69°50'28" E. A DISTANCE OF 95.61' FEET; THENCE N. 69°08'52" E. A DISTANCE OF 10.30' FEET; 
THENCE N. 86°14'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 8.95' FEET; THENCE N. 80°33'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 14.27' FEET; THENCE S. 82°33'31" 
E. A DISTANCE OF 10.96' FEET; THENCE S. 78°19'39" E. A DISTANCE OF 10.47' FEET; THENCE S. 64°45'33" E. A DISTANCE OF 
12.53' FEET; THENCE S. 59°04'12" E. A DISTANCE OF 17.92' FEET; THENCE S. 66°38'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 22.22' FEET; 
THENCE S. 71°28'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.42' FEET; THENCE S. 71°39'01" E. A DISTANCE OF 20.48' FEET; THENCE S. 
66°55'43" E. A DISTANCE OF 12.48' FEET; THENCE S. 65°33'14" E. A DISTANCE OF 18.29' FEET; THENCE S. 68°29'17" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 16.10' FEET; THENCE S. 74°34'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 23.77' FEET; THENCE S. 74°55'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 17.15' 
FEET; THENCE S. 73"27'53" E. A DISTANCE OF 16.09' FEET; THENCE S. 69"52'05" E. A DISTANCE OF 16.61' FEET; THENCE S. 
68°50'08" E. A DISTANCE OF 15.37' FEET;THENCE S. 76°56'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 17.60' FEET; THENCE S. 69°11'18• E. A 
DISTANCE OF 14.54' FEET;THENCE S. 61°01"10" E. A DISTANCE OF 12.64' FEET; THENCE S. 44°18'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 10.04' 
FEET;THENCE S. 20°13'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 17.33' FEET; THENCE S. 11"24'40" E. A DISTANCE OF 16.18' FEET;THENCE S. 
05•33•13• E. A DISTANCE OF 21 .68' FEET; THENCE S. 08°50'08" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.74' FEET;THENCE S. 22°08'29" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 14.88' FEET; THENCE S. 14°06'59" W. A DISTANCE OF 18.95' FEET;THENCE S. 17°54'35" W. A DISTANCE OF 
17.11' FEET;THENCE S.16°32'29" W. A DISTANCE OF 15.97' FEET;THENCE S. 06°09'11" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.90' FEET; 
THENCE s. 15°09'41" W. A DISTANCE OF 25.41' FEET; THENCE s. 28°01•35• W. A DISTANCE OF 30.15' FEET; THENCE s. 
33°42'25" W. A DISTANCE OF 17.39' FEET;THENCE S. 36°48'5,■ W. A DISTANCE OF 12.65' FEET; THENCE S. 39°41'04" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 10.87' FEET;THENCE S. 47°36'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 8.10' FEET; THENCE S. 53°28'07" W. A DISTANCE OF 9.54' 
FEET;THENCE S. 55°33'11" W. A DISTANCE OF 12.38' FEET; THENCE S. 54°18'09" W. A DISTANCE OF 18.20' FEET; THENCE S. 
56°23'27" W. A DISTANCE OF 11.07' FEET; THENCE S. 63°29'27" W. A DISTANCE OF 12.98' FEET; THENCE S. 73°33'18" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 6.83' FEET; THENCE S. 87°26'42" W. A DISTANCE OF 11.31' FEET; THENCE N. 81°17'45" W. A DISTANCE OF 12.12' 
FEET; THENCE N. 77°14'14" W. A DISTANCE OF 12.35' FEET; THENCE N. 74°32'08" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.35' FEET; THENCE N. 
72°49'58" W. A DISTANCE OF 11.50' FEET; THENCE N. 76°56'33" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.52' FEET; THENCE N. 87°12'49" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 16.18' FEET; THENCE S. 70°32'23" W. A DISTANCE OF 81.75' FEET; THENCE S. 62"23'49" W. A DISTANCE OF 
61.07' FEET; THENCE S. 44°43'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 71 .91' FEET; THENCE S. 44"53'13" W. A DISTANCE OF 8.58' FEET; 
THENCE S. 51°19'10" W. A DISTANCE OF 10.32' FEET; THENCE S. 52°06'25" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.59' FEET; THENCE S. 
50°11'16" W. A DISTANCE OF 11.48' FEET; THENCE S. 55°54'48" W. A DISTANCE OF 9.09' FEET; THENCE S. 71°23'24" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 13.46' FEET; THENCE S. 80°48'15" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.75' FEET; THENCE S. 76°32'35° W. A DISTANCE OF 
14.18' FEET; THENCE S. 68°23'08" W. A DISTANCE OF 17.45' FEET; THENCE S. 61°26'15" W. A DISTANCE OF 9.90' FEET; 
THENCE S. 72°33'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 31.06 FEET; THENCE S. 71°19'10" W. A DISTANCE OF 82.09 FEET; THENCE N. 
78°20'15" W. A DISTANCE OF 60.76' FEET; THENCE S. 55°06'38" W. A DISTANCE OF 95.65' FEET; THENCE N. 49°23'01" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 122.47 FEET; THENCE N. 40°39'28" W. A DISTANCE OF 114.06' FEET; THENCE N. 15°04'58" W. A DISTANCE OF 
243.93FEET; THENCE S. 85°22'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 2014.19 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID AGREED UPON LINE 
NORTH 01"06'50" WEST 230.54 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°58'01" WEST 191.18 FEET ALONG AN AGREED UPON LINE PER 
OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2061. PAGE 3137, AND PAGE 3139 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA TO THE 
WEST LINE OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 47, SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG 
SAID AGREED UPON LINE WHICH IS THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 17 N. 04"41 '04" WEST FOR 513.82 FEET; THENCE N. 
85°22'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 761.86 FEET; THENCE N. 20°28'59" E. A DISTANCE OF 69.81' FEET; THENCE N. 41°23'28" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 66.92' FEET; THENCE N. 50°42'46" E. A DISTANCE OF 76.86' FEET; THENCE N. 54°14'37" E. A DISTANCE OF 
67.66' FEET; THENCE N. 76°53'27" E. A DISTANCE OF 60.07' FEET; THENCE S. 80"13'36" E. A DISTANCE OF 64.11' FEET; 
THENCE S. 73°38'46" E. A DISTANCE OF 77.12' FEET; THENCE S. 71°02'15" E. A DISTANCE OF 66.80' FEET; THENCE S. 
82°59'55" E. A DISTANCE OF 74.57' FEET; THENCE S. 87°24'10" E. A DISTANCE OF 81.33' FEET; THENCE N. 84°21'00" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 145.16' FEET; THENCE N. 81°13'18" E. A DISTANCE OF 82.22' FEET; THENCE S. 89°56'42" E. A DISTANCE OF 
81.25' FEET; THENCE S. 87°09'18" E. A DISTANCE OF 74.11' FEET; THENCE S. 85°03'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 126.84' FEET; 
THENCE S. 70°34'40" E. A DISTANCE OF 103.34' FEET; THENCE S. 31°58'31" E. A DISTANCE OF 85.10' FEET; THENCE S. 

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS L 

~ SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 
ENGINEERS• PlNfERS • ~ PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 20 , TOWNSHIP 47-ARCMIECTII

FL CA NO. 9632 / FL C8U NO. ~1 l lCNl000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
Fo,tMyo,o T- -....~,,.,.,. ,.s.............. -~~ ,.....,..... ..., ,..... ..... 
czaar,.as T.,_,,....__, ,.__....,,fll._., 
Fa:icctlltt314M4 Telt..-.m7-JMI TCIIINC~I BONITA GRANDE AGGREGATES , ..... ...a1N:141 

MDA PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKED! DRAWN 
MAHI 

DATE: 
11-27-2019 

SHEET 
6OF22 

https://czaar,.as


Page 118

DESCRIPTION: 
(CONTINUED) 

04°08'44" E. A DISTANCE OF 191.36' FEET; THENCE S. 03°09'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 79.59' FEET; THENCE S. 09°47'46" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 78.15' FEET; THENCE S. 10°12'20" W. A DISTANCE OF 89.41' FEET; THENCE S. 23"17'35" W. A DISTANCE OF 
53.11' FEET; THENCE S. 62°15'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 77.50' FEET; THENCE S. 87°13'39" W. A DISTANCE OF 62.99' FEET; 
THENCE N. 69°25'44" W. A DISTANCE OF 74.12' FEET; THENCE N. 51°15'19" W. A DISTANCE OF 37.47' FEET; THENCE N. 
60°27'09" W. A DISTANCE OF 36.29' FEET; THENCE N. 59°34'42" W. A DISTANCE OF 81.41' FEET; THENCE N. 49°36'28" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 39.99' FEET; THENCE N. 64°56'58" W. A DISTANCE OF 50.45' FEET; THENCE N. 85"33'02" W. A DISTANCE OF 
59.61' FEET; THENCE N. 77°13'57" W. A DISTANCE OF 48.43' FEET; THENCE N. 55"33'09" W. A DISTANCE OF 99.73' FEET; 
THENCE N. 48°05'41" W. A DISTANCE OF 59.33' FEET; THENCE N. 61 °15'45" W. A DISTANCE OF 72.96' FEET; THENCE N. 
75°23'03" W. A DISTANCE OF 78.73' FEET; THENCE N. 88°43'38" W. A DISTANCE OF 71.65' FEET; THENCE S. 64°31'00" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 38.85' FEET; THENCE S. 72"32'43" W. A DISTANCE OF 30.36' FEET; THENCE S. 72°19'35" W. A DISTANCE OF 
40.00' FEET; THENCE S. 74°48'50" W. A DISTANCE OF 52.13' FEET; THENCE N. 83°06'32" W. A DISTANCE OF 76.75' FEET; 
THENCE N. 59°00'21" W. A DISTANCE OF 71.08' FEET; THENCE N. 38"37'55" W. A DISTANCE OF 87.78' FEET; THENCE N. 
06°24'36" W. A DISTANCE OF 81.25' FEET; THENCE S. 85°22'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 761.86 FEET; THENCE N. 04°41'04" WEST 
FOR 174.61 FEET; THENCE N. 85"22'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 298.27' FEET; THENCE N. 09°58'33" W. A DISTANCE OF 221.54' 
FEET; THENCE N. 50°08'44" E. A DISTANCE OF 14.97' FEET; THENCE N. 01°11'21" W. A DISTANCE OF 54.04' FEET; THENCE N. 
31"11'30" E. A DISTANCE OF 9.73' FEET; THENCE N. 61°52'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 11.41' FEET; THENCE S. 82°53'21" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 43.90' FEET; THENCE S. 83°42'02" E. A DISTANCE OF 32.42' FEET; THENCE S. 73°34'37" E. A DISTANCE OF 
46.44' FEET; THENCE S. 72°06'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 31.21' FEET; THENCE S. 72"26'32" E. A DISTANCE OF 27.95' FEET; 
THENCE S. 35°19'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 21.16' FEET; THENCE S.10°16'45" E. A DISTANCE OF 63.45' FEET; THENCE S. 
07°33'43" E. A DISTANCE OF 57.21' FEET; THENCE S. 13°09'41" E. A DISTANCE OF 50.92' FEET; THENCE S. 08°40'50" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 58.32' FEET; THENCE S. 01"38'40" W. A DISTANCE OF 34.44' FEET; THENCE S. 19°54'03" W. A DISTANCE OF 
37.46' FEET; THENCE S. 01°47'51" E. A DISTANCE OF 35.45' FEET; THENCE S. 11°59'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 31.01' FEET; 
THENCE S. 66°30'57" W. A DISTANCE OF 14.44' FEET; THENCE N. 71"14'16" W. A DISTANCE OF 37.57' FEET; THENCE N. 
65°53'04" W. A DISTANCE OF 51.47' FEET; THENCE N. 64°33'35" W. A DISTANCE OF 27.79' FEET; THENCE N. 55°21'39" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 24.95' FEET; THENCE N. 44°53'50" W. A DISTANCE OF 55.70' FEET; THENCE N. 26"40'11" W. A DISTANCE OF 
34.39' FEET; THENCE S. 85°22'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 298.27' FEET; THENCE N. 04°41'04" WEST FOR 4.92 FEET; THENCE N 
82°50'45" EA DISTANCE OF 126.54 FEET; THENCE N 02°22'12" WA DISTANCE OF 415.88 FEET; THENCE N 21"45'55" WA 
DISTANCE OF 51.64 FEET; THENCE N 88°54'12" WA DISTANCE OF 117.28 FEET; THENCE S 85°22'17" WA DISTANCE OF 10.90 
FEET; THENCE; N. 04°41'04" WEST FOR 246.31 FEET; THENCE N. 85"22'17" E. A DISTANCE OF 2836.62' FEET; THENCE N. 
23"29'18" W. A DISTANCE OF 99.83' FEET; THENCE N.12•59•30• E. A DISTANCE OF 63.22' FEET; THENCE N.18°56'52" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 115.55' FEET; THENCE N. 88"55'03" E. A DISTANCE OF 97.60' FEET; THENCE S. 88°07'15" E. A DISTANCE OF 
80.68' FEET; THENCE S. 87°26'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 80.23' FEET; THENCE S. 84°26'49" E. A DISTANCE OF 85.62' FEET; 
THENCE S. 66°39'35" E. A DISTANCE OF 57.07' FEET; THENCE N. 89"19'48" E. A DISTANCE OF 51.13' FEET; THENCE S. 
25°57'22" w. A DISTANCE OF 39.89' FEET; THENCE s. e2•50•05• w. A DISTANCE OF 63.52' FEET; THENCE s. 36°47'44" w. A 
DISTANCE OF 38.54' FEET; THENCE S. 19"22'52" W. A DISTANCE OF 78.57' FEET; THENCE S. 36"24'47" W. A DISTANCE OF 
76.06' FEET;THENCE S. 28"20'05" W. A DISTANCE OF 70.81' FEET; THENCE N. 75°41'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 265.39' FEET; 
THENCE S. 85°22'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 2836.62' FEET; THENCE N. 04•41•04• WEST FOR 358.72 FEET; THENCE N. 85"22'17" E. 
A DISTANCE OF 1935.36' FEET; THENCE N. 22°46'07" E. A DISTANCE OF 45.15' FEET; THENCE N. 09°45'11" E. A DISTANCE OF 
41.14' FEET; THENCE N. 24•13•17• E. A DISTANCE OF 31.44' FEET; THENCE N. 10"30'09" E. A DISTANCE OF 38.22' FEET; 
THENCE N. 03°07'39" w. A DISTANCE OF 35.66' FEET; THENCE N. 03°38'04" E. A DISTANCE OF 47.57' FEET; THENCE N. 
22°14'29" E. A DISTANCE OF 28.84' FEET; THENCE N. 12•13•1a· w. A DISTANCE OF 23.28' FEET; THENCE N. 02"43'05" w. A 
DISTANCE OF 75.14' FEET; THENCE N. 22"51'56" W. A DISTANCE OF 46.31• FEET; THENCE N. 24"08'54" W. A DISTANCE OF 
34.80' FEET; THENCE N. 01 *06'23• E. A DISTANCE OF 39.66' FEET; THENCE N. 00•49•30• E. A DISTANCE OF 41.59' FEET; 
THENCE N. 39°08'34" E. A DISTANCE OF 79.38' FEET; THENCE N. 70"29'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 86.05' FEET; THENCE S. 
57"25'22" E. A DISTANCE OF 79.82' FEET; THENCE s. 57•00•09• E. A DISTANCE OF 45.75' FEET; THENCE s. 29°26'39" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 51.74' FEET; THENCE S. 17"24'52" E. A DISTANCE OF 62.14' FEET; THENCE S.16°33'00" W. A DISTANCE OF 
29.60' FEET; THENCE S.12°39'44" W. A DISTANCE OF 51 .63' FEET; THENCE S. 58"35'52" W. A DISTANCE OF 42.96' FEET; 
THENCE S. 84°28'49" W. A DISTANCE OF 22.58' FEET; THENCE S. 10&24'57" E. A DISTANCE OF 80.62' FEET; THENCE S. 
27"19'06" E. A DISTANCE OF 32.30' FEET; THENCE S. 06°17'27" E. A DISTANCE OF 26.87' FEET; THENCE S. 10°57'32" E. A 
DISTANCE OF 36.27' FEET; THENCE S. 29°26'42" E. A DISTANCE OF 26.14' FEET; THENCE S. 28°02'25" E. A DISTANCE OF 33.63' 
FEET; THENCE S. 15°36'06" E. A DISTANCE OF 25.68' FEET; THENCE S. 14°26'18" E. A DISTANCE OF 26.72' FEET; THENCE S. 
45°55'54" E. A DISTANCE OF 26.08' FEET; THENCE S. 71°05'50" W. A DISTANCE OF 72.41' FEET; THENCE S. 87"22'39" W. A 
DISTANCE OF 250.86' FEET; THENCE s. 85.22'17" W. A DISTANCE OF 1935.36' FEET; 

RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS L MDA PROJECT:LM07RIS r::J 16027 
11 R yiDEPE SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

CHECl<EOI DRAWNPARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 20 , TOWNSHIP 47~ EERS • Pl.MtERS • 6'.,R,IEYORS
.......oscAPEMCHTmlS MAH I 

FL CA NO. 1163:!JFL CERTNO. L888QI / LC2ecoo330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
DATE: 

Fo,tllylra T...,,._ -
at4a...lnl...... 111-............ •a..~ 11-27-2019 
,.......,._,.._...-, I•"- .... 
c::mt m_..., ,........_,_...NI01 SHEET-~A..m11 
Fa: CIDII"'""" l'ol"-~• Talhli::....,.<1Mt BONITA GRANDE AGGREGATES,1111....MNtt-1"1 7OF22 



Page 119

DESCRIPTION: 
(CONTINUED) 

N. 16°10'37" EA DISTANCE OF 42.90 FEET; THENCE S 00°06'28" WA DISTANCE OF 39.22 FEET; THENCE S 06°34'28" EA 
DISTANCE OF 28.13 FEET; THENCE S 31°00'38" EA DISTANCE OF 84.41 FEET; THENCE S 29°31'03" WA DISTANCE OF 155.37 
FEET; THENCE S 15°43'57" WA DISTANCE OF 31.58 FEET; THENCE S 07°20'51" WA DISTANCE OF 24.54 FEET; THENCE S 
08°08'23" EA DISTANCE OF 326.65 FEET; THENCE S 02°49'10" EA DISTANCE OF 69.55 FEET; THENCE S 08°47'20" EA 
DISTANCE OF 37.39 FEET; THENCE S 07°07'29" EA DISTANCE OF 65.87 FEET; THENCE S 09°11'02" EA DISTANCE OF 64.39 
FEET;THENCE S 08°01'39" EA DISTANCE OF 39.39 FEET; THENCE S 57"37'07" EA DISTANCE OF 40.42 FEET; THENCE S 
59°56'54" EA DISTANCE OF 39.60 FEET; THENCE S 59°01'51" EA DISTANCE OF 41.91 FEET; THENCE S 51°35'36" EA 
DISTANCE OF 54.62 FEET; THENCE S 62°05'14" EA DISTANCE OF 41.51 FEET; THENCE S 13°34'32" EA DISTANCE OF 40.75 
FEET; THENCE S 05"25'15" WA DISTANCE OF 118.62 FEET; THENCE S 10°49'06" WA DISTANCE OF 186.28 FEET; THENCE S 
13"15'52" WA DISTANCE OF 119.87 FEET; THENCE S 14°33'53" WA DISTANCE OF 158.82 FEET; THENCE S 28"57'13" WA 
DISTANCE OF 40.02 FEET; THENCE S 28°43'01" WA DISTANCE OF 41.92 FEET; THENCE S 30°00'41" WA DISTANCE OF 31 .35 
FEET; THENCE S 28°45'40" WA DISTANCE OF 31.93 FEET; THENCE S 14°01'20" WA DISTANCE OF 43.64 FEET; THENCE S 
07°59'46" WA DISTANCE OF 35.66 FEET; THENCE S 13°39'43" WA DISTANCE OF 44.67 FEET; THENCE S 10°38'07" WA 
DISTANCE OF 44.68 FEET; THENCE S 09"13'05" WA DISTANCE OF 45.57 FEET; THENCE S 10"32'09" WA DISTANCE OF 31 .01 
FEET; THENCE S 03°37'28" WA DISTANCE OF 51.20 FEET; THENCE S 29"00'04" EA DISTANCE OF 75.13 FEET; THENCE S 
35°13'06" EA DISTANCE OF 30.67 FEET; THENCE S 73°31'38" EA DISTANCE OF 28.50 FEET; THENCE S 68°56'27" EA 
DISTANCE OF 38.71 FEET; THENCE S 62°59'09" EA DISTANCE OF 46.22 FEET; THENCE S 64"48'16" EA DISTANCE OF 10.35 
FEET; THENCE S 88°01'16" EA DISTANCE OF 8.65 FEET; THENCE S 88°30'15" EA DISTANCE OF 98.59 FEET; THENCE S 
22°14'36" EA DISTANCE OF 83.25 FEET; THENCE S 00°11'26" WA DISTANCE OF 24.80 FEET; THENCE S 01"20'07" EA 
DISTANCE OF 18.70 FEET; THENCE S 15°42'14" EA DISTANCE OF 13.65 FEET; THENCE S 17°38'55" EA DISTANCE OF 11.35 
FEET; THENCE S 15"46'53" EA DISTANCE OF 33.73 FEET; THENCE S 04°38'22" WA DISTANCE OF 42.86 FEET; THENCE S 
22°16'13" WA DISTANCE OF 29.02 FEET; THENCE S 19°11'45" WA DISTANCE OF 19.29 FEET; THENCE S 01"45'08" WA 
DISTANCE OF 34.41 FEET; THENCE S 04 °35'11" WA DISTANCE OF 45.50 FEET; THENCE S 15°06'51" WA DISTANCE OF 21.09 
FEET; THENCE S 21°58'18" WA DISTANCE OF 25.76 FEET; THENCE S 33°31'49" WA DISTANCE OF 22.53 FEET; THENCE S 
43°39'19" WA DISTANCE OF 24.56 FEET; THENCE S 41°14'01" WA DISTANCE OF 8.91 FEET; THENCE S 07"20'34" WA 
DISTANCE OF 14.81 FEET; THENCE S 38"38'39" EA DISTANCE OF 32.70 FEET; THENCE S 84°36'02" EA DISTANCE OF 30.73 
FEET; THENCE S 71"24'01" EA DISTANCE OF 75.58 FEET;THENCE S 08°45'05" EA DISTANCE OF 88.28 FEET; THENCE S 
01°19'48" WA DISTANCE OF 41.93 FEET; THENCE S 00°16'35" EA DISTANCE OF 28.53 FEET; THENCE S 04°35'19" WA 
DISTANCE OF 35.91 FEET; THENCE S 07°30'02" WA DISTANCE OF 30.10 FEET; THENCE S 11°09'23"WA DISTANCE OF 46.65 
FEET; THENCE S 07°19'54" WA DISTANCE OF 42.19 FEET; THENCE S 07°34'56" WA DISTANCE OF 35.82 FEET; THENCE S 
06°55'14" WA DISTANCE OF 65.47 FEET; THENCE S 08°53'54" WA DISTANCE OF 37.22 FEET; THENCE S 08"31'00" WA 
DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET; THENCE S 01"22'39" WA DISTANCE OF 22.46 FEET; THENCE S 03°35'31" EA DISTANCE OF 20.89 
FEET; THENCE S 13°10'45" EA DISTANCE OF 29.96 FEET; THENCE S 20°39'09" EA DISTANCE OF 25.55 FEET; THENCE S 
16°04'58" EA DISTANCE OF 35.91 FEET; THENCE S 03°06'30" EA DISTANCE OF 40.01 FEET; THENCE S 12°02'16" WA 
DISTANCE OF 47.28 FEET; THENCE S 04°46'53" WA DISTANCE OF 21.70 FEET; THENCE S 03°48'02" EA DISTANCE OF 12.58 
FEET; THENCE S 06"28'47" EA DISTANCE OF 40.01 FEET; THENCE S 07°19'53" EA DISTANCE OF 33.66 FEET; THENCE S 
25°18'40" EA DISTANCE OF 37.55 FEET; THENCE S 46°59'08" EA DISTANCE OF 40.19 FEET; THENCE S 69"19'47" EA 
DISTANCE OF 42.90 FEET; THENCE S 85°17'46" EA DISTANCE OF 47.54 FEET; THENCE S 13°21'13" EA DISTANCE OF 78.12 
FEET; THENCE S 37°06'41" EA DISTANCE OF 15.45 FEET; THENCE S 22°59'50" EA DISTANCE OF 31 .93 FEET; THENCE S 
57"45'01" WA DISTANCE OF 30.93 FEET; THENCE S 48°38'51" WA DISTANCE OF 40.31 FEET; THENCE S 41°35'08" WA 
DISTANCE OF 106.96 FEET; THENCE S 39°18'59" WA DISTANCE OF 22.82 FEET; THENCE S 30°48'51" WA DISTANCE OF 86.66 
FEET; THENCE S 29"58'14" WA DISTANCE OF 68.04 FEET; THENCE S 29°38'53" WA DISTANCE OF 70.28 FEET; THENCE S 
33°10'51" WA DISTANCE OF 65.41 FEET; THENCE S 32°42'56" WA DISTANCE OF 56.62 FEET; THENCE S 34°54'07" WA 
DISTANCE OF 33.28 FEET; THENCE S 22°40'35" WA DISTANCE OF 50.39 FEET; THENCE S 15°34'03" WA DISTANCE OF 36.05 
FEET; THENCE S 10°51'01" WA DISTANCE OF 48.95 FEET; THENCE S 10°25'23" WA DISTANCE OF 90.54 FEET; THENCE S 
07°06'13" WA DISTANCE OF 113.95 FEET; THENCE S 08°19'01" WA DISTANCE OF 81.16 FEET; THENCE S 01"50'16" WA 
DISTANCE OF 44.20 FEET; THENCE S 10°31'04" EA DISTANCE OF 55.55 FEET; THENCE S 14°59'47" EA DISTANCE OF 63.75 
FEET; THENCE S 18°44'31" EA DISTANCE OF 35.47 FEET; THENCE S 34°59'59" EA DISTANCE OF 18.61 FEET; THENCE S 
29°07'14" EA DISTANCE OF 74.89 FEET; THENCE S 23°24'59" EA DISTANCE OF 53.67 FEET; THENCE S 07°36'17" EA 
DISTANCE OF 62.16 FEET; THENCE S 00°46'22" WA DISTANCE OF 40.78 FEET; THENCE S 06°52'48" EA DISTANCE OF 104.09 
FEET; THENCE S 10"52'08" EA DISTANCE OF 70.99 FEET; THENCE S 03°48'39" EA DISTANCE OF 46.79 FEET; THENCE S 
04"36'35" WA DISTANCE OF 94.91 FEET; THENCE S 04°30'30" WA DISTANCE OF 54.08 FEET; THENCE S 07"01'11" WA 

MORRIS r-1 RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS L 
~ DE~E~ SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

EN(INEERS • ~ • SI..IIVEYORS PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 20 , TOWNSHIP 47 
I.N.llSCAPE AACHlECTS 

A. CANO. "632 / A. CERT NO. ..-111.C2101111000 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
Fllfl MVlra T.a.""- -
:lte◄a....1--- ,.,.............. ..Gllftd...... 
'°'1 ......ADllillallO"I t.11:fllllll' ...
Call U14MIS t........,,_,__, _..,.,fl._ 
Fa:1111)1174114 flllla......,.._1M1 fall'ICM1.111-t.MI BONITA GRANDE AGGREGATES ,....NN:11~• 

MDA PROJECT: 
16027 

CHEa<EDI DRAWN 
MAH I BMH 

DATE: 
12-13-13 

SHEET 
8OF22 

https://fall'ICM1.111-t.MI


Page 120

DESCRIPTION: 
(CONTINUED) 

THENCE ALONG A NON-TANGENT ARC OF A CURVE TO THE TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT; THENCE 
ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 3144.61 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 08°01'27", AND WHOSE 
CHORD BEARS S 69"39'27" W, FOR A DISTANCE OF 440.04 FEET, HAVING AN ARC LENGTH OF 440.40 FEET; THENCE S 
87°59'19" WA DISTANCE OF 14.05 FEET; THENCE S 81°55'31" WA DISTANCE OF 85.70 FEET; THENCE S 79°55'59" WA 
DISTANCE OF 107.76 FEET; THENCE S 85°00'05" WA DISTANCE OF 63.82 FEET; THENCE N 66°54'21" WA DISTANCE OF 44.41 
FEET; THENCE N 80"18'54" WA DISTANCE OF 11.78 FEET; THENCE S 70°08'11" W A DISTANCE OF 5.59 FEET; THENCE S 
44°53'40" WA DISTANCE OF 6.17 FEET; THENCE S 65°15'22" WA DISTANCE OF 63.11 FEET; THENCE S 70°07'24" WA 
DISTANCE OF 94.12 FEET; THENCE S 61°18'24" WA DISTANCE OF 95.28 FEET; THENCE S 46°07'04" WA DISTANCE OF 125.99 
FEET; THENCE S 21°29'30" EA DISTANCE OF 41.26 FEET; THENCE S 02°13'17" EA DISTANCE OF 6.75 FEET; THENCE S 
16°20'26" EA DISTANCE OF 52.24 FEET; THENCE S 05°41'40" WA DISTANCE OF 69.44 FEET; THENCE S 00°48'35" WA 
DISTANCE OF 88.17 FEET; THENCE S 02°23'02" WA DISTANCE OF 115.16 FEET TO AN INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTH LINE 
OF SECTION 20; THENCE S. 88°34'10" W. ALONG THE SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 253.70 FEET TO THE SOUTH 1/4 
CORNER OF SAID SECTION 20; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF SECTION 20 SOUTH 88°34'05 W. FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 108.64 FEET; THENCE S.01° 22'41" E. LEAVING SAID SECTION LINE, FOR A DISTANCE OF 1298.02 FEET; 
THENCE S.88°38'23"W. FORA DISTANCE OF 2501.11 FEET; THENCE N. 01°08'42"W. FORA DISTANCE OF 1295.52 FEET TO 
AN INTERSECTION OF THE SAID SOUTH LINE OF SECTION 20.; THENCE S.88° 34'05" W. FOR A DISTANCE OF 59.83' TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 681 .52 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

MORRIS 11 RESOURCE PROTECTION AREAS L 
_,DE~EvJ SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 

PARCELS OF LAND IN SECTION 20 , TOWNSHIP 47ENOINEERS • Pl..AN£RS • SURVEYORS 
lANJSCAl'E ARCl<ITcCTS 

FtCANO.e632 1FLCERTN0 . .-1 / ~ SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
FOfllllyal9 T....,._ -
814a..-nd...... ,,,............... ..a....... 
,_....,..~ .., t•"'- ...... 
Clill tcn'-11111 ~.....~ ..._...,._...._ 
Fa:: C211t"7,_,. Ttlt.:~I Tell..:~t BONITA GRANDE AGGREGATES , ..ft.:: --.n7•T.Mt 

MDA PROJECT: 
16027 

CHECKEOI DRAWN 
MAH I BMH 

DATE: 
11-27-2019 

SHEET 
9OF22 



I 

I 

/ / /__/ / / / __J /'...... - -.-' ,...,.,..._ 

,. 

/ 

L4' 

~. 

1.-440 ~ 

P.O.B. L436'\_' 
THES.W. 
R. 26 E.'LE 

L435 '- '\ 

l434 I 

05"W 

30 29 
, 

/ 
z, 
0.... 

0 

0 
OC> 
~ 
N 
" 
~ .... 
N 
CD c.,, 
u, 
N , -

I 
MOA PROJECT: BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 16027 

SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN 
ENCINEEAS • Pl..ANhERS • 8'JNEYOF'8 PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 47~NIClflECTS MAH BMH 

A.CANO.ee32/A.CERTN0.Lllm01/LC2!l000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE:
Foot.,_ T- DNln 
at40.-...._ ttllawll...._.._. • ...,.....,_. 11-27-2019,_..,..,,fllllflltzal ...... ..._ 
mill---, ,......_~ IIIM .,_ladl.R.mlD SHEET
fa:4111t..... TCll.,_...u-n,tl Tal._-..:r7,1M1 
,_... -.zr7~1 10 OF22 Page 121



J 
11 

19 

L105 
L106 

L107 
L108 

L133L109 

• .92 Acnl 

-
MDA PROJECT:BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 16027 

SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN
PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 47 MAH BMH

SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNlY, FLORIDA 

SHEET 
11 OF 22 Page 122



--

AREA "11" ,......... 

I 
I 

L707 I 
~-"•-~L7l'1o 

L711 ~ L712 
L713 .L210 L211 L - . 
L714 L209 L212 
'L715 / 

L214cU1
BW 

15 

16 

17 
,, 

L218 

I 
I 
I 

J 
I 

MOA PROJECT: BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 16027~ SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN 
ENOINE£FIS • ~ • Sl#NEVOAS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 47l»ll6Clll'E-= MAH BMH 

F\. C:,.NO. 1532 / F\. CERT NO. ~1/ Lc:ieoo0330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DAlE:_..,_. T....,_ ~at40..-........... 1~............. •........... 11-27-2019 
....,....,.,.,..... sal t•.... ..... 
ca. ar,.-, T.,__flcwlll mot ...,_11Md\.R.1IINCI SHEET 
LI.: ezlllt3'7olllN Toi.. llNl1-1M1 Tll-.: 111401-Jt,n
Tllllt.aa.117-1341 12 OF 22 Page 123



--

- J 
- ■ 

1 -- - - ------- -- - - -
7 8 

N.87"28'1rE. 2575.75' 

L 
L 
L6

18 L6 
L67 

L 
L67 

I 

in 

"' i / ! 
/ L3 

•:::..-:u 1/
/ 1/, 1/ ; ! 

L3 

.........~-✓91 ¥e ,L3TII /I 

f :W~~$~$/1/j>,; ~ 
; / , , L415 , / / , ,' ; '-"15,; 

7· -,,-.,.. -, -,- - "':,;- -7 - -;- :r ~ - ,- - - - , --; ,.. - -,- r 7f7-;/ -
, / / / / / ,/// /,, 

BONITA GRANDE MINE ' ASKETCH AND DE LLC. MDA PROJECT: 

PARCEL OF LAND IN SCRIPTION 16027CHECKED DRAWN
1 MAH BMHSOUTH, RANGE 2s8ffJ~0 ~:E 60& 20, TOWNSHIP 47' UNTY, FLORIDA DATE! 

11-27-2019 
SHEET 

13 OF 22 Page 124



--

-r-----------------8 -9 --
L:~·~ ~~N~.a~7•~29~•22r·E:·~~~~:!.!:!~----~~---...!M~IN~E~B~O~U!;!N~D'.!:A~R~Y-----------:-:1~N~:7~47~7570.6L -t 130::69 SECTION LINE L691 17 ~ E;;1s1.11 

L688 l \ 
LG L667 

/ ta L666 THE NORTHEAST CORNER 
l6 L665 OF SEC. 17, T.47 S, R. 26 E. 
LG L684 L664 
LG L675 L663 

L662L674 ~ L661 
L660 

LG // L659 ~ en 
L6 / / L656 

/ 1 / L672 / L67 L657 ffi ~ 
L656 OJ -/ /I/ 00L671/ L655 C: zL646 

L644 zC 
L642 oz 

L641 >m 
L640~:% / ~/ 

-m 

L ~ 

/

/I 
/, L636 

L635 
L634 

/ / 633 
/ / 32 

L631 

RESOURCE PROTECTION1/i~ / L◄ AREA "S" 
313.65 Acres/ ~ L4~ 

1@ 
~ I/ /I 1 

L61 

~/41/&1/~ L 

MDA PROJECT: 
- RRIS ~ BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 16027~'~oEPE SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECl<ED DRAWN 

ENCINEERS • PlANN:RS • 81.RvEVOAS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 47I.Nll6CAPE-=ra MAH BMH 
Fl. CA N0. 41632 /A. CERT NO. ~ /LC29000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE: 

Foft"'- TJII~......_.... -_Gland.,._.. 11-27-2019 at•~--- --
,_..,.,._ Aa,lm ,_.. 1•,._, llal lDI 
CIIII, 131...., ,........._ ......a:,o, .........R ... SHEET 
FactilQIII~ , .........12,4., ,o1..-..,.,s,, 
1.-ns....,-n.1 140F 22 Page 125

https://E;;1s1.11


- ---

---- ----

1 

.... u 
MATCHLINE !J> ~ 

- - - - - - ;om -~ ,, 
!" 

RESOURCE PROTECTION 

AREA "S" 
313.65 Acres 

~ C/)-mz C') 
m -I 
al -00 
CZ 
z r: oz
:,:. m 
~ 

62 L56 
63 L5 

L 17 

-J/0/j 
~ 20 

RESOURCE PROTECTION 

AREA "S" l537 
L536 313.65 Acres 

½ 
L535 

L534 
L533L 

L529/ L)L 
L532 

ll!llll~ ~ llli;.2,...Lf )6/ ' // 
L526 
L525<~rJ /// 
L528 

L524 

MDA PROJECT: BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 16027 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN 

EJ«INeERS•fll.>HrERS •Sl.RvEVORS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 47
lANJOOI.OEAll()tfflCTS MAH BMH 

A.CANO. 6632{1'..cerrNO. l.."""81 / LC20000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA OATE: 
""'111yen Tlllal1- -•1•~.... ,11...___ 4110nlld ....... 11-27-2019,.,..,...FbtdaaJIO'I ....1•1111et-
~m~ ,......._l'blill _.. ..._..._,.__,. SHEET 
Fa:"CU1tas7__. fcil.....,..,...t T•--••aM,.1
fG1n«-.s:r,-t.M1 15 OF 22 Page 126

https://fG1n�-.s:r,-t.M1


----------

, ,, , 
t.1$0 ,~ .... 5 9 

s7 --- ---- --
81/ 46 

9 

,, i/ 
L3 

, L53 

7 
RESOURCE

59 
PROTECTION 

L61, AREA "S" 
313.65 Acres 

L486 
L485 

RESOURCE 
PROTECTION 

AREA "S" 
313.65 Acres 

s: CJ)-rn
ffi ~ 
a, -00 
CZ 
zC ,, 
oz (l> rn 
~ ( 

-
MDA PROJECT:BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 16027~ SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN 

ENOIEERS • Pl>NfERS I SI.RVFtOFUi 
I.Mll8CN'ENlCH1Bm; PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 47 MAH BMH 

FLCAN0.8532 t FLCEATN0..-1/t.o.eooo:ioo SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE: 
F'GltllrWI r.-.- -a t4Clallllnd..... 11a-...111nw... •Gnfld..._.. 11-27-2019 ,...~,...,. .a.o, ......1•1111Gt 
CISII .,._ T......._,_....__. ..._...,._R.mll SHEET 
Fa:Cl:llltlff.... f al!Ja:....,.,,.1 TC\lltw:--1.n,.1 ,_.._.IIB4P•™I 16 OF 22 Page 127



----------

~ •,/./ . 
L459 

L458//~ 1/ RESOURCE 
L457 

PROTECTION 
AREA 11S" 
313.65 Acres 

0 L 
-

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

MORRIS MDA PROJECT:BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 16027 
SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN 

ENOIHEEIIS • ~ • ~ PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 47IMD8CAl'E~ MAH BMH 
Fl.CA NO. "532/ FI. CERTNO. UIIIII01 I LC29000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNlY, FLORIDA DAlE: 

,.......,_. TIiie- -
1114C'11¥11nf#IJM'la it,eo...McWo.... • ............ 11-27-2019 
Fc;in~l'bldl!IWl1 111,-.. ..... 
12119 ~ f......... fbllll ZDDt ..__...,.,R_.. SHEET 
,aa:CZ1119:att4M4 Tollhll:~1 Ttlt-=Ml4S7•1Mt 
TGlll.:IIH17•734t 170F 22 Page 128



---

LINE BEARING DISTANCE LINE BEARING DISTANCE LINE BEARING DISTANCE 
L22 N 02"16'13" W 3233.98' L78 N 02'16'13" W 5090.5T L136 N 44°33'42" E 75.43' 

L23 N 87"43'47" E 2479.83 L79 N 87'43'47" E 330.49' L137 N 48"29'07" E 57.31' 

L24 N 01°13'05" E 31.29' L80 N 00'36'02" E 139.23' L138 N 37°47'09" E 62.43' 

L25 N 16"21'31" E 39.24' LB1 N 04'38'22" E 82.92' L139 N 30"26'21" E 79.73' 

L26 N 25°42'03" E 35.58' L82 N 88'04'03' E 157.12' L140 N 40"11'01 • E 73.49' 

L27 

L28 
L29 
L30 

N 29"20'58" E 
N 31"22'02" E 
N 34°08'51" E 
N 31"39'14" E 

27.58' 
27.54' 
23.49' 
29.88' 

L83 
L84 
L85 
L86 
L87 

S 87°50'06" E 
s 87"28'58" e 
S 89"15'09" E 
S 89"02'41" E 
S 80'32'28" E 

87.62' 
67.89' 
48.37' 

116.95' 
49.30' 

L141 
L142 
L143 
L144 
L145 

N 36'20'11" E 
N 25"09'34" E 
N 12"58'50" E 
N 19"55'42" E 
N 37"48'09" E 

68.08' 
49.79' 
76.61' 
61.64' 
57.53' 

L31 N 25°57'38" E 33.57' L88 S 38"14'36" E 34.92' L146 N 65"33'06" E 115.70' 
L32 N 26'36'02" E 27.33' L89 S 27°46'56" E 33.82' L147 N 74•55•12• E 54.99' 
L33 N 33"35'29" E 42.63' L90 S 19'21 '55" E 25.64' L148 N 79"13'24" E 44.22' 
L34 N 27°42'15" E 58.64' L91 S 29'54'08" E 49.50' L149 N 71 "04'09" E 42.41' 
L35 N 27"13'51" E 64.18' L92 S 17'42'35" E 47.25' L150 N 85°02'29" E 41 .34' 
L36 N 20"39'53" E 46.30' L93 S 04"11'08" E 42.14' L151 N 89"06'49" E 76.94' 
L37 N 33"00'06" E 26.79' L94 S 09"15'08" E 91.49' L152 S 64°28'36' E 49.26' 
L38 N 66"52'43" E 14.17' L95 S 16'18'24" W 55.83' L153 S 31'55'46" E 40.15' 

L39 S 50'52'36" E 12.86' L96 S 33'20'49" E 63.40' L154 S 17"09'07" E 55.33' 

L40 S 24"11'36" E 12.10' L97 S 81"17'42" E 38,92' L155 S 13"08'58" E 45.81' 

L41 S 00•03•21· W 25.48' L98 N 73"53'37" E 109.75' L156 S 04"19'39" E 54.50' 

L42 S 05°23'22" E 28.74' L99 N 73°48'01" E 138.12' L157 S 13"57'29" E 36.52' 

L43 
L44 
L45 
L46 

S 47'50'03" E 
S 39°36'02" E 
S 37•04•59• E 

S 30'46'05" E 

25.99' 
40.11' 
43.36' 
31.33' 

L100 
L101 
L102 
L103 
L104 

N 67"57'28" E 
N 57'15'57" E 
S 62'49'15" E 
S 31'48'01" E 
S 09'43'04" E 

71.89' 
72,57' 
28.21' 
54.25' 

165.45' 

L158 
L159 
L160 
L161 
L162 

S 11"57'47" E 
S 21'37'39" E 
S 26'07'29" E 
S 27'39'54" E 
S 24'20'54" E 

46.55' 
38.98' 
34.73' 
51.72' 
39.32' 

L47 S 36'25'45" E 12.23' LINE BEARING DISTANCE L163 S 11"36'05" E 46.01' 
L48 S 32'08'55" E 19.26' L105 S 40'57'55" E 93.07' L164 S 13'13'00" E 35.6T 
L49 S 26"51'04" E 19.16' L106 S 35'21'11" E 60.97' L165 S 22"01'09" W 86.09' 
L50 S 25"14'18" E 23.69' L107 S 24°57'58" E 12.08' L166 S 32°36'38" W 56.86' 
L51 S 26"19'11" E 20.26' L108 S 10"34'57" E 98.56' L167 S41"58'10"W 37.38' 
L52 S 26'20'29" E 19.76' L109 S 00'44'04" E 132.31' L168 s 29•1a01o· w 53.11' 
L53 S 24'22'22" E 19.79' L110 S 01"33'53" E 89.17' L169 S 33"53'18" W 50.66' 
L54 S 22"58'40" E 19.88' L111 S 08"27'00" W 115.57' L170 S 59•44•54• W 68.68' 

L55 S 21 "02'28" E 19.15' Lt12 S 70"24'40" W 47.56' L171 S 79'53'28" W 57.32' 

L56 S 16"14'12" E 18.93' L113 N 74*47'05" W 155.07' L172 N 89'56'55" W 73.17' 

L57 S 10°55'10" E 19.70' L114 N 81 "46'23" W 175.92' L173 S 82'07'32' W 62.62' 

L58 
L59 
L60 
L61 
L62 

S 12'26'49" E 
S 15"03'07" E 
S 19"20'53" E 
S 16"03'06" E 
S 04'06'04" E 

18.85' 
21.35' 
27.51' 
18.15' 
15.85' 

L115 
L116 
L117 
L118 
L 119 
L120 

N 78°18'59" W 
N 63"36'40" W 
N 68"08'53" W 
N 51•21•21• w 
N 55'09'33' W 
N 39"16'45" W 

103.82' 
147.80' 
50.77' 
42.38' 
28.55' 
19.17' 

L174 
L175 
L176 
Lt77 
L178 
L179 

N 85' 21'35" W 
S 65"17'27' W 
S 45•42•00· W 
S 31"57'01" W 
S 32'51'08' W 
S 51°36'04" W 

16.68' 
43.06' 
54.88' 
58.00' 
57.01' 
38.66' 

L63 S 03'44'32" W 55.06' L121 N 18"10'54" W 235.59' L180 N 86'24'17"W 133.38' 
L64 S 15"04'55' E 84.67' L122 N 31 '59'11° W 41.38' L181 N 71'01'37"W 103.43' 
L65 S 46"21'18" W 61.28' L123 N 45' 08'29' W 80.13' L182 N 66'29'04" W 71.76' 
L66 S 51"14'18" W 70.16' L124 N 51•52•35• w 244.65' L183 N41'18'22"W 10;3r 
L67 S 68"23'46' W 40.60' L125 N62*4T02"W 32.93' L184 N 32"39'40' W 44.85' 
L68 S 75°58'18' W 44.69' L126 N 54•54•15~w 39.01' L185 N 20•52•15• W 36.36' 
L69 S 83°17'58" W 35.96' L 127 N 55"04'14' W 71.8T L186 N 02°16'13" W 5314.40' 
L70 S 89°44'02" W 75.41' L128 N 57'56'58' W 31.70' L187 N 04' 37'43" W 2007.98' 
L71 N 69'25'03' W 31 .67' L129 N 44°02'05' W 36.73' L188 N 04"37'43" W 482.18' 
L72 
L73 
L74 
L75 
L76 
L77 

N 61'21'26"W 
N 50'32'37" W 
N 30'40'39" W 
N 23'53'46" W 
N 17°34'24" W 
N 20°32'31" W 

36.59' 
28.85' 
68.73' 
49.59' 
63.37' 
54.55' 

L130 
L131 
L132 
L133 
L134 
L135 

N 14'02'51" W 
N 02' 16'13" W 
N 97•43•4r E 
N 04°22'02" E 
N 08"36'26" E 
N 27'30'35' E 

54.61' 
4404.79' 
1942.31 

42.69' 
66.57' 
60.41' 

L189 
L190 
L191 

L192 
L193 

N 85' 22'17" E 
S 88'54'12" E 
S 21'45'55" E 
S 02°22'12" E 
S 82°50'45" W 

10,90' 
117.28' 

51 .64' 
415.88' 
126.54' 

MOA PROJECT:BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 16027~E SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION CHECKED DRAWN 
-•P\.N,NRS•Sl.All£YORS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 47LAh1lSCAPE AfO<ITECfS MAH BMH 

R. CA NO. 8532 /R. CERT NO. ~1 I LC29000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDAT...__..,... DATE:
D-B t4a...nd...... .................. 11-27-2019 ,......_..... mot ,.._ 

T.......AIIMIDIDI ......."9oll, R.... SHEET -- ,....~, -----
18 OF 22lolt,a~t

Tal...llt,D7.1'kl Page 129



---

LINE BEARING DISTANCE LINE BEARING DISTANCE LINE BEARING DISTANCE 
L195 N 02"16'13" W 5314.40' L253 N 87"10'25" E 16.15' L311 N 74•32•05• w 14.35' 
L196 N 04•37•43• W 1828.50' L254 S 89°43'05" E 14.16' L312 N 72°49'58" W 11.50' 
L197 N 85°22'17" E 761.86' L255 S 84°43'09" E 10.89' L313 N 76°56'33" W 14.52' 
L198 N 20"28'59" E 69.81' L256 S 79"59'56" E 12.32' L314 N 87"12'49" W 16.18' 
L199 N 41°23'28" E 66.92' L257 S 86°58'11" E 43.25' L315 S 70"32'23" W 81.75' 
L200 N 50°42'46" E 76.86' L258 S 87°08'17" E 40.25' L316 S 62°23'49" W 61.07' 
L201 N 54"14'37" E 67.66' L259 S 76"20'10" E 55.40' L317 S 44•43•05• W 71 .91' 
L202 N 76°53'27" E 60.07' L260 S 81°16'01" E 64.59' L318 S 44•53•13• W 8.58' 
L203 S 80°13'36" E 64.11' L261 S 86°00'14" E 51.56' L319 S 51"19'10" W 10.32' 
L204 S 73"38'46" E 77.12' L262 N 76"29'50" E 79.36' L320 S 52°06'25" W 14.59' 
L205 S 71"02'15" E 66.80' L263 N 66°15'34" E 52.47' L321 S 50"11'16" W 11.48' 
L206 S 82°59'55" E 74.57' L264 N 69"50'28" E 95.61' L322 S 55°54'48" W 9.09' 
L207 S 87°24'10" E 81.33' L265 N 69"08'52" E 10.30' L323 S 71°23'24" W 13.46' 
L208 N 84°21'00" E 145.16' L266 N 86°14'09" E 8.95' L324 S 80"48'15" W 14.75' 
L209 N 81"13'18" E 82.22' L267 S 80°33'08" E 14.27' L325 S 76"32'35" W 14.18' 
L210 S 89°56'42" E 81.25' L268 S 82°33'31" E 10.96' L326 S 68°23'08" W 17.45' 
L211 S 87"09'18" E 74.11' L269 S 78°19'39" E 10.47' L327 S 61"26'15" W 9.90' 
L212 S 85"03'02" E 126.84' L270 S 64°45'33" E 12.53' L328 S 72"33'43" W 31.06' 
L213 S 70°34'40" E 103.34' L271 S 59"04'12" E 17.92' L329 S 71"19'10" W 82.09' 
L214 S 31°58'31" E 85.10' L272 S 66°38'02" E 22.22' L330 N 78°20'15" W 60.76' 
L215 S 04"08'44" E 191.36' L273 S 71"28'36" E 21.42' L331 N 55"06'38" W 95.65' 
L216 S 03°09'43" W 79,59' L274 S 71"39'01" E 20.48' L332 N 49°23'01" W 122.47' 
L217 S 09°47'46" W 78.15' l275 S 66"55'43" E 12.48' L333 N 40°39'28" W 114.06' 
L218 S 10·12·20· W 89.41' L276 S 65°33'14" E 18.29' L334 N 15°04'58" W 243.93' 
L219 S 23•17•35• W 53.11' L277 S 68"29'17" E 16.10' L335 N 02°16'13" W 5314.40' 
L220 S 62°15'43" W 77.50' L278 S 74•34•35• E 23.77' L336 N 04°37'43" W 362.25' 
L221 S 87°13'39" W 62.99' L279 S 74"55'02" E 17.15' L337 N 85"22'17" E 3213.20' 
L222 N 69"25'44" W 74.12' L280 S 73°27'53" E 16.09' L338 N 19°05'24" E 16.07' 
L223 N 51°15'19" W 37.47' l281 S 69"52'05" E 16.61' L339 N 36°23'29" E 19.33' 
L224 N 60"27'09" W 36.29' L282 S 68°50'08" E 15.37' L340 N 06"47'57" W 33.00' 
L225 N 59"34'42" W 81.41' L283 S 76°56'11" E 17.60' L341 N 62"35'24" E 23.79' 
L226 N 49°36'28" W 39.99' L284 S 69"11'18" E 14.54' L342 N 20°17'27" E 13.95' 
L227 N 64°56'58" W 50.45' L285 S 61"01'10" E 12.64' L343 N 26"48'52" E 37.93' 
L228 N 85"33'02" W 59.61' L286 S 44"18'17" E 10.04' L344 N 50"38'48" E 35.17' 
L229 N 77"13'57" W 48.43' l287 S 20"13'36" E 17.33' L345 N 53°14'11 • E 13.24' 
L230 N 55"33'09" W 99.73' L288 S 11°24'40" E 16.18' L346 S 78"24'03" E 15.89' 
L231 N 48"05'41" W 59.33' L289 S 05°33'13" E 21.68' L347 N 78"14'50" E 21.37' 
L232 N 61 "15'45" W 72.96' L290 S 08"50'08" W 14.74' L348 N 51°24'43" E 7.00' 
L233 N 75°23'03" W 78.73' L291 S 22°08'29" W 14.88' L349 N 22°10'49" E 25.51' 
L234 N 88°43'38" W 71 .65' L292 S 14°06'59" W 18.95' L350 N 57"29'12" W 30.70' 
L235 S 64°31'00" W 38.85' L293 S 17•54•35• W 17.11' L351 N 18°24'44" E 15.89' 
L236 S 72°32'43" W 30.36' L294 S 16°32'29" W 15.97' L352 N 33"59'31" E 21.08' 
L237 S 72"19'35" W 40.00' L295 S 06°09"11" W 14.90' L353 S 87°49'41" E 28.30' 
L238 S 74°48'50" W 52.13' L296 S 15°09'41" W 25.41' L354 S 74°04'26" E 33.30' 
L239 N 83°06'32" W 76.75' L297 S 28°01'35" W 30.15' L355 S 53"05'01" E 116.76' 
L240 N 59"00'21" W 71 .08' L298 S 33°42'25" W 17.39' L356 S 77°34'58" E 45.16' 
L241 N 38°37'55" W 87.78' L299 S 36"48'57" W 12.65' L357 S 00"38'43" W 103.97' 
L242 N 06°24'36" W 81 .25' L300 S 39°41'04" W 10.87' L358 S 03"41'35" E 76.45' 
L243 N 02°16'13" W 5314.40' L301 S 47°36'00" W 8.10' L359 S 33•41•02· W 29.85' 
L244 N 04•37"43• W 1072.67' L302 S 53°28'07" W 9.54' L360 S 18"24'59" W 32.68' 
L245 N a5•22·11· E 2191 .50' L303 S 55•33•11· W 12.38' L361 S 30•43•01· W 30.63' 
L246 N 55•43•21• E 30.66' L304 s 54•1e•o9• w 18.20' L362 N 47°08'41" W 16.60' 
L247 N 61°53'36" E 26.07' L305 S 56"23'27" W 11.07' L363 S 79•50•03• W 25.25' 
L248 N 75"08'46" E 19.34' L306 S 63"29'27" W 12.98' L364 S 59°51'05" W 33.48' 
L249 N 79"23'36" E 22.32' L307 S 73°33'18" W 6.83' L365 s 19•54•05• w 35.35' 
L250 N 60°56'59" E 21.29' L308 S 87°26'42" W 11.31' L366 S 81"55'17" W 27.48' 
L251 N 74"18'25" E 13.25' L309 N 81"17'45" W 12.12' L367 N 65"37'00" W 39.19' 
L252 N 88°48'49" E · 21.58' L310 N 77"14'1 4" W 12.35' L368 N 56°30'44" W 28.90' 

MOA PROJECT; BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 16027 
__ E SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION,,___6l.fl\l!l'ORS~ CHECKED! DRAWNPARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 47lMD6CAl'ENOfTEClS MAH BMH 

fL CA NO. - / Fl. C8rrNO. l.8U91 /L.0a0000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA_.._ DATE:•..~,....._.,._ ,ui..._......... 11-27-2019,.......,FIDllil11ml ,.,__,....:min
T--

......... 
----R .. SHEET ··- --,o1.......,.1141 1Glt-wlll41MM1 

Talhc-.a17-1141 19 OF 22 Page 130



LINE BEARING DISTANCE LINE BEARING DISTANCE LINE BEARING DISTANCE 
L369 N 49•49•20• W 24.91' L424 N 89°19'48" E 51.13' L479 N 29°58'14" E 68.04' 
L370 N 49°57'02" W 24.77' L425 s 25•sr22· w 39.89' L480 N 30°48'51" E 86.66' 
L371 N 31°34'02" W 30.68' L426 S 62"50'06" W 63.52' L481 N 39"18'59" E 22.82' 
L372 N 16°51'59" W 27.97' L427 S 36°47'44" W 38.54' L482 N 41"35'08" E 106.96' 
L373 N 33°33'23" W 17.24' L428 S 19°22'52" W 78.57' L483 N 48"38'51" E 40.31' 
L374 N 57°13'39" W 10.89' L429 S 36°24'47" W 76.06' L484 N 57°45'01" E 30.93' 
L375 N 79°18'51" W 27.29' L430 s 28°20•05• w 70.81' L485 N 22°59'50" W 31.93' 
L376 N 02°16'13" W 5314.40' L431 N 75°41'17"W 265.39' L486 N 37°06'41"W 15.45' 
L377 N 04•37•43• W 3080.63 L432 N ss•34•5s• E 2664.32' L487 N 13°21'13" W 78.12' 
L378 N 85"22'17" E 1935.36' L433 N 88°40'20" E 253.70' L488 N 85°17'46' W 47.54' 
L379 N 22°46'07" E 45.15' L434 N 02°23'02" E 115.16' L489 N 69°19'47" W 42.90' 
L380 N 09°45'11" E 41.14' L435 N 00°48'35" E 88.17' L490 N 45•59•oa· w 40.19' 
L381 N 24°13'17" E 31.44' L436 N 05"41'40" E 69.44' L491 N 25' 18'40" W 37.55' 
L382 N 10°30'09" E 38.22' L437 N 16"20'26" W 52.24' L492 N 07°19'53" W 33.66' 
L383 N 03°07'39" W 35.66' L438 N 02°13'17" W 6.75' L493 N oe0 28'47" w 40.01' 
L384 N 03°38'04° E 47.57' L439 N 21°29'30" W 41.26' L494 N 03•4a•o2· w 12.58' 
L385 N 22°14'29" E 28.84' L440 N 46"07'04" E 125.99' L495 N 04°46'53" E 21.70' 
l386 N 12°13'18" W 23.28' L441 N s1°18'24" E 95.28' L496 N 12"02'16" E 47.28' 
L387 N 02"43'05" W 75.14' L442 N 70°07'24" E 94.12' L497 N 03•os·ao· w 40.01' 
L388 N 22°51'56" W 46.31' L443 N 55•15•22· E 63.11' L498 N 16°04'58" W 35.91' 
L389 N 24°08'54" w 34.80' L444 N 44"53'40" E 6.17' L499 N 20°39'09° W 25.55' 
L390 N 01·os•23• E 39.66' L445 N 1o·os·11 • E 5.59' L500 N 13°10'45" W 29.96' 
L391 N 00°48'30" E 41.59' L446 s so0 18'54" E 11.78' L501 N 03•35•31• W 20.89' 
L392 N 39"08'34" E 79.38' L447 S 66°54'21• E 44.41' L502 N 01•22•39• E 22.46' 
L393 N 70°29'22" E 86.05' L448 N 85°00•05• E 63.82' L503 N 05•31•00· E 70.00' 
L394 S 57°25'22" E 79.82' L449 N 79°55'59" E 107.76' L504 N 05•53•54• E 37.22' 
L395 s 57•00·08' E 45.75' L450 N 81"55'31" E 85.70' L505 N 06'55'14" E 65.47' 
L396 S 29'26'39" E 51 .74' L451 N 87°59'19' E 14.05' L506 N 07"34'56" E 35.82' 
L397 S 17°24'52" E 62.14' L452 N 06'06'20" E 29.34' L507 N 07°19'54' E 42.19' 
L398 S 16°33'00" W 29.60' L453 N os·so•19• E 74.83' L508 N 11 °09'23" E 46.65' 
L399 S 12•39•44• W 51 .63' L454 N 07°01'11" E 104.51' L509 N 07°30'02' E 30.10' 
L400 S 58"35'52" W 42.96' L455 N 04'30'30" E 54.08' L510 N 04"35'19" E 35.91' 
L401 s 84°28'49" w 22.58' L456 N 04"36'35" E 94.91' L511 N 00"16'35' W 28.53' 
L402 S 10°24'57" E 80.62' L457 N 03°48'39" W 46.79' L512 N 01°19'48" E 41.93' 
L403 S 27"19'06" E 32.30' L458 N 10"52'08" W 70.99' L513 N oa•45•05• w 88.28' 
L404 S 06"17'27" E 26.87' L459 N oe•52•4s• w 104.09' L514 N 71'24'01" W 75.58' 
L405 S 10°57'32" E 36.27' L460 N 00°46'22' E 40.78' L515 N 84"36'02" W 30.73' 
L406 S 29•25•42• E 26.14' L461 N 07°36'17' W 62.16' L516 N 39•39•39• W 32.70' 
L407 S 28'02'25' E 33.63' L462 N 23°24'59" W 53.67' L517 N 07°20'34" E 14.81' 
L408 s 15•35•05• E 25.68' L463 N 29•07•14• W 74.89' L518 N 41"14'01" E 8.91' 
L409 S 14"26'18' E 26.72' L464 N 34"59'59" W 18.61' L519 N 43•39•19• E 24.56' 
L410 S 45"55'54" E 26.08' L465 N 18°44'31" W 35.47' L520 N 33°31'49" E 22.53' 
L411 s 11 •05•50• w 72.41' L466 N 14'59'47" W 63.75' L521 N 21"58'18" E 25.76' 
L412 S 87"22'39' W 250.86' L467 N 10"31'04" W 55.55' L522 N 15°06'51" E 21.09' 
L413 N 02"16'13" W 5314.40' L468 N 01°50'16" E 44.20' L523 N 04°35'11" E 45.50' 
L414 N 04'37'43" W 2736.46' L469 N 08"19'01" E 81.16' L524 N 01 "45'08" E 34.41' 
L415 N as·22·11· E 2836.62' L470 N 07°06'13" E 113.95' L525 N 19°11'45" E 19.29' 
L416 N 23"29'18" W 99.83' L471 N 10°25'23" E 90.54' L526 N 22°16'13" E 29.02' 
L417 N 12°59'30" E 63.22' L472 N 10"51'01" E 48.95' L527 N 04°38'22" E 42.86' 
L418 N 18°56'52° E 115.55' L473 N 15'34'03' E 36.05' L528 N 15°46'53' W 33.73' 
L419 N 88"55'03" E 97.60' L474 N 22°40'35" E 50.39' L529 N 17•35•55• W 11.35' 
L420 s ss·o1•15• E 80.68' L475 N 34°54'07' E 33.28' L530 N 15"42'14' W 13.65' 
L421 S 87°26'49" E 80.23' L476 N 32'42'56" E 56.62' 
L422 S 84°26'49" E 85.62' L477 N 33°10'51" E 65.41' 
L423 S 66°39'35" E 57.07' L478 N 29"38'53" E 70.28' 

MDA PROJECT: BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 16027~ -E SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 
CHECKEDl DRAWN 

ENC»&AS•P\..Mlta:AS • ~ PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 47L.AN>SCYE.AACHTECTS MAH BMH 
Fl. CANO, 11532 /F\. CERT NO. U1118111 /LC2e000330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATE:.,....T-.,.a..-.~_..,_ ,,t.._......, ..... -~ 11-27-2019 

FOlt~Allldl, D01 ....... 
, ............. DIOI --- SHEET

ittcca:M•--- ··- --"""'F\-ffllha:: ....,-114t Tll._--,.JMt
TGlh«~t 20 OF22 Page 131



LINE BEARING DISTANCE LINE BEARING DISTANCE LINE BEARING DISTANCE 
L531 N 01°20'07" W 18.70' L588 N 07°59'38" W 44.05' L645 N 69°41'10" W 24.45' 
L532 N 00"11'26" E 24.80' l589 N 14°26'05" W 42.83' l646 N 69"41'10" W 24.45' 
L533 N 22°14'36" W 83.25' l590 N 16°43'10" W 75.79' L647 N 78"14'14" W 21.02' 
L534 N aa•30•15• w 98.59' L591 N 21°59'28" W 228.97' L648 N 81°19'41" W 48.77' 
L535 N 88"01'16" W 8.65' l592 N 16°17'19" W 51.30' L649 N 87°16'40" W 69.86' 
L536 N 64°48'16" W 10.35' l593 N 21°42'19"W 45.09' L650 S 85°57'29" W 82.80' 
L537 N 62"59'09" W 46.22' L594 N 20"20'57" W 22.39' L651 S 85°25'10" W 532.17' 
L538 N 68°56'21· w 38.71' L595 N 15"08'55" W 17,84' L652 N 78°42'35" W 119.59' 
l539 N 73"31'38" W 28.50' l596 N 20°57'05" W 27.42' L653 N 73°40'49" W 56.77' 
L540 N 35"13'06" W 30.67' L597 N 26°36'49" W 20.65' L654 N 51°58'40" W 43.89' 
L541 N 29°00'04" W 75.13' L598 N 27°22'24" W 24.38' L655 N 39°00'04" W 142.04' 
L542 N 03"37'28" E 51.20' L599 N 20"58'03" W 19.07' L656 N 28°29'43" W 39.73' 
L543 N 10°32'09" E 31.01' L600 N 12°25'00" W 52.63' L657 N 24°04'30" W 56.64' 
L544 N 09°13'05" E 45.57' L601 N 18"37'33" W 51.06' L658 N 24°04'30" W 32.54' 
L545 N 10•39•01· e 44.68' L602 N 18°04'04" W 38.53' L659 N 29°18'20" W 44.85' 
L546 N 13"39'43" E 44.67' L603 N oa•52•os· w 27.52' L660 N 38°34'27" W 34.65' 
L547 N 07°59'46" E 35.66' L604 N 04°33'16" W 46.16' L661 N 45°18'23" W 23.13' 
L548 N 14°01'20" E 43.64' L605 N16"11'08"W 44.26' L662 N 50°36'54" W 22.44' 
L549 N 28°45'40" E 31.93' L606 N 34°24'27" W 42.67' l663 N 55°20'24" W 18.12' 
L550 N 30°00'41" E 31.35' L607 N 40°09'45" W 35.22' L664 N 60°42'13" W 27.91' 
L551 N 28"43'01" E 41.92' L608 N 40"01 '42" W 31.79' L665 N 65°50'38" W 16.21' 
L552 N 28°57'13" E 40.02' L609 N 39°47'31" W 23.05' L666 N 71"16'25" W 30.40' 
L553 N 14°33'53" E 158.82' L610 N 40°58'10" W 136.66' L667 N 77°50'45" W 26.01' 
L554 N 13"15'52" E 119.87' L611 N 07°11 '03" W 31.42' L668 N 83°13'00" W 20.09' 
L555 N 10°49'06" E 186.28' L612 N 04"54'54" E 31.26' L669 S89"11'45"W 89.42' 
L556 N 05°25'15" E 118.62' L613 N 31°11 '45" E 50.33' L670 S 89°10'23" W 65.20' 
L557 N 13°34'32" W 40.75' L614 N 34°14'53" E 61.74' L671 S 89°10'08" W 114.80' 
L558 N 62°05'14" W 41.51' L615 N42"44'11"E 83.05' L672 S 89"11'02" W 109.70' 
L559 N 51°35'36" W 54.62' L616 N 61°34'40" E 61.30' L673 N 84"22'18" W 28.97' 
L560 N 59°01'51" W 41.91' L617 N 62°48'42" E 86.02' L674 N 74"51'52" W 34.59' 
L561 N 59°56'54" W 39.60' L618 N 45"54'32" E 45.76' L675 N 60°35'14" W 111.64' 
L562 N 57°37'07" W 40.42' L619 N 29°49'43" E 48.51' L676 N 11·11·1s·w 30.54' 
L563 N 08"01 '39" W 39.39' L620 N 25°30'04" E 72.06' L677 N 17°23'00" W 13.18' 
L564 N 09°11'02" W 64.39' L621 N 19"29'13" E 93.40' L678 N 21°33'11" E 27.22' 
L565 N 07°07'29" W 65.87' L622 N 20°39'16" E 59.71' L679 N 2o·oa·20· e 29.18' 
L566 N 08"47'20" W 37.39' L623 N 15°48'00" E 68.61' L680 N 22°43'08" E 29.56' 
L567 N 02°49'10" W 69.55' L624 N 07°05'40" E 94.79' L681 N 11°38'25" E 25.37' 
L568 N 08"08'23" W 326.65' L625 N 14°27'48" E 76.73' L682 N 24°03'58" E 22.71' 
L569 N 07"20'51" E 24.54' L626 N 41 " 13'24" E 130.21' L683 N 28"41'06" E 25.33' 
L570 N 15°43'57" E 31.58' L627 N 45°22'02" E 145.44' L684 N 25°55'21" E 26.12' 
L571 N 29°31'03" E 155.37' L628 N 45•02·or e 77.05' L685 N 20°23'11" E 21.77' 
L572 N 31"00'38" W 84.41' L629 N 52"58'16" E 111.78' L686 N 16"56'36" E 29.44' 
L573 N 06°34'28" W 28.13' L630 N 5a•29•42• e 105.05' L687 N 09°07'38" E 45.23' 
L574 N oo·oe·28" e 39.22' L631 N 48°17'04" E 150.91' L688 N 03°07'47" E 39.14' 
L575 N 16"10'37" W 42.90' L632 N 31 "51'47" E 62.30' L689 N 04°51'36" W 66.75' 
L576 N 30°06'55" W 32.87' L633 N 23°09'22" E 64.87' L690 N 14°54'35" W 43.88' 
L577 N 33"04'26" W 22.15' L634 N 07°36'36" E 49.57' L691 N 87°31'51" E 2445.07' 
L578 N 27°04'06" W 16.43' L635 N 13"40'15" W 54.92' L692 S 04"58'21" E 2888.85' 
L579 N 23°05'49" W 21.67' L636 N 20°47'17" W 53.81' L693 S 04°58'20" E 2689.01' 
L580 N 24"55'42" W 41.80' L637 N 23"01 '56" W 95.21' L694 S 03"50'45" E 2684.41' 
L581 N 21°50'19" W 28.65' L638 N 28°41'25" W 114.55' L69B N 02"16'13" W 5314.40' 
L582 N 17°51'19" W 33.13' L639 N 43"36'00" W 80.71' L699 N 04"37'43" W 2003.06' 
L583 N 14" 16'31" W 22.95' L840 N 43"36'00" W 60.70' L700 N 85°22'17" E 298.27' 
L584 N 13°13'26" W 65.06' L641 N 49°16'23" W 55.59' L701 N 09"58'33" W 221 .54' 
L585 N 04°08'29" E 12.01' L642 N sa•33•02· w 54.33' L702 N 50"08'44" E 14.97' 
L586 N 15°04'43" E 49.35' L643 N 85°06'11" W 26.87' L703 N 01"11'21" W 54.04' 
L587 N 02°05'42" E 43.88' L644 N 65°06'11" W 26.87' L704 N 31°11'30" E 9.73' 

MDA PROJECT: BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 16027~E SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 
CHECKEDIDRAWN 

~ •PI..ANfliERS. st.R\IFf'OAS 
LANlS(".APENDIIECT8 PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 47 MAH BMH 

R. CA NO. 0032/ R. CERT NO.._,I L02eOIXm0 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA_.,_ OATE:
T-Bl4Cllwllndlwina 11-27-201910...-.........,..,...,.....,.... ---,.,.....,..__, -.....lllad\..~ SHEET--- ··--- ,~-~· ,--..........7MJ 21 OF 22 Tolll'l« IININ.MI Page 132

https://IININ.MI


LINE 
L705 
L706 
L707 
L708 
L709 
L710 
L711 
L712 
L713 
L714 
L715 
L716 
L717 
L718 
L719 
L720 
L721 
L722 
L723 
L724 
L725 
L726 

BEARING 
N 61°52'11" E 
S 82°53'21 • E 
S 83°42'02" E 
S 73°34'37" E 
S 72°06'22" E 
S 72°26'32" E 
S 35°19'17" E 
S 10°16'45" E 
S 07°33'43" E 
S 13°09'41" E 
S 08°40'50" E 
S 01°38'40" W 
S 19°54'03" W 
S 01"47'51" E 
s 11•59•oo·w 

S 66°30'57" W 
N 71"14'16" W 
N 65°53'04" W 
N 64 °33'35" W 
N 55°21'39" W 
N 44°53'50" W 
N 26°40'11" W 

DISTANCE 
11.41' 
43.90' 
32.42' 
46.44' 
31.21' 
27.95' 
21.16' 
63.45' 
57.21' 
50,92' 
58.32' 
34.44' 
37.46' 
35.45' 
31.01' 
14.44' 
37.57' 
51.47' 
27.79' 
24.95' 
55.70' 
34.39' 

MOA PROJECT:BONITA GRANDE MINE LLC. 16027~E SKETCH AND DESCRIPTION 
CHECl<EOI DRAWN 

ENOWE£AS • P1..AN1..e1B ' st.R-IEYCRS PARCEL OF LAND IN SECTIONS 17 & 20, TOWNSHIP 47IANlflCN'EAACtfT.CTS MAH BMH 
Fl.CA NO. 11532/ Fl.CERT NO. U.01 /LC:2e0Q0330 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST, LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA DATI::FaflMye,a.,_.~.,,_....... ,,,T,.. -_ .............. 11-27-2019 

FM__,fbtaia.1 -T......_~_. ...... ---~Fl.-- SHEET 
..... 1231Ja:JJ'..... ---Tlllla:---.Jt41 Tal._ ....M':NI
, • ._MN:n-1141 22OF22 Page 133



2726 ()Al( RIDGE COORT, SUITE S03 
FORT HYERS, fl 33901-!1356 

OFflCE 239.278.3090~ TRTRANSPORTATION FAX 239.278.1906JI CONSULTANTS, INC 
TRAFFIC ENGINEERING 

TAANSPORTATION PlANNING 
SIGNAL SYmHS/DESIGN 

, 

l\.ffiMORANDUM 

TO: Mr. Ned Dewhirst 
BGM,LLC 

FROM: Ted B. Treesh 
President 

DATE: December 27, 2019 

RE: Bonita Grande Mine Comprehensive Plan Update 
CPA13-06941-BOS 
City ofBonita Springs, Florida 

TR Transportation Consultants, Inc. has completed this memorandum to supplement the 
transportation analysis that has previously been provided for this Comprehensive Plan 
Update for the Bonita Grande Mine site in the City of Bonita Springs, Florida. The last 
transportation study submitted to the City for this application was prepared by David 
Plummer & Associates and is dated May 8, 2018. A portion of this study is attached to 
the memorandum for reference. The entire study is already part of the case file submitted 
to the City as part of this Comprehensive Plan Amendment application. 

This memo was prepared to address the change in development intensity that has 
occurred since the last submittal to the City as part of this CPA application and address 
the changes, if any, to the transportation analysis that was previously provided. The CPA 
application had previously requested a development intensity of a total of 2,536 
residential dwelling units on the Bonita Grande mine property, along with commercial 
uses that would serve as the amenities to the future residents. The application has now 
been revised to request a total of 700 residential dwelling units along with the 
commercial amenities for the residents of the development. This is a decrease in 
residential units of 1,836 units, or approximately a 72% reduction in units. 

The most recent traffic analysis submitted as part of this CPA application examined the 
impacts of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment to the Long Range Transportation Plan 
(Year 2040) and the Short Term Capital Improvement Plans (Year 2022). For the 
evaluation of the impact to the Long Range Transportation Plan, the previous traffic 
analysis was prepared based on the full development of the 2,536 residential dwelling 
units and the commercial amenity area. The Year 2022 analysis was prepared based on an 

Page 134



Mr. Ned Dewhirst'1TRTRANSPORTATION CPAIJ-06941-BOS~ CONSULTANTS, INC 
December 27, 2019 

Page2 

interpolated development intensity of 350 dwelling units by the year 2022. Based on the 
revised application, there will be a total of 700 dwelling units at build-out of the project 
(Year 2040) and for the short term analysis (Year 2022) it was assumed that there would 
be a total 110 dwelling units on the site. 

Table 1 below compares the development intensity analyzed as part of the most recent 
traffic analysis submitted as part of this application and the development intensity that is 
being proposed now as part of the negotiated Settlement Agreement between the 
Applicant and the City of Bonita Springs. The total number of development units are 
illustrated as well as the number of trips that are anticipated to be added to the 
surrounding roadway network based on the Long Range analysis (Year 2040) as weJJ as 
for the Short Term Analysis (Year 2022). The number of Daily Trips as well as the Peak 
Hour Trips are illustrated. 

Table 1 
Bonita Grande Mine CPA 

Comparison Between Previous Submittal & Current Request 
Daily Trips Added Peak Hour Trips 

Period Dwelling Units to Roadway Added To 
Network Roadwav Network 

Year 2040 Analvsis 
Previous Analysis 2,536 17,903 980 
Current Request 700 6,229 658 

Difference -1,836 -11,674 -322 

Year 2022 An•lvsis 
Previous Analysis 350 2,325 170 
Current Request 110 1,135 111 

Difference -240 -1,190 -59 

It should be noted that the trips shown for the "Previous Analysis" in Table I were 
determined by referencing the Tables and Figures included in the Plummer traffic study 
dated May 8, 2018. These trips were determined by the District One Regional Planning 
Model (DI RPM), or FSUTMS model, based on the socioeconomic data that was utilized 
for the Traffic Analysis Zone utilized in the analysis. The trip generation for residential 
uses computed by the FSUTMS model is lower than the trip generation that is a result of 
utilizing the Institute of Transportation Engineer's (ITE) Trip Generation Report, 10th 

Edition. The trips shown in Table I for the "Current Request" is based on the ITE Trip 
Generation Report. Therefore, if the trips from the reduced development intensity of700 
units were to be inputted into the DIRPM FSUTMS model and new model runs were to 
be prepared, the resultant trip generation would be lower than what is reflected in Table 1 
above for the 700 units. 

Since the development parameters that are utilized for the evaluation ofthe impacts ofthe 
proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment are being substantially reduced and the 

Page 135



Mr. Ned Dewhirst,aTRTRANSPORTATION CPAB-06941-BOS~ CONSULTANTS, INC 
December 27, 2019 

Page3 

District One Regional Planning Model is the same tool utilized to the evaluate the 
impacts of the amendment on the Long Range Transportation Plan (Year 2040) and the 
Short Term Capital Improvement Plans (Year 2022), the Conclusions reached in the 
previous traffic studies prepared by David Plummer & Associates remain valid. The 
result of the analysis from the previous traffic study are reiterated here for consistency 
and are also included in the traffic study prepared by David Plummer & Associates that is 
attached to this memorandum for reference and is part of the CPA application made by 
the Applicant. 

The conclusions of the analysis, which remain valid with the reduction in development 
intensity from 2,536 residential dwelling units to 700 dwelling units, are: 

The Year 2040 (Long Term) traffic analysis identified the following changes are 
required to the MPO 2040 Needs Piao network reflective of traffic conditions 
"without" the proposed CPA: 

a) Bonita Beach Road from Imperial Pkwy to 1-75-Widen from 6 to 8 lanes 
b) East Terry Street from Old 41 to Imperial Pkwy - Widen from 4 to 6 

lanes 
c) Imperial Pkwy from Bonita Beach Rd. to E. Terry St. - Widen from 4 to 6 

lanes 

The addition of these improvements to the MPO 2040 Needs Plan network is required 
to address the deficient road segments identified in the analysis that are present 
without the proposed CPA. 

Year 2040 improvements needed to support the proposed CPA are the same 
improvements that have been identified above to support the future conditions 
"without" the CPA, with the exception of Bonita Grande Drive from E. Terry Street 
to the project entrance. Any improvements to Bonita Grande Drive from E. Terry 
Street to the project entrance are considered site related improvements and will be 
the responsibility of the Developer. 

The Year 2022 (Short Term) traffic analysis identified no new improvements are 
needed beyond the Existing plus Committed (E + C) roadway network that is 
identified in the DlRPM. Therefore, no changes to the City or County Capital 
Improvement Plan is needed. 

If you have any additional questions regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to 
contact me. 

Attachment 

K;\2019112 Dcccmbcr\02 Bonita Grande RPD\Comp Plan Update\12-27-2019 memo Dewhirst BOM CPA Update.doc 

Page 136



EXCERPTS FROM DAVID PLUMMER 

TRAFFIC STUDY DATED MAY 8, 2019 

Page 137



Bonita Grande Mine Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
CPA13-06941-BOS 

Response to Transportation CPA Sufficiency Comments from City of Bonita Springs 

Traffic Review Comment 1 

1. Please explain how the Proposed Development Parameters vary in a way that they 
are less Government/Civic employees in the year 2022 (with CPA) than in the year 
2040 (with CPA). The number ofemployees decreases from 113 (in 2022) to 50 (in 
2040). 

DPA Response to Comment 1 

The reviewer is referencing the development parameters data sheets in Appendix D ofthe Bonita 
Gmpde.Mine CPA Traffic Study. dated (revised) January I0, 2018. Upon checking the modeling 
data used, the number ofemployees stated in the 2022 summary in the Appendix was verified to 
be a typographical error. 

To be clear, the value of l 13 employees used for both the 2022 analysis and the 2040 analysis. 

A copy of the revised Appendix D has been included in the updated traffic study included in this 
response. 

No other changes have been made to the TIS in response to this comment. 

Additional Comment S from City Staff: 

S. Part IV-B. CIP horizon. The applicant's transportation analysis does not include 
the City's recent update to the City's five-year CIP adopted in City Ordinance 
No. 17-19. 

DPA Response to Additional Comment 5: 

The City's adopted five-year CIP that was included in Appendix C of the TIS covered FY 16-17 
to FY 20-21. The Lee County CIP covering the same years was also included in Appendix C. 

Appendix Chas been updated to include the City and Lee County CIP documents covering FY 17-
18 to FY 21-22. Upon review of these CIP programs, no changes are found that would alter the 
findings of the ll<miJn..Qrnnde Mine Ol1AI@fllc SjtJ:dy, dated (rev ised) January l0, 2018. 

No other changes have been made to the TIS in response to this comment. 

Page 138



BONITA GRANDE MINE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 

TRAFFIC STUDY 

Project #17531 Prepared by: 
DAVID PLUMMER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

July 19, 2013 2149 McGregor Boulevard 
May 8, 2018-Revised Fort Myers, Florida 33901 

Page 139



BONITA GRANDE MINE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 

TRAFFIC STUDY 

Introduction 

The Bonita Grande Mine property, hereafter referred to as the Project, is an existing mine that is 
proposed to be converted to residential development. The Project is located within the City of 
Bonita Springs, east of Bonita Grande Drive and north of East Terry Street, Exhibit 1. 

The subject property is currently located within the DRGR land use category. There have been 
mining operations on the property, which will eventually be phased out if the CPA and zoning 
for additional residential units are approved. The applicant requests a comprehensive plan 
amendment (CPA) to allow increased residential density on the property. The purpose of this 
report, therefore, is to provide a traffic analysis in support of the proposed CPA application to 
increase the allowable residential units for the Project. 

Updated Traffic Study 

The original traffic study dated July 19, 2013 was submitted to the City ofBonita Springs as part 
of the CPA application. In the original application, the proposed CPA allowed a total of 2,902 
residential units and 30,000 square feet of support ancillary retail. The proposed CPA has since 
been updated to allow a total of 2,536 residential units and 25,000 square feet of amenities, a 
reduction compared to the original request. To address changes to the proposed CPA, the traffic 
analysis has been updated to be consistent with the reduced proposed development and is 
reflected in this document. 

Executive Summary 

The results ofthe Bonita Grande Mine CPA transportation assessment are as follows. 

I. The Year 2040 (Long-Tenn) traffic analysis identified the following changes are required 
to the MPO 2040 Needs Plan network reflective of traffic conditions "without" the 
proposed CPA. 

a. Bonita Beach Road from Imperial Parkway to I-75 - Widen from 6 lanes to 8 
lanes. 

b. East Terry from Old 41 to Imperial Parkway - Widen from 4 lanes to 6 lanes. 
c. Imperial Parkway from Bonita Beach Road to East Terry Street - Widen from 4 

lanes to 6 lanes. 

Page 140



The addition of these improvements to the MPO 2040 Needs Plan network is required to 
address the deficient road segments identified in this report, without the proposed CPA. 
Likewise, under 163.3177 Florida Statutes, the Transportation Element of the City of 
Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan must be updated to be consistent with, and address, 
the deficiencies identified by the 2040 Needs Plan. 

2. The Year 2040 improvements needed to support the proposed CPA are the same 
improvements that have been identified to support future conditions "without" the CPA, 
with the exception ofBonita Grande Drive to the Project Entrance. The widening of this 
road segment is site related, and will be the responsibility ofthe development to mitigate, 
if approved. The proposed CPA does not cause additional deficiencies on the public road 
network. 

3. The Year 2022 (Short-Tenn) traffic analysis identified no new improvements are need 
beyond the Existing plus Committed (E+c) roadway network. This finding is identical 
for traffic conditions for both "without" and ''with" the proposed CPA. Therefore, no 
changes to the City's Capital Improvement Program (CIP) are needed. 

4. The proposed CPA is expected to mitigate its traffic impacts through the payment ofroad 
impact fees, or other appropriate mitigation measures, as required by the City at the time 
they are required. 

Original Methodology 

A transportation methodology meeting was held on May 16, 2013 with the City of Bonita 
Springs. The meeting participants included the following. 

John Dulmer, City ofBonita Springs 
Pramod Choudhary, CH2M Hill (City Consultant) via telephone 
Bill Morris, Morris-Depew Associates 
Stephen Leung, David Plummer & Associates 

At the request of the City, the methodology outline dated May 2, 20 I 3 was provided to the City 
prior to the meeting. Based on the meeting discussions, the transportation methodology was 
revised to reflect the resolution of issues. The revised methodology report, dated May 17, 2013, 
is provided as Appendix A. 

It was discussed and agreed during the meeting that the potential traffic impacts of the original 
CPA would be evaluated based on comparative 2035 travel model assignments for both 
''without" and "with" the proposed Plan Amendment, using the formerly adopted Lee County 
MPO 2035 travel model, the MPO's 2035 zonal data projections, and the road network from the 
adopted MPO 2035 Cost Feasible Plan. This was standard, accepted practice for traffic studies 
undertaken in support ofcomprehensive plan amendments in Lee County and the City ofBonita 
Springs. 

2 

Page 141



Under the original application, the proposed CPA would not affect the short-tenn (five-year) 
traffic conditions as the requested residential development would not occur within the first five 
years. Therefore, the original traffic study evaluated only the long range (Year 2035) conditions. 

Updated Methodology 

Subsequent to the issuance ofthe methodology report and previous iterations ofthis traffic study, 
changes have occurred to both the proposed development program and the Lee County MPO 
Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP). 

In addition, the proposed CPA will affect the short-tenn (five-year) traffic conditions as a portion 
of the requested residential development is expected to occur within the first five years, unlike 
the previous submittal. Therefore, the updated traffic study evaluates the long range (year 2040) 
conditions and short term 5-year (year 2022) conditions. 

Despite these changes, there were no material revisions to the approved methodology, with the 
exception of referencing the updated development program, referencing the adopted Lee County 
MPO 2040 LRTP and using the FOOT District I Regional Planning Model (DIRPM), and 
analyzing the short term 5-year conditions. 

Study Area 

As required by the City of Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application. IV. 
Amendment Support Documentation. B. Public Facilities Impacts, the traffic impacts of the 
proposed CPA are analyzed for major roadways within a three-mile radius of the subject 
property, as shown in Exhibit 2. 

Based on the three-mile criterion, the study area is generally bounded by the following. 

Study Area - 3-Mile Radius 

To North South ofCoconut Road 
To South Lee/ Collier County Line 
To East East ofBonita Grande Drive 
To West East ofOld US 41 

At the request of the City, the segment of Old 41 between West Terry Street and Bonita Beach 
Road is included in the study area. 

3 

Page 142



Existing Roadway Network 

The existing roadway network in the vicinity of the Project is depicted in Exhibit 1. As shown in 
Exhibit 1, there are several major roadways in the vicinity of the Project including East Terry 
Street, 1-75, Bonita Beach Road, Imperial Parkway, and Old 41 Road. 

East Terry Street is a City-maintained east-west collector roadway with portions that are two and 
four lanes. It connects Bonita Grande Drive to Old 41 and, via West Terry Street, to US 41. 
East Terry Street goes over 1-75 and there is no interchange with 1-75 at East Terry Street. 

1-75 is a Florida Strategic lntennodal System (SIS) facility. As a six-lane interstate highway, 1-
75 extends through Lee County from Collier County to the south and Charlotte County to the 
north. 

Bonita Beach Road is a County-maintained, east-west arterial roadway. It provides east-west 
continuity from east of Bonita Grande Drive to 1-75, US 41 and to Hickory Boulevard. Portions 
of Bonita Beach Road are two, four and six lanes. An interchange with 1-75 is located at Bonita 
Beach Road. 

Imperial Parkway is an important north-south arterial roadway extending south into Collier 
County as Livingston Road and extending north to Alico Road in Lee County as Three Oaks 
Parkway. Imperial Parkway is a County maintained roadway. Within the City of Bonita 
Springs, it is a four-lane divided arterial. 

Old 41 is a City-maintained, north-south arterial roadway that intersects US 41 in northern 
Collier County and extends to US 41 in Lee County at Pelican Landing Parkway. Portions of the 
roadway are two and four lanes. The section ofOld 41 from Bonita Beach Road to Terry Street 
is designated as a constrained roadway. 

Access to the Project is provided by Bonita Grande Drive, a two-lane facility that extends north 
from East Terry Street. From East Terry Street to Bonita Beach Road, Bonita Grande Drive is a 
two-lane, County-maintained collector. 

Planned Roadway Improvements 

The Lee County MPO 2040 LRTP consists of two highway transportation plans: I) the 2040 
Highway Needs Plan; and 2) the 2040 Highway Cost Feasible Plan. The two highway plans are 
the subject of this CPA traffic analysis. 

2040 Highway Needs Plan 

The 2040 LRTP Highway Needs Plan (Appendix B) identifies improvements that are considered 
to be the future roadway "needs" to support the anticipated county-wide demands. 

Page 143



The following 2040 LRTP roadway improvement needs have been adopted by the MPO within 
the CPA study area. 

• East Terry Street from Bonita Grande Drive to Imperial Parkway - Widen to 4 lanes. 
• 1-75 from Corkscrew Road to Bonita Beach Road- Widen to 8 lanes. 
• I-75 from Bonita Beach Road to Collier County line - Widen to 8 lanes. 
• Bonita Grande Drive from East Terry Street to Bonita Beach Road - Widen to 4 lanes. 
• Bonita Beach Road from Bonita Grande Drive to 1-75- Widen to 6 lanes. 
• Sandy Lane Extension from Pelican Colony Boulevard to Old 41-New 2-lane road. 
• Logan Boulevard Extension from Bonita Beach Road to Collier County - New 2-lane 

road. 
• Imperial Parkway from Collier County line to Bonita Beach Road - Widen to 6 lanes. 
• Old 41 from Bonita Beach Road to Collier County line - Widen to 4 lanes. 

2040 Highway Cost Feasible Plan 

The 2040 LRTP Hh:hway Cost Feasible Plan (included as part of Appendix B) identifies the 
needed improvements listed above that are considered to be financially feasible based on 
anticipated priorities and future revenues. 

The Cost Feasible projects include those improvements that are considered affordable, given 
revenue projections through year 2040. The Cost Feasible projects in the general vicinity ofthe 
Project include the following. 

• East Terry Street from Bonita Grande Drive to Imperial Parkway- Widen to 4 lanes. 
• Bonita Grande Drive from East Terry Street to Bonita Beach Road - Widen to 4 lanes. 
• Bonita Beach Road from Bonita Grande Drive to 1-75- Widen to 6 lanes. 
• Sandy Lane Extension from Pelican Colony Boulevard to Old 41 - New 2-lane road. 
• Logan Boulevard Extension from Bonita Beach Road to Collier County - New 2-lane 

road. 
• Old 41 from Bonita Beach Road to Collier County line - Widen to 4 lanes. 

The typical CPA traffic analysis utilizes the adopted Cost Feasible Plan as the basis ofanalysis. 
The analysis of future year 2040 included only those roadway projects identified as Cost 
Feasible. Projects that were identified as needed but contingent upon additional funding were 
not included in the network. 

Scheduled Roadway Improvements 

The scheduled road improvements in the City of Bonita Springs are shown on: I) Lee County's 
Summary of Major Road Projects Programmed by Lee County - FY 16/17 to FY 20/21; 2) 

Page 144



Florida DOT Adopted five Year Work Program - District 01 - Lee County, 2018 - 2022 AD, 
and 3) City of Bonita Springs, Florida Fiscal Year 16/17 to 20/21 Capital Improvement Projects. 

The following scheduled improvements are identified within the CPA study area (Appendix C). 

• Old 41 from Collier County Line to Bonita Beach Road - PD&E 
• Bonita Beach Road Vision Implementation 

Land Use Parameters 

The proposed land uses below supersede previous development parameters proposed for this 
CPA; the requested CPA now increases the allowable residential units to a total of 2,536 units. 
The revised land use parameters are predominantly residential, with a small amount of 
supporting amenity uses intended for the use ofthe residents. 

Proposed Development Parameters 

Five-Years Build-Out 
Land Use Size Units Size Units 
Single Family Residential 270 d.u. 1,902 d.u. 
Multi-Family Residential Cl) 80 d.u. 634 d.u. 

Total Residential 350 d.u. 2,536 d.u. 

Amenity 12> 25,000 sq . ft. 25,000 sq. ft. 

~ : 
(I) May include smgle family attached, condo un[ts, townhouse units, and v,tla units. 
(2) Amenity use 1s intended for the exclusive use ofresidential units in this development 

A review of the MPO 2040 TAZ structure in the travel model indicated the Traffic Analysis 
Zone (TAZ) #3224 represents this development in the FDOT District 1 Regional Planning Model 
(DJ RPM). Year 2040 socioeconomic data shown in TAZ #3224 reflects 354 single family units, 
and 37 multi-family units without the proposed CPA. 

For the analysis with the proposed CPA, the socioeconomic data was adjusted to reflect 1,902 
single family units, and 634 multi-family units. No other revisions or adjustments were made to 
the MPO 2040 socioeconomic data. 

Therefore, the socioeconomic data reflective of: I) the approved 391 residential units without the 
CPA, and 2) the proposed 2,536 residential units with the CPA. The input parameters used in the 
travel modeling are provided in Appendix D. 

6 

Page 145



Level ofService Standards 

Roadway level ofservice (LOS) standards generally vary depending upon whether the road is a 
State, County or City road and whether the road is in an urban or rural area. Furthennore, State 
roads on the FOOT Strategic lntennodal System (SIS) generally have more stringent LOS 
standards than other roads. 

The Florida DOT LOS standards, rather than local standards, will apply on SIS facilities. For 
non-SIS State, County and City roads, the LOS standards adopted in the local government 
comprehensive plan will apply. Those standards, identified in the "Comprehensive Plan of the 
City ofBonita Springs Florida," are as follows. 

Level ofService Standards 

Roadway LOS Standard 

1-75 (SIS) D 
Freeways (non-SIS) D 
Arterials E 
Collectors E 
Local Roads D 

Long-Term {Year 2040) Comparative Travel Model Assignments 

The 2040 01RPM (FSUTMS) travel model was used to run comparative travel model 
assignments both "without" and "with" the proposed CPA under the adopted Lee County MPO 
2040 Cost Feasible Plan. For these assignments, the future year 2040 Cost Feasible road 
network and the MPO's 2040 socioeconomic data projections were used. 

Year 2040 Traffic Conditions Without the CPA 

The residential units (354 single family units, and 37 multi-family units) included in TAZ #3224 
of the Lee County MPO's year 2040 travel model were assumed to represent the future 
conditions without the proposed CPA. 

The residential population estimates were derived based on the seasonal vacancy and auto 
ownership rates that were established by the Lee County MPO for T AZ #3224, Appendix D. 
Based on the travel model, the allowable units at the Project would generate 2,000 peak season, 
weekday, average daily traffic (PSW ADT), Appendix E. 

The study area included roadway segments within a three-mile radius of the Project. Exhibit 3 
provides the results of the year 2040 travel model assignment for "without" the proposed CPA. 
For each road segment, the most representative link volumes from the travel model assignment 

7 

Page 146



were usC9 in the segment analysis. All analysis data are identified in Exhibit 3 and with 
documentation provided in Appendix F. 

As shown in Exhibit 3, the following segments are projected to be deficient in year 2040 without 
the proposed CPA. 

Deficient Roadway Segments-2040 Cost Feasible Plan. Without CPA 

Consistent 
Needed Ado~ted With 
#of #of Needs 

Roadway From To Lanes Lanes Plan? 

Bonita Beach Road Imperial Parkway 1-75 8 6 No 
East Terry Street Old41 Imperial Parkway 6 4 No 
J-75 Corkscrew Road Bonita Beach Road 8 8 Yes 

Bonita Beach Road Immokalee Road 8 8 Yes 
Imperial Parkway Collier County Line Bonita Beach Road 6 6 Yes 

Bonita Beach Road East Terry Street 6 4 No 
Old41 East Terry Street Bonita Beach Road 4 2 No 

Without the proposed CPA, four of the deficient roadway segments shown above are not 
consistent with the adopted Lee County MPO 2040 LRTP Needs Plan. The remaining three 
deficient roadways are identified in the Needs Plan, where improvements are needed given the 
countywide future demands by year 2040 (please refer to Appendix B). 

Year 2040 Traffic Conditions With the CPA 

The proposed CPA build-out parameters (2,536 residential units and 25,000 sq. ft. of amenities) 
were converted to socioeconomic data for TAZ #3224 that represents the Project in the travel 
model. 

The residential population estimates were derived based on the seasonal vacancy and auto 
ownership rates that were established by the Lee County MPO for TAZ #3224, Appendix D. 
Based on the travel model, the proposed CPA generates 18,666 peak season, weekday, average 
daily trips (PSW ADT), Appendix E. 

The study area included roadway segments within a three-mile radius of the Project. Exhibit 4 
provides the results of the year 2040 travel model assignment for the analysis "with" the 
proposed CPA. For each road segment, the most representative link volumes from the travel 
model assignment were used in the segment analysis. All link analysis data are identified in 
Exhibit 4 and with documentation provided in Appendix F. 

g 

Page 147



As shown in Exhibit 4, the following segments were projected to be deficient in year 2040 with 
the proposed CPA. 

Deficient Roadway Segments - 2040 Cost Feasible Plan, With CPA 

Needed AdoJ;!ted Consistent 
#of #of With 

Roadway From To Lanes Lanes Needs Plan? 

Bonita Beach Road Imperial Parkway 1-75 8 6 No 
East Terry Street Old4I Imperial Parkway 6 4 No 
Bonita Grande Drive East Terry Street Project Entrance 2 4 No 
1-75 Corkscrew Road Bonita Beach Road 8 8 Yes 

Bonita Beach Road Immokalee Road 8 8 Yes 
Imperial Parkway Collier County Line Bonita Beach Road 6 6 Yes 

Bonita Beach Road East Terry Street 6 4 No 
Old41 East Terry Street Bonita Beach Road 4 2 No 

Summary Comparison of Year 2040 Traffic Conditions 

A comparison of the roadway segment "needs" without and with the CPA, along with the MPO 
needs and financially feasible lanes, is provided in Exhibit 5 and summarized below. 

Roadwa):'. Segment Needs Com~arison 

MPOCost MPO Needs Needs Difference 
Roadwuv Ecs!m Tu Existing fwillk ~ ~ ~ WfthCPA 

~ 

Bonita Beach Rd Old41 Imperial St 6 6 6 6 6 0 
Imperial St 1-75 6 6 6 8 8 0 
1-75 Bonita Grande Dr 4 6 6 4 4 0 
Bonita Grande Dr Logan Blvd Ext 4 4 4 4 4 0 

Bomia Gmidc Or Bonita Beach Rd East Terry St 2 4 4 2 2 0 
Eatl •~qySI ProJecl Entrance l l 1 2 ◄ 1 

EastTeny St Old41 Imperial Pkwy 4 4 4 6 6 0 
Imperial Pkwy Bonita Grande Dr 2 4 4 2 2 0 

1-75 Corkscrew Rd Bonita Beach Rd 6 6 8 8 8 0 
Bonita Beach Rd lmmokalee Rd 6 6 8 8 8 0 

Imperial Pkwy Collier Co Linc Bonita Beach Rd 4 4 6 6 6 0 
Bonita Beach Rd EastTcnySt 4 4 4 6 6 0 
East Terry St Coconut Rd 4 4 4 4 4 0 

Old41 East Terry St Bomia Beach Rd 2 2 2 4 4 0 

The complete FSUTMS-Cube travel model run for all CPA scenarios are available for download 
from ftn:llftRfin .d12:lummer,c2m/Public/ l 'ZS~~L ~011,itaGrandeMine c_eA. 

9 

Page 148



Based on the long-term (year 2040) comparative travel model analysis, the following 
conclusions are derived. 

1. Deficient roadway segments on Bonita Beach Road, East Terry Street, I-75, Imperial 
Parkway, and Old 41 have been identified for "without" the proposed CPA (but with the 
approved uses) in the study area. 

2. The deficient roadway segments and the CQrresponding needed improvements have 
already been identified in the Lee County MPO 2040 LRTP for I-75 and a portion of 
Imperial Parkway. The Needs Plan does not address the remaining road segments that 
are deficient as a result ofcurrently approved developments in District 1. 

3. The roadway improvements needed to correct the deficient roadways for "without" and 
'"With" the CPA are identical, with the exception of Bonita Grande Drive north of East 
Terry Street. Therefore, the proposed CPA does not warrant any additional updates to the 
Needs Plan. 

4. The deficient roadway segment on Bonita Grande Drive, from East Terry Street to the 
Project Entrance, is site related and will be the responsibility of the Project to improve. 
This segment of Bonita Grande Drive is currently a two-lane road in sub-standard 
condition, and is not recognized as a needed improvement without the Project. 
Reconstruction of the roadway will be needed to serve the Project and area development 
along this road segment. 

5. The segment of Bonita Grande Drive from Bonita Beach Road to East Terry Street is 
currently a two-lane roadway, and is anticipated to be satisfactory to accommodate the 
Project "with" the CPA in 2040. However, a four-lane roadway is currently reflected in 
both the Needs Plan and the Cost Feasible Plan. 

6. The segment of East Terry Street from Imperial Parkway to Bonita Grande Drive is 
currently a two-lane roadway, and is anticipated to be satisfactory to accommodate the 
Project ''with" the CPA in 2040. However, a four-lane roadway is currently reflected in 
both the Needs Plan and the Cost Feasible Plan. 

Year 2040 Recommendations 

The following revisions to the MPO Needs Plan are required to address the deficient road 
segments identified in this report, without the proposed CPA. Likewise, under 163.3177 Florida 
Statutes, the Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan must be updated to be consistent with, and 
address, the deficiencies identified by the 2040 LRTP Needs Plan. 

1. Widen Bonita Beach Road to 8 lanes from Imperial Parkway to 1-75. 
2. Widen East Terry street to 6 lanes from Old 41 to Imperial Parkway. 
3. Widen Imperial Parkway to 6 lanes from Bonita Beach Road to East Terry Street. 
4. No updates are recommended to address Old 41 from East Terry Street to Bonita Beach 

due to its designation as a constrained roadway. 

10 

Page 149



Short Range 5-Year CIP {Year 2022) Analysis 

The 2022 DlRPM (FSUTMS) travel model was used to run comparative travel model 
assignments both "without" and "with" the proposed CPA. For these assignments, the E+c road 
network was used. Year 2022 socioeconomic data was interpolated from the MPO's 2010 and 
2040 socioeconomic data projections. 

Year 2022 Traffic Conditions Without the CPA 

The interpolated residential units (130 single family units, and 14 multi-family units) included in 
TAZ #3224 of the year 2022 travel model were assumed to represent the future conditions 
without the proposed CPA, Appendix D. Based on the travel model, the allowable units at the 
Project generate approximately 715 external peak season, weekday, average daily trips 
(PSW ADT), Appendix E. 

Exhibit 3 provides the results of the year 2022 travel model assignment for "without" the 
proposed CPA. For each road segment, the most representative link volumes from the travel 
model assignment were used in the segment analysis. All analysis data are identified in Exhibit 
6 and with documentation provided in Appendix F. 

As shown in Exhibit 6, the following segment is projected to be deficient in year 2022 without 
the proposed CPA. 

Deficient Roadway Segments -2022 E+c Road Network, Without CPA 

Consistent 
Needed Ado[!ted With 
# of # of Needs 

Roadway From To Lanes Lanes Plan? 

Old41 East Terry Street Bonita Beach Road 4 2 No 

Year 2022 Traffic Conditions With the CPA 

The proposed CPA parameters for year 2022 (350 residential units and 25,000 sq. ft. of 
amenities) were converted to socioeconomic data for TAZ #3224 that represents the Project in 
the travel model, Appendix D. Based on the travel model, the proposed CPA generated 
approximately 3,040 external peak season, weekday, average daily trips (PSWADT), Appendix 
E. 

u 

Page 150



Exhibit 7 provides the results of the year 2022 travel model assignment for the analysis ''with" 
the proposed CPA. For each road segment, the most representative link volumes from the travel 
model assignment were used in the segment analysis. All link analysis data are identified in 
Exhibit 7 and with documentation provided in Appendix F. 

As shown in Exhibit 7, the following segment is projected to be deficient in year 2022 with the 
proposed CPA. 

Deficient Roadway Segments-2022 E+c Road Network, With CPA 

Consistent 
Needed Ado~ted With 
#of #of ~-eeds 

Roadway From To Lanes Lanes Plan? 

Old 41 East Terry Street Bonita Beach Road 4 2 No 

Summary Comparison ofYear 2022 Traffic Conditions 

A comparison of the roadway segment "needs" without and with the CPA, along with the MPO 
needs and E+C number of lanes, is provided in Exhibit 8 and summarized below. 

Roadway Segment Needs Comnarison 

MPO E+C Needs Needs Difference 
.R!1ild.nln: fulln To E.muru: Cost ~ ~ ~ WilhCPA 

Ewi.l!l.c ~ ™ 
Bonita Beach Rd Old41 Imperial St 6 6 6 6 6 0 

lmpenal St 1-75 6 6 6 6 6 0 
1-75 Bonita Grande Dr 4 6 4 4 4 0 
Bonita Grande Dr Logan Blvd Ext 4 4 4 4 4 0 

Bonita Grande Dr Bonita Beach Rd East Tcny St 2 4 2 2 2 0 
W TenySt Project Enb'al1ce 2 2 2 2 2 0 

East Teny St Old41 Imperial Pkwy 4 4 4 4 4 0 

Imperial Pkwy Bonita Grande Dr 2 4 2 2 2 0 
1-75 Corkscll'wRd Bonita Beach Rd 6 6 6 6 6 0 

Bonita Beach Rd lmmokalce Rd 6 6 6 6 6 0 
Imperial Pkwy Collier Co Linc Bonita Beach Rd 4 4 4 4 4 0 

Bonita Beach Rd East Tcny St 4 4 4 .. 4 0 
East Terry s, Coconut Rd 4 4 4 4 4 0 

Old41 East Teny St Bonita Beach Rd 2 2 2 4 4 0 

The complete FSUTMS-Cube travel model run for all CPA scenarios are available for download 
from ftp://ftnfm.dplummer.com/Public/ l 7531 BonitaGrandeMine CPA. 

Based on the short-tenn (year 2022) comparative travel model analysis. the following 
conclusions are derived. 

12 

Page 151

ftp://ftnfm.dplummer.com/Public/l


I. A deficient roadway segment on Old 41 has been identified for ''without" the proposed 
CPA (but with the approved uses) in the study area. 

2. The proposed CPA does not warrant any additional updates to the Needs Plan. 

Year 2022 Recommendations 

With the exception ofOld 41, all roadways under study operate at an acceptable level of service. 
Due to its designation as a constrained roadway, no updates are recommended to address Old 41 
from East Terry Street to Bonita Beach. No revisions to the City's S-year CIP are warranted. 

Traffic Mitigation 

The payment of roads impact fees, and the developer-funded widening ofBonita Grande Drive 
from East Terry Street to the Project Entrance, represent the full mitigation requirements to 
accommodate the proposed CPA. The CPA will also generate ad valorem taxes, gas taxes, and 
other revenues that will be used to further assist with the funding of the Long Range 
Transportation Plan improvements. 

Conclusions 

The results ofthe Bonita Grande Mine CPA transportation assessment are as follows. 

S. The Year 2040 (Long-Tenn) traffic analysis identified the following changes are required 
to the MPO 2040 Needs Plan network reflective of traffic conditions ''without" the 
proposed CPA. 

a. Bonita Beach Road from Imperial Parkway to 1-75 - Widen from 6 lanes to 8 
lanes. 

b. East Terry from Old 41 to Imperial Parkway - Widen from 4 lanes to 6 lanes. 
c. Imperial Parkway from Bonita Beach Road to East Terry Street - Widen from 4 

lanes to 6 lanes. 

The addition of these improvements to the MPO 2040 Needs Plan network is required to 
address the deficient road segments identified in this report, without the proposed CPA. 
Likewise, under 163.3177 Florida Statutes, the Transportation Element of the City of 
Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan must be updated to be consistent with, and address, 
the deficiencies identified by the 2040 Needs Plan. 

6. The Year 2040 improvements needed to support the proposed CPA are the same 
improvements that have been identified to support future conditions ''without" the CPA, 
with the exception ofBonita Grande Drive to the Project Entrance. The widening ofthis 
road segment is site related, and will be the responsibility ofthe development to mitigate, 

13 

Page 152



Legend 
---·-··~ L_,._j City of Bonita Springs 

• Site Location 

~ " ~!JJD u w ti.?00..,.., BONITA GRANDE MINE CPA PROJECT LOCATION 
1llii:4~'t.:,$1.,t 

1 

Page 153



if 
0 
U.J z 
~ 
w 
0 
2 

~ 
(!) 

~ 
z 
0 
ID 

Page 154

(I) 



EXH1BIT3 

BONITA GRANDE MINE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 
RJTURE (2040) TRAFFIC CONDITIONS WITHOUT CPA 
DIRECTIONAL PEAK HOUR, PEAK SEASON 

# of LOS FOOT 
2040 

PSWADT 
Two-way 
Peak Hour D F11eto.' 

Direclional 
Peak Hr. Vol. 

Directional Service Volumcs6 

LOS 
I.OS 
VIC 

2040 
LOS Lines 

Addilional 
Lane., 

ROADWAY FROM TO l.ancs I Sid 2 Slalion) Trarlic~ Mocp! AADT K Factors Volume Dirl Dir2 Dir! Dir2 LOS '"A" LOS "B" LOS "C" LOS "D" LOS "E" S1d. Dirl Dir2 Dirl D11'.!. Needed Needed 

BONITA BEACH ROAD 

Old41 
lmpen~I Parkwa)· 
1-75 

lml)Crial Parkway 
1-75 
Bonila Grande Drive 

6LO 
61.D 
61D 

E 
E 
E 

12_4226 
12_6042 
12_4903 

61186 
70851 
40436 

0.82 
0.82 
0.82 

50.200 
58,100 
33.200 

0.090 
0.090 
0.090 

4.520 
5,230 
2.990 

0.588 
0.588 
0.588 

0.412 
0.412 
0.412 

2,660 
3,080 
1,760 

1,860 
l.150 
1,230 

0 
0 
0 

400 
400 
400 

2.840 
2,840 
2.840 

2.940 
2,940 
2.940 

2.940 
2,940 
2.940 

2.940 
2,940 
2.940 

0.90 
I.OS 
0.60 

0.63 
0.73 
0.42 

C 
F 
C 

C 

C 
C 

6 
8 
4 

Add 
Add 
Add 

OL 
2L 
0L 

BONITA GRANDE l)RIV 

EAST TERRY STREET 

Bonita Grande Drive 
Bunila Be.ich Road 
l·.,,1 T ~11v-'l1r,.-.!I 

Old41 
lmMrial P:irkwav 

Log-,m Boulevard Elli. 

East Terry Street 
Pmi~-cl Hn1rancc 
Imperial P:irkway 
Bonita Grande Drive 

4LD 
4LO 
2LU 
4LD 
4LD 

E 
E 
E 
E 
E 

12 4903 
12_4903 
l2_4903 
12_0208 
12 0208 

37768 
12780 
5362 

40103 
8247 

0.82 
0.112 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 

31,000 
10,500 
4,400 

32,900 
6.800 

0.090 
0.090 
0.0\IO 
0.090 
0.090 

2,790 
9S0 
4(MI 

2.960 
610 

0.588 
0.51111 
0.5811 
0.588 
0.588 

0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 

1,640 
560 
24U 

1,740 
360 

1.150 
390 
l('.fl 

1.220 
250 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

250 
0 
0 
0 
0 

1,840 
770 
3IO 
770 
770 

1.960 
1,510 

660 
1,510 
1.510 

1,960 
1,600 

740 
1,600 
1.600 

1,960 
1,600 

740 
1,600 
l.flXJ 

0.84 
0.35 
0.32 
1.09 
0.23 

0.59 
0.24 
0.22 
0.76 
0.16 

C 
C 
C 
F 
C 

C 
C 
C 
D 
C 

4 
2 
2 
6 
2 

Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 

0L 
0L 
0L 
2L 
0L 

1-75 

Corkscrew Road (NB) 
Corkscrew Road (581 
Bonita Beach Road (NB) 

Bonita Beach Road (SB> 
Collier Cuunlv Line 

Boni1a Beach Road (NB) 

Bonila Beach Road (SB) 

lmmokalcc Road (NB) 

lmmokalce Road (SB) 
Bonilll Beach Rond 

3LF 
3LF 
JLF 
3LF 
4l.D 

D 
D 
D 
D 
E 

12_0054 
12_0054 
03_9950 
03_9950 
12_44\12 

63661 
64974 
67849 
67741 
50307 

0.91 
0.91 
0.91 
0.91 
0.82 

57.900 
59,100 
61,700 
61,600 
41.300 

0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.O<J0 

5,210 
5,320 
5,550 
S,540 
3,720 

0.581 
. 
0.559 
. 
0.58~ 

-
0.419 

-
0.441 
0.412 

6,118 
. 

6,199 
. 

2,190 

. 
4,41'.! 
-

4,891 
1,530 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

3,360 
3.360 
3,360 
3,360 

250 

4,580 
4.580 
4,580 
4,580 
l .ll40 

5.S50 
5,550 
s.sso 
S,550 
1,960 

6,080 
6,080 
6.080 
6,080 
1.960 

5,550 
5,550 
S.550 
5,550 
1,960 

1.10 
. 

1.12 
. 
1.12 

. 
0.79 
. 
0.88 
0.78 

F 
. 
F 

-
F 

. 
C 
. 
D 
C 

4 
3 
4 
3 
6 

Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 

IL 
0L 
IL 
0L 
2 L 

Imperial Parkway 

otd41 

H11nila Rcac.:h Road 
Ea,1 Tern· Street 
Easl Terry Slreel 

East Tcrrv Strccl 
Coconut Road 
Bonica Beach Road 

41,1) 
4LD 
2LU 

E 
E 
E 

12_4492 
12_4492 
12 4641 

49795 
21743 
29832 

O.K2 
0.82 
O.S2 

411,1\IXJ 
17,800 
24.500 

0.090 
0.090 
0.090 

3,670 
l,600 
2.210 

0.5KK 
0588 
0.588 

U.412 
0.412 
0.412 

2,160 
940 

1.300 

1,.:1 IO 

660 
910 

0 
0 
0 

250 
250 

0 

l,R40 
1.840 

330 

1.960 
1.960 

710 

1,960 
1,960 

780 

1.96ll 
1.960 

780 

1.10 
0.48 
1.67 

0.77 
0.34 
1.17 

F 

C 
F 

C 
C 
F 

(i 

4 
4 

Add 
Add 
Add 

2L 
OL 
2 L 

FOOTNOTES: 

(I) Lee Cnunly MPO 2040 uing Range Transporlalion Plan Highway Cusl Feasible Plan numhcr uf lanes. 
(2) Lc:c Counly ro.idway LOS suindard used for county roadways (LOSE>- FOOT r~wa.y LOS standard used fors1:1tc roadways (LOS D}. 
(3) filXIT count station from FOOT Traffic Online 2016. 
(4) PSWADT from 2040 travel model a~signmcnt without CPA (current LU dc,,gnation} on MPO 2040 Co,t Fca,ib!c road network. 
(51 AdJuslmenl factor; per FOOT Traffic Online 2016. 
(6) Lee County Generalized Peak Hour Service Volumes (April 2016) ui.ed for county roads. FOOT Generalized Peak Hour Directional Volu=s (December 2012) used for slate roads. 

Pa
ge

 1
55



EXHIBIT4 

BONITA GRANDE MINE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 
FUTURE (2040) TRAfflC CONDITIONS WITH CPA 
DIRECTIONAL PEAK HOUR, PEAK SEASON 

ROADWAY FROM TO 

#of 
J..anc~1 

LOS 
StJ.1 

FOOT 
Siu.lion' 

2040 
PSWADT 
Trame• MOCF' AADT KFac1or' 

Two-way 
Peolk Hour 

V11Jume 
Dfu1ol 

Dirl Dir2 

Directional 
Peak Hr. Vol. 
Dir! Dir2 LOS "A" 

Directional Service Volume~6 

LOS "8" LOS "C" LOS "D" LOS "E" 

LOS 
Std. 

LOS 
VIC 

Dirl Dir2 

2040 
LOS 

Dirl Dir2 
Lanes 

Needed 

Additional 
Lanes 

Needed 

IJONITA BEACH ROAD 

IIONJTA GRANDE IJRIV 

EAST TERRY STREET 

1-75 

lmrcrial Parkway 

Old41 

Old4l 
lm""'ial Park..-:tv 
1-75 
Bonil;i Gr.tnde Drive 
Bon11u Beach Road 

t-·"' l .:rry S1•~~1 
Old41 
Imperial Parkway 
Cork,;crew Road (NB) 
Cork!ICn.'W Road (581 
Bnnit~ Beach Road INB) 
Boni1.1 Be-J.Ch Rood (SBJ 
Collier C11un1} Line 
lhmita Beach Road 
1::1,1 Terr\' Slrcct 
Easl Terry Strccl 

ln111crial Parl.w:w 
1-75 
Bonita Grande Drive 
loJ?an Boulevard Ext. 
E.N Tern· Streel 
J~.,1.:, 1-nir~n,;c 

lm!lCrfal Parkwo\' 
Bnnit:1 Grande Drive 
Bonit.1 Beach Road (NB) 
Bonita Beach Road (SB) 

lmmolrnh.-c Road (NB) 

lmmokah:c Road (SB) 
Bunil.l Beach Road 
Ea-;1 Tern· Strccl 
Coconut Ro:id 
Bonila Beach Road 

6LD 
6LD 
6LD 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 
4LD 
4LD 
JLF 
JLF 
3LF 
3LF 
4LD 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 

E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
D 
D 
D 
D 
E 
F, 

E 
E 

12_4226 
12_6042 
12_4903 
12 4903 
12_4903 
12 4003 
12 0208 
12_0208 
12_0054 
12_0054 
03 9950 
03_9950 
12_44\12 
12 4492 
12_4492 
12_4641 

61949 
69839 
45824 
37986 
21780 
18666 
41318 
17484 
63547 
64127 
68098 
64300 
54007 
48016 
22455 
31005 

0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.112 
0.82 
0.82 
0.91 
0.91 
0.91 
0.91 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 

50,800 
57,300 
37,600 
31,100 
17,',1()0 
15,300 
33,900 
14,300 
57,800 
58,400 
62,000 
58,500 
44,300 
39.4110 
18,400 
25.400 

0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
ll.1190 
0.090 
0,090 

4.570 
5,160 
3,380 
2,800 
1,610 
1,380 
3.050 
1,290 
5,200 
5,260 
5,580 
5,270 
3,990 
3,550 
1,660 
2,290 

0.588 
0.588 
0.588 
0.588 
0.588 
0.588 
0.588 
0.588 
0.581 

0.559 
. 
0.588 
0.5R8 
0 .. 588 
0.588 

0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
. 

0.419 
. 

0.441 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 

2.690 
3,030 
1,990 
1,650 

'>50 
MIO 

1.790 
760 

6.077 

-
6,065 

-
2.350 
2.CI\IO 

980 
1.350 

1.880 
2,130 
1,390 
1,150 

660 
5·10 

1.260 
530 
. 

4,383 

4,785 
1.640 
1.460 

680 
940 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
(l 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

400 

400 
400 
250 

0 
0 
0 
0 

3.360 
3.360 
3,360 
3,360 

250 
250 
250 

0 

2,840 
2.840 
2,840 
1,840 

770 
310 
770 
770 

4.580 
4,580 
4,580 
4.580 
1,840 
1,840 
1,840 

330 

2.940 
2,940 
2,940 
1,960 
1,510 

660 
1.510 
1,510 
S.550 
S,5SO 
S.550 
5.550 
1,960 
1,960 
1.960 

7IO 

2,940 
2,940 
2,940 
1.960 
1,600 

740 
1,600 
1,600 
6,080 
6,080 
6,080 
6.080 
1,960 
1,960 
1.960 

780 

2,940 
2,940 
2,940 
1.960 
1,600 

740 
1,600 
1,600 
S,550 
S,550 
5,550 
5,550 
1,960 
1,960 
1,960 

780 

0.91 
1.03 
0.68 
0.84 
0.59 
1.09 
1.12 
0.48 
1.10 
. 
1.09 
. 
1.20 
1.117 
0.50 
1.73 

0.64 
0.72 
0.47 
0.59 
0.41 
0.77 
0.79 
0.33 
. 
0.79 
. 
0.86 
0.84 
0.74 
0.35 
1.21 

C 
F 
C 
C 
D 
F 
F 
C 
E 
. 
E 
. 
F 
F 
C 
F 

C 
C 
C 
C 
C 
D 
D 
C 
. 
C 
. 
D 
C 
C 
C 
F 

6 
8 
6 
4 
4 
4 
6 
2 
4 
3 
4 
3 
6 
6 
4 
4 

Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 

0L 
2L 
OL 
0L 
OL 
2L 
2L 
Ol 
1 L 
OL 
1 L 
0l 
2l 
21. 
0L 
2l 

FOOTNOTES: 

(I) I.cc Cuunl}' MPO 2040 lA>nll Range Transportoliun Plan Highway Cost Fco.siblc Plan numhcf of lanes. 
(2) Lee: County roadway LOS standard u.,;cd for county roadways (LOS EJ. FOOT roadway LOS standard used for s1a1c l'O.Jdways (LOS DJ. 
(3) FDITT count station from FOOTTraffic Online 2016. 
(4) PSWADT from 2040 travel model assi1nmcn1 with prop~d CPA on MPO 2040 Cost Feasible road nelwork. 
(5) Adju.,rmcnl factors per FOOT Traffic Online 2016. 
(6) Lee County Gener.Iiized Peale Hour Service Volumes (April 2016) used for couniy roads. FOOT Generalized Peak Hour Directional Volumes (December 2012) used for slate road,;. 12/26/2017 

Pa
ge

 1
56



EXHIBITS 

BONITA GRANDE MINE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 
FUTURE (2040) ROADWAY NEEDS COMPARISON 

Number of Lanes 

ROADWAY FROM TO Existing' 

Adopted 2040 MPO LRTP 

Cosl 
Needs Feasible 
Plan1 Plal 

Without CPA 1Currenll 

Consistent w/ Update 
Needs• MPO Ncedsl MPO Needs6 

CPA Ana!rsis 

Needs1 

Wi1h CPA 1Proooscd1 

Consistent w/ Consistent w/ 

MPO Needs" Without CPA 9 
Update 

MPO Nccds10 

Old41 
Imperial Parkway 

BONITA BEACH ROAD 
1-75 
Bonita Grande Drive 
Bonila Beach Road 

BONITA GRANDE DRJv;: 
Easl Terry Slrccl 
Old41

EAST TERRY STREET 
Imperial Parkway 
Corkscrew Ro:id (NB) 
Corkscrew Road (SB) 

J-75 
Bonila Beach Road (NB) 
Bonita Beach Road (SB) 
Collier County Line 

Imperial Parkway Bonita Beach Road 
East Terry Streel 

01d41 East Terry S1ree1 

lmoerial Parkway 
1-75 
Bonita Grande Drive 
Logan Boulevard Ext. 
Ea.~t Terry Slreel 
Project Entrance 
lmoerial Parkway 
Bonita Grande Drive 
Bonita Beach Road (NB) 
Bonita Beach Road (SR) 
lmmokalee Road (NB) 

lmmokalee Road (SB) 
Bonita Beach Road 
Ea~t Terrv S1ree1 
Coconut Road 
Bonita Beach Road 

6LD 
6LD 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 
2LU 
4LD 
2LU 
3LF 
31.F 
3LF 
3LF 
4LD 
4LD 
4LD 

2LU" 

6LD 
6LD 
6Ln 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 
4LD 
4LO 
4LF 
4LF 
4LF 
4LF 
6LD 
4LD 
4LD 

2LU" 

6LD 
6LD 
61.D 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 
4LD 
4LD 
3LF 
3LF 
3LF 
3LF 
4LD 
4LD 
4LD 

2LU" 

6LD 
8LD 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 
2LU 
6LD 
2LD 
4LF 
4LF 
4LF 
4LF 
6LD 
6LD 
4LD 

4LD 11 

Yes 
No 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
No 
Yes 
Ye~ 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yt:s 
No 
Yes 
No11 

No 
Yes 
No 
No 
No 
No 
Yes 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
Yes 
No 
No11 

6LD 
8LD 
6LD 
4LD 
4LD 
4LD 
6LD 
2LU 
4LF 
3LF 
4LF 
3LF 
6LD 
6LD 
4LD 

4LD11 

Yes 
No 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
No 
No 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
No 
Yes 
No11 

Yes 
Yes 
No 
Yes 
No 
No 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes11 

No 
Yes 
No 
No 
No 
Yes 
Yes 
No 
No 
Nn 
No 
No 
No 
Yes 
No 
No11 

FOOTNOTES: 

( 1 ) faisling 2017 condilions. 
(2) Adopted MPO 2040 LRTP - Highway Needs Plan. 
(3) Adopted MPO 2040 LRTP - Highway Cost Feasible Plan. 
(4) CPA Traffic Analysis- Without the CPA (Allowed 354 SF+ 37 MF= 391 total d.u.). 
(5) Comparison between (4) and (2) - Are the needed improvements without the CPA the same or less than those adupled by the MPO? 
(6) Recommended update 10 (2) - AK there any improvements needed without the CPA that would require an update to the adopted MPO Needs Plan? 
(7) CPA Traffic Analysis - With the CPA (Proposed 1,934 SF+ 634 MF= 2,536 Iota! d.u.). 
(8) Comparison belween (7) and (2) - Are the needed improvements wilh the CPA the same or less lhan those adopled by the MPO'! 
(9) Comparison between (7) and (4) - Are lhe needed improvements with the CPA the same or less lhan those needed without the CPA? 
( I 0) Recommended update to (2) - AK there any improvemenls needed with the CPA that would require an update to lhe adopled MPO Needs Plan? 
( 11) An updare to lhe adopted MPO 2040 LRTP Highway Needs Plan is not recommended due to designation as a constrained road. 12/26n0l7 

Pa
ge

 1
57



EXHIBIT6 

BONITA GRANDE MINE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 
FUfURE (2022) TRAFFIC CONDITIONS WITHOUT CPA 
DIRECTIONAL PEAK HOUR., PEAK SEASON 

ROADWAY FROM TO 

#of 
LanesI 

LOS 
Std.l 

FOOT 
Slalion·' 

2040 
PSWADT 
Trarlic~ MOCF' AADT K Faclur1 

Two-way 
Pe.ik Hour 

Volume 
D Factor' 

Dirl Dir2 

Direclional 
Peak Hr. Vol. 
Dirl Dir2 LOS "A" 

Directional Service Volumes6 

LOS "B" LOS "C" LOS "D'" LOS '"E" 
LOS 
Std. 

I.OS 
Yi£.. 

Dir! Dir2 

2040 
LOS 

Dirl Dir2 
Lmes 
Needed 

Addirional 
Lanes 

Needed 

BONITA BEACH ROAD 

BONITA GR A:-.'DE Uk I\' 

EAST TERRY STREET 

1,75 

lmrcrial Parkway 

Old4l 

Ok141 
Tmn,:rial Parkwil\' 
J.75 
Bonita Grande Drive 
Bonit~ Bepch Road 
11~(T(rtr Stl«I 
0!&141 
lm11erial P:ukwav 
Corkscrew Road (NB) 
Corkscrew Road !SB I 
Bonilil Beach Road (NB) 
Bonira Beach Road (SB) 

Culli~r Cuuntv Line 
lfomta Beach Ro.ad 
F.a,1 Terry S1reet 
Ea,t Terry Street 

lm!l'-"fial Parkway 
T-75 
Bonita Grande Drive 
Logan Boulevard Ext. 
Ea.,1 Tcrrv Strut 
r,.,t,(1 Entrance 
hnperial Par~w:1v 
Bonit:i Grande Drive 
Bonira Beach Road (NB) 
Bonita Beach Road (SB) 
lmmokalcc Road !NB) 
lmmokaltt Road (SB) 
l!onila B~ach Road 
F.a.,1 Terr~· Strecl 
Coc<1nu1 Road 
Bonita Beach Road 

6LD 
6LD 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 
2LU 
4LD 
2LU 
3LF 
3LF 
3LF 
3LF 
4LD 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 

E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
D 
D 
D 
D 
E 
E 
E 
E 

12_4226 
12_6042 
12_4903 
12_4903 
12_4903 
12_4903 
12 0208 
12_0208 
12 0054 
!2_0054 
03_9950 
03_99.50 
12_4492 
12_4492 
12 4492 
12_4641 

48302 
58547 
30509 
26783 
4548 
2982 

33420 
1649 

50038 
51279 
S3869 
55724 
37240 
37041 
6814 

23208 

0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.112 
0.82 
0.82 
0.9] 
0.91 
0.91 
0.91 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 

39,600 
48,000 
25.000 
22,000 

3,700 
2.400 

27,400 
1.400 

45.SOO 
46,700 
49,000 
50,700 
30,500 
30.400 

5,600 
19,000 

0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 

3,560 
4,320 
2,250 
1,980 

330 
220 

2,470 
130 

4.100 
4,200 
4.410 
4.560 
2,750 
2,740 

S00 
l.710 

0.588 
0.588 
0.588 
0.588 
0.5811 
0.5811 
0.588 
0.588 
0.581 
. 
0.559 
. 
0,51111 
0.588 
0.588 
0.588 

0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 

-
0.419 
. 

0.441 
0412 
0.412 
0412 
0.412 

2,090 
2,540 
1,320 
1,160 

190 
130 

l,4S0 
80 

4,822 

-
5,014 
. 

l,620 
1,610 

290 
1.0IO 

1,470 
1,780 

930 
820 
140 

<,10 
1,020 

50 
. 

3.478 
. 

3,956 
1.130 
I.DO 

210 
700 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

400 
400 
250 
250 

0 
0 
0 
0 

3,360 
3,360 
3,360 
3,360 

250 
250 
250 

0 

2.840 
2,840 
1.840 
1,840 

310 
310 
no 
310 

4,580 
4.580 
4,580 
4.580 
1,114() 
1,840 
1,840 

330 

2.940 
2.940 
1,960 
1,960 

660 
660 

1.510 
660 

5,.550 
5.550 
5.550 
5.550 
1,960 
1,960 
1.960 

710 

2.940 
2,940 
1.960 
1.960 

740 
740 

1,600 
740 

6,080 
6.080 
6.080 
6,080 
1.960 
1.960 

l.960 
780 

2,940 
2,940 
1.960 
1.960 

740 
740 

1,600 
740 

5,550 
5.550 
5,550 
5,550 
1,960 
1.960 
1,960 

780 

0.71 
0.86 
0.67 
0.59 
0.26 
0. 111 
0.91 
0.1 1 
0.87 
. 

0.90 

-
0.113 
0.82 
0.1 5 
1,29 

0.50 
0.61 
0.47 
0.42 
0.19 
0.12 
0,64 
0.07 
. 

0 .. 63 
. 
0.7] 
0.511 
O.SR 
0.11 
0.90 

C 
C 
C 
C 
C 
C 
D 
C 
D 
. 
D 
. 
C 
C 
C 
F 

C 
C 
C 
C 
C 
C 
D 
C 
. 
C 
. 
C 
C 
C 
B 
D 

6 
6 
4 
4 
2 
2 
4 
2 
3 
2 
3 
3 
4 
4 
2 
4 

Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
AJd 
Add 
Add 

OL 
OL 
OL 
OL 
OL 
OL 
OL 
OL 
OL 
OL 
OL 
OL 
OL 
0L 
OL 
2L 

FOOTNOTES: 

(I) Ia County MPO E+C mad network numhcr of fanes. 
(2) ue County roadway LOS standard u.sed for county roadways (LOSE). FOOT roodway LOS standard used for slate roadways (LOS D). 
(3) FOOT count station from FOOT Traffic Online 2016. 
(4) PSWADT from 2022 travel model a,;.~ignmcnl without CPA (current LU de.~ignarion) on MPO E-i-C road network. 
(5) Adjustment factors per FOOT Traffic Online 2016. 
(6) Lee CountyGener>llized Peak Hour Service Volumes (April 2016) \1sed for county roads. FOOT Generalized Peak Hour Direclional Volu~s (December 2012) u,;ed for state roads. 

Pa
ge

 1
58



EXHIBIT7 

BONITA GRANDE MINE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 
FUTIJRE (2022) TRAFFIC CONDITIONS WITH CPA 
DIRECTIONAL PEAK HOUR, PEAK SEASON 

ROADWAY FROM TO 

#of 
Lane~ 1 

LOS 
Sid.? 

FOOT 
StationJ 

2040 
PSWADT 
Trame• MOCP' AADT K Factor' 

Two-way 
Peak Hour 

Volume 
D F11ctor' 

Dir I Dir2 

Directional 
Peak Hr. Vol. 
Dirl Dir2 LOS "A" 

Directional Service Volumes6 

LOS "B" LOS "C" LOS "D" LOS "E" 
LOS 
Std. 

LOS 

YJ£.. 
Dirl Dir2 

2040 
LOS 

Oirl Dir2 
Lanes 
Needed 

Additional 
Lanes 

Needed 

BONITA BEACH ROAD 

BONITA GRANDE DRIV 

EAST TERRY STREET 

1-75 

Imperial Parkw:iy 

Old41 

O1d4I 
Tmoerial Parlcwav 
1-75 
Bonita Grande Drive 
Bonila Beach ROlld 
Easi T1,.1,v S1,c,;t 
Old4I 
lm~rial Pulcway 
Cork!1Crew Road (NB) 
Corkscrew Road CSB) 
Bonita Beach Road {NB) 
Bonita BeKh Road (SB) 
Collier Countv Linc 
Bonila Beach Road 
East Terrv S trec:t 
Ea.~• Terry Street 

Imperial Par\::way 
1-75 
Bonita Grande Drive 
Lo.r.an Boulevard Ext. 
l:!a.~t T,myStro,el 
Pr11jcct Entrance 
Imperial Parkway 
Bonilll Grande: Drive 
Bonita Beach Road (NB) 
Bonita Beach Road (SB) 
lmmokalec Road (NB l 
lmmokalec Road (SB) 
Bonita Beach Ruad 
F..a~I Terry Street 
Coconut Road 
Bonita Beach Road 

6LD 
6LD 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 
2LU 
4LD 
2LU 
3LF 
3LF 
31.F' 
3LF 
4LD 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 

E 
E 
E 

E 
E 
E 
E 
E 
D 
D 
D 
0 
E 
E 
E 
E 

12 4226 
ll 6042 
12 4903 
12_4903 
12_4'103 
12_4903 
12 0208 
12 4903 
12_0054 
12_0054 
03....9950 
03_9950 
12 4492 
]2_4492 
l2_4492 
12 4641 

48216 
60386 
31769 
26858 

5196 
5196 

339S6 
5196 

50058 
51271 
54722 
56613 
35396 
37130 
6974 

23252 

0.82 
0.82 
082 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.91 
0.91 
0.91 
0.9 1 
O.R2 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 

39.500 
49,500 
26.100 
22,000 

4.300 
4.300 

27,800 
4.300 

45,600 
46.700 
49,800 
51,500 
29.000 
30,400 

5,700 
19.100 

0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 
0.0\IO 
0.090 
0.090 
0.090 

3.560 
4,460 
2.350 
1,980 

390 
390 

2,500 
390 

4,100 
4,200 
4,480 
4,640 
2.610 
2,740 

510 
1.720 

0.588 
0.588 
0.588 
0.588 
0.5811 
0.588 
0.588 
0.588 
0.581 
-
0.S59 
-
0.588 
0.588 
0588 
0.588 

0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
-

0.419 
-

0.441 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 
0.412 

2,090 
2,620 
1,380 
1,160 

230 
nn 

1,470 
230 

4,822 

5.098 
-

1,530 
1,610 

300 
1,010 

1,470 
1,840 

970 
820 
160 
1(-0 

1,030 
160 

-
3,478 

-
4,022 
1,0110 
1,130 

210 
710 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

400 
400 
250 
250 

0 
0 
0 
0 

3.360 
3,360 
3,360 
3.360 

250 
250 
250 

0 

2,840 
2.840 
1,840 
1.840 

310 
310 
770 
310 

4.580 
4,580 
4,580 
4,580 
1,840 
1.IWO 
1,840 

330 

2,940 
2.940 
1,960 
1.960 

660 
660 

1.5IO 
660 

5.550 
5,550 
5.550 
5,550 
1,960 
1,960 
1,960 

710 

2,940 
2.940 
1,960 
1,960 

740 
740 

1.600 
740 

6.080 
6,080 
6,080 
6.080 
1,960 
1.960 
1,960 

780 

2,940 
2.940 
1,960 
1,960 

740 
740 

1.600 
740 

5,550 
5,550 
5,550 
5,550 
1,960 
1,960 
1,960 

780 

0.71 
0.89 
0.70 
0.59 
0.31 
0.31 
0.92 
0.31 
0.87 
. 

0.92 
. 

0.78 
0.82 
0.15 
1.29 

0.50 
0.63 
0.49 
0,42 
0.22 
0.22 
0.64 
0.22 

-
0.63 
. 
0.72 
0.55 
0.58 
0.11 
0.91 

C 

C 
C 
C 
C 
C 
D 
C 
D 

-
D 
-
C 
C 
C 
F 

C 
C 
C 
C 
C 
C 
D 
C 
-
C 
. 
C 
C 
C 
B 
E 

6 
6 
4 
4 
2 
2 
4 
2 
3 
2 
3 
3 
4 
4 
2 
4 

Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 
Add 

OL 
OL 
OL 
OL 
OL 
OL 
0L 
0L 
0L 
0L 
OL 
OL 
OL 
0L 
OL 
2L 

FOOTNOTES: 

( I I Lee County MPO E+C road network number of lanes. 
(2) Lee County roadway LOS standard used for county roadways (LOS E). FOOT roadway LOS standard used for slate roadways (LOS D). 
(3) FDCYT count s1ation from FOOT Traffic Online 2016. 
(4) PSWADT from 2022 travel model a.s5ignment without CPA (current LU designation) on MPO E+C road network. 
(5) Adjustment factors per FDOT Trame Online 20 I 6. 
(6) Lee County Generalized Peak Hour Service Volumes (April 2016) used for county roads. t'I>OT Generalized Peak Hour Directional Volumes (December 2012) used for state roads. 

Pa
ge

 1
59



EXHIBITS 

BONITA GRANDE MINE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 
FUTURE (2022) ROADWAY NEEDS COMPARISON 

Number of Lanes 

Ado_p_ted 2040 MPO LRTP 
WjJhouJ CPA rcum:n1l 

CPA Ana]lsis 
With CPA IPruoosedl 

ROADWAY FROM TO Existing' 
Needs 
Plani 

E+C 
Network~ Needs4 

Consistent w/ 
MPO Needs~ 

Update 
MPO Needs6 Nc:cds7 

Consistent w/ 
MPO Needs~ 

Consistent w/ 

Without CPA9 
Update 

MPO Needs10 

Old41 
Imperial Parkway 

BONITA BEACH ROAD 
1-75 
Bonita Grande Drive 
Bonila Beach Road

BONITA GRANDE DRIV: 
East Terry Street 
Old4I

EAST TERRY STREET 
Imperial Parkway 
Corkscrew Road (NR) 
Corkscrew Road (SB) 

T-75 Bonita Beach Road (NB) 
Bonila Beach Road (SB) 
Collier County Line 

Imperial P-.u-kw-.iy Bonita Beach Road 
East Terrv Street 

Old4I East Tcrrv Street 

Imperial Parkway 
1-75 
Bonita Grande Drive 
Logan Boulevard Ext. 
East Tmy Streel 
Project EnlFllnc:e 
Imperial Parkway 
Bonita Grande Drive 
Bonita Reach Road (NB) 
Bonita Beach Road (SB) 
lmmokalee Road (NB) 
lmmokalee Road (SB) 
Bonita Beach Road 
East Terry Slreet 
Coconut Road 
Bonita Beach Road 

6LD 
6LD 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 
2LU 
4LD 
2LU 
3LF 
JLF 
3LF 
3LF 
4LD 
4LD 
4LD 

2LU'' 

6LD 
6LD 
6LD 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 
4LD 
4LD 
41.F 
4LF 
4LF 
4LF 
6LD 
4LD 
4LD 

2LU" 

6LD 
61.D 
6LD 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 
4LD 
4LD 
JLF 
3LF 
3LF 
3LF 
4LD 
4LD 
4LD 

2LU'' 

6LD 
6LD 
6LD 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 
4LD 
4LD 
JJ,F 
JLF 
3LF 
3LF 
4LD 
4LD 
4LD 

4LD" 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
No" 

No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No" 

6LD 
61.D 
6LD 
4LD 
4LD 
2LU 
4LD 
4LD 
JLF 

3LF 
3LF 
3LF 
4LD 
4LD 
4LD 

4LD" 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yc:s 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
No" 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

Yes" 

No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
Nu 
No 
No 
No 
No" 

FOOTNOTES: 

(I) Existing 2017 conditions. 
(2) Adopted MPO 2040 LRTP - Highway Needs Plan. 
(3) Adopled MPO 2040 LRTP- E+C Road Network. 
(4) CPA Traffic Analysis - Without the CPA (Allowed 354 SF +37 MF= 391 total d.u.). 
(5) Comparison between (4) and (2) - Are the needed improvements without the CPA the same or less than those adopted by the MPO? 
(6) Recommended update to (2) - Are there any improvements needed without the CPA that would require an update to the adopted MPO Needs Plan? 
(7) CPA Traffic Analysis - Wilh the CPA (Proposed 1.200 SF+ 400 MP = 1.600 Lolal d.u.). 
(8) Comparison between (7) and (2) - Are the needed improvements with the CPA the same or less than those adopted by the MPO? 
(9) Comparison between (7) and (4) - Are the needed improvements with the CPA the same or less than those needed without the CPA? 
(10) Recommended update to (2) - Are there any improvements needed with the CPA that would require an update to the adopted MPO Needs Plan? 
(II) An update to 1he adopted MPO 2040 LRTP Highway Needs Plan is not recommended due to designation as a constrained road. 

Pa
ge

 1
60



APPENDIXE 

FSUTMS PSWADT PLOTS 

Page 161



,- Lanes.. 1 
l.anes•2 

Page 162

°' .......... ........ O" 
w ~ ~ o 

LOO .., .., 

40103 
r~ 40103 

200 1n 1n 
Q:l~ V OI 0\ r-,. 

· eie: · (\~ ~ ~ (~ 

"' "" 

I 
lJ. 

61186 
61186 u-, 

U\ VI 

:r;• . eaO "' Cl ......, ..., 

@]]O)ffi 

"" 1,11 U'I 
f',,.J ~ '"" ....,; 

.::. N ~ ~ 

j',~ 

8247 ! 
8247 

' . 
...., -...., ,..l',J l,l 
-....i -.J '"'-J Lf\ 

·1 CIII 00 I,,(, 
oo 

Cl' ' O'.,. "' ,.., -e. $ -=-.,. ..,. 

\ 
\\\ 

l 

471..:,C,; ,' 
' \\ 

70851 I I\ ' 40436 
• ' '-i ~ - ...... 

4043670851 \' ' 
46J1ci~ ' ' \ 

'\ . 
g\ ':l ~ -- ~ ~ " ~ !:, '° ..J 

BONITA GRANDE MINE CPA 
2040 COST FEASIBLE ROAD NETWORK 

PSWADT PLOT· WITHOUT CPA 

Lanes"'3 
- l.anes=4 

l.anes=5-10 
FTYPE=-51-59 

xxx (Black)= Total PSWADT (Two-Way)

l xxx (Orange) = Select Zone PSWADT (Dir.) 

ICj'e,, ~ PS \JA-:DT 

% 
Jn68 
Jn68 

04 

IDA VID PLUMMER & ASSOCIATES 

(Licensee to Florn1a Dt:•f)tl tment or Transp,;rtc1tion) 

L 



F
LANES=1 
LANES=2 
LANES=3 
LANES=-4 . 
FTYPE-51-59 

ux (Hl11ck)-= Total l'SWADT (Two•W11y) 
KKX (Oran,~~ Select Zone PSWADT ID~ 

Page 163

lq872. .. p5vJA-i>T
,£l ; ,co ,~
""' ~ ~~~r~ -~ ..;:. 

NN 
~ N N .... 

\J.. .,. ~ -
•t;~...211 ·~ ~ ~ ,.,, 

17'184
41318 

17'184
41318"' .... J/g

_.; IO \0 .b 21:;b_~ ~!e - N N..... ~ ci .... , 1 0 O r~ Lr ........ ,Jt 
u, u, ~ ,~ ...., °';; c!laJ :-z 

'-• 0 C 

$ $ -'• 
S P, >£ to 
:1 .,i ... 

--- -· 

l I 

17.'1',6~1388 379864582469839 ~ ~61949 37986 
61949 f~_,

L 4582469839 
'l(iQli/~4:l1322 

::::; *~ re 
~ !;::l !:3 ,. \ 1 

$ ii '=,s •1,'i 

ID.AVID PLUMMER & ASSOCIATES ' 
BONITA GRANDE MINE CPA 

2040 COST FEASIBLE ROAD NETWORK 
PSWADT PLOT• WITH CPA 

@lI][})ffi (Licensed tu Flor·c.Jc1 Department or Tr,1ns1Jortat1on) 



i

Page 164

_, !t~ .:,~.,.
81 

33420 
33420 

(11 ......~i i ~ -..I -..I 
-"' i i "'- ... 

_j_ 

38 
48302 
48302 

38 ...... 
~ i i~ ~ 

@(]JDJcB 

NN ..., 
t::: lili :t 
"" N N 

1ll 
16'\9 
1649 
.l 

"" 'ii).,-..1 ..... '2) 1,,.w 
~ ~ 't]. ,_ 

.,. .,. "' 
~ii ;; 

l'KIM, 
3050958547 ' r--..." --, "~ 3050958547 ' II'll

0~ 

\ I 

"" "':t ;;'!"' 
J 

\1\ 
~ ~ 
;. 

BONITA GRANDE MINE CPA 
2022 E+C ROAD NETWORK 

PSWADT PLOT• WITHOUT CPA' 

Lanes=1 
Lanes=2 
Lanes=-3 
Lanes=4 
Lanes=5-9 
FTYPE=51-59 

xxx (Black)= Total PSWADT (Two-Way) 
xxx (Orangt!): Select Zone PSWADT _{Dir.) 

714 Psw.A-01 

lC. 
26783 
26783 

29 

DAVID PLUMMER & ASSOCIATES 

(L1cer1sed to Flon c1d De1-•c1rtrnen: of Transportano11) 



Page 165

N N 
t. Id Id .,,

la IC 

·- $ $ ,~ 
....... -'!J '-J ~ ~- ... ~ 

33956 
33956 

}6Y w ~ ~ _ 
~~ ..J.... .., 

166 
48216 
48216 

157 1,,1 w 
::: t:J~ ~ 
"' l§: ~ c,.; 

Lanes=1 
Lanes=2 
Lanes=3 
Lanes::4 
Lanes--5-9 
FTYPE=51-59 

I XXX (Black)= Total PSWADT (Two-Way) 
xxx (Orange)= Select Zone PSWADT (Dir.)_ 

~0~'1 PS WPr-0 
- u, u, .- .. 
~ ~......... ..... '° '° ......-1 0\0\ '-' 

4/i. 

2430 
2430 

l'I~ 

! Ii~ 
,.,. ,.,.-~ ~ :.:, 
~ ;i ~ a 

IO.817}'1: 26858\ 31769• 60386 -1 •- -
\ 31769 2685!

60386 ! lJB·-•30L 

'-' $ ~ 'j
3 ~ ~ (... 

DAVID PLUMMER & ASSOCIATES 
BONITA GRANDE MINE CPA 
2022 E+C ROAD NETWORK 
PSWADT PLOT - WITH CPA 

(ffl]l)J(B 'L1cer.,;ed lo Florida U,-pc1rtn1ent •JI Tra, .SJ.ort 1t1c'I) 



2891 Center Pointe Drive Unit 100 Fort Myers, Rorida 33916 

Phone (239) 337-3993 I Toll Free (866) 337-7341 
www.morris-depew.com

ENGINEERS · PLANNERS · SURVEYORS 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

Bonita Grande 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

Public Facilities Impacts 
Potable Water 

The subject property will be serviced by Bonita Springs Utilities Water Treatment Facility. Bonita 
Springs Utilities currently has capacity to provide 15.56 million gallons of water per day. 
According to the 2018 Annual Report, the average daily water production in 2018 was 10.08 
million gallons and 9.618 million gallons in 2017. The anticipated needs of the proposed project 
are well within the remaining capacity of Bonita Springs Utilities. · U;:-§Otvr-r.. .._ 

O[c 4 sltq, 
LOS Standard = ~ 25_0 GPD/ERC co"" 3 O :1 I\IGs 

'l<fu,vltr <'{JI!I 

Existing Land Use= Lee County Density Reduction Groundwater Resource %:i,-1'?~ 

Active Mining, no central service. 

Proposed Land Use = Conservation Fringe District 
700 Dwelling Units@ ~250 GPD= le4,§00 175,000 GPD 

The amendment results in an increased demand of 164 §00 lJ=5t:QOQ GPO. According to the 2018 
Annual Report, there are 5.4 million gallons of water per day available for future development. 
A capacity problem is not expected from the proposed development. 

Sanitary Sewer 

The subject property will be serviced by Bonita Springs Utilities Water Reclamation Facility. 
Bonita Springs Utility Reclamation Facility currently has capacity to provide 11 million gallons per 
day of sanitary sewer as per the 2018. According the 2018 Annual Report, the average daily 
wastewater flow for 2018 was 4.53 million gallons and 4.77 million gallons in 2017. The 
anticipated needs of the proposed project are well within the remaining capacity of the City of 
Bonita Springs Central Advance Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

LOS Standard = 200 GPD/ERC 

Existing Land Use= Lee County Density Reduction Groundwater Resource 
Active Mining, no central service 

Proposed Land Use = 
Conservation Fringe District 

poo Dwelling units@ 200 GPD= 140,000 GPD 

~ 
;oo 

Fort Myers I Gainesville I Tallahassee I Destin Page 166



Public Facilities Impact 
December 16, 2019 

Page I 2 

The amendment results in an increased demand of 140,000 GPO. According to the 2018 Annual 
Report there is capacity to treat an additional 6.47 million gallons of wastewater. A capacity 
problem is not expected from the proposed development. 

Solid Waste 

The City of Bonita Springs has an interlocal agreement with Lee County to allow the City's Solid 
Waste to be disposed of at Lee County's Waste to Energy Facility. 

LOS Standard -= 7 pounds/day/capita 
Current Facility Capacity = 1,836 tons/day and 628,667 tons/year 

Existing Land Use= Lee County Density Reduction Groundwater Resource 
Active Mining, no solid waste service 

Proposed Land Use = 
Conservation Fringe District 

700 Dwelling Units @2.25 person per unit= 1,575 persons 
1,575 person @71bs/day= 11,025 lbs. 

The proposed amendment results in an increase of solid waste generation of 11,025 lbs. / day. 
According to the 2019 Lee County Concurrency Report, all unincorporated areas of Lee County 
are in compliance with the Level of Service Standard set forth in the Lee Plan for Solid Waste and 
new development should be accommodated by the existing capacity. 

Surface Water/Drainage Basins - South Florida Water Management District 

The subject property is within the Estero River Basin. Surface water is managed through an on
site stormwater management system, which meets or exceeds the City's adopted LOS Standard 
provided for reference below. If modifications to the system are needed to serve the proposed 
redevelopment of the subject property, applicable permits and modifications will be requested 
at that time. The system will be designed to maintain the City's established Level of Service. 

LOS Standard 
During a 3-day storm event (rainfall) accumulation of 13.7 inches or less (3-day, 100 year storm 
as defined by SFWMD), one lane of evacuation routes should remain passable (defined as less 
than 6 inches of standing water over the crown). Emergency shelters and essential services 
should not be flooded. 

During a 3 day rainfall accumulation of 11.7 inches or less (3-day, 25- year storm as defined by 
SFWMD), all lanes of evacuation routes should remain passable, Emergency shelters and 
essential services should not be flooded. During coastal flooding of up to 4.0 feet above mean 
sea level, all lanes of evacuation routes should remain passable. Emergency shelters should not 
be flooded. 

Page 167



Public Facilities Impact 
Decemberl6,2019 

Page I 3 

Parks, Recreation, Open Space 
According to the 2012 City of Bonita Springs Parks and Recreation Master Plan Update, there are 
approximately 146 acres of parks owned and operated by the City. In addition to the miles of 
trails associated with the Great Calusa Blueway which links many of the City's parks together. 
Within the City of Bonita Springs are 362 acres of parks owned by Lee County. The 1,616 acre 
Lovers Key State Park is also within City Limits. 

LOS Standards = Regional Parks 6 acres per 1,000 people 
Community Parks 1 acre per 1,000 people 

Existing Land Use= Lee County Density Reduction Groundwater Resources 
Active Mine no parks, recreation, required. Open Space is provided via existing on-site 
Conservation Easements. 

Proposed Land Use = 
Conservation Fringe District 

700 Dwelling Units@ 2.25 persons per unit= 1,575 persons 
Regional Parks @ 6 Acres/ 1000= 9.45 acres required 
Community Park@ 1 acre/1000= 1.58 acres required 

The amendment results in an additional demand for 9.45 acres of Regional Parks and an 
additional demand for 1.58 acres of Community Parks. The proposed development will include 
open space and native habitat that will provide passive recreation for the residents as well as 
protection for natural resources. Additionally, the 368 acres of on-site preservation area will 
ensure the land in maintained as native habitat and open space in perpetuity. An additional 14 
acres will remain as Native Open Space Creation Areas, which also provides native habitat and 
open space in perpetuity. Furthermore, impact fees will be assessed at the time of development 
providing for additional park resources when necessary. 

A review of the 2012 City of Bonita Springs Parks and Recreation Master Plan Update 
demonstrates the City does not own and operate a regional park. The City does own and operate 
a number of community parks that meet the level of service requirements with the proposed 
development. Lee County and the State of Florida operate multiple parks that qualify as Regional 
Parks and meet the level of service requirements with the proposed development. 

As part of the Settlement Agreement between the property owner and the City of Bonita Springs 
adopted on November 20, 2019, the northern portion of the subject property will become a new 
City Park with passive and active recreational uses. 

Page 168



Public Facilities Impact 
• f ' It 

December 16, 2019 
Page 14 

Public School 
The subject property is located entirely within the Lee County District School Board South Zone 
3. The actual enrollment and FISH capacity are reflective of the Lee County 2019 Concurrency 
Report. 

LOS Standard ; Elementary. Middle and High Schools: 100% of Permanent FISH Capacity as 
adjusted by the School Board annually to account for measurable programmatic changes. 

Elementary Schools (Bonita Springs, Spring Creek, Pinewoods) 
Actual enrollment= 2,429 FISH Capacity= 2,247 
Capacity Available. (· 182) seats 
Middle School (Bonita Springs) 
Actual Enrollment= 906 FISH Capacity= 910 
Capacity Available:: (4) Seats 
High School (Estero, Bonita Springs (Opening 2018)) 
Actual Enrollment = 2,302 FISH Capacity = 1,633 
Capacity Available= (-669) Seats 

Existing Land Use= Lee County Density Reduction Groundwater Resource 
Active Mine, no students per household 

Proposed Land Use = 
Conservation Fringe District 
700 Dwelling Units @ .299 students/ household= 209 Students 

The amendment results in the addition of 209 Students. There is a currently capacity at all 
education levels within this school zone to accommodate the proposed development. 

Page 169



BONITA SPRINGS 
FIRE CONTROL 8c RESCUE DISl'RfCT 

ADMIN/STRAnoN 
TEL: (239) 949-6200 
FAX: <239) 949-6207 

FIREPREVENTION 
TEL: (239) 949-62 1 1 
FAX: (239) 949-62 1 6 

STEVELOHAN 
CHAIRMAN 

LAWRENCEP. KOS/LLA, JR. 
VICE-CHAIRMAN 

JAMESP. MURPHY 
SECRETARY/TREASURER 

JEFFREYMATURO 
COMMISSIONER 

STEVENSLACHTA 
COMMISSIONER 

GREGORYL. DEWITT 
FIRE CHIEF 

www.bonitafire.org 

Dear Ms. Urwiller, 

The Bonita Springs Fire Control and Rescue District is governed by a five member 
board elected by the voters ofBonita Springs. This board has given direction that 
they would like to have a four to six minute response time throughout the 
community ofBonita Springs. The Bonita Springs Fire Control and Rescue 
District operates seven stations throughout the Bonita Springs community. Every 
first out apparatus is a state licensed Advanced Life Support (ALS) unit. Yom 
project is located approximately 1.9 miles from our Station 24, which is equipped 
with an ALS engine that can pump 2,000 gallons per minute. This station also has 
a brush truck capable fighting ofany grass or urban interface type fire. The 
Bonita Springs Fire Control and Rescue District is fully capable ofhandling any 
type ofemergency that you may encounter with this proposed development. 
Should you have any questions or concerns please feel ftee to contact me directly. 

Yours in Service, 

~ QLA;:~':~ 
Oreg DeWitt, 

Fire Chief 

Bonita Springs Fire Control and Rescue District 

Page 170

www.bonitafire.org


- - --- ----- --

Phone (239) 337-3993 I Toll Free (866) 337-7341 
www.morris-depew.com

ENGINEERS • PLANNERS •SURVEYORS 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

December 23, 2019 

Mr. Benjamin Abes 
Deputy Chief, Operations 
Lee County Emergency Services 
14752 Ben C. Pratt Six Mile Cypress Pkwy 
Fort Myers, FL 33912 

Re: Request for letter ofAvailability 
±1343 Acre Parcel for Residential Development 
Bonita Grande 

Dear Mr. Abes, 

Please accept this letter as a Letter of Availability request to the Lee County EMS for Emergency Medical 
Services for a new ±1343 acre residential subdivision, known as Bonita Grande located at the northern 
terminus of Bonita Grande Drive, approximately two miles north of Bonita Beach Road. The subject 
property Is currently approved as an Industrial Planned Development for limerock mining. 

The applicant is applying for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Residential Planned Development 
to permit the redevelopment of the property to a 700 unit residential subdivision. Please see the 
attached aerial exhibit and list ofSTRAP Numbers for the subject property for reference as to the 
property's location and size. 

We respectfully request the Lee County Emergency Services provide a letter explaining the service 
availability of Emergency Services to the property. Please note that the applicant is proposing to provide 
additional right-of-way to Bonita Grande Drive as part of the applications. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me via email or phone. Thank you in 
advance for your assistance in this matter. 

Sincerely, 

MORRIS-DEPEW ASSOCIATES, INC. 

H~U?I;~ 
Principal Planner 

Enclosure: Property Aerial Exhibit 

Property Owners Report 

CC: Ned Dewhirst- BG Mine, LLC 

Neale Montgomery - Pavese Law Firm 

I ' 
I I 

Page 171

1 

www.morris-depew.com


•LEE COUNTY 
SOUTHWEST FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

John E Manning 
District One 

Cecil L Pendergrass 
District Two 

Larry Kiker 
District Three 

Bnan Hamman 
District Four 

Frank Mann 
Olstnct Five 

Roger DesJar1a1s 
County Manager 

Richard Wm Wesch 
County Attorney 

Donna Marie Collins 
Hearing Examiner 

May 2, 2018 

Tina Ekblad, Planning Director 
Morris Depew Associates, Inc. 
2891 Cedar Point Drive, Unit 100 
Fort Myers, FL 33916 

Re: Request for Letter of Service Availability 

Ms. Ekblad, 

I am in receipt ofyour request for an updated Letter of Service Availability. This 
is regarding the Bonita Grade Properties project to redevelop the Bonita Grande 
Mine. 

Lee County Emergency Medical Services is the primary EMS transport agency 
responsible for coverage of the parcels you detailed. There have been no changes 
to our service level available in the area of this development. Also, as I 
understand the proposal, there have been no changes to the location or density of 
the development proposed in your correspondence. 

Therefore, our position in Chief Scott Tuttle's June 12, 2003 letter, as well as my 
response dated March 4, 20 I 6, stands, as we would expect nearly half of the calls 
in the development would fall outside ofour response requirements. We would 
ask that you provide us with more detailed information should the project move 
forward so we can properly evaluate the impacts and our ability to meet the needs 
ofyour prospective development. 

The most important information used to evaluate our ability to respond on the 
property would be a road network to use for response modeling. When this is 
available, please contact our office and we can reevaluate our position. 

At this time, we respectfully decline your request. 

Division of Emergency Medical Services 

P.O. Box 398, Fort Myers, Florida 33902-0398 (239) 533-2111 
Internet address http://www.lee-county.com 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER 

Page 172

http://www.lee-county.com


Carmine 9'-arceno State ofFlorida 
County of LeeSheriff 

"Proud lo Sel've" 

January 7, 2020 

Heather M. Urwiller 
Morris-Depew Associates 
2914 Cleveland Ave. 
Fort Myers, FL 33901 

Ms. Urwiller, 

The Lee County Sheriff's Office has reviewed your Letter of Availability request for a new 
+-1,343 acre residential subdivision known as Bonita Grande located at the northern terminus 
ofBonita Grande Drive approximately two miles n01th ofBonita Beach Road. 

The proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Residential Planned Development that 
would permit the redevelopment of the property from an Industrial Planned Development for 
lime rock mining to a 700 unit residential subdivision would not affect the ability of the Lee 
County Sheriff's Office to provide core levels ofservice at this time. 

Law enforcement services will be provided from our South District offices in Bonita Springs, 
with supplemental support from City ofBonita Springs contract deputies. As this development 
builds out, we will factor its impact into our annual manpower review and make adjustments 
accordingly. At the time ofapplication for a Development O1·der or building permit, we request 
that the applicant provide a Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) report 
done by the applicant and given to the Lee County Sheriff's Office for review and comment. 

Please contact Community Response Unit Manager Beth Schell at (239) 477-1676 with any 
questions regarding the CPTED study. 

Respect 

Rich Snyd 
Major, Patrol Bureau 

"The Lee County Sheriffs Office is an Equal Opportunity Employer» 
14750 Six Mile Cyp1·ess Parkway• Fort Myers, Florida 33912-4406 • (239) 477-1000 

Page 173



LEE COUNTY 
SOUTHWEST FLORIDA 

BOARD OF COUNT\' COMMISSIONERS 

John E. Manning 
District One 

Cecil L Pendergrass 
District Two 

Ray Sandelli 
District Three 

Brian Hamman 
District Four 

Frank Mann 
District Five 

Roger Desjartais 
County Manager 

Richard Wm. Wesch 
County Attorney 

Donna Marie Collins 
Hearing Examiner 

January 9, 2020 

Ms. Heather Urwiller 
Principal Planner 
Morris Depew Associates, Inc. 
2914 Cleveland Ave. 
Fort Myers, FL 33901 

SUBJECT: Bonita Grande 
Your request from December 23, 2019 

Dear Ms. Urwiller: 

The Lee County Solid Waste Division is capable of providing solid waste collection 
service for the planned 700 residential units proposed for the Bonita Grande 
Development located east of 175 on Bonita Grande Drive, in Bonita Springs, 
through our franchised hauling contractors. Disposal of the solid waste froll) this 
development will be accomplished at the Lee County Resource Recovery Facility 
and the Lee-Hendry Regional Landfill. Plans have been made, allowing for growth, 
to maintain long-term disposal capacity at these facilities. 

Please review Lee County Land Development Code, Chapter 10, Section 261, with 
requirements for on-site space for placement and servicing of solid waste 
containers. Solid Waste Ordinance (11-27) defines those residential dwelling units 
that are eligible to receive curbside residential collection service and requirements 
for those as multiwfamily and/or commercial dwellings. It further establishes that 
Property Owners will be responsible for all future applicable solid waste 
assessments and fees. 

If you have any questions, please call me at (239) 533-8000. 

Sincerely, 

81"rj,t'tte t'a,rtol" 

Brigitte Kantor 
Manager, Public Utilities 
Lee County Solid Waste Division 

P.O. Box 398. Fort Myers, Flonda 33902-0398 (239) 533-2111 
Internet address http://www.lee-county.com 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER 

Page 174

http://www.lee-county.com


•Lee County
.;] Southwest r-,:forida 
BOARD or COUNTY COMMIS~IONtRS 

John e. Manning 
District One 

Ceca L. Pendergrass 
o,strict Two 

RaySandelli 
Dtstricl Three 

Brian Hamman 
District Four 

Frank Mann 
Distncl Five 

Roger Desjarlais 
County Manager 

Richard Wesch 
County Attcmey 

Donna Marie Collins 
County Hearing 
Examiner 

January 7, 2020 

Heather M. Urwiller 
Morris Depew, Inc 
2914 Cleveland Ave 
Fort Myers, FL 33901 

RE: Bonita Grande 

Dear Ms. Urwiller, 

LeeTran has reviewed the request for service availability regarding Bonita Grande, 
located at 2550 l Bonita Grande Dr. After reviewing the site and comparing the 
location with our existing and planned route locations according to the 2016 Transit 
Development Plan (TOP), the following has been determined: 

• Currently, the closest route to the identified site is the Route 150 along 
Bonita Beach Road 

• The identified site does not lie within the one-quarter mile of a fixed-route 
corridor via safe pedestrian access. 

• The 2016 TOP does not identify the need for enhanced or additional transit 
services in the area. 

Conclusion: Developer will not be required to connect to or improve transit 
facilities because pedestrian access from proposed development to closest stop is 
greater than one-quarter mile. This statement is subject to review by the City of 
Bonita Springs Community Development Department before approval. 

If transit services have been extended within one-quarter mile of the proposed 
development at time of a DO submittal, necessary improvements will be 
determined at that time. 

If you have any questions or require further information, please do not hesitate to 
contact me at (239) 533-0340 or JPuente® leegov,com. 

Sincerely, 

~p. 'P«enU 
Jorge J. Puente 
Service Planner, LeeTran Mobility Enhancement Team 

P 0 . Box 398, Fort Myers Florida 33902-0398 Phone: (239) 533-2111 
www.leegov.com 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

Page 175

www.leegov.com


Page 176

Development Review 

Proposed Residential 
Development 

Bonita Grande 

e Bus Stops 

- Bus Routes 
"' - Development Review. 

N 

w<f@• 
s 

0 0.5 1
-----=========::JMiles 

,~,-►-
Prepared by LeeTran Planning Department 



Phone (239) 337-3993 I Toll Free (866) 337-7341 
www.morris-depew.com

ENGINEERS • PLANNERS •SURVEYORS 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

December 23, 2019 

Ms. Dawn Huff 
Long Range Planner, Planning Department 
Lee County Public School District 
33087 Canal Street 
Fort Myers, FL 33916 

Re: Request for letter of Availability 
±1343 Acre Parcel for Residential Development 
Bonita Grande 

Dear Ms. Huff, 

Please accept this letteras a letter of Availability request to the Lee County Public Schools for a new 
±1343 acre residential subdivision, known as Bonita Grande located at the northern terminus of Bonita 
Grande Drive, approximately two miles north of Bonita Beach Road. The subject property is currently 
approved as an Industrial Planned Development for Limerock mining. 

The applicant is applying for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Residential Planned Development 
to permit the redevelopment ofthe property to a 700 unit residential subdivision. Please see the 
attached aerial exhibit and list of STRAP Numbers for the subject property for reference as to the 
property's location and size. 

We respectfully request the Lee County School District provide a letter explaining the service availability 
of School District to the property. Please note that the applicant is proposing to provide additional right
of-way to Bonita Grande Drive as part of the applications. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me via email or phone. Thank you in 
advance for your assistance in this matter. 

Sincerely, 
MO RIS-DEPEW ASSOCIATES, INC. 

~;llllllA. 
ea Iler M. Urwillecr, ~~""" -

Principal Planner 

Enclosure: Property Aerial Exhibit 
Property Owners Report 

CC: Ned Dewhirst- BG Mine, LLC 
Neale Montgomery - Pavese Law Firm 

Page 177

www.morris-depew.com


THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF LEE COUNTY 
2855 COLONIAL BLVD. ♦ FORT MYERS, FLORIDA 33966 ♦ WWW.L EESCHOOLS.NET 

CATHLEEN O 'DANIEL MORGAN 
DAWN HUFF CHAIRMAN, DISTRICT 7 
LONG RANGE PLANNER 
239-337-8142 PAMELA H. LARIVIERE 

VICE CHAIRMAN, DISTRICT 5DAWNMHU@LE:ESCHOOLS.NET 
MARY FISCHER 

DISTRICT 1 

M E LISA w. GIOVANNELLI 
DISTRICT2 

CHRIS N. PATRICCA 
01STRICT3 

May 6, 2018 
STEVEN K . TEUBER 

DISTRICT4 

Candace Woodworth JANE E. KUCKEL, PHO 
DISTRICT 62914 Cleveland Ave 

GREGORY K. A DKINS, ED. D .Fort Myers, FL 33901 SUPERINTENDENT 

KEITH 8. MARTIN, Eso. 

RE: Bonita Grande Mine - Request for Letter of Availability BOARD ATTORNEY 

CPA2013-06941-06942 

Dear Ms. Woodworth: 

This letter is in response to your request for the Bonita Grande Mine request for Letter of 
availability in reference to educational impact. This proposed development is located in the 
South Choice Zone, Sub Zone S-3. 

The Developers previous request stated a possibility of 2,999 single family dwellings and now 
has been revised to 2,535. With regard to the inter-local agreement for school concurrency the 
generation rates are created from the type of dwelling unit and further broken down by grade 
level. 

For single family the generation rate is .299 and further broken down into the following, .147 for 
elementary • . 071 for middle and .077 for high. A total of 748 school-aged children would be 
generated and utilized for the purpose of determining sufficient capacity to serve the 
development. 

The Concurrency Analysis attached, displays the impact of this development. Capacities for 
elementary and high seats are not an concern within the Concurrency Service Area (CSA). For 
middle, the development adds to the projected deficit for the CSA, however, there are sufficient 
seats available to serve the need within the contiguous CSA. 

If I may be of further assistance, please call me at (239) 337-8142. 

Sincerely, 

Dawn Huff, Long Range Planner 
Planning Department 

VISION: TO BE A WORLD-CL.ASS SCHOOL SYSTEM 

Page 178

https://DAWNMHU@LE:ESCHOOLS.NET
https://EESCHOOLS.NET


LEE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT'S SCHOOL CONCURRENCY ANALVSIS 

REVIEWING AUTHORITY 
NAME/CASE NUMBER 
OWNER/AGENT 
ITEM DESCRIPTION 

LOCATION 
ACRES 
CURRENT FLU 
CURRENT ZONING 

PROPOSED DWELLING UNITS BY 
TYPE 

STUDENT GENERATION 
Elementary School 

Middle School 

High School 

CSA SCHOOL NAME 2021/22 
South CSA, Elementary 

South CSA, Middle 
South CSA, Hig,.:..;h_____ 

Prepared by: 

Lee School District 

Bonita Grande/CPA13-06941-BOS 

Bonita Grande Properties LP 

Development which all impact is in South CSA, sub area S3 

Eastof 175, North of Bonita Beach Rd 

1260.83 

DRGR (Resource Protection) 

Industrial Planned Development (IPD) 

Single Family Multi Family Mobile Home 
2535 0 0 

Student Generation Rates 
Projected 

SF MF MH Students 
-0.147 372.65 

0.071 179.99 
0.077 195.20 

Source: Lee County Schaal Oislrict, May 6, 2018 letter 

Adjacent CSA 
Projected Avallable LOS ls 100% Available 

CSA Projected CSA Available Impact of Capacity Perm FISH Capacity 
CSA Capacity (1) Enrollment (21 Capacity Project W/lmpact Capacity w/lmpact 

12,571 11,807 764 373 391 97% 
5,700 5,664 36 180 -144 103% 
8,736 8,160 576 195 381 96% 

(1) Permanent capacity as defined in the lnterlocalAgreement and adopted in the five (SJ years ofthe School District's five Year 
Plan 

(2) Projected Enrollment per thefive (SJ years of the School District's Five Year Plan plus any reserved capacity (development has a 
valid finding orcapacity J 

(3) Available Adjacent CSA capacity is subject to adjacency criteria asoutlined in the lnterlocal Agreement and the School District's 
School Concurrency Manual 

Dawn Huff, Long Range Planner 

Page 179



Exhibit 111-B-3 

Bo2Springs
Ufilities, Inc: 

November 27, 2019 

William Morris, P.E. 
Morris DePhew 
2914 Cleveland Ave. 
Ft. Myers, FL 33901 

Sent via e-mail: bmorris@m-da.com 

Re: Bonita Grande RPD 

Dear Mr. Morris, 

You have requested potable water, sewer and irrigation service for the project referenced above. 
Plant capacities are adequate; however, the Developer is required to install all off-site and on-site 
utility line extensions necessary to provide service to the project in accordance with Bonita Springs 
Utilities, Inc. specifications. No construction submittals have been received, reviewed or approved 
as of this date. This letter expires in one year. 

You have estimated the usage to be 280,000 gallons per day. Bonita Springs Utilities, Inc. has 
the capacity to provide the above estimated gallonage from its 17.56 million gallon per day Water 
Treatment Plant. The Water Reclamation Facilities have the capacity to treat the above estimated 
gallonage from the plants currently rated at 11.0 million gallon per day. 

Potable water is available for irrigation use as no reuse water is available in proximity to the 
subject property at this time. 

This letter should not be construed as a commibnent or guarantee to serve nor as approval for 
construction, but only as to the availability of potable water, sewer and reuse at this time. Bonita 
Springs Utilities, Inc. may commit to reserve plant capacity if available, at such time that ANC 
(Aid-to-New Construction) fees are paid for each unit of required capacity. 

If there are any proposed utility infrastructure installations, then the appropriate meetings and 
submittals per the Bonita Springs Utilities specifications shall be required. 

tilities, Inc. 

Kim Hoskins, P.E. 
Director of Engin~ring 

1)900 East Terry Street• Bonita Springs, Florida 34135 • (239) 992-0711 • (800} 583-1496 • www.bsu.us 

Page 180

www.bsu.us
mailto:bmorris@m-da.com


. -

C17y0~~$©, 
so'Vrt,fl'$~ 

C. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

Introduction 

c Of'c '4 S,ll~li 
O,i,At, J ()?, i\lG's 

¾;.,'?),o 'tJ/,g 
P-<lf? 't'vc: 

The 1,342.60± acre Bonita Grande Aggregates Mine property is locari~<zithin}-a 
portion of Sections 17, 20 and 29, Township 47 South, Range 26 East, Bonita 
Springs, Florida. This property is bordered to the north by agricultural lands, to the 
east by conservation lands owned by the South Florida Water Management 
District (SFWMD), to the south by undeveloped property that is primarily wetland 
and homes on larger lots, and to the west by agricultural lands and the future 
planned alignment of C.R. 951. 

The majority of the site has been cleared and is an active limerock mining operation. 
The state permit for the mine was originally issued by the SFWMD in 1982. The 
SFWMD permit was modified a number of times and then ultimately modified into a 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection permit in 2003. These permits 
required the preservation and creation of wetlands on-site that are located 
predominately along the property's eastern border. The wetlands and adjacent 
areas of native uplands have been placed in conservation easements. The 
southwestern most 74.88± acres is active row crop (vegetable field). 

The property was also annexed into the City of Bonita in 2003. The December 
2009 Bonita Grande Mine Preservation and Created Native Open Space Areas 
Management Plan was prepared to describe the restoration and long term 
management of the areas within the conservation easements. Earthwork activities 
by the previous mine owner had resulted in minor incursions into the preserved 
wetlands. The City of Bonita also required 14.0± acres of native open space 
creation areas outside of the conservation easements. The December 2009 plan 
was approved in January 2010 by City of Bonita Springs Community Development 
and was implemented in the spring of 2010. The required restoration (fill removal) 
and management activities (exotic species treatments) are ongoing pursuant to the 
schedule contained within the approved December 2009 plan. 

Existing Conditions 

Plant Communities 

The predominant upland and wetland vegetation associations on the mmmg 
property were ordinally mapped in the field on 2012 digital color 1" = 700' scale 
aerial photography. The mapping was updated in 2017 to reflect the current status of 
the habitat restoration efforts within the preserves. The 74.88± acres in the southwest 
corner of the property was mapped in 2019 on 2019 aerials. Thirteen vegetation 
associations were identified using the Florida Land Use, Cover and Forms 
Classification System (FLUCCS). Figure 1 depicts the approximate location and 
configuration of these vegetation associations and Table 1 summarizes the acreages 
by FLUCCS Code. A brief description of each FLUCCS Code is also provided below. 

Page 181



Table 1. Acreage Summary by FLUCCS Code 
FLUCCS Code Description Acres 
163 Rock Quarries 883.71 
214 Row Croes 70.36 
320 Shrub and Brushland 13.21 
411 Pine Flatwoods 34.05 
510D Ditches 1.33 
621 Cypress 125.78 
624 Cvoress - Pine 93.73 
625 Hvdric Pine Flatwoods 1.88 
631 Wetland Shrub 1.01 
641 Freshwater Marshes 111.98 
643 Wet Prairies 2.37 
740 Disturbed Land 2.86 
814 Roads and Hiahwavs 0.33 
TOTAL 1,342.60 

FLUCCS Code 163, Rock Quarries 
The portions of the site that have been approved for mining operation or have been 
cleared of native vegetation were assigned to this FLUCCS Code. This represents a 
majority (66± percent) of the property. These areas are primarily open water or 
impervious areas associated with the mining activity. 

FLUCCS Code 214, Row Crops 
This portion of the property was being used for the production of vegetables in 
December 2019. The seedling vegetables had been planted at that time and the field 
was being actively managed. 

FLUCCS Code 320, Shrub and Brushland 
Restored uplands are located along the northern property line. Portions of these areas 
were planted with slash pine (Pinus elliotti1), dahoon holly (/Jex cassine), cocoplum 
(Chrysobalanus icaco), and wax myrtle (Myrica cerifera). Ground cover within these 
areas consisted of species such as hurricane grass (Fimbristylis cymosa), Bermuda 
grass (Cynodon dactylon), Mexican seedbox (Ludwigia octovalvis), frog fruit (Phyla 
nodiflora), para grass (Urochloa mutica), and bare ground. 

FLUCCS Code 411, Pine Flatwoods 
The upland pine flatwoods are located in the northeastern portion of the site. These 
areas are vegetated by slash pine in the canopy, myrsine (Rapanea punctata) and other 
shrubs in the midstory and saw palmetto (Serenoa repens) in the ground cover strata. 

FLUCCS Code 510D, Ditches 
An irrigation ditch, consisting primarily of open water, surrounds the farm field (FLUCCS 
Code 214). Scattered para grass, coast cockspur (Echinochloa walten), and torpedo 
grass (Panicum repens) are also present. 

Page 182

https://1,342.60


FLUCCS Code 621, Cypress 
Cypress dominated wetlands are located in the southeastern portion of the site as well 
as within the conservation easement areas that are scattered throughout the property. 
Pond cypress (Taxodium ascendens) dominates the canopy. Scattered pond cypress, 
dahoon holly, cocoplum, and myrsine and widely scattered slash pine form an open 
midstory. Ground cover includes a variety of wetland species such as swamp fern 
(8/echnum serrulatum), saw-grass (Cladium jamaicense), false nettle (Boehmeria 
cylindrica), marsh pennywort (Hydrocoty/e umbel/ata), and climbing hemp weed 
(Mikania scandens). 

FLUCCS Code 624, Cypress - Pine 
ln these wetlands either pond cypress and slash pine are co-dominant in the canopy or 
the canopy consists of slash pine with pond cypress in the midstory. Ground cover 
species consist of species such as swamp fern, false nettle, coinwort (Centella asiatica), 
bushy bluestem (Andropogon glomeratus), muhly grass (Muhlenbergia sp.), and various 
sedges. 

FLUCCS Code 631, Wetland Shrub 
This small area of wetland is located in the northern portion of the site. The dominant 
vegetation is willow (Salix caroliniana). 

FLUCCS Code 641, Freshwater Marshes 
The majority of the non-forested wetlands on-site consist of freshwater marshes. These 
areas are vegetated by a variety of species including spikerush (Eleocharis spp.), 
beakrushes (Rhynchospora spp.), little marsh elder (Iva microcephala), corkwood 
(Stillingia aquatica), maidencane (Panicum hemitomon), bald rush (Rhynchospora 
nitens), and saw-grass. 

FLUCCS Code 643. Wet Prairies 
Wet prairies are similar to the freshwater marshes described above with the exception 
that the hydroperiod is typically shorter. Species such as spikerush, bushy bluestem, 
love grass (Eragrostis sp.), umbrella-grass (Fuirena sp.), flatsedges (Cyperus spp.), 
stinkweed (P/uchea sp.), coinwort, and beggar tick (Bidens sp.) are present. 

FLUCCS Code 740, Disturbed Lands 
This FLUCCS Code was used to delineate the disturbed areas between the irrigation 
ditch described above and the property line or adjacent mine lands. The vegetation is 
primarily Brazilian pepper (Schinus terebinthifolius) and melaleuca (Mela/euca 
quinquenervia) with widely scattered slash pine and cabbage palm (Sabal palmetto). 

FLUCCS Code 814, Roads and Highways 
The property contains a portion of Bonita Grande Drive. Few, if any, native species are 
present in this area. 

Soils 

The soils mapping obtained from the Florida Geographic Data Library depicts the 
property as containing 12 soil types circa 1990 (Figure 2). A description of those 
soil types, as they occur in undisturbed areas, has been reproduced from the Soil 

Page 183



Survey of Lee County, Florida (Appendix A). As can be discerned from an overlay 
of the soils mapping on the 2018 aerial photograph (Figure 3), the majority of the 
soils on-site have been significantly disturbed by the mining operation and agricultural 
activity since the date of the soils mapping. Therefore, with the exception of the 
preservation areas, the currently available soils mapping does not accurately reflect 
current site conditions. 

Wetlands, Aquifer Recharge Areas, and Rare and Unique Uplands 

The approximate locations of the wetlands on-site are depicted on Figure 4. 
Based on this mapping there are approximately 336. 75 acres of wetlands on-site. 

There are no rare and unique uplands on the property. 

Listed Species 

Species listed as endangered, threatened, or species of special concern by the 
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) or the United States Fish 
and Wildlife Service (FWS) that could potentially occur on the subject parcel based 
on the general FLUCCS mapping are shown in Table 2. This list is general in nature, 
does not necessarily reflect existing conditions within or adjacent to the 1,342.60± 
acre property and is provided for general informational purposes only. 

Table 2. Species That C OUId Potentlallv Occur On-site 
COMON NAME l TAXON STATUS 

FLUCCS Code 163 
American Alliaator Alliaator mississinniensis FT(S/A) 
FLUCCS Code 214 
None 
FLUCCS Code 320 
Florida Panther Fe/is conco/or corvi FE 
Eastern lndiao Snake Drvmarchon corais couoeri FT 
Gopher Tortoise Gooherus oo/yphemus ST 
FLUCCS Code 411 
Big Cypress Fox Squirrel Sciurus niaer avicennia ST 
Florida Bonneted Bat Eumoos floridanus FE 
Florida Panther Fe/is concolor corvi FE 
Red-cockaded Woodpecker Picoides borealis FE 
Southeastern American Kestrel Falco soarverius oaulus ST 
Eastern lndiao Snake Drvmarchon corais couoeri FT 
Gopher Tortoise Gooherus oo/vphemus ST 
FLUCCS Code 51 OD 
Florida Sandhill Crane Grus canadensis pratensis ST 
Little Blue Heron Earetta caerulea ST 
Reddish Egret Earetta rufescens ST 

Page 184

https://1,342.60


COMON NAME 
Roseate Spoonbill 
Tricolored Heron 
Wood Stork 
American Alligator 
FLUCCS Code 621 
Big Cypress Fox SQuirrel 
Florida Bonneted Bat 
Florida Panther 
Everglade Snail Kite 
Little Blue Heron 
Roseate Spoonbill 
Tricolored Heron 
Wood Stork 
American Alligator 
Butterfly Orchid 
Cinnamon fern 
Fuzz-wuzzy Air-plant 
Giant Wild-pine 
Reflexed Wild-pine 
Royal Fern 
Stiff-leaved Wild-pine 
Soft-leaved Wild-pine 
Twisted Air-plant 
FLUCCS Code 624 
Bii:i Cypress Fox SQuirrel 
Florida Bonneted Bat 
Florida Panther 
Little Blue Heron 
Red-cockaded Woodoecker 
Tricolored Heron 
Wood Stork 
American Alliaator 
Butterfly Orchid 
Cinnamon Fern 
Fuzz-wuzzv Air-plant 
Giant Wild-pine 
Reflexed Wild-Dine 
Roval Fern 
Stiff-leaved Wild-pine 
Soft-leaved Wild-pine 
Twisted Air-plant 
FLUCCS Code 631 
Everglade Snail Kite 
Little Blue Heron 

TAXON STATUS 
Ajaia ajaja ST 
Egretta tricolor ST 
Mvcteria americana FE 
Alliaator mississiooiensis FT(S/Al 

Sciurus niaer avicennia ST 
Eumoos floridanus FE 
Fe/is concolor coryi FE 
Rostrhamus sociabilis p/umbeus FE 
Egretta caerulea ST 
Aiaia aiaia ST 
Earetta tricolor ST 
Mycteria americana FE 
Alliaator mississiooiensis FT(S/A} 
Encvclia tam()ensis SCE 
Osmunda cinnamomea SCE 
Tillandsia pruinosa SE 
Til/andsia utriculata SE 
Tillandsia balbisiana ST 
Osmunda regalis SCE 
Tillandsia fascicu/ata SE 
Tillandsia valenzue/ana ST 
Tillandsia flexuosa ST 

Sciurus niaer avicennia ST 
Eumpos floridanus FE 
Fe/is concolor coryi FE 
Egretta caerulea ST 
Picoides borealis FE 
Earetta tricolor ST 
Mvcteria americana FE 
Alliaator mississiooiensis FT{S/A) 
Encyc/ia tamr:, ensis SCE 
Osmunda cinnamomea SCE 
Tillandsia oruinosa SE 
Tillandsia utriculata SE 
Tillandsia balbisiana ST 
Osmunda rega/is SCE 
Tillandsia fascicu/ata SE 
Tillandsia valenzuelana ST 
Tillandsia flexuosa ST 

Rostrhamus sociabilis olumbeus FE 
Egretta caerulea ST 

Page 185



COMONNAME TAXON STATUS 
Roseate Spoonbill Ajaia aiaia ST 
Tricolored Heron Earetta tricolor ST 
American Alligator Al/iqator mississiooiensis FT<S/A) 
FLUCCS Code 641 
Florida Panther Fe/is concolor corvi FE 
Everglade Snail Kite Rostrhamus sociabilis olumbeus FE 
Florida Sandhill Crane Grus canadensis oratensis ST 
Little Blue Heron Earetta caeru/ea ST 
Reddish Egret Earetta rufescens ST 
Roseate Sooonbill Aiaia aiaia ST 
Tricolored Heron Earetta tricolor ST 
Wood Stork Mvcteria americana FE 
American Alligator Alliaator mississippiensis FT(S/A) 
FLUCCS Code 643 
Florida Panther Fe/is concolor corvi FE 
Everqlade Snail Kite Rostrhamus sociabilis olumbeus FE 
Florida Sandhill Crane Grus canadensis pratensis ST 
Little Blue Heron Earetta caeru/ea ST 
Reddish Egret Earetta rufescens ST 
Roseate Sooonbill Aiaia aiaia ST 
Tricolored Heron Earetta tricolor ST 
Wood Stork Mvcteria americana FE 
American Alligator Alliaator mississinniensis FT<S/A) 
FLUCCS Code 740 
Florida Bonneted Bat Eumoos floridanus ST 
Southeastern American Kestrel Falco soarverius oau/us ST 
Eastern Indigo Snake Drvmarchon corais couperi FT 
Gopher Tortoise Gopherus oolvohemus ST 
FLUCCS Code 814 
None 

FE: federal designated endangered SE: state designated endangered 
FT: federal designated threatened ST: state designated threatened 
FC: federal candidate for listing SSC: state species ofspecial concern 
FT(S/A): federal designated endangered due to SCE: state commercially exploited 

similarity of appearance 

DexBender has been monitoring the preserved wetlands on the mining property since 
2003. Over the past 16 years the following listed species have been observed on the 
property: American alligator, tricolored heron, wood stork, little blue heron, Florida 
sandhill crane, roseate spoonbill, bald eagle, and Big Cypress fox squirrel. With the 
exception of the American alligator, all of these specie were observed foraging or 
perching within the preservation areas. The American alligators were also observed 
within the mining pits. No nesting or denning by listed species has been observed on 
the property. The following non listed wildlife has been observed within the preserves 
during the monitoring events: crayfish, mosquitofish, Mayan cichlid, largemouth bass, 

Page 186



gar, southern leopard frog, green treefrog, water moccasin, brown anole, soft shell 
turtle, mottled duck, great egret, green heron, yellow-crowned night-heron, black
crowned night-heron, white ibis, great blue heron, snowy egret, American bittern, 
American coot, pied-billed grebe, lesser yellow-legs, ground dove, mocking bird, 
various warblers, killdeer, gray gnat catcher, turkey, red-bellied woodpecker, downy 
woodpecker, barn swallow, belted kingfisher, turkey vulture, black vulture, barred owl, 
red-shouldered hawk, marsh hawk, osprey, eastern cottontail rabbit, raccoon, feral hog, 
white-tailed deer, and black bear. These specie were also observed foraging or 
perching primarily within the preservation areas. 

The 74.88± acres in the southwest corner of the property was surveyed for listed 
species on December 13, 2019. This portion of the property contained recently planted 
seedling vegetables and the field was being actively managed at the time of the survey. 
Little native vegetation was present and the area consisted primarily of bare ground 
and black plastic used for the vegetable bedding. Therefore, the listed species survey 
focused on the ditches and woody exotic vegetation along the edges of the field and 
consisted of pedestrian transects along the field perimeter. The locations of the survey 
transects and results of the survey are shown on Figure 5. At the time of the survey, 
the weather was mild and overcast. 

One wood stork was observed standing along the northern edge of the field. This bird 
may have landed on the property with the purpose of foraging in the irrigation ditch. 
Two dead pine trees in advanced states of decay were observed along the northern 
edge of the farm field. Both contained potential cavities. While there was no evidence 
of bat utilization, there is a limited potential that Florida bonneted bats could roost in 
those cavities. 

No other listed species were observed within the 74.88± acres. Given the continuous 
human disturbances associated with active row crop production, the area currently 
provides little, if any, listed species habitat. 

Site's Suitability for the Proposed Use 

As documented above, mining and agricultural activities have occurred on the property 
for over 37 years. During this time period the vast majority of the site outside of the 
conservation easement areas has been significantly disturbed by the mining 
operations. The 370.01 ± acres of uplands and wetlands within the preservation 
areas represent the highest quality habitats on the property. These areas, together 
with the 14.0± acres of native open space creation areas, contain all of the mapped 
wetlands on-site. 

The large mammals listed in Table 2, if actually present on-site, would most likely 
occur in the large preservation area along the project's east boundary adjacent to the 
Flint Pen Strand. The remaining listed plant and animal species would also most 

Page 187



likely occur in either the large preserve or within the smaller preserves located 
elsewhere on-site. The use of the remainder of the property by listed species is limited to 
American alligators within the mining lakes and foraging by listed wading birds along 
the fringes of those lake. 

The majority of the 384.01± acres (313.67± acres) is located adjacent to the north, 
east, and south property lines and is contiguous with the State owned and managed 
Flint Pen Strand conservation area. This constitutes the enhancement and 
preservation of regionally significant wetlands and provides critical wildlife connections 
to adjacent conservation areas. Therefore, the site is consistent with Policy 
1.1.27.2.a.3 and Policy 1.1.27.2.a.5. 

Wetland and upland habitat enhancement and restoration activities have been 
occurring on-site since 2010 pursuant to the December 2009 Bonita Grande Mine 
Preservation and Created Native Open Space Areas Management Plan. This plan 
specified the enhancement/restoration activities (recontouring of selected disturbed 
areas, exotic and nuisance species treatments, and supplemental plantings) as well as 
monitoring protocols and success criteria. These preserves have been monitored 
annually for the past eight years. Based on these reports and a site inspection by City 
of Bonita Springs Community Development Department staff in November 2017, 
approximately 335.41 acres has been deemed to be successful and released from 
annual monitoring. The remaining 48.60± acres will continue to be monitored annually 
until the success criteria are met. All of the preserves will be managed in perpetuity as 
required by the 2009 management plan. Therefore, the site is consistent with Policy 
1.1.27.c. 

The Bonita Grande Mine Preservation and Created Native Open Space Areas 
Management Plan as well as Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) 
Permit Number 166246-006 do not depict or require additional buffers adjacent to the 
preserved wetlands. The preserve areas are either bordered by a perimeter berm or by 
the finished excavated lakes. 

The proposed land plan will continue to maintain the 384.01 ± acres of preserved 
wetlands, uplands, and native open space creation areas. Therefore, the proposed 
use of the site is suitable and compatible with the current environmental conditions. 

Page 188

Y:IBGMINE-3\Environmental Analysis December 2019.Oocx 



FIGURE 1 - VEGETATION MAP TrJ.DEXBENDERBONffA GRANDE AGGREGA7cS ~ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULT7NG Sheet 1 
FORT lih£RS 3J9-.JJ◄ -.JUO 

Page 189



r.l.DEXBENDERBONITA GRANDE AGGREGATES ~ ENVIRONMENTALCONSULnNG 
r""t urt,ts zn-».-i.10 

Page 190

https://zn-�.-i.10


sccnON.· ,,. 20. ""d 29 
T0""'1SHIP: 47 S ~ 
RANCE: 26 C ··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-..-·•-·· l 

0 350 700 I··-··-··-··-·· 
SOILC FEIT l 

!.... j 

Soil lttQIDd 
SCS 06 - Hollandale tine 1ond -SCS 39 - Isles fine sond, depressionol 
SCS 1J - Boca fir,e 1or,d SCS 42 - Wobono aond, limestone 1ub1trotum 

•scs 26 - Pinedo fine sand -SCS 49 - Feldo fine sand, depreHionol
•scs 27 - Pompano fin.e sand, depretsionol -SCS 51 - floridona sand, d,eprestionol 
SCS 33 - Oldtmc:ir sand 'SCS 74 - Boca fine sand, tlough 
~cs 34 - Molobor fine 1ond -SCS 75 - Hollandale fine ,and, stough 
• Indicates Hydric Soil PERI/IT USE ONLY, NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION ....,._••••:~:::,~&t:i 

FIGURE 2 - SOILS MAP r:J..DEXBENDERBONITA GRANDE Ao:R;GATES ~ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULnNGSheet 1 

Page 191



SECTION: 17, 20, and 29 
fOWNSHIP: ~7 S 
RAIICf: 26 £ ~ 

··-··-··-··-·· ··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-.. ..... 
0 350 700 

SCALE F££r 

..--~··-··-11 
ICI J."1 

ic9 
! 
l 
l 

i 
i 
i 

au i 
••-••-••-••-••-••-••- ••-••-••-••-••-••...,.••-••-••-•• I 

Sod ltecnd 
scs 06 - Hollondole fine sand •scs Jg - l ■IH fine sand, deprHtional 
scs 1J Boca fioe sand SCS 42 - Wobosso son6, limestone s1.1bs,,o,um 

•scs 2s - Pineda tine sond -SCS 49 - feldo fine scmd, depressionol
•scs 21 - Pompano fir,e sand, depressionol -SCS 51 - Flori;dono sand, dep, ,,,;onol 

Noln: scs JJ - Oldsmar sond -SCS 74 - Boco fine sand, slough 
I . Prop•IT~1 prg¥ith,d by llorrl.-0.,,.• "SCS J• - Molobor fine sand 'SCS 75 - Hallol\dole fine sand, slough
1. Sol, iltfOtmOtlOn o6fo!1N' lrom th• Florido c..,,,.,phlt; Dot• tit)rOf'Jt
J. Sol, m~ -., not r,IJ~t _,_ ehOIWJff «amlttf ott• rHo.. • lnd~eatH Hydric: Soil PERMIT USE ONLY. NOT FOR CONSTRUCT/ON 

FIGURE 2 - SOILS MAP r::,..DEXBENDERBOMTA GRANDE AGG'i'EGATES ~ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULnNGSIIHl2 roltT M"r't1tS ;,J9-.JJ4-.UIJO 

Page 192



BONffA GRANDE AQGqEGA7cS
Sheef 1 

Page 193



RGIJRE 3. SOILS MAP WTTH 2018 AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH BONITA GRANDE AGGREGATES ENWRONMENTAL CONSULTTNGSheet2 FORT UfCRS 2J'J..JJ, ..J68l) 

Page 194



.

SECTION: 17. 20, ond 29 
TO'MISHIP; fl S 
RANCE: 26 f: 

~1-

!
l...-.. 
i! 
ii
!i 
:! n.. 

... ll 
ii. 
;j=~,:,
:1 
...... ..

'•!i:s 
~J 1· 
!!..~~'f!c.1 -••-··-..-··-·•-··-··-··-··-H-00-00-01-••-H-00-00-00 
- FI.UCct !!!!!!I!!!!!! -

~ ,._.au.... .a.n-. 
214 ltowC,ope 7Uhc. 
JJD ltvwUMI~ 1:U1K. 
411 PNFWwNda M.ISa&. 
111D -- 1.3) N. 
U1 C,,,... 1lt.'11M. 
A4 c,,........... U.7JK. 
US HJ'llflc'9NflatwoNa 1.Uec.~ WeUanda (3311.75 ■c.) A1 W..._.&lwub 1.t1ec. 0 350 700
141 ,,.._.,...,.._ ,,....... 

Ml WM.,,.,... a.JJ'M. SCAL£ FffT 
140 Dtsturi4rd LUMI I.IIec.11, ~_,H.....,.,. t.nec. 

PERMIT USE ONLY. NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION T.tal T.ID]l'ic:' ~ 11, ~ 

RGIRE4-~MAP f:l.OEXBENDERBOMT"A GRAM:JE AaGREGATES ~ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTINGShHl1 l"O/tl Jlt9PS ~.Jf..n.f-.JUO 

Page 195



S£CllON: /7. 20 29 
TOWNSHIP: 47 5 o,,d 
RA/IC£: 26 £ 

~ l!!!s!.11!!!!!,.. IIJ.Jlac.... ....,,_ -,..,....... --llwvbandltu9Nand 11Hoc. 
,.... Ftatwood• M.ffoc."' 5!00 ....... ....... 

121 US.71ac..... cyprus ~Pine n.nac. 
w ~ ,.,..fllllwooda ....... -· 

1.11 ac.....,, ,,..hwaWILI,..... 1,11...ae.. -... WtlP,..,_ ....... 
140 01o.......... ....... 
114 Ro--•ndHlthwl,. ........ 

Toul T,mlou: 

.., 
(UI~ 

l------··-··-··-··-·1
H
!;
:: 

\j
ii (1.~4.c., II 
:i"' ii 

I
i , ,.....,... : 
p.11-, I 

:i i 

,,~~12•!!_~~IC.I !i•i lj111D 

- ··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··----··-··-··-··-··-··~~~~I M_ J 
~ II-»••~ 

~ Wetlands (336.7S ac.) ~ 0 JS0 700 

SCALE Fffi 

PERMIT USE ONLY. NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

FIGURE 4 - WE7LAJ'D MAP SONfT'A GRANDEAGGREGA1rS
Sheef 2 

Page 196

https://l!!!s!.11


SECT10# 29 Bonita Grande Aggregates -TOWJl&r. 47 S 
RANGEt 26E 

S Wood Stork (1) 8 Tree with Cavity (2) 

Notes: 
I. Property boundary provided by Morris- Depew Associates. 
2. Mapping based on photolnterpretotlon of 2019 aerial 

photography and ground trothing In December 2019. 
3. Delln11ation of j,rlsdlctlonal w11tlands Is prflllmlnary and subject 

to field review/approval by applicable regulatory agencies. 

FLUCCS 
214 
510D 
740 
814 

Figure 5. Protected Species Assessment Map 

Agricultursl Parcel 

Description 
Row Crops 
Ditches 
Disturbed Land 
Roads and Highways 

Total 

Acreage 
70.36ac. 
1.33 ac. 
2.86ac. 
0.33ac. 
74.88 ac. 

0 150 300 

SCALE FEET 

P.i'RNI7' US£ ON.l,Y, 
H07' FOR CONS7'RUC7'ION 

Doc:snb• 10, 2019 5:02: 1$ a.m, 
Drawnv: IGMIHE....SOUlHPARcn.O~ 

f;J..DEXBENDER 
~ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING 

FORT MYE:RS 239-334-3680 

Page 197



- Pa
ge

 1
98

FIGURE 1- VEGETATION MAP DEC 3o2019 ~DEXBENDERBONffA GRANDE AGGREGATESSheet 1 coMMuNrrY oEvELOPMENr ~ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING 
DEPARTMENT FORT MYERS 2J9-JJ4-J680 



Page 199



SECTION: 17, 20, and 29 
TOWNSHIP: 47 S -RANGE: 26 E ,■•-··-·•--■-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-·•-■-

0 .350 700 ···-··-··--~·-··-··-··-· ···-··-··-··--·· 
c••-••-••-••-••-••-••-••-••-••-••-••-••-••SCALE FEET 

SCS 39..t_--•·-··-··---··-··---··-··-·· 
SCS 49 

SCS 75 

i SCS 42 

!. 
I. .! 
i :c 

i Water1 

SCS 39 

scs 13 ...--••-··-·· 
SCS 51··--··---··--··--··-··-··--··-··--··--·· 

■-··---·· 
Notes: 
1. Property boundary provided by Morris-Depew 
2. Soils information obtained from the Florida Geographic Data Library. 
3. Soils mapping does not reflect site changes occurring after 1990.. 

e scs 211 

scs 74 

SCS 42 

scs 33 

SCS 34 
scs 13 

.......-■■-■■-11 ■-••-··-··--··-·· 1■■-••-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··~·----
Soil Legend 

scs 06 Hollandale fine sand *SCS 39 Isles fine sand, depressional 
scs 13 Boca fine sand scs 42 Wabasso sand, limestone substratum 

*SCS 26 Pinedo fine sand *SCS 49 Felda fine sand, depressionol 
*SCS 27 Pompano fine sand, depressional *SCS 51 Floridana sand, depressional 
scs 33 Oldsmar sand *SCS 74 Boca fine sand, slough 

*SCS 34 Malabar fine sand *SCS 75 Hollandale fine sand, slough 
* Indicates Hydric Soil Decemb.- 18, 2019 4: 32: 14 p.m.

PERMIT USE ONLY, NOT FOR CONSTRUCT/ON Drawing: BGMINE2PLAN.OWG 

Pa
ge

 2
00

RGURE 2 - SOILS MAP f":J.DEXBENDERBONffA GRANDE AGGREGATES -'t::JENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTINGSheett 
FORT MYERS 239-334-3680 



SECTION: 17, 20, and 29 
TOWNSHIP: 47 S 
RANGE: 26 E ···-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··------! -

1•-··-··-··---· i,■•-··--··-··-·· . 
i 0 350 700,··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-·· 

SCS 39 
,__...-••---··-··-··-··-··-·· SCALE FEETIscs 75 

.I 
I. 

! 
GI 
.5 

Water 

SCS 39 

··-··~··-··-A 

c9 scs 14~ 
scs 26 . 

scs 74 

SCS 42 

SCS 34 

scs 33 

SCS 34 
SCS l3 -··-··-····-··---··-··-··-··-··-··---··-··-··-··-··~··-··-··-·· 1 ■•-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-·· Soil Legend 

scs 06 Hallandale fine sand *SCS 39 - Isles fine sand, depressional 
SCS 13 scs 13 Boca fine sand SCS 42 - Wabasso sand , limestone substratum,■■--··-··-·· SCS 51··-··--··--··-··---··-··---··-··--·· *SCS 26 Pineda fine sand *SCS 49 - Felda fine sand, depressional 

*SCS 27 Pompano fine sand, depressional *SCS 51 - Floridana sand, depressional 
Notes: scs 33 Oldsmar sand *SCS 74 - Boca fine sand, slough
1. Property boundary provided by Morris-Depew ~cs 34 Malabar fine sand ~CS 75 - Hallandale fine sand, slough
2. Soils information obtained from the Florida Geographic Data Library. 

Oecemb• 18, 2019 4:32: 14 p.m.J. Soils mapping does not reflect site changes occurring after 1990.. * Indicates Hydric Soil PERMIT USE ONLY, NOT FOR CONSTRUCT/ON Drawing: 8GMINE2PLAN.OWG 

RGURE 2 - BOILS MAP f:J.DEXBENDERBONffA GRANDE AGGREGATES -'t!:JENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTINGSheet 2 
FORT MYERS 2J9-.JJ4-J680 

Pa
ge

 2
01



Page 202



Page 203



•• •• 

•• •• •• •• 
•• •• •• •• •• •• •• •• •• •• •• 

•• 
•• •• 

. 

. 

. 

SECTION: 17, 20, and 29 
TOWNSHIP: 47 S 
RANGE: 26 E 

..-..-;;;,,-.-......: - •ac.)--~--··-::.·~- 411 . rrr~.:~---- " ~ (4.74 ac.):I 411• • ____ • ~ • _ __ 
I1 

10.41~~~~.,. '• ~i,~ . ~"'" ·-~ 
I320 : 625 > R6~~ 320 ~-~11.21 ...~ ~•ff1-~1.1oa-:.:..'--4 (1.88... --~ .,... ••• ~~~-~."'1,53 ... ~'-"" 

121!-t / ' / ·, "'''-"-'t11 ::--..'s:-~~ • ~ 411 / / 631 •••••'11,~ ac ~'-\.1i~ .67 ac.) ~-01 ac.) ••~~ 

's • ·•~,:; • 624 :c 163 

(1.21ac.)ls ~~: ·-..... 
~ 

jI ~ ~~320I ~~~~ (2.26 ac.) ~.,_..
: , w~'"" (0.75 ac.) \i.04643 ,~I 3.&0ac.'1 641 • .. 
i '~ ~1.61ac.) (2.92 ac.)......_.._~~,. .·1 ~ ....... --,,, ~624~ ~~""'' 

641 

~21, . 
, 320 / J2.51 ac,I 

-~i (10.95 ac.~ ~'(,_ ,~ ~---···62~ 
. 1 '6ac.)~ I ■ 

~ 624I ~- ~ (0.92ac.) ~641,,, 

I ■ 

: ~: -- -~ ••: 62~··':
I 

I ■ 
,.u.. ac. ••I ■ 

I ■ 

1 

~~· I.•• ~ 
I ■ 

621! · •~, 163 ~ '•(0.71 ac.) 

: 843 .... -~,, 624,< ~ ••j- - ' ~ ~ (883.71 ac.) "'~ ~ '• 
: (0,11ac.) ~ j 641 ··••• ~ 3.35ac 163 

I! ~~~..., w :t--,-740~~641:-.:: 
: ~ uo•o;:P ::,2.&6a' 183 jll.82 .., 21,

! ~~oil\ -~1 ••••I ~ci.1!,1-1 ~~ ••
lI '~ ~v ••••'• 
. ) _.. -·· :LL 

(1.40 ..___ -··-··-··-..-··------!':1 624 (0 643 r-• 1.~r~ 67 

21 

ac.) ··-··-··-··-··-··-··-..-··-··-··-··-··-··-"'-··-··_J::j"'-r'39 ac. ••-••-'" __, ··--··-··- '\. 
: 643 ~ . 

_ ...., 
··- FLUCCS Description Acreage 1!I (0.33 ... ______.. 163 Rock Quarries 883.71 ac.I. _.._.. _ .._, 214 Row Crops 70.36 ac.

I 320 Shrub and Brushland 13.21 ac. .. ...-.. -··-·· -··---··-·· 411 Pine Flatwoods 34.05 ac.i .._.••- -··_ .. 
....-..-- 510D Ditches 1.33 ac. 

621 Cypress 125.78 ac. 
624 Cypress - Pine 93.73 ac. 
625 Hydrtc Pine Flatwoods 1.88 ac.~ Wetlands (336.75 ac.) 631 Watland Shrub 1.01 ac. 0 350 700 
641 Freshwater Marshes 111.98 ac. . w 

Notes: · 643 Wat Prairies 2.37 ac. SCALE FEET 
1. Property boundary and preserve limits provided by Mo"is-Depew.. 740 Disturbed Land 2.86 ac. 
2. Vegetation mapping updated in 2017. 814 Roads and Highways 0.33 ac. 
3. Limits of jurisdictional wetlands approved by D£P permit. Total 1 342 60 ac December 18, 2019 4:32:14 p.m.PERMIT USE ONLY, NOT FOR CONSTRUCT/ON ' • • OrowtnQ: BGMINE2PLAN.DWC 

FIGURE 4 - WETLAND MAP ~DEXBENDERBONffA GRANDE AGGREGATES ~ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTINGSheet 1 
FORT MYERS 239-334-3680 

Pa
ge

 2
04



•• •• •• •• •• 

•• 

SECnON: 17, 20, and 29 
TOWNSHIP: 47 S 
RANGE: 26 E ~ ~ 

"' 
6 

FLUCCS Description Acreage 
163 Rock Quarries 883.71 ac. 
214 Row Crops 70.36 ac. 

_. 320 Shrub and Brushland 13.21 ac. 
411 Pine Flatwoods 34.05 ac. ~ 5100 Ditches 1.33 ac.' '~'''''(67.30 621 Cypress 125.78 ac. 
624 Cypress - Pine 93.73ac. ~ 625 Hydrlc Pine Flatwoods 1.88 ac. 
631 Wetland Shrub 1.01 ac. 

.... ac.~ N--~ 
.28 

~ 

641 Freshwater Marshes 111.98 ac.~~;\:~11l~'c. ~1.10 
CD 643 Wet Prairies 2.37 ac.·•-~98ac~~'-" ~\.~- .5 163 740 Disturbed Land 2.86 ac.

•••\~~~ . 624 814 Roads and Highways 0.33 ac. 
~~))> t~(1.21 ac.) I Total 1,342.60 ac."...._,4' ::IE 

:.) ~ 
(0.rs!c.)~ \2.04 

641 641 ~ ri1.61 ac.) (2.92 ac.) ~ ..~,"":it.. 
,t;624~ i 

J2.51 ac.( ~~ ~. ~~ ~~~ h··-··-··-··-··--··--··-= 
: 

.I .(0.92 ac.) 

~ ~\~ 

I 
~~ i.621 

(0.71 ac.)- ~~'(..~
641:i 

641 ~:ta4) 214~ 163 
.11 ac.) •• (70.36 ac.)(883.71 ac.) 

163 
~ 

i3 ~621~ 
•:,--..140•• ~ ~5-c~

/6.82 .~ :,2.86 ac.)
~641~~~&,°\ ~t~O ac,;}.S I. •

~((10 •• 1·:1~~~'~.) 
:: 

•• 
I 

•ac,1
624 ii 510D i 

(1.40 ac.) ~~ ~~ (O 66721 ) :: (1.33 ac.) I: 
,,641 • ac. ••·216 ~ ~.t.,~~•---.,,,I~(a.::!c.) • ac. "- nan • , ~~---··-··-··-··-··-··-·•-"'-·'-··-··----··-··-··-··-··-··-··.JJ ~ 814 

643 . ..-••-•• -··-··-··---··--··-..-..-··-··-·· (0.33 ac.. 1••- (0.33 ac.) 

·-··-··-··-··-··-··-··-··--~---·-··-··-
~ Wetlands (336.75 ac.) 0 350 700 

Notes: · $CALE FEET
1. Property boundary and preserve limits provided by Morris-Depew.. 
2. Vegetation mapping updated in 2017. 
.J. Limits of jJrisdictional wetlands approved by DEP permit. Dec:ember 18, 2019 4: 32: 14 p.m.PERMIT USE ONLY, NOT FOR CONSTRUCT/ON Drowlng: BGMINE2PLAN.DWC 

FIGURE 4 - WETLAND MAP f":J.DEXBENDER ....
BONffA GRANDE AGGREGATES ~ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTINGSheet2 

FORT MYERS 2J9-.J.J4-J680 

Pa
ge

 2
05

https://�-"'-�'-��-��----��-��-��-��-��-��-��.JJ
https://1,342.60


POLICY 42.2.5: The minimum acceptable level-of-service standard for availability of solid 
waste disposal facilities will be 7 pounds per capita per day (see also Policy 70.1.3). 

POLICY 42.2,6: The county will immediately construct a new landfill to serve the entire 
county including all municipalities. (Amended by Ordinance No. 94-30, 00-22) 

e. GROUNDWATER RECHARGE 

GOAL 43: GROUNDWATER. To protect the county's groundwater supplies from those 
activities having the potential for depleting or degrading those supplies. 

OBJECTIVE 43.1: WELLFIELD PROTECTION. The county wHI maintain a welJfield protection 
ordinance to provide regulations protecting the quality of water flowing into potable water 
wellfields. (Amended by Ordinance No. 94-30, 00-22) 

POLICY 43.1.1: The wellfield protection ordinance will be amended whenever better technical 
data i's developed and whenever additional potable wellfields are proposed. (Amended by 
Ordinance No. 00-22) 

POLICY 43.1.2: The staff hydrogeologist will review and comment on all development 
applications near public utility potable water wellfields, with particular attention to proposed 
land uses within a IO-year travel time from the wellheads. (Amended by Ordinance No. 00-22) 

OBJECTIVE 43.2: POTABLE GROUNDWATER. Base all future development and use of 
groundwater resources on determinations of the safe yield of the aquifer system(s) in order not to 
impair the native groundwater qualily or create other environmental damage. Criteria for safe-yield 
determinations will be determined by the SFWMD, the agency charged with permitting these 
activities. (Amended by Ordinance No. 94-30, 00-22) 

POLICY 43.2.1: For maximum protection of groundwater resources, identify future wellfields 
and/or relocation site(s) for existing wellfields well in advance of need. Coordinate with 
SFWMD, other water suppliers, and DEP to avoid duplication and to assist in data coJlection and 
interchange. (Amended by Ordinance No. 94-30) 

POLICY 43.2.2: Institute a program to identify sources of groundwater pollutants in Lee 
County and to map these (point and non-point) on a county~wide basis. 

POLICY 43.2.3: Identify water needs consistent with projections of human population and the 
needs of natural systems in order to determine the future demands for groundwater. (Amended by 
Ordinance No. 94-30) 

POLICY 43.2.4: Expand c~rrent programs to identify and map the contamination potential of 
groundwater resources for those areas ofLee County not currently under public ownership. 

POLICY 43.2.5: Lee County, in cooperation with other agencies and the municipalities, will 
budget to maintain its current program of plugging non- valved, abandoned, or improperly-cased 
artesian wells so that at least seventy-five of these wells are plugged each year until such wells 
are eliminated. (Amended by Ordinance No. 94-30, 00:22) Nlip.. sPRlNGS 

Cli'l Or BU 

oEC 3 0 'l.0\9 

Community Facilities and Services 

Page 206

IV-18 



-- ---- --

-- ---- --

-- --

-

-

-

-

fl fJ JI 

-

-

- ..
fj ~------"'i!·l!~:!E
i ~i-=i::;·-i 

.. ~~a-at-~-,s... i..........,..:-=Cl,c..,
c:::>- ... . 8 
~:z:: 

'- .a..
~~

A°'·-
(P 
~ "'i> 

- ~ 
• 

.. 
MAI' 6 ~ l'age I o( 1 

Page 207



.uu. .!.l!.!. .&:.L-- ~ .:.w. 
[CNI\IHOHI! C:OUNtT 

J - ... 
-

Charlot t • Harbor j +·- 7 
I- -

t 
j lrj 

L·1 + -1 ,--i- 1 
t11 i- 11 : I ,
•." .•• 
~ 

~ ~ ¼-\1 t?fflP Yt J )I\ ' · rl YI ~~~ 
I 

_, t 
J_ _. 

' I 

~ -1-

w 
~ 

- -+ -+ 0.. ~ 

/,. 

o, 
Qt, 

i--j-,t . 1 ,,," ___!~,. 
GO,f,, lt.H' ~ c:o•M l 'Y 

C' 0 

_)_ 

-1 -! . f-
- tr_.-

- I . 

. - -)·/A✓;/,,'"/, "7f./<
l/ /, ,.. ,, 1/ _/_,_{_,/,, /// . ..I.!U, 

Wellfield 
Protection Zones 

COMPOSITE ISO-TRAVEL 
TIME MAP 

Travel Time 
0 6-M0NTHS 
0 1-YEAR 
0 5-YEARS 
0 10-YEARS 
[] ASR PROTECTION ZONE 

• Permitted Well 
D City Limits 

~ttf~D 
cli'< Of sot'll1A. SPRINGS 

oEC 3 0 1.0\9 

CCif1\1"11JNTT"I 1:.1£'~\.0~gl(t
~R~ 

' LEE COUNTY 
SOUTHWEST FLORIDA 

Ul""ISIU"'( or PLA, /'1. 11''-C 

NW.E 
s 

I Glli O ~ 'l" 

iM..fft 

Map Generated; May 2014 
City Limits current to date of map generation 

Adopted by Ord_nance 89-02. 01/31/1989 
Amended by Ordinance Nos. 07-13, 14-1 o 

Lee Plan Map 8 

Pa
ge

 2
08



- - -- ----

2914 Cleveland Avenue [ Fort Myers, Florida 33901 

ENGINEERS • PLANNERS · SURVEYORS 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

Bonita Grande 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
Comprehensive Plan Consistency 

The Bonita Grande Mine (f/k/a Bonita Farms) is comprised of approximately two sections of land 
(Section 17 and 20, T47S, Range 26E), 1341.2 1343 acres, located at the northern terminus of 
Bonita Grande Drive, approximately two miles north of Bonita Beach Road. The mine received 
zoning approvals for the natural resource extraction from Lee County during the late 1980s. The 
initial approval covered Section 20, and the second approval covered Section 17. In 1998, the two 
sections were united under one Industrial Planned Development (IPD) zoning and Master 
Concept Plan (MCP), approved by Resolution Z-98-071. A modification was approved in 2002 by 
Z-02-047. This approval included references to the conditions contained in the previous 
resolution, therefore both 2-98-071 and 2-02-047 are applicable to the property. Conflicts or 
inconsistencies are to be addressed by Z-02-047. 

The property was annexed into the City of Bonita Springs in 2003, as described in City Resolution 
03-12 and an Annexation Agreement (which has been provided as part of the CPA Application 
Materials in previous submittals). Property annexed into a municipality remains subject to the 
county land use plan, zoning and subdivision regulations until the municipality adopts a plan 
amendment that includes the annexed area pursuant to Section 171.062, F.S. Thus the Lee Plan 
and the County zoning resolutions remain in full force and effect. The same year, the City issued 
an Administrative Interpretation of Vested Rights (Case No. Vested Rights 2003-0001), which 
acknowledged the owner was vested to continue with mining in accordance with the previous 
actions and approvals. Administrative Amendment 09BOS-ADD00001 was approved on 
November 9, 2009 to address the limits of excavation. In 2013, a second administrative 
amendment was submitted to the City, ADD13-05318-BOS which again revised the limits of the 
excavation to demonstrate the ultimate lake configuration desired for post mining development. 
The administrative amendment also extended the termination date of the mine's activities per 
Executive Order 12-140, 12-192, and 12-199 to May 27, 2020. 

The Florida Statues provides for time extensions based on the issuance of an executive order 
declaring a State of Emergency. A State of Emergency (SOE} extension resulted in an expiration 
date extension for the Bonita Grande Mine IPD to August 13, 2040, due to Executive Order No. 
17-146 being issued by Governor Scott as a result of the Opioid Epidemic. A Settlement 
Agreement was reached between the ownership of the property and the City of Bonita Springs 
and adopted by City Council on November 20, 2019. As part of the Settlement Agreement, 
February 13, 2041 was established as the final termination date of the mine. 

Fo·I 1\_1Jyc s I la11ar1ass2e I Desti11 , Page 209



Consistency Analysis 
December 20, 2019 

Page I 2 

The Comprehensive Plan Amendment is being requested to bring the property into an 
appropriate City Future Land use category. The proposed plan amendment category will facilitate 
the redevelopment of the existing mining site to a low-density residential subdivision. The 
property's current FLU Designation is Lee County Density Reduction Groundwater Resource 
(DRG R) and Wetlands under the Future Land Use Element of the Lee County Comprehensive Plan 
("Lee Plan"). The Lee Plan identifies mining ("natural resource extraction and related facilities") 
as an allowed use within the DRGR. The annexation agreement makes it dear that the property 
was annexed by the City to provide for a future land use designation of the property that would 
be consistent with the studies undertaken by the City that recognized the benefits of 
redeveloping the subject property. This understanding is outlined in Section 111, subsections 3.1 
through 3.3, of the Annexation Agreement. The annexation agreement recognized what was 
ultimately a series of studies that examined the suitability of the properties east of 1-75 for urban 
uses and evaluated whether there was a need for continuing the DRGR classification on lands 
within the City. The studies found it appropriate to reclassify the subject property and the City 
was required to process a plan amendment to designate the future land use of the property to a 
category in alignment with the studies' results and recommendations. Additionally, Policy 1.7.1 
of the city's Comprehensive Plan required the City to complete the initial study by the end of 
2004. The studies were " ...to identify types and intensity of uses that should be allowed within 
the DRGR area, and to determine the most effective and appropriate techniques to ensure the 
maintenance of adequate quantity and quality of surface and groundwater resources." Due to 
the City's failure to file and process a plan amendment in accordance with Policy 1.7.2 and the 
annexation agreement the property owners determined it would be necessary for the property 
owner to protect its property rights assist in the process and submit an applicant initiated 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment application. The proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
consists of three elements: 

(1) A Text Amendment to add Policy 1.1.27 for Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category 
(2) A Future Land Use Map Amendment to include the subject property in the Conservation 

Fringe Future land Use Categories 

As proposed, the text amendment to establish Policy 1.1.27 and the criteria for the Conservation 
Fringe FLU would create a new future land use category promoting development of the subject 
property in a manner that preserves, protects and enhances the significant natural resources on 
the property, provides connectivity with adjoining natural areas, and implements the intent of 
applicable Smart Growth policies and City of Bonita Springs Goals, Objectives and Policies. The 
proposal's preservation, protection and enhancement of the property's significant natural 
resources and application of relevant aspects of Smart Growth would permit a maximum of~ 
.522 dwelling units per gross acre along with an accessory building and private recreation areas. 
To achieve a final density, the proposed development will need to demonstrate consistency with 
the Future land Use Category which is appropriately evaluated during the subsequent required 
Planned Development rezoning. A Residential Planned Development Application is being 
prepared and will be submitted to the City of Bonita Springs for review in December of 2019. 

Page 210



Consistency Analysis 
December 20, 2019 

Page I 3 

Proposal Request 
The proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment and required Planned Development zoning will 

provide a mechanism to allow redevelopment of the subject property that promotes reclamation 
and reuse of the property in a manner that is consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan vision 
and existing and future development within the immediate area of the subject property. 

The property and the community would benefit from redevelopment at the conclusion of the 
excavation. There is no current mechanism to facilitate redevelopment of the property without 
the proposed text and map amendment to the Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category. 

The Conservation Fringe FLU includes requirements that address the preservation, protection, 
restoration and enhancement of natural resources on the subject property as well as including 
safeguards for the public potable water supplies associated with the development of individual 

wells and septic systems that typically occurs in this portion ofthe City. The proposed future land 
use category is specific to the subject property and provides the flexibility to analyze and tailor 
the redevelopment of the property to address surface and ground water and natural resources. 
The proposed text amendment is only applicable to properties with existing natural resource 
extraction uses which are over 100 acres and have approval for Natural Resource Extraction. The 
City's DR/GR FLU category does not permit natural resource extraction; therefore, the proposed 
FLU category is only applicable to the subject property. Additionally, one of the requirements of 
FLU category is to undergo a planned development rezoning to meet specific and unique 

redevelopment criteria. Parcels over 100 acres are large enough to have a potential beneficial 
impact upon surface water, groundwater, and natural resources. 

Policy 1..1..27: Conservation Fringe. This category is intended to recognize geographic areas that a) 
include an existing vested mining operation; and b) are adjacent or proximate to lands with significant 
environmental resource and habitat values. As of the date of the adoption of the Conservation Fringe 
District, zero (O) acres have been designated as Conservation Fringe District; although the City anticipates 
that approximately 1;-648 1343 acres may ultimately be designated as Conservation Fringe District. The 
City recognizes that existing mines provide a regional supply for lime rock needs and help to minimize the 
impacts of new mines on the environment, surrounding land uses and roadways. Once mining is 
completed, the reclamation / redevelopment of the land must occur such that it is compatible with the 
adjacent or proximate environmental lands. Allowable land uses are limited to conservation uses; 
agriculture; excavation (existing vested mining operation only); residential uses at a maximum density of 
~ 0.522 dwelling units per gross acre along with accessory amenity building and private recreational 
areas; public uses; non-profit public recreational uses; and essential services needed for the health, safety, 
and general welfare of the community such as lift stations, utility lines, potable/non-potable wells and 
equipment and appurtenances necessary for such systems to furnish adequate levels of service. 
Notwithstanding Future Land Use Element Policy 1.1.2.c and Conservation/Coastal Management Element 
Policy 15.1.5, wetland and resource protection acres are eligible to be counted as part ofthe gross acreage 
for density purposes, but all density must be clustered on the permitted upland portion and/or disturbed 
land of an approved master concept plan for the reclamation/redevelopment plan. Contiguous property 
under common ownership of the existing vested mining operation may be included in the Conservation 
Fringe District up to a maximum of 10% of the existing vested mining operation area for residential 
purposes only. The cumulative total number of units for all properties designated as Conservation Fringe 

Page 211



Consistency Analysis 

December 20, 2019 
Page 14 

District shall not exceed a maximum of 700 units. Development within this Conservation Fringe District 
must adhere to the following innovative design and planning conditions: 

1. The property (including contiguous property if applicable) shall be rezoned to a Planned 
Development. If the property is already zoned Planned Development, the Planned 
Development shall be amended to comply with the requirements of this Policy no later 
than completion of the existing mining operation (if applicable) but no later than 
12/31/2041. 

2. The Planned Development rezoning shall include a minimum of60% open space calculated 
over the net project area, not including existing mining lakes and public road right-of-way, 
and shall implement the following, to the maximum extent feasible: 
a) Restoration and accommodation ofexisting and historical regional flow ways; 
b) Restoration and accommodation of existing and historic groundwater levels; 
c) Restoration and preservation of wetlands; 
d) Restoration and preservation of indigenous upland habitats; and 
e) Where applicable, provision of critical wildlife connections to adjacent conservation 

areas. 
3. A proposed enhanced lake management plan for lakes created by mining activities shall 

be provided at the time of the Planned Development rezoning. The enhanced lake 
management plan shall be in addition to any previously approved lake management or 
reclamation plan for the property, and shall include, at a minimum, the following: 
a) Application ofbest management practices for fertilizers and pesticides; 
b) Provision for erosion control and lake bank stabilization; 
c) Establishment of lake maintenance requirements; and 
d) Establishment of an education program for any homeowners' association for the 

property regarding such issues as restricted lake uses, fertilizer use, lake bank planting 
requirements, and best management practices. 

4. Through the Development Order process, a site specific ecological and hydrological 
restoration plan shall be developed, which shall include, at a minimum, the following: 
a) Excavation and grading plans; 
b) Analysis of hydrological improvements and water budget for both land surface and 

subsurface; and 
c) For areas previously farmed or impacted by mining activities and proposed for 

preservation or conservation, replanting plans, habitat restoration plans, success 
criteria, and long-term monitoring and maintenance plans. 

5. A Conservation Easement for each preservation area shall be platted as part of a master 
plat/or the property and dedicated to the appropriate maintenance entity which has been 
approved by the City. 

6. Indigenous management plans shall address human-wildlife coexistence and buffers 
between development areas and preservation/conservation areas. 

Page 212



Consistency Analysis 

December 20, 2019 

Page I 5 

7. landscaping shall use Florida Friendly Planting with low irrigation requirements in 
Common Elements. 

8. A minimum of 1.5 inches of water quality treatment shall be provided for the developed 
areas of the project. 

9. Stormwater runoff shall be directed into treatment areas prior to discharge to mining 
lakes that provide additional storage for 0.5 inches ofrunofffor the developed area. 

10. Existing vested mining uses shall be eliminated within an appropriate phasing schedule as 
part of the Planned Development rezoning approval but no later than 12/31/2041. 

11. Existing or proposed public potable water wells shall be protected. 

12. On-site and off-site improvements to transportation infrastructure needed to mitigate the 
traffic impacts ofthe Planned Development rezoning shall be provided, subject to any prior 
agreements. These improvements shall use, insofar as is practical, low impact roadway 
design, linear filter marsh retention elements, and other "green" roadway design features 
as applicable. 

13. The Planned Development project shall connect to public water and sewer service 
provided by Bonita Springs Utilities and shall connect to reclaimed water ifavailable. 

14. Written verification as to adequate public services for the Planned Development rezoning 
shall be obtained from the Bonita Springs Fire Control & Rescue District, the lee County 
Sheriff's Office, the Lee County Emergency Medical Services, and the Lee County School 
District. 

15. The proposed Planned Development rezoning shall not result in material, detrimental 
impacts to existing orfuture potable water supply resources. 

16. Golf course use is prohibited. 

Final densities and non-residential uses shall be determined as part of the Planned Development 
rezoning process and shall be based upon a demonstration of compatibility of the proposed 
development with adjacent and proximate development. 

The Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category promotes the redevelopment of the subject 
property in a manner that protects the natural resources on the property and is consistent with 
the purpose and intent of the City's Comprehensive Plan Goals, Objectives and Policies. 
Additionally, the Future Land Use Category is written to only be applicable to the subject property 
ensuring appropriate redevelopment of the property beyond the current reclamation conditions. 
Mining operations continue to be active on the subject property and completion of mining 
activities has not occurred " in any area that will not be disturbed by future operation." 
Therefore, reclamation has not begun consistent with the notes included on the approved Master 
Concept Plan. 

The currently approved reclamation plans will address the lake banks of the mine lakes as well as 
the habitat protected under conservation easement. However, they do not address the 
protection of water resources, hydrological and ecological enhancement and restoration and 
preservation of native habitats. Additionally, the proposed amendment safeguards the public 

Page 213



Consistency Analysis 
December 20, 2019 

Page I 6 

potable water supplies as compared to the City's DR/GR FLU by requiring connection to public 
utilities. 

Consistency with the Bonita Springs Water Strategy Task Force 
The City of Bonita Springs City Council established the Citizens Water Strategy Task Force after 
failing to implement the four studies performed by hydrologists, engineers, and planners, to 
evaluate and propose a recommendation on future activity within the DR/GR area. The Citizen 
Task Force was active from January to October 2014 and provided 34 Recommendations to the 
City Council, of which 29 were approved. The recommendations cover water quantity, water 
quality and water supply. The Conservation Fringe FLU category seeks to incorporate several of 
the recommendations tailored to the subject property. 

Water Quantity Recommendation #1 recommends increasing the water retention/detention 
requirements in the DRGR by 10% over the current requirement of 1.5 inches. The Conservation 
Fringe FLU will require a Hydrological Restoration Plan to be submitted for the subject property. 
A general plan will be completed at the time the property undergoes a Planned Development 
rezoning and must include an analysis of hydrological improvements and the ability to achieve 
an improved water budget. The Conservation Fringe FLU category includes this recommendation 
which requires properties to demonstrate a minimum of 1.5 inches of water quality treatment as 
well as .S inches of additional storage. 

Water Quantity Recommendation #4 promotes additional storage, flowways and water 
treatment areas in the DRGR to be integrated and promote flood protection, water quality and 
groundwater resources improvements. One of the main principles ofthe Conservation Fringe FLU 
category is the restoration, enhancement and preservation of natural resources on the subject 
property. The Conservation Fridge FLU category promotes improvements by requiring the 
restoration, enhancement and preservation of groundwater levels and wetland systems. A 
Hydrological Restoration Plan is required as part of the zoning application and it must include an 
analysis of hydrologic improvements and demonstration of an improved water budget. 
Additionally, as discussed the property must demonstrate a minimum of 1.5 inches of water 
quality treatment for the developed areas of the property and .5 inches of additional storage for 
the developed areas of the property consistent with the recommendation of the Water Task 
Force. 

Water Quantity Recommendation #10 promotes the inclusion of a linear filter marsh within a 
ROW when significant roadway improvements are undertaken. The Conservation Fringe FLU 
category includes this recommendation by requiring improvements to infrastructure to utilize 
low impact design, linear filter marshes, complete streets and other "green" roadway design 
features. The FLU category supports item 8 by requiring all landscaping to use Florida Friendly 
Plantings with low irrigations requirements. 

Water Quantity Recommendation #13 promotes increased groundwater recharge through 
improved water management. One of the main principles of the FLU is the restoration, 

Page 214



Consistency Analysis 
December 20, 2019 

Page I 7 

enhancement and preservation of natural resources. The Conservation Fringe FLU category 
supports improvements to water resources by requiring the restoration and enhancement of 
groundwater levels. To ensure the proposed development improves groundwater levels, a 
Hydrological Restoration Plan that includes an analysis of hydrological improvements and 
demonstrates and improved water budget is required at the time of the required Planned 
Development Application. 

Water Quantity Recommendation #18 promotes the clearing of historic flowways and flood 
control structures. The restoration, enhancement and preservation of existing or historic regional 
flowways. Where historic flowways exist, they should be integrated into the site design by 
enabling the development to include them in the minimum open space criteria. 

Water Quality Recommendation #3 promotes Best Management Practices and low Impact 
Design Standards. The Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category ensures that Best 
Management Practices and Low Impact Design Standards are incorporated into the development 
of the subject property through a number of conditions. Planning condition 2 sub-items a. 
through e. require the restoration, enhancement and preservation of regional flowways, 
groundwater levels, wetland systems, and indigenous habitats and incorporates these natural 
features into the minimum 60% required open space to ensure the subject property r evaluates 
these features through the development process. Planning condition 3 sub-item a. through d. 
requires an Enhancement Lake Management Plan that identifies best management practices for 
fertilizers and pesticides, outlines erosion control and bank stabilization and establishes 
perpetual lake maintenance requirements. Planning condition 4 sub-item a. and c. requires an 
Ecological and Hydrological Restoration Plan that includes Excavation and grading plans and 
replanting and habitat restoration for an area previously impacted by intense land uses. Planning 
condition 7 requires all landscaping to be Florida Friendly Plantings with low irrigation 
requirements and buffers to be established around the perimeter of the development. Buffers 
may include landscaping, walking paths and hydrological connects to adjacent parcels. Planning 
condition 12 requires a phasing schedule for infrastructure improvements and encourages those 
improvements to use low impact design, linear filter marsh elements, alternative irrigation 
supplies, and other available conservation measures. Planning condition 15 requires the 
enhancement of water resources through stormwater management, non-potable water use 
where applicable, and other alternatives. Collectively these policies require that best 
management practices and low impact design be incorporated into development yet provides 
adequate flexibility to implement practices that support and enhance the final site design at the 
time of Planned Development Application. 

Water Quality Recommendation #4 seeks to require new development within the Imperial River 
Basin BMAP to demonstrate post-development stormwater pollutant loading for nitrogen is at 
least 26.5% less than the pre-development conditions as outlined in the December 2012 BMAP 
requirements. The Conservation Fringe Category promotes reduction of pollutant loading 
through planning condition 2. sub-item a and e. which requires the restoration, enhancement 
and preservation of regional flowways and wetland systems. Incorporating these natural systems 

Page 215



Consistency Analysis 
December 20, 2019 

Page I 8 

into the development provides an opportunity for the natural features to supplement the 
stormwater management system and enhance water quality. Planning condition 3 sub-item a. 
through c. requires properties within the FLU to establish an Enhanced Lake Management Plan 
that applies best management practices for fertilizers and pesticides, provides erosion control 
and bank stabilization and establishes perpetual lake maintenance requirements. Planning 
condition 4sub-item a. and d. requires an Ecological and Hydrological Restoration Plan to include 
an analysis of hydrological improvements and an improved water budget as well as a Replanting 
Plan and Habitat Restoration Plan. Planning condition 9 minimum of 1.5 inches of water quality 
treatment. Planning condition 12requires a phasing schedule for the development and 
infrastructure improvements to incorporate low impact design, linear filter marsh elements, 
complete streets and other design alternatives. Planning condition 15 requires the enhancement 
of water resources through stormwater management, alternative non-potable water usage, and 
other alternative/green activities. These planning conditions together will ensure that future 
development within the Conservation Fringe FLU incorporates design elements that support 
water quality and quantity goals and specifically reduces nitrogen loading at least 26.5% of the 
pre-development conditions. 

Water Quality Recommendation #6 promotes incentives for HOA educational efforts relative to 
pond maintenance and fertilizer use. The Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category has 
incorporated these practices into the proposed planning condition 3 sub-item a. through d. 
requires and Enhanced Lake Management Plan that includes best management practices for 
fertilizers and pesticides, erosion and bank stabilization and perpetual lake maintenance 
requirements. Planning condition 4 sub-item a. through c. requires Ecological and Hydrological 
Restoration Plans which include excavation and grading and Replanting and Habitat Restoration 
with long-term monitoring and requires a master plat with preservation area platted into 
separate tracts and placed into a conservation easement dedicated to a maintenance entity. 
These policies ensure that maintenance and fertilizer use are considered during the design and 
development of properties within the FLU to ensure that a program is in place prior to the 
establishment of the HOA, CDD, or other appropriate maintenance entity. It is expected that 
items related to long-term maintenance would be incorporated into relevant HOA documents to 
be recorded after construction of the development prior to turnover. 

Water Supply/Drinking Water Recommendation #1 provides that the Wellfield Protection 
Ordinance be updated to restrict/prohibit contaminants near the potable supply wellfields. 
Planning condition 11 codifies this recommendation by requiring the implementation of 
protections for public potable water wells consistent with the City's Wellfield Protection 
Ordinance. Planning condition 13 requires developments within the FLU to connect to public 
water and sanitary sewer services further promoting protection of groundwater. Planning 
condition 9requires enhanced water resources through stormwater management, use of non
potable water sources where appropriate, and other available alternatives. 
Collectively these items ensure that the future development proposed for the subject property 
will ensure future protection of public water supply. 

Page 216



-- -- ----

Consistency Analysis 
December 20, 2019 

Page I 9 

Water Supply/Drinking Water Recommendation #2 promotes stormwater be redirected into filter 
marshes or other areas. Planning condition 12 promotes infrastructure improvements proposed 
to support future development of the subject property incorporate low impact design, and linear 
filter marshes, and roadway design features. The policy requires any needed infrastructure 
improvements and design elements that support the goals of the Water Task Force be provided 
and evaluated by the City at the time of Planned Development Application. 

Water Supply/Drinking Water Recommendation #3 seeks to eliminate or reduce private potable 
water wells and septic tanks. Planning Condition 11 requires the proposed development on the 
subject property to demonstrate protection of public potable water wells consistent with the 
City's Wellfield Protection Ordinance prior to planned development approval. Additionally, 
planning condition 13 requires future development on the subject property to connect to public 
water and sanitary sewer service and provide reclaimed or reused water if available. These 
policies codify this recommendation from the water task force and ensure future development 
on the subject property will eliminate the use or private water wells and septic tanks. 

Surrounding Land Uses 
In addition to establishing an appropriate and realistic designation for the redevelopment of the 
subject property, the proposed amendment promotes compatibility with the existing 
surrounding land uses and envisioned future land uses. 

---- -

FLU Designation Use 
North (Lee County) Lee DRGR &Wetlands Vacant 
South City DRGR & Resource Protection Agriculture &Vacant 

Lee DR/GR 
East (Lee County) City DRGR & Wetlands Vacant 
West City DRGR Agriculture 

In consideration of the uses surrounding the proposed residential community, the property is 
appropriately classified as redevelopment, where the residential uses will be directed toward the 
existing disturbed land and the intensity will transition from the intense Citrus Park to the low 
density Sun Coast Acres and Conservation lands immediately east. The proposed FLU will ensure 
that the future development of the subject property is a well-designed residential community 
that will be required to maintain large open spaces that incorporate the existing natural 
resources, enhance water resources, and provide appropriate connections to the adjacent 
conservation lands. After the mining operation is terminat ed, the lakes on site will be reclaimed, 
the preservation areas will be maintained, and the existing industrially zoned property will be 
converted to low density residential development on a disturbed site. 

Page 217



Consistency Analysis 
December 20, 2019 

Page I 10 

Goals, Objectives and Policies 
The City of Bonita Springs Comprehensive Plan Vision is to create a community that actively 
practices its appreciation of the great natural environment and is considered a green City due to 
its protection of natural systems and environmental consciousness. 

The City's Vision seeks to promote a walkable community with interconnecting sidewalks, 
pathways, and public transit systems with planted medians, streetscaping and strategic statuary. 
The Conservation Fringe Future Land Use seeks to promote redevelopment of the property in a 
way that incorporates the existing or historic natural systems and promotes design flexibility to 
encourage pedestrian connectivity, complete streets, and greenways. These elements must be 
incorporated into the design and approved conceptual plans of the required planned 
development rezoning to ensure consistency with the City's Comprehensive Plan Vision. 

The Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category promotes Objective 1.4 which seeks to 
eliminate uses inconsistent with the City's Future Land Use Map. The DR/GR Future Land Use on 
the subject property is a carryover category from Lee County. The proposed amendment would 
establish the Conservation Fringe FLU to acknowledge the subject property's existing mining use, 
establish a timeline for the completion of mining activities, and promote the redevelopment of 
the property to low density residential community. The proposed amendment would eliminate 
the alleged inconsistency of the subject property's existing use consistent with Object 1.4 and 
supporting policy 1.4.1. Furthermore, the proposed amendment will codify many of the 
recommendations of the Water Task Force. 

A Planned Development zoning is a required element of the Conservation Fringe FLU. If the 
proposed FLU Map and Text Amendments are approved, the applicant must also undertake a 
Planned Development zoning as outlined in proposed Policy 1.1.27. This requirement supports 
Policy 1.7.6 which requires a Planned Development zoning in locations exhibiting characteristics 
of environmentally critical areas and 1.7. 7 which permits the transfer of density from wetlands 
to developable contiguous uplands. A Residential Planned Development Application is currently 
being prepared and will be submitted to the City for review in December of 2019. The subject 
property has already maintained its on-site natural resources in a conservation easement. 
However, the opportunities on the property to enhance natural and/or water resources is 
acknowledged. A critical component of the proposed FLU is requiring the Planned Development 
zoning to ensure groundwater levels, wetlands systems and indigenous uplands are incorporated 
into the final development plan and the available density of these areas is transferred to 
developable uplands and clustered to ensure large open spaces and improvements to natural 
resources. 

The Stormwater Management/Aquifer Recharge Sub-Element states the Level of Service for 
various types of rainfall events. The proposed development will comply with the appropriate 
Level of Service. Any necessary permits for the stormwater infrastructure system will be acquired 
and designed to SFWMD standards. The proposed project will provide irrigation from the existing 
on-site lakes. An analysis of the proposed project's irrigation impacts to the Water Table Aquifer 

Page 218



Consistency Analysis 
December 20, 2019 

Page I 11 

has been conducted by Progressive Water Resources and is included in the application materials. 
Multiple scenarios were reviewed and in each case drawdown from the proposed irrigation was 
predicted at less than one inch from the nearest legal existing user. Drawdown for the nearest 
on-site wetland was also reviewed and found to be minor at 1.08 inches or less. 

Conservation/Coastal Management Element establishes that the City will encourage the 
management of wetland and upland systems to maintain and enhance native habitats, species 
diversity, water quality, and natural surface water characteristics. Additional existing indigenous 
habitat and wetlands are to be protected from future development. The proposed development 
provides approximately 368.1 acres for resource protection already placed under conservation 
easement and an additional 14 acres of Native Open Space Creation Areas. A majority of the acres 
are located along the Eastern property boundary providing an adequate buffer to the off-site 
Resource Protection lands to the East. 

The Recreation/Open Space Element states the level ofservice for parks shall be 6 acres per 1,000 
resident and seasonal population for regional parks and 1 acre per 1,000 resident and seasonal 
population for community parks. The proposed project will create demand for an additional 40 
acres of Regional Parks and 7 acres of Community Parks. The proposed development includes 
open space and native habitat providing passive recreation and preserving natural resources. In 
addition, the City owns and operates a number of Community Parks that would meet the need 
created by the proposed development. While the City does not own or operate a Regional Park, 
there are a number of parks owned and operated by Lee County and the State of Florida within 
the City that meet the level of service requirements of the proposed development. As part of the 
Settlement Agreement between the property owner and the City of Bonita Springs adopted on 
November 20, 2019, the northern portion of the subject property will become a new City Park 
with passive and active recreational uses. 

Population 

The proposed amendment would allow a maximum of 700 residential units. At 2.47 persons per 
unit (as estimated by the 2017 American Community Survey) the proposed development will 
accommodate an approximate population of 1,729 people. According to the US Census in 2010, 
Lee County had a population of 618,754. The Florida Office of Economic and Demographic 
Research estimates a countywide population of 698,468 in 2017 and 1,059,893 in the year 2045. 
The 2010 US Census established the City of Bonita Springs population at 43,857 people. The 
Office of Economic and Demographic Research projects in 2017 the City Population was 50,137. 
Both the County's and the City's growth were approximately 8% between 2010-2017. The 
population increase from the proposed amendment is significantly less than the City and County 
average increase. The proposed Future Land Use Map Amendment will enable the City to keep 
pace with projected population increase while promoting a clustered form of development, 
preservation of native habitat, connection to central water and sanitary sewer systems and 
enhance the protection of natural resources. Therefore, the slight increase in population capacity 
is not detrimental to the City from the proposed amendment. 

Page 219



Consistency Analysis 
December 20, 2019 

Page I 12 

Furthermore, the City's current Future Land Use Map incorrectly identifies the subject property 
as being within the City's DR/GR and Resource Protection Future Land Use Categories. Since a 
City Sponsored Comprehensive Plan Amendment was never undertaken, the property has 
retained it's Lee County Future Land Use designation from the time of annexation in 2003. The 
applicant's proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment establishes a new FLU category 
consistent with the existing conditions of the subject property to promote a low density 
residential development as recommended by the previous City sponsored stucHes of this area. As 
a result, the proposed text and map amendments will ensure the City's Comprehensive Plan is 
consistent with the requirements of Florida Statute 163.3177(f), (6)(a) and l0(a). 

Additional Requirements for Specific land Use Map Amendments 

Urban Sprawl 
The basis for evaluation of whether a comprehensive plan amendment discourages the 
proliferation of urban sprawl was significantly revised by the 2011 Florida Legislature. Under the 
Community Planning Act, Rule 9J-5 of the Florida Administrative Code was repealed and with it 
the detailed urban sprawl methodology. In its place the Legislature adopted the following key 
provisions. 

163.3177(5)(0) Each local government comprehensive plan must include at least two planning 
periods, one covering at least the first 5-year period occurring after the plan's adoption and one 
covering at least a 10 year period. Additional planning periods for specific components, elements, 
land use amendments, or projects shall be permissible and accepted as part of the planning 
process. 

163-3177(6)(0)4 The element shall accommodate at least the minimum amount of land required 
to accommodate the medium projections of the University of Florida's Bureau of Economic and 
Business Research for at least a 10-year planning period unless otherwise limited under s.380. 05, 
including related rules of the Administration Commission. 

Note that the emphasis of Comprehensive Planning Practice has shifted from providing maximum 
land use allocations to an emphasis on ensuring minimum land use allocations. 

The urban sprawl test is carried out through the following provisions. The proposed amendment 
achieves at least four of the factors and therefore it must be concluded it discourages the 
proliferation of urban sprawl. 

163.3177(6}(a)9.b. The Future land use element or plan amendment shall be determined to 
discourage the proliferation of urban sprawl if it incorporates a development pattern or urban 
form that achieves four or more of the following: 

{I) Directs or locates economic growth and associated land development to geographic areas 
of the community in a manner that does not have an adverse impact on and protects 
natural resources and ecosystems. 

Page 220



Consistency Analysis 
December 20, 2019 

Page I 13 

{II} Promotes the efficient and cost-effective provision or extension of public infrastructure 
and services. 

{Ill) Promotes walkable and connected communities and provides for compact development 
and a mix of uses at densities and intensities that will support a range of housing choices 
and a multimoda/ transportation system, including pedestrian, bicycle, and transit if 
available. 

{IV) Promotes conservation of water and energy 
(VJ Preserves agricultural areas andactivities, including silviculture, and dormant, unique, and 

prime farmlands and soils. 
{VI} Preserves open space andnatural lands and providesfor public open space and recreation 

needs. 
(VIII} Provides uses, densities and intensities of use and urban form that would remediate an 

existing or planned development pattern in the vicinity that constitutes sprawl or if it 
provides for an innovative development pattern such as transit-oriented developments or 
new towns as defined ins. 163.3164. 

The Conservation Fringe FLU and the Map Amendment discourages the proliferation of urban 
sprawl. The subject property is located within an area of the City that has been identified by 4 
separate land use studies as being appropriate for residential development. Additionally, the 
existing natural resources on-site are already protected by a conservation easement, which will 
not be eliminated with any future development ensuring the continued protection of these 
natural resources. These conservation areas are currently required to be connected to promote 
wildlife movement, these connections can be expanded during the required Planned 
Development to promote passive recreation on-site as well. The Conservation Fringe FLU 
requires the subject property to connect to central water and sewer services. A dedication of 
right-of-way for future improvement to Bonita Grande Road already exists via the current zoning 
approvals on the subject property and will be retained in any future development plans 
consistent with Policy 1.1.27. This same policy also requires the design of the proposed 
residential subdivision to pedestrian, bicycle connections, greenways, linear filter marshes, etc. 
to establish a walkable and compact community with multimodal options at the time of the 
required Planned Development Application. Policy 1.1.27. requires Florida Friendly Planting and 
low irrigation landscaping be incorporated into the future development plans for the property. 
The provided analysis from Progressive Water Resources demonstrates that irrigation will be 
provided from the large on-site mining lakes conserving water and energy and Policy 1.1.27. 
requires an enhanced lake management plan which will take this condition into account. The 
proposed amendment discourages urban sprawl by incorporating at least 4 of the listed elements 
in 163.317(6)(a)9.b. specifically items (I), (11), (Ill), (IV), and (VI). 

Sound Planning Principles 
The subject property has historically been impacted and without a redevelopment program will 
not be reclaimed after mining activities cease. The proposed amendment to establish the 
Conservation Fringe FLU to redevelop the property in a manner that is consistent with the vision 
and intent of the DR/GR Future Land Use while codifying the recent Water Task Force 

Page 221



. . 
Consistency Analysis 
December 20, 2019 

Page j 14 

Recommendations. The proposed amendment will provide a redevelopment opportunity for the 
disturbed property while ensuring that performance based standards are put into place to 
promote restoration, enhancement and preservation of existing hydrological and ecological 
resources on site. Utilized the existing disturbed footprint for the proposed development will 
ensure existing conservation lands on and off site are not impacted. The amendment is therefore 
consistent with sound planning principles. 

Adjacent Local Governments 
The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals and policies of the state, regional, and 
local comprehensive plans and is compatible with the surrounding land uses. It is compatible with 
the surrounding land uses and natural resources. 

Relevant Regional Policy Plan Goals and Policies 
When the Florida Legislature enacted the Community Planning Act of 2011 (Chapter 2011-139, 
Laws of Florida) the consistency requirement between local comprehensive plans and the state 
comprehensive plan was eliminated. 

The following goals and strategies from the Southwest Florida Strategic Regional Policy Plan are 
relevant to the amendment. 

Goal 1: Supply a variety ofhousing types in various price ranges to ensure that all residents have 
access to decent and affordable housing. 

The increase in residential density will provide additional options for housing types within this 
area of the city, thereby furthering this goal. 

Strategy: Maintain physical infrastructure to meet growth demands. 
Central water and wastewater services will be available to the subject property. These systems 
already provide the necessary capacity for the proposed amendment. The amendment is also 
supportive of the following strategies and goals. 

Strategy: Maintain and improve the natural, historic, cultural and tourist related resources as 
primary regional economic assets. 

Strategy: Ensure sustainable volumes of natural resources for economic productivity 

Goal 2: The diversity and extent of the Region's protected natural systems will increase 
consistency beyond that existing in 2001. 

The amendment will strengthen the protection and sustainability of natural resources through 
the commitment of preserving approximately 368.1 acres as protected preserved area as part of 
the proposed Map Amendment. Natural resources will be further protected through the 
connection to central water and wastewater service. 

Page 222



j Fort Myers, Florida 33901 

Phone (239) 337-3993 I Toll Free (866) 337-7341 
www.rrorris-depew.com 

ENGINEERS • PLANNERS · SURVEYORS 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

Community Meeting Summary for Bonita Grande (Applications: CPA 13-06941 and RPO) 
Date &Time: December 19, 2019 at 6:00pm 

Location: St Leo Parish Life Center, 28388 Beaumont Road, Bonita Springs, 

Attendees: 
Project Team: 

Ned Dewhirst-Owner's Representative 

Neale Montgomery, Esquire, Project Attorney, Pavese Law Firm 
Tina Ekblad, MPA, AICP, LEED AP, Partner-Planning Director, Morris Depew Associates 

No public were in attendance. 

Page 223

www.rrorris-depew.com


--

BONITA GRANDE PUBLIC INFORMATION SESSION .SIGN-IN SHEET 

Project: Bonita Grande CPA & RPD 
_____._!_M_e_eting Date: 121191201_9 ____ __+-_ 

Place/Room: St. Leo Parish Life Center 28388 Beaumont Road Bonita Springs, Fl 

,, - -Name: 
~ 

Phone: - E-Mail: - a ,.~ 

-

-

r----·~ -
~ 

Page 1 of 1 

Page 224



-- --- - -

Phone (239) 337-3993 I Toll Free (866) 337-7341 
www.rrorris-depew.com

ENGINEERS • PLANNERS •SURVEYORS 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

Notice of Informational Public Meeting for Bonita Grande Mine 
(Application: CPA13-06941-BOS) 

You are receiving this notice as your property is located within I 000 feet of the Bonita Grande 
Mine located at located at 25501 Bonita Grande Drive, Bonita Springs, FL 34135. An 
information meeting will be held as required by Sec. 4-28 of the Bonita Springs Land 
Development Code. 

The meeting will include a presentation by Morris-Depew Associates regarding the applications 
to establish the Conservation Fringe Future Land Use Category, amend the Future Land Use 
Map, and promote a residential subdivision of 700 units on the property. The Comprehensive 
Plan Amendment is application number CPA 13-06941-BOS) and the Residential Planned 
Development Application is in the process of being prepared. All applications and requests are 
consistent with the Settlement Agreement adopted by the City of Bonita Springs on November 
20,2019. 

The public meeting will be held on 

Date & Time: Thursday, December 19, 2019 at 6:00pm 

Location: St. Leo Parish Life Center 28388 Beaumont Road, Bonita Springs 34134 

Should you have question or comments on the proposal. Tina Ekblad, MPA, AICP, LEED AP, 
Partner-Planning Director with Morris Depew Associates, Inc. can be reached at 239-337-3993. 

I :· ,,_, - . t ','r 1]• '.1,'' ,. ' ~, I . . • , I • i'• J,, ..) ' _, , -__ ,,. I I . ' " , ~- . .I 
Page 225

www.rrorris-depew.com


.. 

0003922369 / FNP-0000005058 
The News-Press 
media group 
news-press.com "G,\..HITT COMP,\NY 

Attn: 
MORRIS DEPEW ASSOC 
2914 CLEVELAND AVE 
FORT MYERS, FL 33901 

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF LEE: 
Before the 11nders!~~uthority personally appeared 

il~ ~\di!h , who on oath 
says lhal he or she is a Legal Assistant of the 
News-Press, a daily newspaper published at Fort Myers 
in Lee County, Florida: thal the attached copy of 
advertisement, being a Legal Ad in the matter of 

Notice of Meetings 

In lhe Twentieth Judicial Circuit Court was published in 
said newspaper in lhe issues of: 

11/28/19 

AHiant rurther says that the said News-Press is a paper 
of general circulation daily in Lee County and published 
at Fort Myers. in said Lee County, Florida. and that the 
said newspaper has heretofore been continuously 
published in said Lee County, Florida each day and has 
been entered as periodicals mane, at the post office in 
Fort Myers, in said Lee County, Florida, for a period of 
one year next preceding the first publication of the 
attached copy of advertisement; and affiant further says 
that he or she has never paid nor promised any person, 
firm or corpora hon any discount. rebate. commission or 
refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for 
publication in the sai(I newspaper. 

Sworn to and Subscribed before me this 28th of 
November 2019, by legal clerk who is personally known 
lome. 

Notary State or Wisconsin, County of Brown 

This is not an invoice 

No6ce of public meeUng: ~n lnforma-
1ional meetlno wil be contllcted as•• 
gulrad l7f Sac. 4-28 ot 1he Booila 
Springs Lilnd 0.-.elopment Code. The 
meeting_ wil Include a Jl(esenlallon by 
Monts•Dtpew Asioclate• 1ega,ding a 
Comprehe,,slve Plan Am1ndmllnt and 
Resk!enllal Planned 0.-.e~mant. The 

r;=,,:,~.,:~ l!i.~~~t:rit. 
Per the Setilement Ao,aemenl whh lhe 
City approved on November 20, 2019. 

:::: =~:'ion'1~r~s ~u:•·~~ 
UseCategory, amend ;JI, FLU, end p,o
mote a iusldemial subdi>islon ol 700 

;f:u.:'~s~~e ~r:J:~,:'~~~-ben:,•,Jt
rovl1JW by The City or Bonlla Sorings. 
Tho pub&: meeting wm be held al St 
lee Parish UJ& Cen1tt on December 19. 
2019 at 6:00l"ft al 28388 Boaum,,nt 
Aced, ao,.;ia Spmgs34134. 
A0'3922389 f 1/28/2019 

Page 226

https://news-press.com


• 11119/2019 Variance Map and Info 

Date of Report: November 19, 2019 
Buffer Distance: 1000 feet Click here to download the map unag~..mming~~ 

"21) and csv fonnatted information,.Parcels Affected: 48 
Subject Parcel: 20-47-26-Bl-00001.0000 

MAPOWNER NAME AND ADDRESS STRAP AND LOCATION LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
INDEX 

LEECOUNTY 07-47-26-00.-00001.0000 ALLOFSEC07 l 
CONSERVATION 2020 ACCESS UNDETERMINED TWN47RGE26 
POBOX398 BONITA SPRINGS FL 
FORT MYERS FL 33902 
LEBCOUNTY 08-47-26-00-00001.0000 ALL SEC 8 LESS S 112 OF 2 
CONSERVATION 2020 ACCESS UNDETERMINED SE 1/4 OF SE l/4 
POBOX398 BONITA SPRINGS FL 
FORT MYERS FL 33902 
SOUTH FLA WATER MGMT DIST 08-47-16-00-00002.0000 SE 1/4 OF SE l/4 OF SE 1/4 3 
LAND MANAGEMENT ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
POBOX24680 BONITA SPRINGS FL 
WEST PALM BEACH FL 33416 
K1WINO~LLC 08-47-16-00-00002.0010 SW 1/4 OF SB 1/4 OF SB 1/4 4 
11635 BRISTOL CHASE DR ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
TAMPA FL 33626 BONITA SPRINGS FL 
COAKLEY MARTHA L 0M7-26-00-00001,0020 S 112 OF S 1/2 OF S 1/2 OF s 
27036 LEITNER LN ACCESS UNDETERMINED SW 1/4 LESS PAR 1.002A 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 34135 . BONITA SPRINGS FL 
SOUTH FLA WATER MGMT DIST 09-47-26-00-0000t.00lA SECT 9 LESS NW 1/4 OF NE 114 6 
LAND MAN1GE~E]l1T ACCESS UNDETERMINED OF NE 1/4 + E 1/2 OF NE 1/4 OF 

https:llgissvr.leepa.org/Yariance/variancerepo,:t.aspx?fotiold=10352422&distan.ce=1000 · ·1/4 
Page 227

https:llgissvr.leepa.org/Yariance/variancerepo,:t.aspx?fotiold=10352422&distan.ce=1000


-----

- -- --------- - - ---------

- -

- - -- -

---- -

Page 228

11/19/2019 Variance Map and Info 

POBOX24680 BONITA SPRINGS FL NE 1/4 + N 1/2 OF S 1/2 OF NE 1/4 
WEST PALM BEACH FL 33416 + 

S 1/2 OF N 1/2 OF SE 1/4 +N 1/2 
OF S 1/2 OF S 1/2 OF SW 1/4 + S 
1/2 OF S 1/2 OF S l/2 OF SW 1/4 

KARAN ROMAlN 09-47-26-00-00001.0130 N 1/2 OF S 1/2 OF S 1/2 OF 7 
2546 GRAND AVE ACCESS UNDETERMINED SW 1/4 LS OR 1121 PG 1224 
BRONX NY 10468 BONITA SPRINGS FL----- ----------- ·-
'SOUTH FLA WATER MGMT DIST 16-47-26-00-00001.0010 SECT 16 TWN 47 RGE 26 8 
LAND MANAGEMENT ACCESS UNDETERMINED LESS SPLITS 
POBOX24680 BONITA SPRINGS FL 
WEST PALM BEACH FL 33416- ----- - -- - ---- ------~--- -----------
LEE COUNTY l6-47-26-00-00002.006A N 1/2 OF SE l/4 OF NW 1/4 9 
CONSERVATION 2020 ACCESS UNDETERMINED OFSW 1/4 LESS E30FT + W 
POBOX398 BONITA SPRINGS FL 30 FT FOR RD ROW 
FORT MYERS FL 33902 

LEE COUNTY 16-47-26-00-00002.006B w 1/2 OF S 1/2 OF NE l/4 lO 
CONSERVATION 2020 ACCESS UNDETERMINED OF NW l/4 OF SW 1/4 
POBOX398 BONITA SPRINGS FL 
FORT MYERS FL 33902 - - .. -
LEE COUNTY 16-47-26-00-0000::Z:.006C Nll2 OF NWl/4 OF NWI/4 OF ll 
POBOX398 ACCESS UNDETERMlNED SWl/4 
FORT MYERS FL 33902 BONITA SPRINGS FL 
LEE COUNTY l 6-47-26-00-00002.006E W 1/2 OF N 1/2 OF NE 1/4 12 
CONSERVATION 2020 ACCESS UNDETERMlNED OF NW 1/4 OF SW l/4 
POBOX398 BONITA SPRINGS FL 
FORT MYERS FL 33902 

CITRUS PARK TROST INTL lNC 18-47-26-B2-00001.l000 PARL IN E 1/2 AS DESC 13 
25501 TROST BLVD ACCESS UNDETERMINED IN OR 1689 PG 982 
DONITA SPRINGS FL 34135 BONITA SPRINGS FL LESS INST#2009000112547 

CITRUS PARK TROST INTL INC l 8-47-26-B3-00001.0010 PARL IN S E 1/4 AS DESC 14 
25501 TROST BLVD 24621 CITRUS PARK BLVD IN OR 1638 PG 1286 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 34135 BONITA SPRINGS FL 34135 LBS RD R/W OR 2308/32001-------·--------· ........ -
CITRUS PARK TROST INTL INC 18-47-26-B3-0000I .0020 SE 1/4 OF SEC LESS OR 1689 PG 15 
25501 TROST BLVD ACCESS UNDETERMINED 982+ 

._ BONITA SPRINGS FL 34135 BONITA SPRINGS FL OR 1638 PG 1286 + SUBD 
STONEBURNER KEVIN L + 19-47-26-82-00001.1010 IN SE 1/4 OR 1689/984 1- E 16 
465 BAYFRONT PL 25991 CITRUS PARK BLVD 2 l 52FT OF Nl/2 OF LES RD R 
NAPLES FL 34102 BONITA SPRlNGS FL 34135 /W OR 2308/3200 I I.I03 

.......... •n- --•- -

CITRUS PARK TROST INTL INC 19-47-26..B3-00001.1030 BNG A SEI/4 COR RUN N89D. 17 
25501 TROST BLVD ACCESS UNDETERMlNED 56 09 SW 1798.51 FT THENN 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 34135 BONITA SPRINGS FL 1311.35 THEN S89D 56 95 E 

·- ·------ --· ·-· -· --·- ·--------- --------·---· ---·-
SOUTH FLA WATER MGMT DIST 21-47-26-00-00001.0000 ALL OF SEC 21 TWN 47 RGE 26 18 
LAND MANAGEMENT ACCESS UNDETE RMINED LESS SPLITS 
POBOX24680 BONITA SPRINGS FL 
WEST PALM BEACH FL 33416 

LEE COUNTY 21-47-26-00-00001.6050 E 1/2 OF N 1/2 OF NE 1/4 OF SW 19 
PO BOX 398 ACCESS UNDETERMINED ll40F SW 1/4 
FORT MYERS FL 33902 BONITA SPRINGS FL- - - -------------------------------1
LEE COUNTY 21-47-26-00-0000l.605B W 1/2 OF THEN 1/2 20 
PO BOX 398 ACCESS UNDETERMlNED OF THE NE 1/4OF 
FORT MYERS FL 33902 BONITA SPRINGS FL THE SW 1/4 OF SW l/4 

LEE COUNTY 21-47-26-00-00001.6100 NW 1/4 OF SE 1/4 OF SW l/4 21 
PO BOX 398 ACCESS UNDETERMINED OFSW 1/4 
FORT MYERS FL 33902 BONITA SPRINGS FL 

LEE COUNTY 21-47-26-00-00001.610B SE 1/4 OF SE 1/4 OF SW 1/4 22 
PO BOX 398 ACCESS UNDETERMINED OFSW 1/4 
FORT MYERS FL 33902 BONITA SPRINGS FL 

LEE COUNTY 21-47-26..00-00001.610C SW 1/4 OF SE 1/4 OF SW 1/4 23 

https://glssvr.!eepa.org/variance/variancereport.aspx7foliold=10352422&distence=1000 214 

https://glssvr.!eepa.org/variance/variancereport.aspx7foliold=10352422&distence=1000


- -

- ----

- - ------ --

- --

Page 229

• ,11/19~ 019 Vananoo Map and Info 

POBOX398 ACCESS UNDETERMINED OF SW 1/4 
FORT MYERS FL 33902 BONITA SPRINGS FL -------~- ------1SOUTH FLA WATER MGMT DIST 2f::47-26-00-00001.0000 PARL LOC INN 1/2 OF N 1/2 AKA 24 
LAND MANAGEMENT I(_ ·,CESS UNDETERMINED TRS 5 + 8-24 + 26 + 27 
PO BOX 24680 BUNJTA SPRINGS FL 
WEST PALM BEACH FL 33416 
FLOWER RITA JANE+ 
POBOX3205 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 34133 --------·-
HAYES PAMELA KAY TR 
900 NW 8TH AVE BLDG C 
FORT LAUDERDALE FL 33311 
ELMORE ROBERT TR 
900 NW 8TII AVE 
FORT LAUDERDALE FL 33311 -- -·-- --PERGJINI FREDERIK 
60 HILLSIDE RD 
GREENWICH CT 06830 

PERGJINI FREDERIK+ VESNA 
60 HILLSIDE RD 
GREENWICH CT 06830 
PERGJINI FREDERIK+ VESNA 
60 HILLSIDE ROAD 
GREENWICH CT 06830 

BEACH ROAD & 29 LLC 
PO BOX 366748 
1BONITA SPRINGS FL 34136 
BEACH ROAD & 29 LLC 
PO BOX 366148 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 34136 

PERGilNI FREDERIK J + VESNA 
60 HILLSIDE RD 
GREENWICH CT 06830 
GRUNWALD JOHN 
304 ELIZABETH RD 
LAKE WORTH FL 33461 
GATTERER JOANNE 
4024 ST ANDREWS LN 
SPRING HILL TN 37174 

TST BONITA LLC t 
460NMAINST 
WALLINGFORD CT 06492 
TST BONITA LLC + 
460N MAIN ST 
WALLINGFORD CT 06492 -~---
TST BONITA LLC + 
460NMAINST 
WALLINGFORD CT 06492 
TST BONITA LLC + 
460NMAINST 
WALLINGFORD CT 06492 
TST BONITA LLC + 
460NMAINST 
WALLINGFORD CT 06492 
BONITA EAST 22 LLC 
165 ANNALISA CT 
BLOOMINGDALE IL 60108 
TST BONJTA LLC + 

29-47-26-00-00002.0000 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 
29-47-26-00-00002.0120 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 

29-47-26-00-00002.0140 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRlNGS FL 
2947-26-00-00002.0170 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL .. __ 
29-47-26-00-00002.0210 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 

29-47-26-00-00002.p220 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 

29-47-26-00-00002.0320 
ACCESS lJNDETERMlNED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 

29-47-26-00-00002.0330 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRJNGS FL 

29-47-26-00-00002.0490 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 

- --·- -- --
29-4 7-Ui-00-00002.0S00 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRlNGS FL 
29-47-26-Bl-00101.0000 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 

29-47-26-Bl-00105.0000 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 
29-47-26-Bl-00109.0000 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 
29-47-26-Bl-00110.0000 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 
29-47-26-B1-00111.0000 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRlNGS FL 

29-47-26-B1-00112.0000 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONJTA SPRINGS FL 

29-47-26-B1-00113.0000 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONJTA SPRINGS FL 

29-47-26-B2-00002.0030 

THEN 1/2 OF W 1/2 OF SW 
1/4 OF NW 1/4 OF NE 1/4 
LESSR/W 

25 

THE SE 1/4 OF NE 1/4 OF NE 
1/4 +THE NE 1/4 OF SE 1/4 
OF NE 1 /4 LESS R/W-~---

26 

THEE 1/2 OF SW 1/4 OF NE 
l/4 OF NE 1/4 LESS R/W 

27 

THE W 1/2 OF NE 1/4 OF NE 
1/4 OF NE 1/4 LESS R/W 

28 

-
THEE 1/2 OF NW 1/4 OF NW 
1/4 OF NE 1/4 LESS R/W 

29 

THEW 1/2 OF NE 1/4 OF NW 
1/4 OF NE 1/4 LESS R/W 

30 

----w 1/2 OF NW 1/4 OF NE 1/4 
OF NE 1/4 LESS R/W 

31 

E 1/ 2 OF NW 1/4 OF NE 1/4 
OFNE 1/4 
AKA TR 3 SUNCOAST ACRES 
LESSR/W 

32 

E 1/2 OF SW 1/4 OF NW 1/4 
OF NE 1/4 LESS S 25 FT R/W 

33 

-
E 1/2 OF NE 1/4 OF NW 1/4 
OF NE 1/4 LESS R/W 

-
34 

SUN COAST ACRES UNREC. 
OR23 PG 113 

. 
35 

LOTS I THRU 4 LESS R/W 

SUN COAST ACRES UNREC. 
OR 23 PG 113 
LOTS 5 THRU 8 LESS R/W 

36 

SUN COAST ACRES UNREC. 
OR 23 PG 113 
LOT 9LESS R/W 

37 

SUN COAST ACRES UNREC. 
OR 23 PG 113 
LOT 10 LESS R/W 

38 

SUN COAST ACRES UNREC. 
OR23 PO 113 
LOT 11 LESS R/W 

39 

SUN COAST ACRES UNREC 
OR23 PG 113 
LOT 12 LESS R/W 

40 

SUN COAST ACRES UNREC. 
OR23PT 113 
LOTS 13 THRU 16 LESS R/W 

41 

THEW 1/2 OF NW 1/4 OF NW 42 
https://glssvr.leepa.org/varlance/variancereport.aspx?follold=10352422&dlslance.:1000 3/4 

https://glssvr.leepa.org/varlance/variancereport.aspx?follold=10352422&dlslance.:1000


Page 230

City of Bonita Springs 

c/o Arleen Hunter, City Managerc/4 c.-~ Hq.,, ...J<-,,. - Adev-i Ht,..,-k~ 
9101 Bonita Beach Road 

~ 910 J Bo"';-k 'Beo-c.k 'Ro(. Bonita Springs, FL 34135 

lo~{-...._ 5 ?n'1.1.gs) fLJ l./135 

11/19/2019 

460NMAINST 
WALLINGFORD CT 06492 

SMOKER DOUGLAS M + SARA l/2 + 
58269 COUNTY ROAD 29 
GOSHEN IN 46528 

RABORG CHARLES L +REBEKAH K 
714 CHESTNUT HILL RD 
FOREST HILL MD 21050 

DACHUK DONALD 
13060 RIO GRANDE DR 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 34135 

BEACH ROAD & 29 LLC 
PO BOX 366748 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 34136 

POPELISAL 
89114TH ST UNIT 3610 
DENVER CO 80202 

PINNACLE TOWERS INC 
4017 WASHINGTON RD PMB 353 
MCMURRAY PA 15317 

AJ..J OVle.. Ae,\j.11XJ"'w\ lvU.r -to C\} (seP- be.low') 

-) C- h.. r . 
I. J O \- &.., i-f,... Sryt"'-'r--

Variance Map and Info 

ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 

29-47-26-Dl-00001.0090 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 

19-47-26-B2..00002.0200 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 

29-47-26-B2-00002.0420 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 

29-47-26-B2--00002.0470 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 

29-47-16-B1-00002.0550 
ACCESS UNDETERMINED 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 

30-47-26-B2-00001.007A 
26050 BONITA GRANDE DR 
BONITA SPRINGS FL 34135 

1/4 OF NE 1/4 LESS R/W 

THE&'2 OF SE l/4 OF NW 
1/4· ~E 1/4 LESS R/W 

43 

THE E 1/2 OF NE 1/4 OF NE 
l/4OFNE 1/4 

44 

W 1/2 OF SE 1/4 OF NW 1/4 
OF NE 1/4 LESS R/W 

45 

W 1/2 OF SW 1/4 OF NE 1/4 
OF NE 1/4 LESS R/W 

46 

S 1/2 OF W 1/2 OF SW 1/4 
OF NW 1/4 OF NE l/4 LESS 
RDR/W 

NE 1/4 OF NE 1/4 LESS THE 
W586.38 FT OF S499.63 FT 

47 

48 

https:lfgissvr.leepa.org/varlance/variancereport.aspx?folioid=10352422&dislance»1000 

https:lfgissvr.leepa.org/varlance/variancereport.aspx?folioid=10352422&dislance�1000


 
  
 

 
 

 
  

 

  

   
  

  

      
   

    
     

      
      

 
 

 
 

 

  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

  

 

Local Planning Agency
Thursday, November 14, 2019 

9:00 A.M. 
Bonita Springs City Hall 
9101 Bonita Beach Road 

Bonita Springs, Florida 34135
MINUTES 

I. CALL TO ORDER. 

9:10:52 AM Chairwoman Carolyn Gallagher called the meeting to 
order at 9:10 A.M. 

II. ROLL CALL. 

Present Staff Members present 
Carolyn Gallagher Derek Rooney, City Attorney 
Sam Vincent Jacqueline Genson, Community Development 
Linda Schwartz 

Guest 
Dr. Margaret Banyan, FGCU 

Absent 
Jeffrey Maturo
Rex Sims 
Don Colapietro 

III. PRESENTATION BY FLORIDA GULF COAST UNIVERSITY ON COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN AMENDMENTS FOR DOWNTOWN AND OPTIONAL AMENDMENTS 
(TRANSPORTATION, HOUSING, AND FUTURE LAND USE). 

9:11:57 AM Dr. Banyan presented a PowerPoint presentation on 
Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Downtown. (Copy of presentation
has been received into record and placed in meeting file) 

9:26:42 AM Dr. Banyan opened discussion for any questions regarding 
the transportation component. 

9:50:35 AM Mr. John Dulmer clarified questions regarding the process
of land development and future developments. 

9:54:11 AM Dr. Banyan presented the expected amendment timeline. 

9:54:47 AM Dr. Banyan concluded her presentation. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: No public comments. 

tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114091052&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;2b55492e&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114091052&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;2b55492e&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114091157&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;66a149d3&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114091157&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;66a149d3&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114092642&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;d726e802&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114092642&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;d726e802&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095035&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;ffff4b60&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095035&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;ffff4b60&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095411&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;322ef21b&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095411&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;322ef21b&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095447&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;5c325b24&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095447&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;5c325b24&quot;


 

 

   
  

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

  
 

 
   

  
 
 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 
 

  
  

 
 

9:55:41 AM Derek Rooney explained what should happen in this meeting 
since there is no quorum. Mr. Rooney’s recommendation is to go 
ahead with the hearing and provide comments. 

IV. REVIEW OF THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE FOR CONSISTENCY WITH THE CITY 
OF BONITA SPRINGS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

A. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BONITA SPRINGS AMENDING THE BONITA 
SPRINGS LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE CHAPTERS 3 (DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS) AND 
4 (ZONING); RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION, SURFACE WATER 
MANAGEMENT, AND DRAINAGE; AMENDING SECTION 3-136. – ADDITIONAL 
REQUIRED SUBMITTALS; AMENDING SECTION 3-193. - FINAL INSPECTION AND 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE; AMENDING SECTION 4-2224 CLEARING, 
GRADING, OR FILLING OR LAND; PROVIDE FOR CONFLICTS OF LAW, 
SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION AND SCRIVENER’S ERRORS, MODIFICATIONS 
THAT MAY ARISE FROM CONSIDERATION AT PUBLIC HEARING AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

9:57:47 AM Mr. Rooney read the title block of the Ordinance into 
record. 

9:58:31 AM John Dulmer presented an overview of the Ordinance. 

9:58:56 AM Stuart Smith and Trisha Goff, Engineers with Community 
Development, presented the changes in the Land Development Code, 
based on elevation changes. Currently, Storm Water plans are 
required but engineer plans are not, on single family homes. 

10:29:38 AM Mr. Rooney provided direction to the LPA in regards to the 
changes, however, there are no recommendations that can be given 
because of the quorum. 

10:31:34 AM Mr. Vincent feels a lot of things can be implied. He wants 
to make sure we are improving the future of our city. 

10:32:40 AM Chairwoman Gallagher wants to make sure it is 
environmentally safe. 

10:33:54 AM Mr. Vincent is concerned about the additional cost for the 
homeowner. 

10:35:41 AM Jackie confirms we are consistent with other 
jurisdictions. 

10:37:07 AM Stuart Smith discussed Section 3-136, additional 
requirements, which requires Developers to take their project and 
insert it into the new model, ICPR, to show the impact and 
compatibility of the project on the city’s stormwater drainage 
system for the 100 year storm.  He also discussed a new requirement 
that developers provide an “as built” drawings/plan, which shows 
current and updated plans, that might have changed during the 
construction stage. 

tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095541&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;1328a103&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095541&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;1328a103&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095747&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;837b4b91&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095747&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;837b4b91&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095831&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;c2c29be3&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095831&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;c2c29be3&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095856&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;8bc4af13&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114095856&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;8bc4af13&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114102938&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;14820eba&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114102938&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;14820eba&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114103134&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;ee411d06&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114103134&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;ee411d06&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114103240&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;6775d04e&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114103240&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;6775d04e&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114103354&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;36b16ad2&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114103354&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;36b16ad2&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114103541&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;49f45140&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114103541&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;49f45140&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114103707&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;aff3f48e&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114103707&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;aff3f48e&quot;


  
 

 

  

     
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  

              

  
                  

 

 

  

 

  

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 

 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

10:43:51 AM Ms. Schwartz and Mr. Vincent provided support and praise 
this change and feels Mr. Smith did a very good job with the 
amendment to this Ordinance 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: No Public Comment. 

V. NEXT MEETING. Thursday, December 12, 2019 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 09/12/19 

Committee Member xxx motioned to approve the minutes as
presented, Committee Member XXX seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

10:47:14 AM Chairwoman Gallagher announced her resignation with the 
LPA and also 

VII. ADJOURNMENT. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Recording Secretary 

APPROVED: 

BONITA SPRINGS ZONING BOARD: 

Date:___________________________ 
AUTHENTICATED: 

Chairwoman 

Debbie Filipek, City Clerk 

tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114104351&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;282bc6d2&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114104351&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;282bc6d2&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114104714&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;a921beed&quot;
tre://?label=&quot;Local&nbsp;Planning&nbsp;Agency&quot;?datetime=&quot;20191114104714&quot;?path=&quot;C:/FTR&nbsp;Recordings&quot;?Data=&quot;a921beed&quot;

	01-23-20 Local Planning Agency Agenda
	Local Planning Agency
	Local Planning Agency
	Thursday, January 23, 2020
	Thursday, January 23, 2020

	2019 Water Supply Plan Update (Corrected)
	CPA19-63379&-66165_BOS_City_Staff_Report_Transmittal_Hearing-Final
	11-14-19 Local Planning Agency Minutes
	Local Planning Agency
	Local Planning Agency
	Thursday, November 14, 2019
	Thursday, November 14, 2019




